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%
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 Change

Year End Balances
Total Assets $ 12,995,851 $ 13,615,010 (4.5)%
Total Deposits 10,955,189 11,490,021 (4.7)
Loans and Leases, Net of Unearned Income 8,870,311 9,333,107 (5.0)
Shareholders’ Equity 1,262,912 1,222,244 3.3

For The Year
Net Income $ 37,569 $ 22,942 63.8
Return on Average Assets 0.28% 0.17% 64.7
Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity 3.03% 1.85% 63.8

Per Share
Net Income: Basic $ 0.45 $ 0.28 60.7

Diluted 0.45 0.27 66.7
Dividends 0.14 0.88 (84.1)
Book Value at Year End 15.13 14.64 3.3

Average Diluted Shares Outstanding 83,509,759 83,515,040 0.0
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We are pleased to report that
significant progress was made in 2011
toward returning BancorpSouth to its
traditional levels of profitability. The
year saw much improvement in
problem asset resolution and in key
credit quality indicators.  Among other
credit metrics, this progress included
positive trends in our provision for
credit losses, nonperforming loans,
nonaccrual loan formation, and near
term delinquencies.  Newly identified
non-accrual loans, which declined
sequentially for four of the last five
quarters through year-end 2011, were
at their lowest level in over two years
for the fourth quarter of 2011.  More
than one-half of all non-accrual loans
were paying as agreed at year end, up
from 36% at the end of 2010, and
net charge-offs declined 28% for
2011 from 2010.  

In addition to this meaningful progress
in credit quality, BancorpSouth’s core
operations continued to produce
consistent, solid results, even in an
uncertain economy.  We saw strong
performance from our community
banking group, as well as in our

specialized lines of business, including
our insurance group, our asset
management group, and our
mortgage business. Despite pressure
attributable to the weak lending
environment and historically low
interest rates, we were able to
maintain our net interest margin
essentially even with that of 2010.
Total deposits declined slightly, as a
result of a deliberate focus on de-
emphasizing single-relationship
deposits. Our mortgage group had
another very strong year, and our
insurance group produced meaningful
organic growth. In addition, our
noninterest revenue as a percent of
total revenue grew to a new record
for 2011, bringing new clients to
BancorpSouth and deepening
relationships with our existing base.
This diversification of revenue streams
is an important positive differentiator
for BancorpSouth.  

As we look to 2012 and beyond, we
continue to focus on improving credit
quality.  We remain appropriately
cautious about the weak economic
recovery, but we are encouraged by
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The year saw much improvement in problem asset
resolution and in key credit quality indicators, while
BancorpSouth’s core operations continued to produce
consistent, solid results.

the enhanced performance trends
produced during 2011. We are well
positioned competitively within our
markets and well capitalized. As we
go forward, we will have ample
opportunities to grow our core
markets organically and to expand
into attractive new markets. We do
not underestimate the challenges
ahead of us as we work to achieve our
long-term objectives, but we are
confident of the BancorpSouth team’s
ability and commitment to long-term
growth and shareholder value.

2011 Results Reflect Core
Operating Stability; Substantial
Decrease in Provision for Credit
Losses, Non-Performing Loans, and
Other Credit Quality Indicators

BancorpSouth’s net income for 2011
was $37.6 million, or $0.45 per
diluted share, compared with $22.9
million, or $0.27 per diluted share, for
2010.  The increase in net income was
primarily attributable to a decrease in

the provision for credit losses for 2011
to $130.1 million compared with
$204.0 million for 2010.  This decline
was partially offset by an increase in
non-interest expense, particularly
foreclosed property expense.  

Credit quality indicators demonstrate
significant asset quality improvement –
Non-performing loans (NPLs) at the
end of 2011 were $322.3 million, or
3.63% of net loans and leases, down
18.3% from $394.4 million, or 4.23%
of net loans and leases, at the end of
2010 while total non-performing
assets (NPAs) declined $31.7 million,
or 6.0%, compared to the end of
2010.  Net charge-offs for 2011 were
$131.9 million compared to $183.1
million for 2010. Other near-term
credit quality indicators such as loans
90 days+ past due and still accruing as
well as loans 30-89 days past due also
showed significant improvement both
year-over-year and on a quarterly basis.  
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The improvement reported in each of
these credit metrics is the result of a
total commitment by the entire
BancorpSouth team. While we fully
realize that much work remains to be
done to return NPL and NPA levels to
the lower levels we have historically
maintained relative to our competitors,
we are gratified by the progress made
during 2011, and we are optimistic
about carrying this momentum into 2012.

Net interest revenue and margin
stability highlight effective
management through a weak
economic environment – For 2011,
our traditional banking business faced
continued soft loan demand as well as
a prolonged period of historically low
interest rates.  Despite these factors,
we produced a remarkably stable level
of net interest revenue, which at
$434.9 million for 2011 was within
1.5% of net interest revenue for
2010.  In addition, our relatively high
net interest margin of 3.69% for 2011
was within eight basis points of the

net interest margin for each of the
previous four years, a remarkably
consistent performance.

During 2011, soft loan demand
resulted in a 5.0% decline in net loans
and leases. Approximately 58% of this
decline was in the construction,
acquisition and development portfolio.
We were pleased that loan production
remained positive in the markets that
we have most recently entered, notably
east Texas and west Louisiana. These
are markets which we expect to
continue to contribute significantly to
loan growth as the economy recovers.  

Given an environment with continued
soft loan demand, we have strategically
focused on increasing multi-service
household accounts and de-emphasizing
commoditized deposits.  As a result of
this strategy, total deposits declined
2.4% from $11.3 billion at the end of
2010 to $11.0 billion at the end of
2011. Additionally, we have been able
to reprice maturing accounts at rates
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The significant progress made in 2011 toward returning
BancorpSouth to its traditional levels of profitability is
the result of a total commitment by the entire
BancorpSouth team.



which have allowed us to maintain
our net interest margin. We believe
that additional repricing opportunities
in 2012 will continue that trend. We
have the strongest liquidity position
we have experienced in recent years,
making us well prepared for future
growth while maintaining an
appropriate level of interest rate risk.

Noninterest revenue businesses
continue to thrive, despite market and
regulatory pressure – With increased
pressure on net interest revenue
during 2011, the strategic value of our
growing specialized lines of businesses
is clear. These revenues were 38.4%
of total net revenues for 2011,
providing substantial diversification.
Our mortgage group produced
another very strong year, and we
experienced solid organic growth in
both our asset management
operations and in BancorpSouth
Insurance Services, Inc.    

The mortgage lending business produced
continued strong originations for 2011
of $1.2 billion, only slightly below the
record $1.4 billion produced for 2010.

We produced a 5.8% increase in
insurance commissions for 2011 from
2010, despite the presence of
continued soft market conditions in

the industry. According to the most
recent insurance agency rankings, our
insurance agency operations ranked as
the 26th largest in the country at year
end 2011. These operations accounted
for 32.1% of total noninterest revenue
for 2011. Our client base has remained
stable throughout the recessionary
environment, and our operations are
positioned to produce even stronger
future results when the insurance
market hardens and as we continue to
pursue expansion opportunities.

Strong capital position and ample
liquidity support continuing growth
potential – BancorpSouth’s long-term
commitment to maintaining a strong
capital position and ample liquidity
has proven invaluable throughout the
economic cycle and as we consider our
prospects for future growth. Our equity
capitalization is 100% common stock.
BancorpSouth continues to be a well
capitalized financial holding company
as defined by federal regulations.
Subsequent to year end, the Board of
Directors made the decision to issue
additional common stock in order to
further enhance the capital and
liquidity position. This additional capital
will allow us to maintain certain target
capital metrics and will enhance our
position for growth either organically
or through acquisitions. 

5



Summary

As was appropriate, our primary focus
during 2011 was on strengthening
credit quality, and we succeeded in
producing significant improvement
and a positive momentum which we
expect to carry into 2012. While work
remains to be done, we are convinced
we are on the right track. With the
economy showing signs of growth,
we are again focusing on expansion
opportunities for our core operations,
as well as on taking advantage of
market disruptions to grow market
share, adding proven professionals to
our team, and adding strategic
partners with growth potential.

Our confidence in our ability to
execute this strategy is based on our
long-term strengths that have carried
us through the economic downturn
and into the ongoing recovery.
BancorpSouth is  built on customer
service, strong relationships, and a
comprehensive and competitive range
of financial products. We operate a
proven, client-focused business that
has created a high quality financial
services company with a stable and
attractive core deposit franchise at its
heart. For a financial institution of our

size, we occupy a special niche in our
eight-state franchise with our
community bank approach, focusing
on retail and small-to-medium size
business clients. While this strategy
inherently carries a somewhat higher
level of operating expenses than a
more urban or corporate oriented
model, we have continued to
demonstrate a requisite ability to
control expenses in the post-financial
crisis environment.

Our long-term strategic initiatives to
provide our clients a comprehensive
array of financial products and services
have enabled us to benefit from
increasingly diversified revenue streams.
The growth of these diversified
noninterest revenues, especially those
from insurance commissions and
mortgage originations, has mitigated
the impact of interest rate volatility in
our traditional banking operations and
enhanced the consistency of our 
pre-tax, pre-provision income.  

Ultimately, our confidence in
leveraging these strengths to build
long-term shareholder value is based
on and reflects the strength and
commitment of the experienced
BancorpSouth team. As a business
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that differentiates itself through
superior client service, we believe
BancorpSouth’s prospects for future
growth and success are strengthened
by the personal commitment and
professionalism of our team. They are
dedicated to meeting our clients’
needs and exceeding our clients’
expectations at every opportunity. 
We thank and recognize them for
their tremendous efforts during 2011.
These professionals are accountable
for our credit quality improvement and
the consistency of our core operations,
and they have positioned BancorpSouth
to achieve its long-term growth
objectives.  In closing, we also 
thank you for your investment in
BancorpSouth and for your continued
support.  We affirm to you our
unwavering commitment to increasing
the value of that investment.

Sincerely, 

Aubrey B. Patterson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

James V. Kelley
President and Chief Operating Officer
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BancorpSouth is built on customer service, strong
relationships, a comprehensive and competitive range of
financial products, and an experienced team dedicated to
building long-term growth and shareholder value.
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Warren A. Hood, Jr.
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James V. Kelley
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Operating Officer
BancorpSouth, Inc.
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Tupelo, MS

Larry G. Kirk
Retired
Tupelo, MS

Turner O. Lashlee
Chairman
Lashlee-Rich, Inc.
Humboldt, TN

Guy W. Mitchell, III
Attorney at Law
Mitchell, McNutt & Sams, P.A.
Tupelo, MS

Robert C. Nolan
Chairman
Deltic Timber Corporation
El Dorado, AR

W. Cal Partee, Jr.
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Partee Flooring Mill, LLP
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BancorpSouth, Inc.
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Tupelo, MS
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Attorney at Law
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Jackson, MS

Comparative 
Performance Graph

* Holding company directors also serve on BancorpSouth Bank Board of Directors  

The SEC requires us to include in this Annual 
Report a line graph that compares the yearly 
percentage change in cumulative total shareholder
return on our common stock with the cumulative total
return of (i) a broad equity market indicator and (ii) a
published industry index or peer group. To the right is
a line graph prepared by SNL Financial LC comparing
the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total
shareholder return on our common stock against the
cumulative total return of the S&P 500 Index and the
SNL Southeast Bank Index for a period of five years.
The SNL Southeast Bank Index is prepared by SNL
Financial LC and consists of 92 publicly traded banks
and bank holding companies located in the
southeastern United States as of December 31, 2011.

Index* 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11

BancorpSouth, Inc. $100.00 $  91.12 $93.78 $98.14 $70.34 $49.08
SNL Southeast Bank Index 100.00 75.33 30.50 30.62 29.73 17.39
S&P 500 100.00 105.49 66.46 84.05 96.71 98.76

*assumes that the value of the investment was $100 on December 31, 2006, with all dividends reinvested.
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Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Returns

Aubrey B. Patterson
Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

James V. Kelley
President and Chief
Operating Officer

Larry D. Bateman
Executive Vice President

Cathy S. Freeman
Executive Vice President and
Corporate Secretary

James R. Hodges
Executive Vice President

Gordon R. Lewis
Executive Vice President

William L. Prater
Treasurer and 
Chief Financial Officer

W. James Threadgill, Jr.
Executive Vice President

Carol A. Waddle
Executive Vice President

Gary C. Bonds
Senior Vice President and
Principal Accounting Officer

BancorpSouth, Inc. Board of Directors

BancorpSouth, Inc. Executive Officers

Gus J. Blass, III
Little Rock, AR

Albert C. Clark
Starkville, MS

Grace Clark
Tupelo, MS

William L. Crews
Tupelo, MS

Keith J. Jackson
Little Rock, AR

Patricia P. Lewis
Jackson, TN

George F. Middlebrook, III
Nacogdoches, TX

BancorpSouth Bank Board of Directors*

In Memoriam
Al Graves served as a director of BancorpSouth Bank from 2000 until his
retirement from the board in 2007. Prior to his service to BancorpSouth,
he served 34 years as a director of Citizens National Bank in Hope,
Arkansas, until the bank’s merger with First United Bancshares in 1998.
With the merger, he became a member of the corporate board of FUB
until its merger with BancorpSouth in 2000.  Mr. Graves’ counsel and
commitment to BancorpSouth are much appreciated. 

Albert Graves, Jr.
BancorpSouth 
Bank Director
2000-2007
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PART I 
 
ITEM 1.  BUSINESS. 
 
GENERAL 
 
 BancorpSouth, Inc. (the “Company”) is a financial holding company incorporated in 1982.  Through its 
principal bank subsi diary, BancorpSouth Bank (the “Bank”), the Company conducts commercial banking and 
financial services operations in Mississippi, Tennessee, Alabama, Arkansas, Texas, Louisiana, Florida, Missouri 
and Illinois.  At December 31, 2011, the Com pany and its subsidiaries had total assets of $13.0 billion and total 
deposits of $11.0 billion.  The Com pany’s principal office is located at One Mississippi Plaza, 201 South Spring 
Street, Tupelo, Mississippi 38804 and its telephone number is (662) 680-2000. 

The Company’s Internet website address is www.banc orpsouth.com.  The Com pany makes available its 
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to 
those reports free of charge on its website on the Invest or Relations webpage under the caption “SEC Filings” as 
soon as reasonably practicable after such m aterial is elect ronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).  The SEC m aintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information 
statements, and other information regarding issuers that file or furnish information electronically with the SEC at 
www.sec.gov.  The Company’s website and the information contained therein or linked thereto are not intended to 
be incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Report”). 
 
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS   
 
 The Bank has its principal office in Tupelo, Lee County, Mississippi, and conducts a general commercial 
banking, trust and i nsurance business through 289 offices in Mississippi, Tennessee,  Alabama, Arkansas, Texas, 
Louisiana, Florida, Missouri and Illinois. The Bank has grown through the acquisition of other banks and insurance 
agencies and through the opening of new branches and offices. 
 The Bank and its subsidiaries provide a range of financial services to individuals and small-to-medium size 
businesses. The Bank operates investment services and insurance agency subsidiaries which engage in investment 
brokerage services and sales of other insurance products.  The Bank’s trust department offers a vari ety of services 
including personal trust and est ate services, certain employee benefit accounts and pl ans, including individual 
retirement accounts, and limited corporate trust functions.  All of the Company’s assets are located in the United 
States and all of its revenues generated from external customers originate within the United States. 
 The Company has registered the trademarks “BancorpSouth,” both typed form and design, and “Bank of 
Mississippi,” both typed form and desi gn, with the U.S. Pat ent and Trademark Office.  The trademark 
“BancorpSouth” will expire in 2024 and “Bank of Mississippi” will expire in 2020 unless the Com pany extends 
these trademarks for additional ten-year periods.  Registrations of t hese trademarks with the U.S. Pat ent and 
Trademark Office generally may be renewed and continue indefinitely, provided that the Company continues to use 
these trademarks and files appropriate maintenance and renewal documentation with the U.S. Patent and Trademark 
Office at times required by the federal trademark laws and regulations. 
 
COMPETITION 
 
 Vigorous competition exists in all major areas where the Bank is engaged in business. The Bank competes 
for available loans and depository accounts with state and national commercial banks, as wel l as savings and loan 
associations, insurance companies, credit unions, money market mutual funds, automobile finance companies and 
financial services companies.  None of these competitors is dominant in the entire area served by the Bank.   
 The principal areas of com petition in the banking industry center on a financial institution' s ability and 
willingness to provide credit on a tim ely and competitively priced basis, to o ffer a sufficient range of deposit and 
investment opportunities at competitive prices and maturities, and to offer personal and ot her services of sufficient 
quality and at co mpetitive prices.  Man agement believes that the Company and its su bsidiaries can compete 
effectively in all these areas. 
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REGULATION AND SUPERVISION 
 
 This section provides a bri ef summary of t he regulatory environment in which the Company and its 
subsidiaries operate and is not designed to be a com plete discussion of al l statutes and regulations affecting such 
operations, including those statutes and regulations specifically mentioned herein.  Changes in applicable laws, and 
their application by re gulatory and law enforcem ent agencies, cannot n ecessarily be predicted, but could have a 
material effect on the business and results of the Company and its subsidiaries. 
 The Company is subject to regulation and supervision by the Board of Governors of t he Federal Reserve 
System (the “Federal Reserve”).  The Company is required to file annual reports with the Federal Reserve and such 
other information as the Federal Reserve may require.  The Federal Reserve may also conduct examinations of the 
Company.   

In 2004, pursuant to the Gram m-Leach-Bliley Act of  1999 (“GLBA”), the Com pany elected to be a 
financial holding company regulated as such under t he Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the “Bank Holding 
Company Act”). Financial holding company powers relate to financial activities that are determined by the Federal 
Reserve to be financial in nature, incidental to an activity that is financial in nature or complementary to a financial 
activity (provided that the complementary activity does not pose a safet y and soundness ri sk).  GLBA expressly 
characterizes certain activities as financial in nature, including lending activities, underwriting and selling insurance, 
providing financial or invest ment advice, securities underwriting, dealing and m aking markets in securities and 
merchant banking. According to Federal Reserve policy and the Dodd-Frank W all Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act of 2010 (t he “Dodd-Frank Act ”), a fi nancial holding company must act as a source of fi nancial 
strength to its subsidiary banks and com mit resources to support each such subsidiary.  This support m ay be 
required at times when a financial holding company may not be able to provide such support. 
 The Bank is incorporated under the laws of t he State of M ississippi and i s subject to the applicable 
provisions of Mississippi banking laws and the laws of various states in which it operates, as well as federal law.  
The Bank is subject to the supervision of t he Mississippi Department of Banking and Consumer Finance and to 
regular examinations by that department.  Deposi ts in the Bank are i nsured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (the “FDIC”) and, therefore, the Bank is subject to the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act 
and to examination by the FDIC.  FD IC regulations require th at management report annually on its responsibility 
for preparing its institution’s financial statements, and establishing and maintaining an internal control structure and 
procedures for fi nancial reporting and com pliance with designated laws and regul ations concerning safety and 
soundness.  The Bank is not a member of the Federal Reserve. 
 The Company and t he Bank are subject  to the provisions of t he Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDIC IA”). Among other things, FDICIA provides a fram ework for a sy stem of 
supervisory actions based primarily on the capital levels of financial institutions. FDICIA id entifies five capital 
categories for insured depository institutions (“well cap italized,” “adequately capita lized,” “undercapitalized,” 
“significantly undercapitalized” and “cr itically undercapitalized”) and require s the respective federal regulatory 
agencies to implement systems for “prompt corrective action” for insured depository institutions that do not meet 
minimum capital requirements within such categories. Capital is measured in two “Tiers” – Tier I capital consists of 
common shareholders’ equity and qua lifying non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock, less goodwill and certain 
other intangible assets, and Tier II capital consists of general allowance for losses on loans and leases, “hybrid” debt 
capital instruments and al l or a port ion of other subordinated capital debt, depending upon the remaining term to 
maturity. Total capital is the sum of Tier I and Tier II capital. For an insured financial institution to be classified as 
“well capitalized,” the Tier I capital, total capital and Tier I leverage capital (Tier I capital divided by the difference 
of total assets less goodwill) ratios m ust be at least 6%, 10% and 5%, respectively. The Bank exceeded the criteria 
for the “well capitalized” category at D ecember 31, 2011. The Com pany is required to comply with the risk-based 
capital guidelines established by the Federal Reserve and with other tests relatin g to capital adequacy that the 
Federal Reserve adopts from time to time.  See Not e 21 t o the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements 
included in this Report for a discussion of the Company’s capital amounts and ratios. 

In September 2010, the oversight body of the Basel Committee announced a package of reform s, 
commonly referred to as Basel III, that  will increase existing capital requirem ents substantially over the next four 
years as well as add l iquidity requirements for banks. These reforms were endorsed by the G20 at the summit held 
in Seoul, South Korea i n November 2010. The short -term and l ong-term impact of t he new Basel III capital 
standards and the forthcoming new capital rules to be proposed for United States banks is uncertain. As a result of 
the recent deterioration in the global cr edit markets and the potential im pact of increased liquidity risk and interest 
rate risk, it is unclear what the short-term  impact of the implementation of Basel III m ay be or what im pact an 
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alternative approach for United States banks may have on the cost and availability of different types of credit and 
the potential compliance costs of implementing the new capital standards. 

FDICIA provides for a risk -based deposit insurance premium structure for insured financial institutions.  
The FDIC generally provides deposit insurance up to $250,000 per customer per institution for depository accounts 
held at insured financial institutions. Substantially all of the deposits of the Bank are insured up to applicable limits 
by the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF”) of the FDIC and are subject to deposit insurance assessments to maintain the 
DIF. The FDIC utilizes a risk-based assessment system that imposes insurance premiums based upon a risk m atrix 
that takes into account a bank’s capital level and supervisory rating.  Effective as of the second quarter of 2011, the 
FDIC bases the deposit insurance assessm ent on a rede fined assessment base and a new scorecard method to 
calculate the assessment rate.  As a re sult of the Dodd-Frank Act, institutions with total consolidated assets of $10 
billion or more are now required to bear a greater portion of the costs associated with increasing the DIF’s reserve 
ratio. 
 The Dodd-Frank Act established a new, i ndependent Consumer Financial Protection Bureau tasked with 
protecting consumers from unfair, deceptive and abusive financial products and practices. The Dodd-Frank Act also 
created the Financial Stability Oversight  Council to focus on identifying, monitoring and addressing systemic risks 
in the financial system . The Financial Stability Oversight Council is tasked with r ecommending increasingly strict 
rules for capital, leverage and other requirements based on a company’s size and complexity. The Dodd-Frank Act 
required the implementation of the “Volcker Rule” for banks and bank hol ding companies, which prohibits, with 
certain limited exceptions, proprietary trading and investment in and sponsorship of hedge funds and pri vate equity 
funds, and general ly otherwise limits the relationships with such funds. The Dodd-Frank Act also includes 
provisions that, among other things, reorganize bank supervision and strengthen the Federal Reserve.  

The Dodd-Frank Act eliminated many of the rem aining regulations that lim ited the ability of a bank to 
open branches in different states.  The Dodd-Frank Act included savings associations and industrial loan companies, 
as well as banks, in the nationwide deposit limitation. Consequently, no acquisition of any financial institution can 
be approved i f the effect of the acquisition would be to increase the acquirer’s nationwide deposits to more than 
10% of all deposits. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act requires fees charged for debi t card transactions, commonly 
referred to as interchange fees, to be both “reasonable and proportional” to the cost incurred by the card issuer (the 
“Durbin Amendment”).  

On June 29, 2011, t he Federal Reserve released its final rule implementing the Durbin Amendment.  The 
final rule set a base interchange rate of $0.21 per transaction, plus an additional five basis points of the transaction 
cost for fraud charges. The Federal Reserve also approved an interim final rule that allows for an upward adjustment 
of no more than $0.01 on the debit interchange fee for i mplementing certain fraud prevent ion standards. 
Additionally, the Federal Reserve adopted  requirements that issuers include two unaffiliated networks for routing 
debit transactions, one that is signature-based and one t hat is personal identification number based.  The effective 
date for the final and interim final rules of the Durbin Amendment was October 1, 2011.    

Further, the Dodd-Frank Act  provided that the appropriate federal regulators must establish standards 
prohibiting as an unsafe and unsound pract ice any compensation plan of a bank holding company or other “covered 
financial institution” that provides an insider or other employee with “excessive compensation” or could lead to a 
material financial loss to such firm. Prior to the implementation of t he Dodd-Frank Act , the bank regul atory 
agencies promulgated the Interagency Guidance on Sound Incent ive Compensation Policies, which requires 
financial institutions to establish metrics for measuring the impact of activities to achieve incentive compensation 
with the related risk to the financial institution of such behavior.  
 The Company is a leg al entity that is separate and distinct from its subsidiaries.  There are various legal 
limitations on the extent to which the Bank may extend credit, pay dividends or ot herwise supply funds t o the 
Company or its affiliates.  In particular, the Bank is subject to certain restrictions imposed by federal law, including 
without limitation, sections 23A and 23B  of the Federal Reserve Act, on any extensions of credit to the Company 
or, with certain exceptions, other affiliates. 
 The primary source of funds for dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders has been dividends paid to 
the Company by the Bank.  Various federal and state laws limit the amount of dividends that the Bank may pay to 
the Company without regulatory approval.  Under Mississippi law, the Bank must obtain approval of t he 
Commissioner of the Mississippi Department of Banking and Consumer Finance prior to paying any dividend on 
the Bank’s common stock.  Under FDICIA, the Bank may not pay any dividends if, after paying the dividend, it 
would be undercapitalized under applicable capital requirements.  The FDIC  also has the authority to prohibit the 
Bank from engaging in business practices that the FDIC considers to be unsafe or unsound, whi ch, depending on 
the financial condition of the Bank, could include the payment of dividends.  In 2011, the Bank’s board of directors 
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adopted a resolution requested by the FDIC and the Mississippi Department of Banking and Consumer Finance that, 
among other things, limits the declaration and pay ment of dividends in and requi res maintenance of enhanced 
capital ratios. 
 In addition, the Federal Reserve has the authority to prohibit the payment of dividends by a bank holding 
company if its actions constitute unsafe or unsound practices. The Federal Reserve has i ssued a policy statem ent, 
Supervisory Release 09-4 (“SR  09-4”), on t he payment of cash dividends by bank hol ding companies, which 
outlines the Federal Reserve’s view that a bank holding company that is experiencing earnings weaknesses or other 
financial pressures should not pay cash di vidends that exceed its net incom e, that are inconsistent with its capital 
position or that could only be funded in  ways that weaken its financial h ealth, such as by borrowing or selling 
assets.  The Federal Reserve has indicated that, in some instances, it may be appropri ate for a bank holding 
company to eliminate its dividends. Further, in the current financial and economic environment, the Federal Reserve 
has indicated that bank and financial holding companies should carefully review their dividend policy and has 
discouraged payment ratios that are at m aximum allowable levels unless both asset q uality and capital are v ery 
strong.  In 2011, the board of directors of the Company adopted a resolution requested by the Federal Reserve Bank 
that, among other things, requires that  the Company obtain prior written a pproval of the Federal Reserve Bank 
before taking a number of act ions, including declaring and paying dividends to the Company’s shareholders, 
making distributions in connection with outstanding trust preferred securities and redeeming outstanding equity 
securities. 

The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and B ranching Efficiency Act of 1994 prohi bits a financial holding 
company, following an interstate acquisition, from controlling more than 10% of the nation’s total amount of bank 
deposits or 30% of bank deposits in the relevant state.  States retain the ability  to adopt legislation to effectively 
raise or lower the 30% limit. 
 The Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (“CRA”) and its implementing regulations provide an incentive 
for regulated financial institutions to meet the credit needs of their local community or communities, including low 
and moderate income neighborhoods, consis tent with the safe and sound operati on of such financial institutions.  
The regulations provide that the appr opriate regulatory authority will assess reports under CRA in connection with 
applications for establishment of domestic branches, acquisitions of banks or m ergers involving financial holding 
companies.  An unsatisfactory rating under CRA may serve as a basis to deny an application to acquire or establish 
a new bank, to establish a new branch or to expand ba nking services.  As of December 31, 2011, the Company had 
a “satisfactory” rating under CRA.  
 The Uniting and St rengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and 
Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001, as ext ended and revised by the PATRIOT Improvement and Reauthorization Act 
of 2005 (the “USA Patriot Act”), re quires each financial institution to: (i ) establish an anti-m oney laundering 
program; (ii) establish due diligence po licies, procedures and controls with  respect to its private banking accounts 
and correspondent banking accounts involving foreign individuals and certain foreign financial institutions; and (iii) 
avoid establishing, maintaining, administering or managing correspondent accounts in the United States for, or on 
behalf of, foreign financial institutions  that do not have a physical presence in any country.  The USA Patriot Act 
also requires that financial institutions follow certain minimum standards to verify the identity of customers, both 
foreign and domestic, when a custom er opens an account.  In addition, the USA Patriot Act contains a provision 
encouraging cooperation among financial institutions, regulatory authoritie s and law enforcem ent authorities with 
respect to individuals, entities and organizations engaged in, or reasonably suspected of engaging in, terrorist acts or 
money laundering activities.   
 The activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are also subject to regulation under various federal laws 
and regulations thereunder, including the Truth-in-Lending Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing 
Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act , the 
Currency and Foreign Transactions Reporting Act, the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 and t he Real Estate 
Settlement Procedures Act, among others, as well as various state laws. 
 GLBA and other federal and state laws, as well as the various guidelines adopted by the Federal Reserve 
and the FDIC, provide for m inimum standards of privacy to protect the c onfidentiality of the non-public personal 
information of customers and to regulate the use of such information by financial institutions.  The Company and its 
subsidiaries have adopted a customer information security program to comply with these regulatory requirements. 
 The Bank’s insurance subsidiaries are regulated by the insurance regulatory authorities and applicable laws 
and regulations of the states in which they operate. 
 The Bank’s investment services subsidiary is regulated as a registered investment adviser and broker-dealer 
by federal and/or state securities regulations and self-regulatory authorities. 
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The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”) represents a comprehensive revision of laws 
affecting corporate governance, accoun ting obligations and corporate reporting. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act is 
applicable to all companies with equity or debt securities registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the “Exchange Act ”). In particular, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act established:  (i) requirem ents for audit 
committees, including independence, e xpertise and responsibilities; (ii) certification and related responsibilities 
regarding financial statements for the Chief Executive Officer an d Chief Financial Officer o f the reporting 
company; (iii) standards for auditors and regulation of audits; (iv) disclosure and reporting obligations for the 
reporting company and its directors and executive officers; and (v) civil and criminal penalties for violation of the 
securities laws.  
 In addition, there have been a number of legislative and regulatory proposals that could have an impact on 
the operation of financial holding companies and their bank and non-bank subsidiaries.  Management is not able to 
predict whether or in what form  these proposals may be adopted in the future and, if a dopted, what their effect will 
be on the Company and its subsidiaries. 
 
LENDING ACTIVITIES 
 
 The Bank’s lending activities include both commercial and consumer loans.  Loan originations are derived 
from a number of sources i ncluding direct solicitation by the Bank’s loan officers, existing depositors and 
borrowers, builders, attorneys, walk-in customers and, in some instances, other lenders, real estate broker referrals 
and mortgage loan companies.  The Bank has established systematic procedures for approving and monitoring loans 
that vary depending on the size and nature of the loan, and applies these procedures in a disciplined manner. 
 
Commercial Lending 
 The Bank offers a variety of commercial loan services including term loans, lines of credit, equipment and 
receivable financing and agricultural loans.  A broad range of short-to-medium term commercial loans, both secured 
and unsecured, are made available to businesses for working capital (including inventory and receivables), business 
expansion (including acquisition and development of real estate and improvements), and the purchase of equipment 
and machinery.  The Bank also makes construction loans to real estate developers for the acquisition, development 
and construction of residential subdivisions. 
 Commercial loans are granted based on the borrower’s ability to generate cash flow to support its debt 
obligations and other cash related expenses.  A b orrower’s ability to repay commercial loans is su bstantially 
dependent on the success of the business itself and on the quality of its management.  As a g eneral practice, the 
Bank takes as collateral a security intere st in any available real estate, equipm ent, inventory, receivables or other 
personal property, although such loans may also be made infrequently on an unsecured basi s.  In m any instances, 
the Bank requires personal guarantees of its commercial loans to provide additional credit support. 
 The Bank has had very little exposure as an agricultu ral lender.  Crop production loans have been either 
fully supported by the collateral and financial strength of the borrower, or a 90% l oan guaranty has been obt ained 
through the Farm Service Agency on such loans. 
 
Residential Consumer Lending 
 A portion of the Bank’s lending activities consists of the origination of fixed and adjustable rate residential 
mortgage loans secured by owner-occupied property located in the Bank’s primary market areas.  Home mortgage 
lending is unique in that a broad geographi c territory may be served by  originators working from strategically 
placed offices either within the Bank’s traditional banking facilities or fro m other locations.  In addition, the Bank 
offers construction loans, second mortgage loans and home equity lines of credit. 
 The Bank finances the construc tion of individual, ow ner-occupied houses on the basis of written 
underwriting and construction loan management guidelines.  First mortgage construction loans are made to qualified 
individual borrowers and are general ly supported by a take-out commitment from a permanent lender.  The B ank 
makes residential construction loans to individuals who intend to erect owner-occupied housing on a purchased 
parcel of real estate.  Th e construction phase of these loans has certain risks, including the viability of the 
contractor, the contractor’s ability to complete the project and changes in interest rates. 
 In most cases, the Bank sells its mortgage loans with terms of 15 y ears or more in the secondary market 
and either retains or releases the right to service those loans.  The sal e of mortgage loans to the secondary market 
allows the Bank to manage the interest rate risks related to such lending operations.  Generally, after the sale of a 
loan with servicing retained, the Bank’s only involvement is to act as a servicing agent.  In certain cases, the Bank 
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may be required to repurchase mortgage loans upon which customers have defaulted that were previously sold in 
the secondary market if these loans did not m eet the underwriting standards of the entity that purchased the loans.  
Any such loans are held by the Bank in its mortgage loan portfolio. 
  
Non-Residential Consumer Lending 
 Non-residential consumer loans made by the Bank include loans for automobiles, recreation vehicles, 
boats, personal (secured and unsecured) and deposit account secured l oans.  Non-resi dential consumer loans are 
attractive to the Bank because they typically have a shorter term  and carry higher interest rates than those charged 
on other types of loans.   
 The Bank also issues credit cards solicited on the basis of applications  received through referrals from the 
Bank’s branches and other marketing efforts.  The Bank generally has a sm all portfolio of cred it card receivables 
outstanding.  Credit card lines are underwritten using conser vative credit criteria, includi ng past credit history and 
debt-to-income ratios, similar to the credit policies applicable to other personal consumer loans.   

The Bank grants consumer loans based on em ployment and fi nancial information solicited from 
prospective borrowers as well as credit records collected from various reporting agencies.  Financial stability and 
credit history of the borrower are the primary factors the Bank considers in granting such loans.  The availability of 
collateral is also a factor considered in making such l oans.  The geographi c area of t he borrower i s another 
consideration, with preference given to borrowers in the Bank’s primary market areas. 
 
OTHER FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 
 The Bank’s insurance service subsidiary serves as an agent in the sale of title insurance, commercial lines 
of insurance and a ful l line of property and casualty, life, health and employee benefits products and services and 
operates in Mississippi, Tennessee, Alabama, Arkansas, Texas, Louisiana, Missouri and Illinois.    
 The Bank’s investment services subsidiary provides brokerage, investment advisory and asset management 
services and operates in certain communities in Mississippi, Tennessee, Alabama, Arkansas, Louisiana, Texas, 
Florida and Missouri. 
 See Note 22 to the Com pany’s Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Report for 
financial information about each segm ent of the Com pany, as defined by U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles (“U.S. GAAP”). 
 
ASSET QUALITY 
 
 Management seeks to maintain a high quality of  assets through conservative underwriting and sound 
lending practices.  Management intends to follow this policy even though it may result in foregoing the funding of 
higher yielding loans.  Mana gement believes that the Bank has adequate underwriting and loan adm inistration 
policies in place and personnel to manage the associated risks prudently. 
 In an effort to maintain the quality of the loan portfolio, management seeks to limit high risk loans.  These 
loans include loans to provide initial equity and working capital to new businesses with no other capital strength, 
loans secured by unregistered stock, loans for speculative transactions in stock, land or commodity markets, loans to 
borrowers or the taking of collateral outside the Bank’s primary market areas, loans dependent on secondary liens as 
primary collateral and non-recourse loans.   To the extent risks are identified, additional precautions are taken in 
order to reduce the Bank’s risk of lo ss.  Com mercial loans enta il certain additional risks because they usually 
involve large loan balances to single borrowers or a related group of borrowe rs, resulting in a m ore concentrated 
loan portfolio.  Further, because pa yment of these loans is usually dependent upon the successful operation of the 
commercial enterprise, the risk of loss with respect to these loans may increase in the event of adverse conditions in 
the economy. 
 The Board of Di rectors of t he Bank focuses m uch of i ts efforts and resources, and t hat of the Bank’s 
management and lending officials, on loan underwriting and credit quality monitoring policies and practices.  Loan 
status and monitoring is handled through the Bank’s loan administration department.  Al so, an independent loan 
review department of the Bank is responsible for reviewing the credit rating and classification of individual credits 
and assessing trends in the portfolio, adherence to internal credit policies and procedures and other factors that may 
affect the overall adequacy of the a llowance for credit losses.  W eak financial performance is id entified and 
monitored using past due reporting, the internal loan rating system, loan review reports, the various loan committee 
functions and periodic asset q uality rating committee meetings.  Sen ior loan officers have established a review 
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process with the obj ective of identifying, evaluating and initiating necessa ry corrective action for problem  loans.  
The results of loan reviews are reported to the Audit Committee of both the Company’s and the Bank’s Board of 
Directors.  This process is an integral element of the Bank’s loan program.  Nonetheless, management maintains a 
cautious outlook in anticipating the poten tial effects of uncertain econom ic conditions (both locally and nationally) 
and the possibility of more stringent regulatory standards. 
 
RECENT ACQUISITIONS 
 

The Company completed no acquisitions during 2011. 
 
EMPLOYEES 
 
 At December 31, 2011, the Com pany and its subsidia ries had approxim ately 4,244 full-time equivalent 
employees. The Company and its subsidiaries are not a pa rty to any collective bargaining agreements and employee 
relations are considered to be good. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 
 
 Information follows concerning the executive officers of the Company:    
 
          

Name                                                              Offices Held                                                                Age 
 

Aubrey B. Patterson               Chairman of the Board of                                          69 
                                                      Directors and Chief  
                                                      Executive Officer 
                                                      of the Company and the Bank; 
                                                    Director of the Company 
 

James V. Kelley    President and Chief Operating Officer  62 
     of the Company and the Bank; 
     Director of the Company 
                                     
William L. Prater                        Treasurer and Chief Financial                                  51 
                                                   Officer of the Company; Executive 
                                                    Vice President, Chief Financial 
       Officer and Cashier of the Bank 
 
Larry Bateman                          Executive Vice President of the Company  62 

and Vice Chairman of the Bank 
                                                                    

W. James Threadgill, Jr.                    Executive Vice President of the           57 
                                                    Company and Vice Chairman of 
                                                    the Bank 

 
Gordon Lewis                 Executive Vice President of the Company  62 

and Vice Chairman of the Bank               
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James Ronald Hodges                       Executive Vice President of the                                59 
                                                    Company and Vice Chairman and 
                                                    Chief Lending Officer of the Bank 
 
Cathy S. Freeman                  Executive Vice President and                               46 

                                                    Corporate Secretary of the Company  
and the Bank    

 
 Gary C. Bonds    Senior Vice President and Principal   64 
      Accounting Officer of the Company 
      and Executive Vice President and 
      C ontroller of the Bank 
  

Carol Waddle    Executive Vice President of the Company  50 
     and Executive Vice President, Audit and  
     Loan Review of the Bank    

 
 None of the executive officers of the Company is related by blood, marriage or adopt ion to any other 
executive officer or t o any of t he Company’s directors or nom inees for el ection at the 2012 annual meeting of 
shareholders.  There are no arrangem ents or understandings between any of the executive officers and any  other 
person pursuant to which any individual was or i s to be selected as an officer. The executive officers of the 
Company are appointed by the Board of Directors at its first meeting following the annual meeting of shareholders, 
and they hold office until the next annual meeting or until their successors are duly appointed and qualified. 
 Mr. Patterson has served as Chairm an of the Bo ard and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank and the 
Company for at least the past five years.  

Mr. Kelley has served as President and Chief Operating Officer of the Bank and the Company for at least 
the past five years.  
 Mr. Prater joined the Com pany on September 1, 2008 and served as Executive Vice President until June 
30, 2009, when he was named Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and Executive Vice President, 
Chief Financial Officer and Cashier of the Bank.  Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Prater most recently served as 
Executive Vice President of Finance at Regions Bank. 
 Mr. Bateman has served as Execu tive Vice President of th e Company and Vice Chairman of the Bank for 
at least the past five years.   
 Mr. Threadgill has served as Executive Vice President of the Company and Vice Chairman of the Bank for 
at least the past five years.  
 Mr. Lewis had served as Louisiana/Texas Region President of BancorpSouth Bank for at  least one year 
prior to December 2007, when he was nam ed Executive Vice President of the Company and Vice Chairman of the 
Bank.  
 Mr. Hodges had served as Regional and Area Loan Adm inistrator for at  least four y ears prior to April 
2010, when he was nam ed Senior Executive Vice President of the Bank and Deputy to the Company’s Chief 
Lending Officer.  Mr. Hodges served in that capacity until September 2011, when he was named Executive Vice 
President of the Company and Vice Chairman and Chief Lending Officer of the Bank. 
 Mrs. Freeman had served as First Vice President and Corporate Secretary of the Company and the Bank or 
Senior Vice President and Corporate Secr etary of the Company and the Bank for at least one year prior to January 
2008, when she was named Executive Vice President of the Company and the Bank. 
 Mr. Bonds had served as Seni or Vice President of the Company and Senior Vice President and Controller 
of the Bank for at least two years prior to September 2008, when he was nam ed Executive Vice President and 
Controller of the Bank.  In Decem ber 2008, he was also  named Senior Vice President and Principal Accounting 
Officer of the Company. 
 Ms. Waddle had served as Senior Vice President and General Auditor of the Company for at least th ree 
years prior to January 27, 2010, when she was nam ed Senior Vice President of the Company and Senior Vice 
President, Audit and Loan Review of  the Bank.  Ms. W addle served in th at capacity until January 2012, when she 
was named Executive Vice President of the Company and Executive Vice President, Audit and Loan Review of the 
Bank. 
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ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS. 
 
 Certain statements contained in this Annual Report may not be based on hi storical facts and are “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E 
of the Exchange Act. These forward-looking statements may be identified by reference to a future period(s) or by 
the use of forward-l ooking terminology, such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “plan,” “predict,” 
“foresee,” “may,” “might,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “could” or “intend,” futu re or conditional verb tenses, and 
variations or negatives of such t erms. These forward-looking statements include, without limitation, those relating 
to the Company’s trademarks, the Company’s ability to compete effectively, the effect o f changes in laws, 
governmental regulations and legislative proposals affecting financial institutions, special assessments by the FDIC, 
examinations by federal regulators, commercial loans, repurchase of m ortgage loans, the impact of econom ic 
conditions in the Company’s market area and the economic downturn, identification and resolution of credit issues, 
debit card revenues, the use of non-U.S. GAAP financial measures, the effect of cert ain claims, legal and 
administrative proceedings and pending litig ation, reserves for troubled debt restructurings, diversification of 
revenue stream, the Company’s policy regarding asset quality, the Company’s policy regarding underwriting and 
lending practices, critical and significant accounting policies, allowance for credit losses, other real estate owned, 
impairment of goodwill, other-than-tem porary impairment of securities, valuation of mortgage servicing rights, 
pension and other postretirement benefit amounts, net interest revenue, net intere st margin, interest rate sensitivity, 
credit quality, credit losses, determination of collateral fair value, analysis of guarantors, compliance with 
underwriting and/or appraisa l standards, potential losses from  representation and warranty obligations, the 
Company’s foreclosure process, inspection and review of construction, acquisition and development loans, maturity 
and renewal of const ruction, acquisition and devel opment loans, deferred tax assets, unrecognized tax benefits, 
disputed tax positions, junior  subordinated debt securities, capital res ources, sources of liqui dity and liquidity 
strategies, sources of maturing loans and investment securities, the Company’s ability to obtain funding, the ability 
to declare and/or pay  dividends, credit losses from  off-balance sheet com mitments and arrangem ents, future 
acquisitions and consideration to be  used therefor, the im pact of recent accounting pronouncements, amortization 
expense of amortizable identifiable intangible assets, interest income, valuation of stock options, fair value of loans 
and leases, fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities, maturities of available-for-sale securities, 
appraisal adjustments, concessions gr anted for troubled debt re structurings, value of investment securities, 
contributions to pension plans, related party transactions, impaired loans, nonperforming loans and l eases, non-
accrual loans and leases, economic value of equity, future lease payments, the use of proceeds from the underwritten 
public offering of the Company’s common stock, deposits, the Company’s operating results and financial condition, 
and amendments to the Company’s code of business conduct and ethics or waiver of a provision thereof. 

We caution you not to place undue reliance on the forwar d-looking statements contained in this Report in 
that actual results could differ materially from those indicated in such forward-looking statements due to a variety of 
factors.  These factors include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
• Local, regional and national econom ic conditions and the im pact they may have on the Com pany and its 

customers and the Company’s assessment of that impact; 
• The ability of the Company to increase noninterest revenue and expand noninterest revenue business; 
• Changes in general business or economic conditions or government fiscal and monetary policies; 
• Fluctuations in prevailing interest rates an d the effectiveness of the Company’s interest rate hedging 

strategies; 
• The ability of the Company to maintain credit quality; 
• The ability of the Company to provide and market competitive products and services; 
• Changes in the Company’s operating or expansion strategy; 
• Geographic concentration of the Company’s assets and susceptibility to economic downturns in that area; 
• The availability of and costs associated with maintaining and/or obtaining adequate and timely sources of 

liquidity;  
• Volatility and disruption in national and international financial markets; 
• Government intervention in the U.S. financial system; 
• Laws and regulations affecting financial institutions in general; 
• The ability of the Company to operate and integrate new technology; 
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• The ability of the Company to manage its growth and effectively serve an expanding customer and market 
base; 

• The ability of the Company to attract, train and retain qualified personnel; 
• Changes in consumer preferences;  
• The ability of the Company to collect amounts due under loan agreements and to attract deposits; 
• Legislation and court decisions related to the amount of damages recoverable in legal proceedings; 
• Possible adverse rulings, judgments, settlements and other outcomes of pending litigation; and 
• Other factors generally understood to affect the financial results of financial services companies.  
 

 The Company undertakes no obl igation to update its forward-looking statements to reflect events or 
circumstances that occur after the date of this Report. 

 In addition to the factors listed above that could influence the forward-looking statements in this Report, 
management believes that the risk factors set forth below should be consi dered in evaluating the Company’s 
business.  Other relevant risk factors are outlined below and m ay be supplem ented from time to time in the 
Company’s filings with the SEC.   

 
Our financial performance may be adversely affected by conditions in the fina ncial markets and economic 
conditions generally.  
 Our financial performance generally, and in particular the ability of borrowers to pay interest on and repay 
principal of outstanding loans and the value of collateral securing those loans, is highly dependent upon the business 
environment in the m arkets where we operate and in the United States as a whole. A favorable business 
environment is generally characterized by, among other factors, economic growth, efficient capital markets, low 
inflation, high business and investor confidence, and strong business earnings. Unfavorable or uncertain economic 
and market conditions can be caused by declines in economic growth, business activity or i nvestor or busi ness 
confidence, limitations on the availability or increases in the cost of credit and capital, increases in inflation or 
interest rates, natural disasters or a combination of these or other factors.  
 Since mid-2007, the financial services industry and the securities markets generally have been m aterially 
and adversely affected by significant declines in the values of nearly all a sset classes and by a serious lack of 
liquidity. The global markets have been characterized by substantially increased volatility and an overall loss of 
investor confidence. Market conditions have l ed to the failure or m erger of a num ber of prom inent financial 
institutions. Financial institution failures or near-failures have resulted in further losses as a consequence of defaults 
on securities issued by them  and defaults under contract s entered into with such entities as counterparties. 
Furthermore, declining asset values, defaults on mortgages and consumer loans, and the lack of market and investor 
confidence, as well as other factors, have all combined to increase credit default swap sp reads and to cause rating 
agencies to lower credit ratings. Desp ite recent stabilization in asset pri ces, economic performance and significant 
declines in Federal Reserve borrowing rates, there remains a ri sk of cont inued asset and economic deterioration, 
which may increase the cost and decrease the availability of liquidity. Additionally, some banks and other lenders 
have suffered significant losses and they have become reluctant to lend, even on a secured basis, because of capital 
limitations, potentially increased risks of default and the impact of declining asset v alues on collateral. The 
foregoing has significantly weakened the strength and liquidity of some financial institutions worldwide.  
 It is p ossible that the business environment in the United States will co ntinue to deteriorate for the 
foreseeable future. There can be no assu rance that these conditions will improve in the near term . Such conditions 
could adversely affect the credit quality of our loans, our results of operations and our financial condition.  
 
The recent downgrade of the U.S. government’s sovereign credit rating, any related rating agency action in 
the future, the ongoing debt crisis in Europe and the downgrade of the sovereign credit ratings for several 
European nations could negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.  
 On November 21, 2011, a Congressional com mittee that was form ed to achieve $1.2 trillion in deficit 
reduction measures announced that it had failed to achieve its stated purpose by the deadline imposed by Congress’ 
August agreement to raise the U.S. governm ent’s debt ceiling. Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, which had 
downgraded the U.S. government’s AAA sovereign credit rating to AA+ with a negative outlook in August 2011, 
affirmed its AA+ rating following the announcement. Moody’s Investors Services, which changed i ts U.S. 
government rating outlook to negative on August  2, 2011, al so reaffirmed its rating following the Congressional 
committee’s announcement. On November 22, 2011, Fitch Ratings  stated that the failure of the committee to reach 
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an agreement would likely cause i t to change i ts outlook on U.S. government debt to negative. Further, on 
November 28, 2011, Fi tch stated that a downgrade of t he U.S. sovereign credit rating would occur without a 
credible plan in place by 2013 to reduce the U.S. government deficit. The impact of any additional downgrades to 
the U.S. governm ent’s sovereign credit rating by any of these rating agencies, as wel l as t he perceived 
creditworthiness of U.S. government-related obligations, is inherently unpredictable and could adversely affect the 
U.S. and global financial m arkets and economic conditions and have a m aterial adverse effect on our business, 
financial condition and results of operation.  
 In addition, certain European nat ions continue to experience varying degrees of fi nancial stress. Despite 
various assistance packages, market concerns over the direct and indirect exposure of European banks and i nsurers 
to these European nations and each other have resulted in a widening of credit spr eads and increased costs of 
funding for some European financial ins titutions. Risks related to the European  economic crisis have had, and are 
likely to continue to have, a negat ive impact on gl obal economic activity and t he financial markets. As these 
conditions persist, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.  
 
Our provision and allowance for credit losses may not be adequate to cover actual credit losses.  
 We make various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of our loan and lease portfolio and 
utilize these assum ptions and judgm ents when determ ining the provision and allowa nce for credit losses. The 
determination of t he appropriate level of t he provision for credit losses inherently involves a hi gh degree of 
subjectivity and requires us to make significant estimates of current credit risks and future trends, all of which may 
undergo material changes. Continuing deterioration in ec onomic conditions affecting borrowers, new information 
regarding existing loans, identification of additional problem loans and other factors, both within and outside of our 
control, may require an increase in the am ount reserved in the allowance for cred it losses. In addition, bank 
regulatory agencies periodically review our provision and the total allowance for credit losses and may require an 
increase in the allowance for credit losses or future provisions for credit losses, based on judgments different than 
those of management. Any increases in the provision or allowance for credit losses will result in a decrease in our 
net income and, potentially, capital, and may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of 
operations. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – 
Results of Operat ions – Provi sion for Credit Losses and Allowance for Credit Losses” included herein for m ore 
information regarding our process for det ermining the appropriate level of the provision and al lowance for credit 
losses. 
 
We make and hold in o ur portfolio a significant number of real estate construction, acquisition and 
development loans, which are based upon estimates of costs and values associated with the completed project 
and which pose more credit risk than other types of loans typically made by financial institutions.  
 At December 31, 2011, we had a balance of $908.4 m illion in real estate cons truction, acquisition and 
development loans, representing 10.2% of our t otal loan portfolio. These real estate construction, acquisition and 
development loans have certain risks that are not present in other types of loans. The primary credit risks associated 
with real estate construction, acquis ition and development loans are underwriting, project risks and m arket risks. 
Project risks include cost overruns, borrower credi t risk, project completion risk, general contractor credit risk and 
environmental and other hazard risks. Ma rket risks are risks associ ated with the sale of the completed residential 
and commercial units. They include affordability risk, which means the risk that borrowers cannot obtain affordable 
financing, product design risk , and risks posed by com peting projects. Real estate construction, acquisition and 
development loans also involve additional risks because funds are advanced upon the security of the project, which 
is of uncertain value prior to its completion, and costs may exceed realizable values in declining real estate markets. 
Because of the uncertainties inherent in estim ating construction costs and the reali zable market value of the 
completed project and the effects of governmental regulation of real  property, it is relatively difficult to evaluate 
accurately the total funds required to com plete a project and the related loan-to-value ratio . As a result, real estate 
construction, acquisition and development loans often involve the disbursement of substantial funds with repayment 
dependent, in part, on the success of the ultimate project and the ability of the borrower to sell or lease the property, 
rather than the ability of the borrower or guarantor to repay principal and interest. If our appraisal of the value of the 
completed project proves to be overstated or market values or rental rates decline, we may have inadequate security 
for the repayment of the loan upon completion of const ruction of the project. If we are forced t o foreclose on a 
project prior to or at completion due to a default, there can be no assurance that we will be able to recover all of the 
unpaid balance and accrued interest on the loan as well as related foreclosure and holding costs. In addition, we may 
be required to fund additional amounts to complete the project and may have to hold the property for an unspecified 
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period of time while we attempt to dispose of it. The adverse effects of the foregoing matters upon our real estate 
construction, acquisition and development portfolio could necessitate a furt her increase in non-performing loans 
related to this portfolio and these non-performing loans may result in a material level of charge-offs, whi ch may 
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of  operations. At Decem ber 31, 2011, non-
accrual real estate construction, acquisition and development loans totaled $133.1 million.  
 As a result of the downturn in the housing m arket, demand for construction, acquisition and development 
loans has been decl ining, a t rend that management expects to continue. The decline in this portfolio presents an 
additional challenge to maintaining and growing our earning assets.  
 
We hold a significant amount of other real  estate ow ned and may acqui re and hol d significant additional 
amounts, which could lead to increase d operating expenses and vulnerabilit y to additional declines in real 
property values. 

As our business necessitates, we foreclose on and take title to real estate serving as collateral for loans.  At 
December 31, 2011, we had $173.8 million of other real estate owned, compared to $133.4 million at December 31, 
2010. The amount of other real estate owned held by us may continue to increase as a result of, among other things, 
the continued deterioration of the commercial and residential real estate markets and t he tightening of t he credit 
market. Increased other real estate ow ned balances have l ed to greater expenses as we i ncur costs to manage, 
maintain and dispose of real p roperties. We expect that our earnings will co ntinue to be negatively affected by 
various expenses associ ated with other real estate owned, including personnel costs, insurance and t axes, 
completion and repair costs, valuation adjustments and other expenses associated with real property ownership, as 
well as by the funding costs associated with other real estate owned assets. The expenses associated with holding a 
significant amount of other real estate owned could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and 
financial condition. 

Other real estate is reported at th e lower of cost or fair v alue, less estimated selling costs. Fair v alue is 
determined on the basis of current appraisals, com parable sales and other estimates of value obtained principally 
from independent sources. At the time of foreclosure, any excess of the loan balance over the fair value of the real 
estate held as co llateral is ch arged to the allowance for credit losses. Subsequent valuation adjustments on the 
periodic revaluation of the property will result in add itional charges, with a corresponding write-down expense. 
Significant judgments and complex estimates are required in estimating the fair value of other real estate owned, 
and the period of time within which such est imates can be consi dered current is significantly shortened during 
periods of market volatility, as we have experienced during the past few years. In response to market conditions and 
other economic factors, we may utilize alternative sale strate gies other than orderly dis position as part of our other 
real estate owned disposition strategy, such as immediate liquidation sales. As  a result, the net proceeds realized 
from sales transactions could differ significantly from appraisals, comparable sales, and other estim ates used to 
determine the fair value of other real estate owned.  A si gnificant increase in the rate of  foreclosures on real estate 
collateral with reported fair values less than the loan balances, a substantial additional decline in the value of our 
holdings of other real estate  owned or our failure to realize net proceeds from sales of substantial amounts of other 
real estate owned equal to or greater than our reported values, or some combination of these, could have a material 
adverse effect on our financial condition.  
 
Our ability to declare and pay dividends is limited.  
 There can be no assurance of whether or when we may pay dividends on our common stock in the future. 
Future dividends, if any, will be declared and paid at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on a 
number of factors. Historically, our principal source of funds used to pay cash dividends on our common equity has 
been dividends received from  the Bank. Although the Bank’s asset quality, earnings pe rformance, liquidity and 
capital requirements will be taken into account before we declare or pay any future dividends on our common stock, 
our board of directors will also  consider our liquidity and capital requirements and our board of directors could 
determine to declare and pay dividends without relying on dividend payments from the Bank. 
 Federal and state banking laws and regulations and state corporate laws restrict the amount of dividends we 
may declare and pay . For exam ple, under gui dance issued by the Federal Reserve Board, as a bank holding 
company, we are req uired to consult with the Federal Reserve before decl aring dividends and are t o consider 
eliminating, deferring or reducing dividends if (i) our net income available to shareholders for the past four quarters, 
net of dividends previously paid during that period, is not sufficient to fully fund the dividends, (ii) our prospective 
rate of earni ngs retention is not consistent with our capital needs and overal l current and prospective financial 
condition, or (iii) we will not meet, or are in danger of not meeting, our minimum regulatory capital adequacy ratios.  
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 In addition, we need t he approval of the Federal Reserve and the Bank needs the approval of the FDIC 
before paying cash dividends. Further, the Bank’s board of  directors has approved a resol ution requested by the 
FDIC and the Mississippi Department of Banking and Consumer Finance such that the declaration and payment of 
dividends will be limited to the Bank’s current net operating income and conditioned upon the prior written consent 
of the regulators and m aintenance of m inimum capital ratios. Finally, our board of di rectors has approved a 
resolution requested by the Federal Reserve such t hat we need t he prior approval of t he Federal Reserve before 
making any declaration or payment of dividends on any of our capital stock. 
 
We may become involved in legal or administrative proceedings filed by or against us.  
 The nature of our business ordinarily results in a certain amount of claims, litigation, investigations and 
legal and administrative investigations and proceedings. Although we have de veloped policies and procedures to 
minimize the impact of l egal noncompliance and other disputes and endeavored t o provide reasonable insurance 
coverage, litigation and regulatory actions present an ongoing risk.  
 We cannot predict with certainty th e cost of defense, the cost of pr osecution or the ultim ate outcome of 
litigation and other proceedings filed by or against us, our directors, management or employees, including remedies 
or damage awards. On at least a qua rterly basis, we assess our liabilities and contingencies in connection with 
outstanding legal proceedings as well as certain threatened claim s (which are not consider ed incidental to the 
ordinary conduct of our business) utilizi ng the latest and most reliable information available. For m atters where a 
loss is not probable or the am ount of the loss cannot be estimated, no accrual is established. For m atters where it is 
probable we will incur a loss and the amount can be reasonably estimated, we establish an accrual for the loss. Once 
established, the accrual is adjusted periodically to reflect any relevant developments. The actual cost of any 
outstanding legal proceedings or threat ened claims, however, m ay turn out to  be substantially higher than the 
amount accrued. Further, our insurance will not cover all such  litigation, other proceedings or claims, or the costs of 
defense. While the final outcom e of any legal proceedi ngs is inherently uncertain , based on the inform ation 
available, advice of counsel and available insurance coverage, m anagement believes that the litigation-related 
expense we have accrued is adequate and that any incr emental liability arising from pending legal proceedings and 
threatened claims and those otherwise arising in the ordinary course of business, will not have a material adverse 
effect on our busi ness or consolidated financial condition. It is possible, however, that future developments could 
result in an unfavorable outcome for or resolution of any one or more of the lawsuits in which the Company or its 
subsidiaries are defendants, which may be material to the Company’s results of operations for one or more quarterly 
reporting periods.  See “Item  3. Legal Proceedings” incl uded herein for m ore information regarding m aterial 
pending legal proceedings. 
 
We may elect or be compelled to seek additional capital in the future, but that capital may not be available 
on favorable terms when it is needed.  
 We are required by federal regulat ory authorities to m aintain adequate levels of capital to support our 
operations. In addi tion, we m ay elect to raise additional capital to support our busi ness or t o finance any 
acquisitions or we may otherwise elect or be required to raise ad ditional capital. Our ability to raise ad ditional 
capital, if needed, will depend on cond itions in the capital m arkets, economic conditions and a num ber of other 
factors, many of which are outside our control, and on our financial performance. Accordingly, we cannot provide 
assurance of our ability to raise additi onal capital if needed or to be able to do so on term s acceptable to us. If we 
cannot raise additional capital on favorable term s when n eeded, it may have a m aterial adverse effect on our 
financial condition and results of operations.  
 
Liquidity risk could impair our ability to fund operations and jeopardize our financial condition.  
 Liquidity is essential to our busin ess. An inability to raise funds th rough deposits, borrowings, the sale of 
loans and other sources could have a subst antial negative effect on the liquidity of the Bank and/or the Company. 
Our access to funding sources in am ounts adequate to finance our activities or the terms of which are acceptable to 
us could be impaired by factors that affect us specifically or the financial services industry or economy in general. A 
decrease in the level of our business activity as a resu lt of a d ownturn in the markets in which our loans are 
concentrated could detrimentally impact our access to liquidity sources. Our ability to borrow could also be 
impaired by factors that are not specific to us, such as a di sruption in the financial markets or negative views and 
expectations about the prospects for th e financial services industry in light of the recent turm oil faced by banking 
organizations and the continued deterioration in credit markets.  
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Our operations are subject to extensive governmental regulation and supervision.  
 We elected to be a financial holding company pursuant to the GLBA and the Bank Holding Company Act. 
The Bank is a M ississippi state banking corporation. Both the Company and t he Bank are subject to extensive 
governmental regulation, supervision, legislation and control. Banking regulations are primarily intended to protect 
depositors’ funds, federal deposit insurance funds and t he banking system as a whol e, not security holders. These 
laws and regulations limit the manner in which we operate, including the amount of loans we can originate, interest 
we can charge on l oans and fees we can charge for cer tain services. Congress and federal  regulatory agencies 
continually review banking laws, regulations and policies for possible changes. Most recently, the Dodd-Frank Act 
implemented sweeping reforms to the financial services industry. It is possible that there will be continued changes 
to the banking and financial institutions regulatory regimes in the future. Changes to statutes, regulations or 
regulatory policies, including changes in interpretation or implementation of statutes, regulations or policies, could 
affect us in substantial and unpredictable ways. Such change s could subject us to additional costs, limit the types of 
financial services and products we m ay offer and/or increase the ability of non-banks to offer com peting financial 
services and products, among other things. We cannot predict the extent to which the government and governmental 
organizations may change any of these laws or controls. We also cannot predict how such changes would adversely 
affect our business and prospects.  
  
The Dodd-Frank Act and related rules and regulations may adversely affect our business, financial condition 
and results of operations. 
 The Dodd-Frank Act contains a variety of far-reachi ng changes and reform s for the financial services 
industry and directs federal regulatory agencies to study the effects of, and issue implementing regulations for, these 
reforms. Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act could have a direct effect on our performance and, in some 
cases, impact our ability to conduct business. Examples of these provisions include, but are not limited to:  

• Creation of the Financial Stability Oversight C ouncil that m ay recommend to the Federal Reserve 
increasingly strict ru les for capital, leverage, liquidity, risk management and ot her requirements as 
companies grow in size and complexity; 

• Application of the same leverage and risk-based capital requirements that apply to insured depository 
institutions to most bank and financial holding companies, such as the Company; 

• Changes to the assessm ent base used by the FD IC to assess insurance prem iums from insured 
depository institutions and increases to the minimum reserve ratio for the DIF from 1.15% to not less 
than 1.35%, with provisions to require institutions with total consolidated assets of $10 billion or more 
to bear a greater portion of the costs associated with increasing the DIF’s reserve ratio; 

• Repeal of the federal prohibitions on the payment of interest on demand deposits, thereby permitting 
depository institutions to pay interest on business transaction and other accounts; 

• Establishment of a consumer financial protection bureau wi th broad aut hority to implement new 
consumer protection regul ations and, for bank and financial holding companies with $10 billion or 
more in assets, to examine and enforce compliance with federal consumer laws; 

• Implementation of ri sk retention rules for l oans (excluding qualified residential mortgages) that are 
sold by a bank;  

• Implementation of annual stress tests for all state member banks with assets exceeding $10 billion and 
• Amendment of the Electronic Fund Transfer Act which, among other things, gave the Federal Reserve 

the authority to issue rules which have limited debit-card interchange fees. 
 Many of t hese provisions have al ready been t he subject of proposed and fi nal rules by the FDIC and 
Federal Reserve. Many other provisions, however, remain subject to regulatory rulemaking and implementation, the 
effects of whi ch are not  yet known. The provi sions of t he Dodd-Frank Act and any rules adopted to implement 
those provisions as well as an y additional legislative or regulatory changes may impact the profitability of our 
business, may require that we change certain of our business practices, may materially affect our business model or 
affect retention of key personnel, m ay require us to rais e additional capital and could expose us to additional costs 
(including increased compliance costs). These and ot her changes m ay also require us t o invest significant 
management attention and resources to make any necessary changes and may adversely affect our ability to conduct 
our business as previously conducted or our financial condition and results of operations.  
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We obtain a significant portion of our noninterest reve nue through service charges on core deposit accounts, 
and regulations impacting service charges could reduce our fee income.  
 A significant portion of our noni nterest revenue i s derived from service charge i ncome. Management 
anticipates that changes in banking regulations will h ave an adverse impact on our service charge income. 
Additionally, changes in customer behavior as well as increased competition from other financial institutions may 
result in declines in deposit accounts or in overdraft freque ncy resulting in a decline in  service charge incom e. A 
reduction in deposit account fee income could have a material adverse effect on our earnings.  
 
Because of the geographic concentration of our assets, our business is hig hly susceptible to local economic 
conditions.  
 Our business is primarily concentrated in selected markets in Mississippi, Tennessee, Alabama, Arkansas, 
Texas, Louisiana, Florida, Missouri and Illinois. As a result of this geographic concentration, our financial condition 
and results of operations depend largely upon economic conditions in these market areas. Deterioration in economic 
conditions in the markets we serve could result in one or more of the following: an increase in loan delinquencies; 
an increase in problem assets and forecl osures; a decrease i n the demand for our product s and servi ces; and a 
decrease in the value of collateral for loans, especially real estate collateral, in turn reducing customers’ borrowing 
power, the value of assets associated with problem loans and collateral coverage.  
 
We may be adversely affected by the soundness of other financial institutions.  
 Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, cleari ng, counterparty or other 
relationships. We have exposure to many different industries and counterparties, and routinely execute transactions 
with counterparties in the financial services industry, including commercial banks, brokers and deal ers, investment 
banks and other institutional clients. Many of these transactions expose us to credit risk in the event of a default by a 
counterparty or client. In addition, our credit risk may be exacerbated when the collateral we hold cannot be realized 
upon or is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the credit or derivative exposure owed to 
us. Any such losses could have a material adverse affect on our financial condition and results of operations. 
 
Changes in interest rates could have an adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition.  
 Our earnings and financial condition are dependent to a large degree upon net interest income, which is the 
difference or spread between interest earned on loans, securities and other interest-earning assets and interest paid 
on deposits, borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities. When market rates of interest change, the interest we 
receive on our assets and the interest we pay on our liabilitie s may fluctuate. This can cause decreases in our spread 
and can adversely affect our earnings and financial condition.  
 Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors including:  

• The rate of inflation; 
• Economic conditions; 
• Federal monetary policies; and 
• Stability of domestic and foreign markets. 

 The Bank originates residential mortgage loans for sale and for our portfolio. The origination of residential 
mortgage loans is highly dependent on the local real estate market and the level of interest rates. Increasing interest 
rates tend to reduce the origination of loans for sale an d fee in come, which we rep ort as g ain on sale o f loans. 
Decreasing interest rates g enerally result in increased prepayments of loans and mortgage-backed securities, as 
borrowers refinance their debt in order to reduce their borrowing cost. This typically leads to reinvestment at lower 
rates than the loans or securities were paying. Changes in market interest rates could also reduce the value of our 
financial assets. Our financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected if we are unsuccessful 
in managing the effects of changes in interest rates.  
  
Monetary policies and economic factors may limit our ability to attract deposits or make loans.  
 The monetary policies of federal regulatory authoritie s, particularly the Federal Reserve, and econom ic 
conditions in our service area and the United States generally, affect our ability to attract deposits and extend loans. 
We cannot predict either the nature or timing of any changes in these monetary policies and economic conditions, 
including the Federal Reserve’s interest rate p olicies, or their impact on our fi nancial performance. The banking 
business is subject to various material business risks, which have becom e more acute during the current 
environment of econom ic slowdown and recession. In th e current econom ic environment, foreclosures have 
increased and such conditions could also lead to a potential decline in deposits and demand for loans.  
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Volatility in capital and credit markets could adversely affect our business.  
 The capital and credit markets have been experiencing volatility and disruption for several years. In some 
cases, the markets have produced downward pressure on stock prices and credit availability for certain issuers 
without regard to those issuers’ underlying financial strength. If market disruption and volatility continue or worsen, 
there can be no assurance that we will n ot experience an adverse effect, which may be material, on our ability to 
access capital and on our business, financial condition and results of operations.  
 
Reputational risk may impact our results.  
 Our ability to originate and m aintain accounts is highly dependent upon customer and other external 
perceptions of our busi ness practices and/or our financial health. Adverse percept ions regarding our busi ness 
practices and/or our financial health could damage our reputation in both the customer and funding markets, leading 
to difficulties in generating and m aintaining accounts as well as in financi ng them. Adverse developm ents with 
respect to the customer or other external perceptions regarding the practices of our competitors, or our industry as a 
whole, may also adversely impact our reputation. While we carefully monitor internal and external developments 
for areas of potential reputational risk and have established governance structures to assist in evaluating such risks 
in our business practices and decisions, adverse reputational impacts on third parties with whom we have important 
relationships may also adversely impact our reputation. Adverse impacts on our reputation, or the reputation of our 
industry, may also result in greater regulatory and/or legislative scrutiny, which may lead to laws, regulations or 
regulatory actions that may change or const rain the manner in which we engage wi th our customers and the 
products and services we offer. Adverse reputational impacts or events may also increase our litigation risk.  
 
Hurricanes or other adverse weather events could negatively affect local econo mies where we maintain 
branch offices or cause disruption or damage to our branch office locations, which could have an adverse 
effect on our business or results of operations. 
 We have operat ions in Mississippi, Alabama, Louisiana, Texas and Florida, which include areas 
susceptible to hurricanes or tropical storms. Such weather conditions can disrupt our operations, result in damage to 
our branch office locations or negatively affect the local economies in which we operate. We cannot predict whether 
or to what extent damage caused by future hurricanes, tropical storms or other adverse weather events will affect 
our operations or the econom ies in our m arket areas, but su ch weather conditions could re sult in a dec line in loan 
originations and an i ncrease in the risk of del inquencies, foreclosures or l oan losses. Our busi ness or results of 
operations may be adversely affected by these and other negative effects of devastating hurricanes or storms.  
 
We could be required to write down goodwill and other intangible assets.  
 When we acquire a business, a port ion of the purchase pri ce of the acquisition is generally allocated to 
goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets. The amount of the purchase price that is allocated to goodwill and 
other intangible assets is determined by the excess of the purchase price over the net identifiable assets acquired. At 
December 31, 2011, our goodwill and other identifiable in tangible assets were $289. 7 million. Under current 
accounting standards, if we determine goodwill or intangible assets are impaired because, for example, the acquired 
business does not meet projected revenue targets or certain key employees leave, we are required to write down the 
carrying value of these assets. We conduct a review at least annually to determine whether goodwill is impaired. We 
completed such an i mpairment analysis for all of our report ing segments during the second quarter of 2011 and a 
roll-forward of that analysis during the third quarter of 2011. Based on these analyses, the estimated fair value of all 
of our reporting segm ents exceeded the respective ca rrying values. Our annual goodw ill impairment evaluation 
performed during the fourth quarter of 2011 also indicated no impairment of goodwill for our reporting segm ents. 
We cannot provide assurance, however, that we will not be required to take an impairment charge in the future. Any 
impairment charge would have an adverse effect on our shareholders’ equity and financial results and could cause a 
decline in our stock price.  
 
Diversification in types of financial services may adversely affect our financial performance.  
 As part of our busi ness strategy, we m ay further diversify our l ines of busi ness into areas that are not 
traditionally associated with the banking business. As a re sult, we would need to manage the development of new 
business lines in which we have not previously participated. Each new business line would require the investment of 
additional capital and the significant involvement of our se nior management to develop and integrate the service 



 20

subsidiaries with our traditional banking operations. We can offer no assurances that we will be able to develop and 
integrate new services without adversely affecting our financial performance.  
 
We compete with other financial holding companies, bank holding companies, banks, insurance and financial 
services companies.  
 The banking, insurance and financial services businesses are extremely competitive in our service areas in 
Mississippi, Tennessee, Alabama, Arkansas, Texas, Louisiana, Florida, Missouri and Illinois. We compete, and will 
continue to compete, with well-established banks, credit unions, insurance agencies and other financial institutions, 
some of which have significantly greater resources and lending limits. Some of our competitors provide certain 
services that we do not provide.  
 
We face risks in connection with completed or potential acquisitions.  
 Historically, we have grown th rough the acquisition of other financial institutions as well as the 
development of de novo offices. If appropriate opportunities present them selves, we intend to pursue additional 
acquisitions in the future that we believe are strategic, including possible FDIC-assisted transactions. There can be 
no assurance that we will be able to identify, negotiate or finance potential acquisitions successfully or integrate 
such acquisitions with our current business.  
 Upon completion of an acquisition, we are faced with the challenges of integrating the operations, services, 
products, personnel and systems of acquired companies into our business, which may divert management’s attention 
from ongoing business operations. The success of our acquisitions is often dependent on the continued employment 
of key employees of the acquired business. If certain key employees were to leave, we could conclude that the value 
of an acquired business has decreased and that the related goodwill has been im paired. We cannot assure you that 
we will be successful in effectively integrating any acquisition into the operations of our business or in retaining key 
employees. Moreover, there can be no assurance that the anticipated benefits of any acquisition will be realized.  
 
Our growth strategy includes risks that could have an adverse effect on financial performance.  
 An element of our growt h strategy is the acquisition of addi tional banks (whi ch might include the 
acquisition of bank assets and liabilities in FDIC-assisted transactions), bank holding companies, financial holding 
companies, insurance agencies and/or other businesses related to the financial services industry that may 
complement our organizational structure in order to achieve greater economies of scale. We cannot assure you that 
appropriate growth opportunities will conti nue to exist, that we will be able to acquire banks, insurance agencies, 
bank holding companies and/or financial holding companies that satisfy our cri teria or that any such acquisitions 
will be on terms favorable to us. Further, our growth strate gy requires that we continue to hire qualified personnel, 
while concurrently expanding our  managerial and operational infrastructure. We cannot assure you that we will be 
able to hire and retain qualified personnel or that we will be able to successfully expand our infrastructure to 
accommodate future acquisitions or growth. As a result of these factors, we may not realize the expected econom ic 
benefits associated with our acquisitions. This could have a material adverse effect on our financial performance.  
 
We may experience interruptions or breaches in our information system security.  
 We rely heavily on com munications and i nformation systems to conduct our busi ness. Any failure, 
interruption or breach in security of these systems could result in failures or disruptions in our customer relationship 
management, general ledger, deposit, loan and other systems. While we have policies and procedures desi gned to 
prevent or limit the effect of the failure, interruption or security breach of these information systems, there can be no 
assurance that any such failures, interruptions or security breaches will not occur or, if th ey do occur, that they will 
be adequately addressed. The occurren ce of any failures, interruptions or s ecurity breaches of these inform ation 
systems could damage our reput ation, result in a l oss of customer business, subject us t o additional regulatory 
scrutiny, or expose us to civil litigati on and possible financial liability, any of which could have a material adverse 
effect on our financial condition and results of operations.  
 
We may be adversely affected by the failure of certain third party vendors to perform.  
 We rely upon certain third party vendors to provide pr oducts and services necessary to m aintain our day-
to-day operations. Accordingly, our operat ions are exposed  to the risk that these vendors m ight not perform in 
accordance with applicable contractual arrangements or service level agreements. We maintain a system of policies 
and procedures designed to m onitor vendor risks. W hile we believe these policies and procedures help to mitigate 
risk, the failure of an external vendor  to perform in accordance with applicable contractual arrangements or service 
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level agreements could be disruptive to our operations, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial 
condition and results of operations.  
 
Issuing additional shares of our common stock to acquire other banks, bank holding companies, financial 
holding companies and/or insurance agencies may resul t in dilution for existing shareholders and may 
adversely affect the market price of our stock.  
 In connection with our growth strategy, we have issued, and may issue in the future, shares of our common 
stock to acquire additional banks, bank holding companies, financial holding companies, insurance agencies and/or 
other businesses related to the financial services industry that may compliment our organizational structure. Resales 
of substantial amounts of common stock in the public market and the potential of such sales could adversely affect 
the prevailing market price of our common stock and impair our ability to raise additional capital through the sale of 
equity securities. We usually must pay an acquisition premium above the fair market value of acquired assets for the 
acquisition of banks, bank holding companies, financial holding companies and insurance agencies. Paying this 
acquisition premium, in addition to the dilutive effect o f issuing additional shares, may also adversely affect the 
prevailing market price of our common stock.  
 
Anti-takeover provisions may discourage a change of our control.  
 Our governing documents and certain agreements to which we are a part y contain provisions that make a 
change-in-control difficult to accom plish, and m ay discourage a potential acquirer. These include a classified or 
“staggered” board of di rectors, change-in-control agreements with members of m anagement and superm ajority 
voting requirements. These ant i-takeover provisions may have an adverse effect on the m arket for our com mon 
stock.  
 
Securities that we issue, including our common stock, are not FDIC insured.  
 Securities that we issue, including our com mon stock, are not savings or  deposit accounts or other 
obligations of any bank and are not insured by the FDIC or any other governmental agency or instrumentality or any 
private insurer and are subject to investment risk, including the possible loss of your investment.  
  
We may issue debt or equity securiti es or securities convertible into e quity securities, any of w hich may be 
senior to our common stock as to distributions and in liquidation, which could negat ively affect the value of 
our common stock.  
 In the future, we may attempt to increase our capital resources by entering into debt or debt-like financing 
that is unsecured or secured by all or up to all of our assets, or by issuing additional debt or equity securities, which 
could include issuances of secured or unsecured commercial paper, medium-term notes, senior notes, subordinated 
notes, preferred stock or securities convertible into or ex changeable for equity secur ities. In the event of our 
liquidation, our lenders and holders of our debt and preferred securities would receive a distribution of our available 
assets before distributions to the holders of our common stock. Because any decision to incur debt or issue securities 
in future offerings will depend on market conditions and other f actors beyond our control,  we cannot predict or 
estimate the amount, timing or nature of any such future offerings and debt fi nancings. Further, market conditions 
could require us to accept less favorable terms for the issuance of our securities in the future. 
 
We reported a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting; our internal controls might 
not continue to be effective.  
 Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over fi nancial reporting as of 
December 31, 2010 reported a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting designed to ensure 
proper accounting for al lowance for credit losses, as described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for t he years 
ended December 31, 2010 and Decem ber 31, 2009. During the fourth quarter of 2011, our management concluded 
that the control deficiency in our credit grading process related to the determination of the allowance for credit 
losses has been remediated. We cannot provide any assurance, however, that our internal controls will continue to 
be effective.  
 
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS. 
 
 None. 
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES. 
 
 The physical properties of the Company are held by its subsidiaries as follows: 
 

a. The Bank - The m ain office is located at One Mississippi Plaza, 201 South Spring Street in the 
central business district of Tupelo, Mississippi in a seven-floor, modern, glass, concrete and steel 
office building owned by the Bank.  The Bank occ upies approximately 75% of the space, with the 
remainder leased to various unaffiliated tenants. 
 
The Bank owns 232 of its 258 branch  banking facilities. The rem aining 26 branch banki ng 
facilities are occupied under leases with unexpired terms ranging from one to 12 years.  The Bank 
also owns other buildings that provide space for com puter operations, lease servicing, mortgage 
lending, warehouse needs and other general purposes. 

 
Management considers all of the Bank’s owned buildings and l eased premises to be i n good 
condition.   
 

b. BancorpSouth Insurance Services, Inc. - This wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank owns six of 
the 24 offices it occupies.  It leases 18 offices that have unexpired terms varying in duration from 
one to six years. 

 
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. 
  
 The nature of the Com pany’s business ordinarily results in a cer tain amount of claim s, litigation, 
investigations and legal and adm inistrative investigations and proceedings. Although the Com pany and its 
subsidiaries have devel oped policies and procedures to minimize the impact of l egal noncompliance and ot her 
disputes, and endeavored to provide reasonable insurance coverage, litigation and regulatory actions present an 
ongoing risk. 
 The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in lines of business that are heavily regulated and involve a 
large volume of financial transactions and potential transactions with numerous customers or applicants. From time 
to time, borrowers, customers, former employees and other third parties have brought actions against the Company 
or its subsidiaries, in some cases claiming substantial damages. Financial services companies are subject to the risk 
of class action litigation and, from time to time, the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to such actions brought 
against it. Additionally, the Bank is, and management expects it to be, engaged i n a num ber of forecl osure 
proceedings and other collection actions as part of its lending and leasi ng collections activities, which, from time to 
time, have resulted in counterclaim s against the Bank. Vari ous legal proceedings have arisen and m ay arise in the 
future out of claims against entities to  which the Company is a successor as a result of business com binations. The 
Company’s insurance has deductibles and will likely not cover all such litigation or other proceedings or the costs 
of defense. The Company and i ts subsidiaries may also be subject to enforcem ent actions by federal or state 
regulators, including the SEC, the Federal Reserve, the FDIC, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, the 
Department of Justice, state attorneys general and the Mississippi Department of Banking and Consumer Finance. 
 When and as th e Company determines it h as meritorious defenses t o the claims asserted, it vigorously 
defends against such claims. The Company will consider settlement of claims when, in management’s judgment and 
in consultation with counsel, it is in the best interests of the Company to do so. 

On May 12, 2010, the Company and i ts Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Financial Officer 
were named in a purported class action lawsuit filed in the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of Tennessee 
on behalf of cert ain purchasers of t he Company’s common stock. On Sept ember 17, 2010, an Execut ive Vice 
President of the Company was added as a party to the lawsuit. The amended complaint alleges that the defendants 
issued materially false an d misleading statements regarding the Company’s business and financial results. The 
plaintiff seeks class certification, an unspeci fied amount of damages and awards of cost s and at torneys’ fees and 
other equitable relief. No class has been certified and, at this stage of the lawsuit, management cannot determine the 
probability of an unfavorable outcome to the Com pany. There are signi ficant uncertainties involved in any 
purported class action litigation.  Although it is not possible to predict the ultim ate resolution or financial liability 
with respect to this litigation, management is currently of the opinion that the outcome of this lawsuit will not have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, consolidated financial position or results of operations. 
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On August 16, 2011, a shareholder filed a putative derivative action purportedly on behalf of the Company 
in the Circuit Court of Lee County, Mississippi, against certain current and past executive officers and the members 
of the Board of Di rectors of t he Company. The plaintiff in this shareholder derivative lawsuit asserts th at the 
individual defendants violated their fiduciary duties based upon subst antially the same facts as al leged in the 
purported class action lawsuit described above. The pl aintiff is seeking to recover dam ages in an unspeci fied 
amount and equitable and/or injunctiv e relief. Although it is not possible to  predict the ultim ate resolution or 
financial liability with respect to this litigation, management is cu rrently of the opinion that the outcome of this 
lawsuit will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, consolidated financial position or results 
of operations. 

In November 2010, the Company was informed that the Atlanta Regional Office of the SEC had issued an 
Order of Invest igation concerning the Company.  Thi s investigation is ongoing and i s primarily focused on t he 
Company’s recording and reporting of its unaudited financial statements, including the allowance and provision for 
credit losses, and its internal controls and its communications with the independent auditors prior to the filing of the 
Company’s Annual Report on Form  10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.  In connection with its 
investigation, the SEC issued subpoenas for documents and testimony, with which the Company has fully complied.  
The Company is cooperating fully with the SEC. No claims have been made by the SEC against the Company or 
against any individuals affiliated with the Company. At th is time, it is n ot possible to predict when or how the 
investigation will be resolved or the cost or potential liabilities associated with this matter. 

On May 18, 2010, t he Bank was named as a defendant  in a purported class action lawsuit filed by two 
Arkansas customers of the Bank in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of  Florida. The suit challenges 
the manner in which overdraft fees were charged and t he policies related to posting order of debi t card and ATM  
transactions. The suit also makes a claim under Arkansas’ consumer protection statute. The case was transferred to 
pending multi-district litigation in the U.S. District Co urt for the Southern District o f Florida. No class has been 
certified and, at this stage of the lawsuit, m anagement of the Com pany cannot dete rmine the probability of an 
unfavorable outcome to the Company. There are si gnificant uncertainties involved in any purported class action 
litigation.  Although it is not possible to predict the ultim ate resolution or fina ncial liability with respect to this 
litigation, management is currently of the opinion that the outcome of this lawsuit will not have a material adverse 
effect on the Company’s business, consolidated financial position or results of operations. However, there can be no 
assurance that an adverse outcome or settlement would not have a m aterial adverse effect o n the Company’s 
consolidated results of operations for a given fiscal period. 

 
 
PART II 
 
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. 
 
MARKET FOR COMMON STOCK 
 
 The common stock of the Company trades on the New York St ock Exchange under t he symbol “BXS.”  
The following table sets forth, for the quarters indicated, the range of sal e prices of the Company’s common stock 
as reported on the New York Stock Exchange: 
 

High Low
2011 Fourth 11.39$   8.23$     

Third 14.35     8.61       
Second 16.25     11.57     
First 16.75     14.71     

2010 Fourth 16.31$   12.27$   
Third 18.73     12.41     
Second 23.25     17.86     
First 24.75     17.55      
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HOLDERS OF RECORD 
 
 As of February 15, 2012, there were 8,518 shareholders of record of the Company’s common stock. 
 
DIVIDENDS 
   
 The Company declared cash dividends each quarter in an aggregate annual am ount of $0.14 and $0.88 per 
share during 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Future divi dends, if any, will vary depending on the Company’s 
profitability, anticipated capital requirements and applicable federal and state regulations.  The Company is further 
restricted by the Federal Reserve’s authority to limit or prohibit the payment of dividends, as outlined in SR 09-4.  
The board of directors of the Company has adopted a resolution requested by the Federal Reserve Bank that, among 
other things, requires that the Company obtain prior written approval of the Federal Reserve Bank before taking a 
number of actions, including declaring and paying dividends to the Company’s shareholders, making distributions 
in connection with outstanding trust preferred securities and redeeming outstanding equity securities.  The Bank’s 
board of directors has adopted a resolution requested by the FDIC and the Mississippi Department of Banking and 
Consumer Finance that, among other things, limits the declaration and pay ment of di vidends and requi res 
maintenance of enhanced capital ratios.  There can be no assurance that the Fe deral Reserve Bank, the FDIC or the 
Mississippi Department of Banking and Consumer Finance will not limit or prohibit future dividends.  See “Item 1. 
Business – Regulation and Supervision” included herein for more information on restrictions and limitations on the 
Company’s ability to pay dividends. 
 
 
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 
 

The Company made the following purchases of its common stock during the quarter ended Decem ber 31, 
2011: 

Total Number
of Shares Average Price

Purchased (1) Paid per Share
October 1 - October 31 -                    -$                   
November 1 - November 30 -                    -                     
December 1 - December 31 5,158             11.02             

Total 5,158

(1) This represents 5,158 shares redeemed from an employee during the fourth quarter of 2011 for tax withholding purposes
upon vesting of restricted stock.

Period

 
 
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA. 
  
 See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – 
Selected Financial Information” for the Selected Financial Data. 
 
 
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS. 
 
OVERVIEW 
 
 The Company is a regional financial holding com pany with $13.0 billion in assets headquartered in 
Tupelo, Mississippi.  The C ompany’s wholly-owned banking subsidiary has com mercial banking operations in 
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Mississippi, Tennessee, Alabama, Arkansas, Texas, Louisiana, Florida, and Missouri.  The B ank and its consumer 
finance, credit insurance, insurance agency and brokerage subsidiaries provide commercial banking, leasing, 
mortgage origination and servi cing, insurance, brokerage and t rust services to corporate customers, local 
governments, individuals and other financial institutions through an extensive network of branches and offices.  The 
Bank’s insurance agency subsidiary also operates an office in Illinois.  
 Management’s discussion and anal ysis provides a narrative discussion of t he Company’s financial 
condition and resul ts of operat ions for t he previous three years.  For a com plete understanding of t he following 
discussion, you should refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes presented elsewhere in this 
Report.  This discussion and analysis is based on reported financial information, and certain amounts for prior years 
have been reclassified to conform with the current financial statement presentation.  The information that follows is 
provided to enhance comparability of financial information between years and to provide a better understanding of 
the Company’s operations.  
 As a financial holding company, the financial condition and operating results of the Company are heavily 
influenced by economic trends nationally and in the specific markets in which the Company’s subsidiaries provide 
financial services.  Generally, during the past several years, the pressures of t he national and regional economic 
cycle have created a di fficult operating environment for t he financial services industry.  The C ompany is not 
immune to such pressures and the continuing economic downturn has had a negative impact on the Company and its 
customers in all of the markets that it serv es.  W hile this impact was reflected  in a decline in credit quality and 
increases in the Company’s measures of non-performing loans and l eases (“NPLs”) and net charge-offs in 2010 
compared to 2009, the Company’s NPLs  and net  charge-offs decreased duri ng 2011 com pared to 2010.  
Management believes that the Company is better positioned with respect to overall credit quality as evidenced by 
the improvement in credit quality metrics at December 31, 2011 compared to December 31, 2010.  Managem ent 
believes, however, that continued weakness in the economic environment could adversely affect the strength of the 
credit quality of the Company’s assets overall.  Therefore, management will continue to focus on early identification 
and resolution of any credit issues. 

The largest source of the Company’s revenue is the operation of i ts principal operating subsidiary, the 
Bank.  The financial condition and operating results of the Bank are affected by the level and volatility of interest 
rates on loans, investment securities, deposits and other borrowed funds, and the impact of economic downturns on 
loan demand, collateral value and creditworthiness of existing borrowers.  The fi nancial services industry is highly 
competitive and heavily regulated.  The Company’s success depends on its ability to compete aggressively within its 
markets while maintaining sufficient asset quality and cost controls to generate net income. 

As a resul t of t he impact of t he Durbin Amendment, among other factors, the Company’s debit card 
revenue decreased in 2011 by $3.0 m illion.  The Com pany estimates that debit card revenue could be reduced in 
2012 by more than $13.0 million.  

The information that follows is p rovided to enhance comparability of financial information between 
periods and to provide a better understanding of the Company’s operations. 
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
At or for the Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Earnings Summary:
Interest revenue 537,853$        582,762$        615,414$        705,413$        801,242$        
Interest expense 102,940          141,620          170,515          264,577          378,343          
Net interest revenue 434,913          441,142          444,899          440,836          422,899          
Provision for credit losses 130,081          204,016          117,324          56,176            22,696            
Net interest revenue, after
  provision for credit losses 304,832          237,126          327,575          384,660          400,203          
Noninterest revenue 270,845          264,144          275,276          245,607          232,151          
Noninterest expense 533,633          487,033          490,017          455,913          428,410          
Income before income taxes 42,044            14,237            112,834          174,354          203,944          
Income tax expense (benefit) 4,475              (8,705)             30,105            53,943            66,001            
Net income 37,569$          22,942$          82,729$          120,411$        137,943$        

Balance Sheet - Year-End Balances:
Total assets 12,995,851$   13,615,010$   13,167,867$   13,480,218$   13,189,841$   
Total securities 2,513,518       2,709,081       1,993,594       2,316,380       2,627,110       
Loans and leases, net of unearned income 8,870,311       9,333,107       9,775,136       9,691,277       9,179,684       
Total deposits 10,955,189     11,490,021     10,677,702     9,711,872       10,064,099     
Long-term debt 35,000            110,000          112,771          286,312          88,977            
Total shareholders' equity 1,262,912       1,222,244       1,276,296       1,240,260       1,196,626       

Balance Sheet - Average Balances:
Total assets 13,280,047 13,304,836 13,203,659 13,200,801 12,857,135
Total securities 2,620,404 2,157,096 2,179,479 2,417,390 2,781,232
Loans and leases, net of unearned income 9,159,431 9,621,529 9,734,580 9,429,963 8,784,940
Total deposits 11,251,406 11,107,445 10,155,730 9,803,999 10,200,098
Long-term debt 66,673 111,547 290,582 278,845 139,537
Total shareholders' equity 1,240,768 1,241,321 1,255,605 1,224,280 1,121,000

Common Share Data:
Basic earnings per share 0.45$              0.28$              0.99$              1.46$              1.69$              
Diluted earnings per share 0.45                0.27                0.99                1.45                1.69                
Cash dividends per share 0.14 0.88 0.88 0.87 0.83
Book value per share 15.13              14.64              15.29              14.92              14.54              
Dividend payout ratio 31.11              314.29            88.89              60.00              49.11              

Financial Ratios:
Return on average assets 0.28% 0.17% 0.63% 0.91% 1.07%
Return on average shareholders' equity 3.03% 1.85% 6.59% 9.84% 12.31%
Total shareholders' equity to total assets 9.72% 8.98% 9.69% 9.20% 9.07%
Tangible shareholders' equity to tangible assets 7.67% 7.00% 7.63% 7.15% 7.09%
Net interest margin-fully taxable equivalent 3.69% 3.70% 3.77% 3.75% 3.68%

Credit Quality Ratios:
Net charge-offs to average loans and leases 1.44% 1.90% 0.76% 0.40% 0.14%
Provision for credit losses to average loans and leases 1.42% 2.12% 1.21% 0.60% 0.26%
Allowance for credit losses to net loans and leases 2.20% 2.11% 1.80% 1.37% 1.25%
Allowance for credit losses to NPLs 60.55% 49.93% 94.41% 207.45% 394.76%
Allowance for credit losses to NPAs 39.33% 37.31% 71.64% 120.36% 215.47%
NPLs to net loans and leases 3.63% 4.23% 1.91% 0.66% 0.32%
NPAs to net loans and leases 5.59% 5.65% 2.51% 1.14% 0.58%

Capital Ratios:
Tier I capital 11.77% 10.61% 11.17% 10.79% 10.63%
Total capital 13.03% 11.87% 12.42% 12.04% 11.81%
Tier I leverage capital 8.85% 8.07% 8.95% 8.65% 8.13%

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

 
In addition to financial ratios based on m easures defined by U.S. GAAP, the Com pany utilizes tangible 

shareholders’ equity and t angible asset measures when evaluating the perform ance of the Com pany.  Tangible 
shareholders’ equity is defined by the Com pany as total shareholders’ equity  less goodwill and identifiable 



 27

intangible assets.  Tangible assets are defined by the Com pany as total assets less goodwill and identifiable 
intangible assets. Management believes the ratio of t angible shareholders’ equity to tangible assets to be an 
important measure of financial strength of the Company.  The following table reconciles tangible assets and tangible 
shareholders’ equity as presented above to U.S. GAAP financial measure as reflected in the Company’s unaudited 
consolidated financial statements: 
 

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Tangible Assets:
   Total assets 12,995,851$  13,615,010$  13,167,867$  13,480,218$  13,189,841$  
   Less:  Goodwill 271,297         270,097         270,097         268,966         254,889         
               Identifiable intangible assets 16,613           19,624           23,533           28,164           26,549           
   Total tangible assets 12,707,941$ 13,325,289$ 12,874,237$ 13,183,088$  12,908,403$ 

Tangible Shareholders' Equity
   Total shareholders' equity 1,262,912$    1,222,244$    1,276,296$    1,240,260$    1,196,626$    
   Less:  Goodwill 271,297         270,097         270,097         268,966         254,889         
               Identifiable intangible assets 16,613           19,624           23,533           28,164           26,549           
   Total tangible shareholders' equity 975,002$      932,523$      982,666$      943,130$       915,188$      

Tangible shareholders' equity to 
   tangible assets 7.67% 7.00% 7.63% 7.15% 7.09%

December 31, 

(In thousands)

 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 
 The Company reported net incom e of $37.6 m illion for 2011 com pared to $22.9 m illion for 2010 and 
$82.7 million for 2009.  The provision for credit losses was the most significant factor  contributing to both the 
increase in earnings in 2011 com pared to 2010 and t he decrease i n earnings in 2010 com pared to 2009, as t he 
provision for credit losses was $130.1 m illion in 2011 compared to $204.0 m illion in 2010 and $117.3 m illion in 
2009.  Net charge-offs decreased to $131.9 m illion, or 1.44% of average loans and leases in 2011 from $183.1 
million, or 1.90% of average loans and leases in 2010, co mpared to $74.1 m illion, or 0.76% of average loans and 
leases, in 2009.   The decrease i n the provision for credi t losses from 2010 t o 2011 refl ected the impact of a 
significant decrease in NPL formation during 2011 as NPLs decreased to $322.3 million at December 31, 2011 after 
having increased to $394.4 million at December 30, 2010 from $186.5 million at December 31, 2009.  The im pact 
of the economic environment continues to be evi dent on real estate consumer mortgage and construction, 
acquisition and development loans and more specifically on residential construction, acquisition and development 
loans.  Many of these loans have become collateral-dependant, requiring recognition of addi tional loan loss 
provisions or charge-offs to reflect the decline in real estate values.  During 2011, the Company continued its focus 
on improving credit quality and reducing NPLs, esp ecially in the real estate construction, acquisition and 
development loan portfolio, as eviden ced by the decrease in th at portfolio’s nonaccrual loans of $78.4 million to 
$133.1 million at December 31, 2011 from $211.5 million at December 31, 2010.  
    The primary source of revenue for t he Company is net interest revenue earned by  the Bank.  Net interest 
revenue is the difference between interest earned on loans, investments and other earning assets and interest paid on 
deposits and other obligations.  Net interest revenue for 2011 was $434.9 m illion, compared to $441.1 m illion for 
2010 and $444.9 million for 2009.  Net interest revenue is affected by the general level of interest rates, changes in 
interest rates and changes in the am ount and composition of interest earning asse ts and interest bearing liabilities.  
The Company’s long-term objective is to manage those assets and liabilities to maximize net interest revenue, while 
balancing interest rate, credit, liquidity and capital risks.  Th e Company experienced an increase in lower rate 
savings deposits and average dem and deposits and a decrease in higher rate other time deposits and l ong-term 
borrowing, which resulted in a decrease in interest expe nse of $38.7 million, or 27.3%, in 2011 compared to 2010.  
The 1.4% decrease in net interest revenue in 2011 compared to 2010 was a result of the decrease in interest expense 
being more than offset by the decrease in interest revenue that resulted from the declining interest rate environment 
combined with the low loan dem and, as interest revenue decreased $44.9 m illion, or 7.3%, in 2011 com pared to 
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2010.  While loan demand has been weak, the Company has managed to replace som e loan runoff with new loan 
production, primarily in its Texas and Louisiana markets. 

The Company attempts to diversify its revenue str eam by increasing the am ount of revenue received from  
mortgage lending operations, insurance agency activities, brokerage and securities activities and other activities that 
generate fee income.  Management believes this diversification is important to reduce the impact of fluctuations in 
net interest revenue on t he overall operating results of the Company.   Noninterest revenue for 2011 was $270.8 
million, compared to $264.1 m illion for 2010 and $275.3 million for 2009.  W hile total noninterest revenue 
increased $6.7 m illion, or 2.54%, during 2011 com pared to 2010, m ortgage lending revenue decreased $12.7 
million, or 42.6%, to $17.1 m illion in 2011 compared to $29.7 million in 2010.  The decrease in m ortgage lending 
revenue was pri marily related to the fair value adjustment of M SRs, as t he fair value of MSRs decreased $14.0 
million during 2011 com pared to a decrease of $4.0 m illion during 2010.  Mortgage lending revenue was also 
adversely impacted by the decrease in mortgage originations, which decreased during 2011 to $1.2 billion from $1.4 
billion in 2010.  The decreased level of mortgage origination volumes resulted in a decrease in origination revenue 
to $24.3 million in 2011 compared to $28.6 million in 2010. 

One of the primary contributors to the increase in noninterest revenue in 2011 was the increase in securities 
gains, which reflected a net gain of $12.1 m illion in 2011 compared to a net gain of $2.6 m illion in 2010.  During 
the second quarter of 2011, the Com pany determined that it no longer had the intent to hold until m aturity all 
securities that were previously classified as held-to-maturity.  As a resu lt of this determination, all securities were 
classified as available-for-sale and recorded at  fair value.  The 2010 net  security gains included other-than-
temporary impairment charges of $2.1 m illion related to the Com pany’s investment in pooled trust preferred 
securities.  

Noninterest revenue was positively impacted by the 12.5% increase in credit card, debit card and merchant 
fee income for 2011 compared to 2010, as the number and monetary volume of items processed increased with this 
increase somewhat offset by the im pact of t he Durbin Amendment, which reduced debi t card revenue by  $3.0 
million in 2011.  Service charges decreased 5.7% in 2011 co mpared to 2010 as a result of a lower volume of items 
processed and changes i n banking regulations related to overdraft fees.  Insurance com missions increased $4.7 
million, or 5.8%, ,in 2011 compared to 2010 as a result of new policies written and growth from existing customers, 
while insurance commissions remained relatively stable in 2010 compared to 2009.  The C ompany recorded $2.2 
million in gains related to the disposition of fixed a ssets during 2011, and there were no other significant non-
recurring noninterest revenue items during 2011 or 2010. 
 Noninterest expense for 2011 was $533.6 m illion, an increase of 9.6% from  $487.0 m illion for 2010, 
which was a decrease of 0.6% from $490.0 million for 2009.  The increase in noninterest expense in 2011 compared 
to 2010 was largely a result of the $9.8 million prepayment penalty related to the early repayment of Federal Home 
Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances during the second quarter of 2011, as well as the $3.1 million recorded as a result of 
the closure of 22 branch offi ces during the third quarter of 2011 under the Company’s branch optimization project.  
Foreclosed property expense increased $9.4 m illion, or 51.4%, to $27.8 m illion in 2011 compared to $18.4 million 
in 2010 as a result of writedowns of other real estate owned because of the decline in property values attributable to 
the prevailing economic environment.  Deposit insuran ce assessments increased $2.1 million, or 10.7%, in 2011 
compared to 2010 primarily as a result of a slightly higher assessment rate.  Effective as of t he second quarter of 
2011, the FDIC bases the deposit insurance assessment on a redefined assessment base and a new scorecard method 
to calculate the assessment rate.  Income tax expense increased in 2011 and 2010 pri marily as a resul t of t he 
increase in pretax income in 2011 compared to 2010.  The m ajor components of net income are discussed in more 
detail in the various sections that follow. 
 The Company continued its commitment to maintaining a strong capital base as its total shareholders’ 
equity to total assets ratio was 9.72%, 8.98%, and 9.69% at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  Also, 
noninterest bearing demand deposits and savings deposits increased 10.2% and 14.9%, respectively, at December 
31, 2011 compared to December 31, 2010.  During the second quarter of 2011, the Company repaid FHLB 
advances totaling $75.0 million resulting in a decrease in long-term FHLB borrowings of 69.6% to $33.5 million at 
December 31, 2011 compared to $110.0 million at December 31, 2010.  
 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES 
 
 The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in  accordance with U.S. GAAP, which 
require the Com pany to m ake estimates and assum ptions (see Note 1 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial 
Statements included elsewhere in this Report).  Man agement believes that its d etermination of the allowance for 
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credit losses, valuation of other real estate owned, the annual goodwill im pairment assessment, the assessment for 
other-than-temporary impairment of securities, the valuation of mortgage servicing rights and the estimation of 
pension and ot her postretirement benefit amounts involve a higher degree of judgm ent and com plexity than the 
Company’s other significant accounting policies.  Further, these estimates can be materially impacted by changes in 
market conditions or t he actual or perceived financial condition of t he Company’s borrowers, subject ing the 
Company to significant volatility of earnings. 
 
Allowance for Credit Losses 
 The allowance for credi t losses is established through the provision for credit losses, which is a charge 
against earnings.  Provisions for credit losses are m ade to reserve for estimated probable losses on loans and leases.  
The allowance for credit losses is a signi ficant estimate and is regularly evaluated by the Company for adequacy by 
taking into consideration factors such as changes in the nature and volume of the loan and lease portfolio; trends in 
actual and forecasted portfolio credit quality, including delinquency, charge-off and bankruptcy  rates; and current 
economic conditions that m ay affect a borrower’s ability to pay.  In determ ining an adequate allowance for credit 
losses, management makes numerous assumptions, estimates and assessments.  The use of different estimates or 
assumptions could produce di fferent provisions for credi t losses.  See “Item 7. M anagement’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operat ions – Results of Operations – Provision for Credit Losses 
and Allowance for Credit Losses” included herein for m ore information.  At December 31, 2011, the allowance for 
credit losses was $195.1 million, representing 2.10% of total loans and leases, net of unearned income. 
 
Other Real Estate Owned 
 Other real estate owned, consisting of assets that have been acquired through foreclosure or in satisfaction 
of loans, is carried at the lower of co st or fair value, less estimated selling costs.  Fair value is based on independent 
appraisals and other relevant factors.  Other real estate owned is revalued on an annual basis or more often if market 
conditions necessitate.  Valuation adjustments required at foreclosure are charged to the allowance for credit losses.  
Subsequent valuation adjustments on t he periodic revaluation of the property are charged t o net income as 
noninterest expense.  Significant judgments and complex estimates are required in estimating the fair value of other 
real estate owned, and t he period of t ime within which such estimates can be considered current is significantly 
shortened during periods of market volatility, as ex perienced during the past two years.  As a resu lt, the net 
proceeds realized from  sales transactions could differ si gnificantly from appraisals, co mparable sales, and other 
estimates used to determine the fair value of other real estate owned. 
 
Goodwill 
 The Company’s policy is to asse ss goodwill for im pairment at the reporting segm ent level on an annual 
basis or sooner i f an event occurs or ci rcumstances change which indicate that the fair value of a report ing unit is 
below its carrying amount.  Impairment is the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds 
its implied fair value.  Accounting standards require management to estim ate the fair value of each reporting 
segment in assessing impairment at least annually.  The C ompany’s annual assessment date is during the 
Company’s fourth quarter.  Because of the volatile market conditions during which the Company’s market value fell 
below book value, however, the Com pany performed a co mplete goodwill im pairment analysis for all of its 
reporting segments during the second quarter of 2011 and a rol l-forward of that analysis during the third quarter of 
2011.  Based on these analyses, the estim ated fair value of all of the Com pany’s reporting segments exceeded the 
respective carrying values.  The Com pany’s annual goodwill impairment evaluation performed during the fourth 
quarter of 2011 also indicated no impairment of goodwill for its reporting units.  Therefore, no goodwill impairment 
was recorded.   

In the current environm ent, forecasting cash flows, credit losses and growth in  addition to valuing the 
Company’s assets with any degree of a ssurance is very difficult and subject to significant changes over very  short 
periods of time.  Management will continue to update its analysis as circumstances change.  If m arket conditions 
continue to be volatile and unpredictable, impairment of goodwill related to the Company’s reporting segments may 
be necessary in future periods.  Goodwill was $271.3 million at December 31, 2011. 
 
Assessment for Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Securities 
 Securities are evaluated periodically to determine whether a decline in their value is other-than-temporary.  
The term “other-than-temporary” is not intended to indicate a permanent decline in value.  Rather, it means that the 
prospects for near-term recovery of value are not necessarily favorable.  Mana gement reviews criteria such as the 
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magnitude and duration of the decline, as well as the reasons for the decline, and whether the Company would be 
required to sell the securities before a full recovery of costs in order to predict whether the loss in value is other-
than-temporary.  Once a decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary, the impairment is separated into 
(a) the amount of the impairment related to the credit loss and (b) the amount of the impairment related to all other 
factors.  The val ue of t he security is reduced by  the other-than-temporary impairment with the amount of the 
impairment related to credit loss recognized as a charge to earnings and the amount of the impairment related to all 
other factors recognized in other comprehensive income. 
 
Mortgage Servicing Rights 
 The Company recognizes as asset s the rights to service mortgage loans for ot hers, known as m ortgage 
servicing rights (“MSRs”).  The C ompany records M SRs at fair value on a recurring basis with subsequent 
remeasurement of MSRs based on change in fair value in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 860, Transfers and Servi cing (“FASB ASC 860”).  An 
estimate of the fair value of the Co mpany’s MSRs is determ ined utilizing assumptions about factors such as 
mortgage interest rates, discount rates, mortgage loan prepayment speeds, m arket trends and i ndustry demand.  
Because the valuation is determined by using discounted cash flow m odels, the primary risk inherent in valuing the 
MSRs is the impact of fluctuating interest rates on the estimated life of the servicing revenue stream.  The use of 
different estimates or assum ptions could also produce di fferent fair values.  The C ompany does not  hedge the 
change in fair value of MSRs and, therefore, the Company is susceptible to significant fluctuations in the fair value 
of its MSRs in changing interest rate environm ents.  At December 31, 2011, the Com pany’s mortgage servicing 
asset was valued at $30.2 million. 
 
Pension and Postretirement Benefits 
 Accounting for pension and other postretirem ent benefit am ounts is another area where the accounting 
guidance requires management to make various assumptions in order t o appropriately value any related asset or 
liability.  Estimates that the Company makes to determine pension-related assets an d liabilities include actuarial 
assumptions, expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, rate of compensation increase for part icipants and 
discount rate.  Estimates that the Company makes to determine asset and liability am ounts for other postretirement 
benefits include actuarial assumptions and a discount rate.  Changes in these estimates could impact earnings.  For 
example, lower expected long-term rates of return on plan assets could negatively impact earnings, as would lower 
estimated discount rates or higher rates of compensation increase.  In est imating the projected benefit obligation, 
actuaries must make assumptions about such factors as m ortality rate, turnover rate, retirement rate, disability rate 
and the rate of compensation increases.  The Com pany accounts for the over-funded or under-funded status of its 
defined benefit and postretirem ent plans as an asset or liability in its consolidated balance sheets and recognizes 
changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income as required by 
FASB ASC 715, Compensation – Retirement Benefits (“FASB ASC 715”).  In accordance with FASB ASC 715, 
the Company calculates the e xpected return on plan assets each year based on the balance in the pension asset 
portfolio at the beginning of the year and the expected long-term rate of return on that portfolio.  In determining the 
reasonableness of the expected rate of  return, the Company considers a variety of factors including the actual return 
earned on plan assets, historical rates of return on the various asset classes of which the plan portfolio is comprised 
and current/prospective capital market conditions and economic forecasts.  The Company used an expected rate of 
return of 8% on pl an assets for 2011.  The discount rate is the rate used t o determine the present value of t he 
Company’s future benefit obligations for i ts pension and other postretirement benefit plans.  The C ompany 
determines the discount rate to be used to discount plan liabilities at the m easurement date with the assistance of its 
actuary using the actuary’s proprietary model.  The Company developed a level equivalent yield using its actuary’s 
model as of Decem ber 30, 2011 and the expected cash flow s from the BancorpSouth, Inc. Retirement Plan (the 
“Basic Plan”), the BancorpSouth, Inc. R estoration Plan (the “Restoration Plan”) and the BancorpSouth, Inc. 
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “Supplemental Plan”).  B ased on t his analysis, the Company 
established its discount rate assumptions for determination of the projected benefit obligation at 4.80% for the Basic 
Plan, 4.45% for the Restoration Pl an and 3.85% for the Supplem ental Plan based on a Decem ber 31, 2011 
measurement date.  
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
   
Net Interest Revenue 
 Net interest revenue is the difference between interest revenue earned on assets, such as loans, leases and 
securities, and interest expense paid on liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings, and continues to provide the 
Company with its principal source of revenue.  Net interest revenue is affected by the general level of interest rates, 
changes in interest rates and changes in the am ount and composition of interest earning a ssets and interest bearing 
liabilities.  The Company’s long-term objective is to manage interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities to 
maximize net interest revenue, while balancing interest rate, cred it and liquidity risk.  Net in terest margin is 
determined by dividing fully taxable equivalent net interest revenue by average earning assets.  For purposes of the 
following discussion, revenue from tax-exempt loans and investment securities has been adjusted to a fully taxable 
equivalent (“FTE”) basis, using an effective tax rate of 35%.  The following tables present average interest earning 
assets, average interest bearing liabilities, net interest revenue-FTE, net interest margin-FTE and net interest rate 
spread for the three years ended December 31, 2011: 
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2011 2010 2009
(Taxable equivalent basis) Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/

Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
ASSETS
Loans and leases (net of unearned 
  income) (1)(2) 9,159,431$        464,413$     5.07% 9,621,529$        500,108$    5.20% 9,734,580$       520,315$     5.35%
Loans held for sale 53,504               2,219           4.15% 68,980               3,024          4.38% 115,181            3,965           3.44%
Held-to-maturity securities:
  Taxable (3) 547,471             13,266         2.42% 985,606             36,718        3.73% 1,015,440         47,397         4.67%
  Non-taxable (4) 133,827             8,673           6.48% 236,530             16,014        6.77% 194,370            13,619         7.01%
Available-for-sale securities:
  Taxable (5) 1,667,936          44,243         2.65% 863,091             32,033        3.71% 898,073            35,026         3.90%
  Non-taxable (6) 271,170             16,897         6.23% 71,869               5,039          7.01% 71,596              5,223           7.30%
Federal funds sold, securities 
  purchased under agreement to resell 
  and short-term investments 310,052             868              0.28% 376,328             961             0.26% 49,197              205              0.42%
  Total interest earning 
    assets and revenue 12,143,391        550,579       4.53% 12,223,933        593,897      4.86% 12,078,437       625,750       5.18%
Other assets 1,347,685          1,293,963          1,275,150         
Less:  allowance for credit losses (211,029)           (213,060)           (149,928)           

    Total 13,280,047$      13,304,836$      13,203,659$     

LIABILITIES AND 
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:

  Demand - interest bearing 4,907,058$        22,646$       0.46% 4,649,235$        35,187$      0.76% 4,051,362$       40,047$       0.99%
  Savings 943,317             3,211 0.34% 784,504             3,576 0.46% 712,740            3,700 0.52%
  Other time 3,322,733          61,709 1.86% 3,782,727          83,999 2.22% 3,633,453         101,308 2.79%
Federal funds purchased,securities
  sold under agreement to repurchase,

  short-term FHLB borrowings
  and other short term borrowings 437,589             555 0.13% 539,524             1,384 0.26% 1,175,708         2,378 0.20%
Junior subordinated debt securities 160,312             11,451 7.14% 160,312             11,461 7.15% 160,312            11,630 7.25%
Long-term  FHLB borrowings 66,673               3,368 5.05% 111,547             6,013 5.38% 290,582            11,452 3.93%
  Total interest bearing
    liabilities and expense 9,837,682          102,940 1.05% 10,027,849        141,620 1.41% 10,024,157       170,515 1.70%
Demand deposits -
  noninterest bearing 2,078,298          1,890,979          1,758,175         
Other liabilities 123,299             144,687             165,722            
  Total liabilities 12,039,279        12,063,515        11,948,054       
Shareholders' equity 1,240,768          1,241,321          1,255,605         
  Total 13,280,047$      13,304,836$      13,203,659$     
Net interest revenue-FTE 447,639$     452,277$    455,235$     

Net interest margin-FTE 3.69% 3.70% 3.77%
Net interest rate spread 3.49% 3.45% 3.48%
Interest bearing liabilities to
   interest earning assets 81.01% 82.03% 82.99%
(1)  Includes taxable equivalent adjustment to interest of approximately $3,337,000, $3,326,000 and $3,302,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, using an effective tax rate of 35%.
(2)  Non-accrual loans are included in Loans and leases (net of unearned income).
(3)  Includes taxable equivalent adjustments to interest of approximately $186,000 in 2011 and $440,000 in 2010 and 2009 using an effective tax rate of 35%.
(4)  Includes taxable equivalent adjustments to interest of approximately $3,035,000, $5,605,000 and $4,767,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, using an effective tax rate of 35%.
(5)  Includes taxable equivalent adjustment to interest of approximately $254,000 in 2011 using an effective tax rate of 35%.
(6)  Includes taxable equivalent adjustment to interest of approximately $5,914,000, $1,764,000 and $1,827,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, using an effective tax rate of 35%.

(Dollars in thousands, yields on taxable equivalent basis)

 
Net interest revenue-FTE decreased 1.0% to $447.6 million in 2011 from  $452.3 million in 2010, which 

represented a decrease of 0.7% from  $455.2 million in 2009.  The slight decrease in net interest revenue-FTE for 
2011 compared to 2010 was pri marily a resul t of decreased net loans and l eases combined with the continued 
declining loan yields and the increase in average lower rate secu rities.  The decrease in net interest revenue was 
somewhat offset by the decrease in higher rate long-te rm FHLB borrowings and othe r time deposits, resulting in a 
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decrease in interest expense related to those borrowings to $3.4 million for 2011 compared to $6.0 million for 2010.   
The slight decrease i n net interest revenue-FTE for 2010 compared to 2009 was a resul t of cont inued deposit 
growth, combined with a decrease in net loans and leases, resulting in an increase in short-term investments that had 
lower average rates earned than the av erage rates paid on the deposit growth.  The y ield on interest earning assets 
declined 33 basi s points to 4.53% i n 2011 from  4.86% i n 2010 and t he average rat e paid on i nterest bearing 
liabilities declined 36 basis points to 1.05% in 2011 com pared to 1.41% in 2010.  The yield on interest earning 
assets declined 32 basis points to 4.86% in 2010 from 5.18% in 2009, which exceeded the decline of 29 basis points 
in the average rate paid on interest bearing liabilities to 1.41% in 2010 from  1.70% in 2009.  The declining loan 
yields experienced by the Company in 2011 and 2010 was a result of reduced interest rates with this decline being 
somewhat offset by the impact of the interest rate floors evident on a portion of the Company’s variable rate loans.  
The effect o f the interest rate flo ors on the Company’s variable rate loans is more fully discussed in “Item 7. 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Results of Operations – 
Interest Rate Sensitivity.”       
 Interest revenue-FTE decreased 7.3% to $550. 6 million in 2011 from $593.9 m illion in 2010, which 
represented a decrease of 5.1% from  $625.8 million in 2009.  The decrease in interest revenue-FTE in 2011 and 
2010 was primarily a result of the declining loan yields as interest rates were at  historically low levels combined 
with decreased net loans and leases resulting in an overall decrease in the yield on average interest earning assets of 
33 basis points during 2011 and 32 basi s points during 2010.  Average i nterest earning assets decreased $80.5 
million, or 0.7%, to $12.1 billion in 2011 and increased  $145.5 million, or 1.2%, to $12.2 billion in 2010 from 
$12.1 billion in 2009.  The decrease in average interest earning assets during 2011 was prim arily a result of the 
larger decreases in net loans and leases and short-term investments than the increase in securities, as the decrease in 
deposits resulted in less funds to invest in securities.  The increase in av erage interest earning assets during 2010 
was primarily a result of the increase in short-term investments, which was attributable to continued deposit growth, 
combined with a decrease in net loans and leases.     
 Interest expense decreased 27.3% to $102.9 million in 2011 from  $141.6 m illion in 2010, which 
represented a decrease of 17.0% from  $170.5 million in 2009.  The decrease in interest expense during 2011 was a 
result of the increase in aver age lower cost interest bearing demand deposits combined with the decrease in other 
time deposit rates and the decrease in average long-term deposits and long-term deposit rates, resulting in an overall 
decrease in the average rate paid of 36 basi s points.  The decrease i n interest expense during 2010 was a result of 
the increase in lower cost interest bearing dem and deposits combined with the decrease in demand and other time 
deposit rates, resulting in an overall decrease in the average rat e paid of 29 basi s points during 2010.  Average 
interest bearing liabilities decreased $190.2 million, or 1.9%, to $9.8 billion in  2011 after remaining stable at $10.0 
billion in 2010 and 2009.  The decrease in interest bear ing liabilities in 2011 com pared to 2010 was prim arily a 
result of t he decrease i n short-term and l ong-term borrowings.  The decrease in short-term and long-term 
borrowings during 2010 was offset by the slightly larger increase in the Company’s interest bearing demand, 
savings and other time deposits, resulting in average interest bearing liabilities that remained flat from 2009 to 2010.     
 Net interest margin-FTE for 2011 was 3.69%, a decrease of one basis point from 3.70% for 2010, which 
represented a decrease of seven basi s points from 3.77% for 2009.  The sl ight decrease in the net interest margin-
FTE for 2011 compared to 2010 was primarily a result of the combination of increased average deposits and weak 
loan demand resulting in higher levels of average i nvestments with lower yields than those earned on t he loan 
portfolio.  During 2011, the Com pany was somewhat able to mitigate the effect of lower loan yields by increasing 
lower cost demand deposits and decreasing higher rate time deposits.  The decrease in the net interest margin-FTE 
for 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily a result of the higher level of average nonaccrual loans and the reversal of 
current year interest for loans placed  on nonaccrual status or charged off.  The higher level of average nonaccrual 
loans and the reversal of current year interest for loans placed on nonaccr ual status or charged off during 2010 
decreased net interest margin-FTE by 14 basis points in 2010.  Al so, the combination of i ncreased deposits and 
weak loan demand resulted in higher levels of short-term investments with relatively low yields.     
 Net interest revenue-FTE may also be analyzed by segregating the rate and volume components of interest 
revenue and i nterest expense.  The t able below presents an analysis of rate and average volum e change in net 
interest revenue from 2010 to 2011 and from 2009 to 2010.  Changes that are not solely a result of volume or rate 
have been allocated to volume. 
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(Taxable equivalent basis) Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
INTEREST REVENUE (In thousands)
Loans and leases (net of unearned 
  income) (23,430)$  (12,265)$    (35,695)$  (5,876)$    (14,331)$   (20,207)$  
Loans held for sale (642)         (163)           (805)         (2,025)      1,084         (941)         
Held-to-maturity securities:
  Taxable (10,617)    (12,835)      (23,452)    (1,111)      (9,568)       (10,679)    
  Non-taxable (6,656)      (685)           (7,341)      2,854       (459)          2,395       
Available-for-sale securities:
  Taxable 21,349     (9,139)        12,210     (1,298)      (1,695)       (2,993)      
  Non-taxable 12,419     (561)           11,858     19            (203)          (184)         
Federal funds sold, securities
  purchased under agreement to
  resell and short-term investments (186)         93              (93)           835          (79)            756          
  Total increase (decrease) (7,763)      (35,555)      (43,318)    (6,602)      (25,251)     (31,853)    

INTEREST EXPENSE
Demand deposits - interest bearing 1,190       (13,731)      (12,541)    4,525       (9,385)       (4,860)      
Savings deposits 541          (906)           (365)         327          (451)          (124)         
Other time deposits (8,543)     (13,747)    (22,290)  3,315     (20,624)     (17,309)  
Federal funds purchased, securities
  sold under agreement to repurchase,
  short-term FHLB borrowings and
  other short term borrowings (129)         (700)           (829)         (1,632)      638            (994)         
Junior subordinated debt
  securities -               (10)             (10)           -               (169)          (169)         
Long-term FHLB borrowings (2,278)      (367)           (2,645)      (9,651)      4,212         (5,439)      
  Total increase (decrease) (9,219)      (29,461)      (38,680)    (3,116)      (25,779)     (28,895)    
 
Total net increase (decrease) 1,456$    (6,094)$     (4,638)$   (3,486)$   528$          (2,958)$   

2010 over 2009 - Increase (Decrease)2011 over 2010 - Increase (Decrease)

 
Interest Rate Sensitivity 
 The interest rate sensitivity gap is the difference between the maturity or repricing opportunities of interest 
sensitive assets and interest sensitive liabilities for a g iven period of time.  A p rime objective of asset/liability 
management is to maximize net interest margin while maintaining a reasonable mix of interest sensitive assets and 
liabilities.  The following table presents the Company’s interest rate sensitivity at December 31, 2011: 
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Interest Rate Sensitivity - Maturing or Repricing
91 Days Over One

0  to 90 to Year to Over
Days One Year Five Years Five Years

(In thousands)
INTEREST EARNING ASSETS:
Interest bearing deposits with banks 303,663$     -$                 -$                 -$                 
Available-for-sale securities 126,905       213,472       1,308,961    864,180       
Loans and leases, net of unearned income 4,139,518    1,674,333    2,744,478    311,982       
Loans held for sale 65,818         343              2,005           15,292         
  Total interest earning assets 4,635,904    1,888,148    4,055,444    1,191,454    
INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES:
Interest bearing demand and
  savings deposits 5,698,527    -                   -                   -                   
Other time deposits 632,499       1,307,134    1,046,987    243              
Federal funds purchased, securities 
  sold under agreement to repurchase,
  short-term FHLB borrowings and
  other short-term borrowings 373,933       1,500           -                   -                   
Long-term FHLB borrowings and junior 
  subordinated debt securities -                   -                   3,500           190,312       
Other 1                  -                   68                -                   
  Total interest bearing liabilities 6,704,960    1,308,634    1,050,555    190,555       
Interest rate sensitivity gap (2,069,056)$ 579,514$     3,004,889$  1,000,899$  
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap (2,069,056)$ (1,489,542)$ 1,515,347$  2,516,246$  

 
 
 In the event interest rates increase after December 31, 2011, based on this interest rate sensitivity gap, it is 
likely that the Com pany would experience decreased net interest revenue in the following one-year period, as the 
cost of funds would increase at a more rapid rate than interest revenue on interest earning assets.  Conversely, in the 
event interest rates decline after December 31, 2011, based on this interest rate sensitivity gap, the Company would 
likely experience slightly increased net interest revenue in the following one-year period.  It should be noted that the 
balances shown in the table above are at Decem ber 31, 2011 and may not be reflective of positions at other times 
during the year or in subsequent periods.  Allocations to specific interest rate sensitivity periods are based on the 
earlier of maturity or repricing dates.  The increased liability sensitivity in the 0 to 90 day category as compared to 
other categories was prim arily a result of the Company’s utilization of shorte r term, lower cost deposits to fund 
earning assets during 2011. 
 As of December 31, 2011, the Bank had $1.9 billion in variable rate loans with interest rates determined by 
a floor, or minimum rate.  This portion of the loan portfolio had an average interest rate earned of 4.66%, an average 
maturity of 30 months and a fully-indexed interest rate of 3.71% at Decem ber 31, 2011.  The fully-indexed interest 
rate is the interest rate that these loans would be earning without the effect of interest rate floors.  While the Bank 
benefits from interest rate floors in the current interest rate en vironment, loans currently earning their floored 
interest rate may not experience an i mmediate impact on the interest rate earned shoul d key indices rise.  Key  
indices include, but are not limited to, the Wall Street Journal prime rate, the Bank’s prime rate and the London 
Interbank Offering Rate.  At December 31, 2011, the Company had $975.2 million, $1.2 billion and $724.9 million 
in variable rate loans with interest rates tied  to the Bank’s prime rate, the Wall Street Journal prime rate and the 
London Interbank Offering Rate, respectively.  The B ank’s net interest margin may be negatively impacted by the 
timing and magnitude of a rise in key indices. 
 
Interest Rate Risk Management 
 Interest rate risk refers t o the potential changes in net interest income and Econom ic Value of Equi ty 
(“EVE”) resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.  EVE is defined as the net present value of the balance 
sheet’s cash flow.  EVE i s calculated by discounting projected principal and interest cash flows under the current 
interest rate environment.  The present value of asset cash flows less the present value of liability cash flows derives 
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the net present value of the Company’s balance sheet.  The Company’s Asset / Liability Committee utilizes financial 
simulation models to measure interest rate exposure.  These m odels are desi gned to simulate the cash fl ow and 
accrual characteristics of the Co mpany’s balance sheet.  In addition, the models incorporate assumptions about the 
direction and volatility of interest rates, th e slope of the yield curve, and the changing composition of the 
Company’s balance sheet arising from both strategic plans and cust omer behavior.  Fi nally, management makes 
assumptions regarding loan and deposit growth, pricing, and prepayment speeds. 

The sensitivity analysis included below delineates the percentage change in net interest income and EVE 
derived from instantaneous parallel rate shifts of plus and minus 400, 300, 200 and 100 basis points.  The impact of 
minus 400, 300, 200 and 100 basis point  rate shocks as of Decem ber 31, 2011 and 2010 was not considered 
meaningful because of the historically low interest rate environment.  Variances were calculated from the base case 
scenario, which reflected current market rates.  M anagement of t he Company assumed all non-maturity deposits 
have an average life of one day for calculating EVE, which management believes is the most conservative approach.  
In addition, management assumes a beta value of 1, or  100 percent, for all non-term deposits when calculating net 
income and net interest income instantaneous rate shocks.  “Beta”, in the context of deposit rates, is defined as the 
percentage change in interest rate paid given a change in market rates. 

 
Net Interest Income

% Variance from Base Case Scenario
Rate Shock December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
+400 basis points -14.7% NA
+300 basis points -11.7% NA
+200 basis points -8.7% -7.4%
+100 basis points -4.9% -4.1%
 -100 basis points NM NM
 -200 basis points NM NM
 -300 basis points NM NM
 -400 basis points NM NM
NM=not meaningful
NA=not available  

Economic Value of Equity
% Variance from Base Case Scenario

Rate Shock December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
+400 basis points -36.7% NA
+300 basis points -28.8% NA
+200 basis points -20.3% -15.1%
+100 basis points -10.9% -8.1%
 -100 basis points NM NM
 -200 basis points NM NM
 -300 basis points NM NM
 -400 basis points NM NM
NM=not meaningful
NA=not available  
 

In addition to instantaneous rate shocks, the Company monitors interest rate exposure through simulations 
of gradual interest rate changes over a 12-month time horizon.  The results of these analyses are included in the 
following table: 

Net Interest Income
% Variance from Base Case Scenario

Rate Ramp December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
+200 basis points -6.7% -6.1%
 -200 basis points NM NM
NM=not meaningful  
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Provision for Credit Losses and Allowance for Credit Losses 
 In the normal course of busi ness, the Bank assumes risks in extending credit.  The B ank manages these 
risks through underwriting in accordance with its lending policies, loan review procedures and the diversification of 
its loan and lease portfolio.  Although it is not possible to predict credit losses with certainty, management regularly 
reviews the characteristics of the loan and lease portfolio to determine its overall risk profile and quality. 

The provision for credi t losses is the periodic cost of provi ding an al lowance or reserve for estimated 
probable losses on loans and leases.  The B ank’s Board of Di rectors has appointed a loan loss reserve valuation 
committee (the “Loan Loss Com mittee”), which bases its estim ates of credit losses on th ree primary components:  
(1) estimates of inherent losses that may exist in various segments of performing loans and leases; (2) specifically 
identified losses in individually analyzed credits; and (3) qualitative factors that may impact the performance of the 
loan and lease portfolio.  Factors such as financial condition of the borrower and guarantor, recent credit 
performance, delinquency, liquidity, cash flows, collateral type and value are used t o assess credit risk.  Expected 
loss estimates are influenced by the hi storical losses experienced by the Bank for loans and leases of com parable 
creditworthiness and structure.  Specifi c loss assessments are performed for loans and leases of significant size and 
delinquency based upon t he collateral protection and expect ed future cash fl ows to determine the amount of 
impairment under FASB ASC 310, Recei vables (“FASB ASC 310”).  In a ddition, qualitative factors such as 
changes in economic and business conditions, concentrati ons of risk, loan and leas e growth, acquisitions and 
changes in portfolio risk resulting from regulatory changes are considered in determining the adequacy of the level 
of the allowance for credit losses.  

Attention is paid to the quality of the loan and lease portfolio through a formal loan review process. An 
independent loan review department of the Bank is responsible for reviewing the credit rating and classification of 
individual credits and assessi ng trends in the portfolio, adherence to internal credit policies and procedures and 
other factors that may affect the overa ll adequacy of the allowa nce for credit losses.  The Loan Loss Committee is 
responsible for ensuring that the allowance for credit losses provides coverage of bot h known and inherent losses.  
The Loan Loss C ommittee meets at least quarterly to determine the amount of adjust ments to the allowance for 
credit losses.   The Loan Loss Committee is composed of senior management from the Bank’s loan administration 
and finance departments.  In 2010, t he Bank established a real estate risk management group and an Im pairment 
Committee.  The real estate risk management group oversees compliance with regulations and U.S. GAAP related to 
lending activities where real estate is the primary collateral.  The Bank’s boa rd of directors has appointed an 
impairment committee (the “Im pairment Committee”), which is responsible for evaluating loans that have been 
specifically identified through various channels, including examination of the Bank’s watch list, past due listings, 
findings of the internal loan review department, loan officer assessments and l oans to borrowers or i ndustries 
known to be experiencing problems.  For al l loans identified, the responsible loan officer in conjunction with his 
credit administrator is req uired to prepare an impairment analysis to be re viewed by the Impairment Committee.  
The Impairment Committee deems that a loan is impaired if it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect 
the contractual principal and interest on the loan.  Th e Impairment Committee also evaluates the circum stances 
surrounding the loan in order to determine if the loan officer used the most appropriate method for assessing the 
impairment of the loan (i.e., present value of expected future cash flows, observable market price or fair value of the 
underlying collateral).  The Impairment Committee meets on a monthly basis. 

If concessions are granted to a borrower as a resu lt of its financial difficulties, the loan is classified as a 
troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”) and analyzed for possible impairment as part  of the credit approval process.  
TDRs are reserved in accord ance with FASB ASC 310 in the sam e manner as impaired loans that are not TDRs.  
Should the borrower’s financial condition, collateral protection or performance deteriorate, warranting reassessment 
of the loan rating or impairment, additional reserves may be required. 

Loans of $200,000 or m ore that become 60 or m ore days past due are i dentified for revi ew by the 
Impairment Committee, which decides whether an impairment exists and to what extent a specific allowance for 
loss should be made.  Loans that do not  meet these requirements may also be i dentified by management for 
impairment review.  Loans subject to such review are evaluated as to collateral dependency, current collateral value, 
guarantor or other financial support and likely disposition.  Each such loan is individually evaluated for impairment.  
The impairment evaluation of real estate loans generally focuses on the fair value of underlying collateral obtained 
from appraisals, as the repaym ent of these loans may be dependent on the liquidation of the collateral.  In cert ain 
circumstances, other information such as comparable sales data is deem ed to be a more reliable indicator of fai r 
value of the underlying collateral than the most recent appraisal.  In these in stances, such information is used in 
determining the impairment recorded for the loan.  As the repayment of commercial and industrial loans is generally 
dependent upon the cash flow of the borrower or guarantor support, the impairment evaluation generally focuses on 
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the discounted future cash flows of the borrower or guarant or support, as well as the projected liquidation of any 
pledged collateral.  The Im pairment Committee reviews the results of each evaluation and approves the final 
impairment amounts, which are then included in the analysis of the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses in 
accordance with FASB ASC 310.  Loans identified for impairment are placed in non-accrual status. 

The Company’s policy is to obtain an appraisal at th e time of loan origination for real estate co llateral 
securing a loan of $250,000 or m ore, consistent with regulatory guidelines. The Company’s policy is to obtain an 
updated appraisal when certain events occur, such as t he refinancing of the debt, the renewal of the debt or events 
that indicate potential impairment.  A new apprai sal is generally ordered for loans greater than $200,000 that have 
characteristics of potential impairment, such as delinquency or other loan-specific factors identified by management, 
when a current appraisal (dated within  the prior 12 m onths) is not available or when a current appraisal uses 
assumptions that are n ot consistent with the expected disposition of the loan collateral.  In order to measure 
impairment properly at the time that a loan is deemed to be im paired, a staff appraiser may estimate the collateral 
fair value based upon earl ier appraisals, sales contracts, approved foreclosure bids, comparable sales, officer 
estimates or current market conditions until a new appraisal is received.  This estimate can be used to determine the 
extent of the impairment on the loan.  After a loan is deemed to be impaired, it is management’s policy to obtain an 
updated appraisal on at  least an annual  basis.  M anagement performs a revi ew of t he pertinent facts and 
circumstances of each im paired loan, such as changes in outstanding bala nces, information received from  loan 
officers, and receipt of re-appraisals, on a monthly basis.  As of each review  date, management considers whether 
additional impairment should be recorded based on recent ac tivity related to the loan-sp ecific collateral as well as 
other relevant comparable assets.  Any adjustment to reflect further impairments, either as a result of management’s 
periodic review or as a result of an updated appraisal, are made through recording additional loan loss provisions or 
charge-offs. 

At December 31, 2011, impaired loans totaled $234.9 million, which was net of cum ulative charge-offs of 
$52.2 million.  Additionally, the Com pany had specific re serves of $39.7 m illion included in the allowance for 
credit losses.  Im paired loans at Decem ber 31, 2011 were primarily from the Company’s residential construction, 
acquisition and devel opment real estate and com mercial real estate p ortfolios.  Impaired loan charge-offs are 
determined necessary when management does not  anticipate any future recovery of collateral values.  Th e loans 
were evaluated for impairment based on the fair value of the underlying collateral securing the loan.  As part of the 
impairment review process, appraisals are used to determine the property values.  The appraised values that are used 
are generally based on the disposition value of the property, which assumes Bank ownership of the property “as-is” 
and a 180-day marketing period.  If a current appraisal or one with an inspection date within the past 12 months 
using the necessary assumptions is not available, a new third-party appraisal is ordered.  In cases where an 
impairment exists and a current  appraisal is not available at the time of review, a staff appraiser m ay determine an 
estimated value based upon earl ier appraisals, the sales contract, approved foreclosure bids, comparable sales, 
comparable appraisals, officer estimates or current market conditions until a new appraisal is received.  After a new 
appraisal is received, the value used  in the review will be updated and any adjustments to reflect further 
impairments are made.  Appraisals are obtained from state-certified appraisers based on certain assumptions which 
may include foreclosure status, bank ownership, other real estate owned marketing period of 180 days, costs to sell, 
construction or development status and t he highest and be st use of t he property.  A st aff appraiser may make 
adjustments to appraisals based on sales contracts, comparable sales and other pertinent information if an appraisal 
does not incorporate the effect of these assumptions. 

When a guarant or is relied upon as a source of repayment, it is the Company’s policy to analyze the 
strength of the guaranty.  This analysis varies based on circumstances, but may include a review of the guarantor’s 
personal and busi ness financial statements and credi t history, a review of the guarantor’s tax returns and t he 
preparation of a cash flow analysis of the guarantor.  Management will continue to update its analysis on individual 
guarantors as circumstances change.  Because of the continued weakness in the economy, subsequent analyses may 
result in the identification of the inability of some guarantors to perform under the agreed upon terms. 

Any loan or portion thereof which is classified as “loss” by regulatory examiners or which is determined 
by management to be uncollectible, because of factors such as the borrower’s failure to pay interest or principal, the 
borrower’s financial condition, economic conditions in the borrower’s industr y or the inadequacy of underlying 
collateral, is charged off. 

 
 
 
 



 39

An analysis of the allowance for credit losses for the five years ended December 31, 2011 is provided in 
the following table: 

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance, beginning of period 196,913$      176,043$      132,793$      115,197$      98,834$        

Loans and leases charged off:
Commercial and industrial (17,337)        (11,879)        (9,534)          (7,124)          (2,656)          
Real estate
  Consumer mortgages (10,186)        (25,639)        (13,917)        (8,161)          (4,801)          
  Home equity (5,852)          (5,215)          (5,372)          (1,307)          (537)             
  Agricultural (3,420)          (1,201)          (848)             (381)             (45)               
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied (10,302)        (9,200)          (4,033)          (1,970)          (1,126)          
  Construction, acquisition and development (67,362)        (113,237)      (32,638)        (15,332)        (818)             
  Commercial (17,436)        (14,084)        (3,584)          (814)             (465)             
Credit cards (3,072)          (4,559)          (4,770)          (3,636)          (2,979)          
All other (7,088)          (6,008)          (3,517)          (3,342)          (3,414)          
Total loans and leases charged off (142,055)      (191,022)      (78,213)        (42,067)        (16,841)        
 
Recoveries:
Commercial and industrial 1,567            1,330            761               1,134            997               
Real estate
  Consumer mortgages 1,111            1,448            824               532               836               
  Home equity 185               179               109               30                 117               
  Agricultural 123               12                 2                   -                   29                 
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 393               399               297               75                 261               
  Construction, acquisition and development 3,951            1,706            128               263               27                 
  Commercial 1,045            845               189               23                 126               
Credit cards 803               829               617               319               282               
All other 1,001            1,128            1,212            1,537            1,680            
Total recoveries 10,179          7,876            4,139            3,913            4,355            

Net charge-offs (131,876)      (183,146)      (74,074)        (38,154)        (12,486)        

Provision charged to operating expense 130,081        204,016        117,324        56,176          22,696          
Other, net -                   -                   -                   (426)             6,153            
Balance, end of period 195,118$      196,913$      176,043$      132,793$      115,197$      

Loans and leases, net of unearned
   income - average 9,159,431$   9,621,529$   9,734,580$   9,429,963$   8,784,940$   

Loans and leases, net of unearned
   income - period end 8,870,311$   9,333,107$   9,775,136$   9,691,277$   9,179,684$   

RATIOS
Net charge-offs to average loans and leases 1.44% 1.90% 0.76% 0.40% 0.14%
Provision for credit losses to average 
   loans and leases, net of unearned income 1.42% 2.12% 1.21% 0.60% 0.26%
Allowance for credit losses to loans and
   leases, net of unearned income 2.20% 2.11% 1.80% 1.37% 1.25%
Allowance for credit losses to net charge-
   offs (annualized) 147.96% 107.52% 237.66% 348.04% 922.61%
  

Net charge-offs decreased $51.3 m illion, or 28.0%, in 2011 com pared to 2010, and increased $109.0 
million, or 147.2%, in 2010 com pared to 2009.  Net charge -offs as a percentage of average loans and leases 
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decreased to 1.44% i n 2011 com pared to 1.90% i n 2010 aft er having increased from 0.76% i n 2009.  These 
decreases were prim arily a result of  decreased losses within the real estate co nstruction, acquisition and 
development and consumer mortgage segments of the Company’s loan and lease portfo lio.  The losses experienced 
in these segments were primarily a result of the weakened financial condition of the corresponding borrowers and 
guarantors.  These borrowers’ weakened state hindered their ability to service their loans with the Company, which 
caused a number of loans to become collateral dependent.  Once it is d etermined a loan’s repayment is dependent 
upon the underlying collateral, the loan is charged down to net realizable value or a specific reserve is allocated to 
the loan.  While this process resulted in an increased level of charge-offs in 2010, it resulted in a decreased level of 
charge-offs in 2011 as updated appraisals came in closer to loan carrying values.  The decreased level of charge-offs 
in 2011 resulted in an increase in the ratio of the allowance for credit losses to annualized charge-offs to 147.96% 
after having declined to 107.52% in 2010.   

The provision for credit losses decreased to $130.1 million in 2011 com pared to a provision of $204.0 
million in 2010 as a result of a decrease in net charge-offs, a decline in the form ation of new non-accrual loans, 
including fewer l oans being identified for i mpairment, continued stabilization in values of previ ously impaired 
loans, and a significant decrease in NPLs.  The increase in the provision for credit losses in 2010 compared to 2009 
was primarily a result of the significant declines in collateral values and the financial stress placed on borrowers as a 
result of the lackluster prevailing economic environment.     

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 85% and 79%, resp ectively, of nonaccrual lo ans had been charged 
down to net realizable value or had specific reserves to re flect recent appraised values.  As a result, impaired loans 
had an aggregate net book value of 68% and 67% of thei r contractual principal balance at December 31, 2011 and 
2010, respectively.  Nonaccrual loans not impaired are loans not determined to be collaterally dependant.   
 The breakdown of t he allowance by loan and lease segment and class is based, in part, on evaluations of 
specific loan and lease histories a nd on economic conditions within specifi c industries or geographical areas.  
Accordingly, because all of these conditions are subject to change, the allo cation is not necessarily indicative of the 
breakdown of any future allowance for losses.  The following table presents (i) the breakdown of the allowance for 
credit losses by loan and lease segm ent and class and (ii) the percentage of each  segment and class  in the loan and 
lease portfolio to total loans and leases at the dates at December 31 of each of the years indicated: 

2011

Allowance Allowance Allowance
 for for for

Credit Credit Credit
Loss Loss Loss

Commercial and industrial 20,724$    16.6 % 22,479$    16.1 % 21,154$    15.1 %
Real estate
  Consumer mortgages 36,529 21.8 35,540 20.8 37,048 20.5
  Home equity 8,630        5.8 7,305        5.8 7,218        5.6
  Agricultural 3,921        2.7 4,997        2.7 4,192        2.7
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 21,929      14.6 20,403      14.2 22,989      14.7
  Construction, acquisition and development 45,562      10.2 59,048      12.5 46,193      14.9
  Commercial 39,444      19.7 33,439      19.4 26,694      18.4
Credit cards 4,021        1.2 4,126        1.1 3,481        1.1
All other 14,358      7.4 9,576        7.4 7,074        7.0
     Total 195,118$ 100.0 % 196,913$ 100.0 % 176,043$ 100.0 %

to Total
Loans

20092010

in Each
% of Loans

in Each
Category
to Total
Loans

to Total

% of Loans

Category

% of Loans

Category
in Each

Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
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Allowance Allowance
 for for

Credit Credit
Loss Loss

Commercial and industrial 19,150$    14.7 % 17,764$    15.0 %
Real estate
  Consumer mortgages 31,158 21.5 28,632 23.0
  Home equity 5,689        5.3 4,401        4.5
  Agricultural 3,167        2.4 2,368        1.9
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 17,982      15.0 18,194      15.8
  Construction, acquisition and development 29,771      17.4 19,903      18.1
  Commercial 17,899      16.1 14,564      12.9
Credit cards 1,572        1.0 3,111        1.1
All other 6,405        6.6 6,260        7.7
     Total 132,793$ 100.0 % 115,197$ 100.0 %

% of Loans
in Each

Category
to Total
Loans

% of Loans
in Each

Category

(Dollars in thousands)

to Total
Loans

20072008

 
 
Noninterest Revenue 
 The components of noninterest revenue for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and the 
percentage change between such years are shown in the following table: 
 

2009
Amount Amount Amount

 (Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage lending 17,069$    (42.6) % 29,745$    (7.7) % 32,225$     
Credit card, debit card and merchant fees 42,373      12.5 37,663      10.0 34,244       
Service charges 66,670      (5.7) 70,690      (3.0) 72,864       
Trust income 12,186      9.3 11,149      15.0 9,698         
Securities gains (losses), net 12,127      372.1 2,569        NM (55)            
Insurance commissions 86,918      5.8 82,172      1.5 80,937       
Annuity fees 3,323        34.3 2,474        (33.5) 3,721         
Brokerage commissions and fees 5,918        7.4 5,512        14.8 4,803         
Bank-owned life insurance 7,662        (1.0) 7,737        (10.2) 8,614         
Other miscellaneous income 16,599      15.0 14,433      (48.9) 28,225       

Total noninterest revenue 270,845$  2.5 % 264,144$  (4.0) % 275,276$   

NM = not meaningful

2011
% Change % Change

2010

 
 The Company’s revenue from mortgage lending typically fluctuates as mortgage interest rates change and 
is primarily attributable to two activities - origination and sale of new mortgage loans and servicing mortgage loans.  
Since the Company does not  hedge the change in fair value of i ts MSRs, mortgage revenue can be significantly 
affected by changes in the valuation of M SRs in changing interest rate environments.  The C ompany’s normal 
practice is to originate mortgage loans for sale in the secondary market and to either retain or release the associated 
MSRs with the loan sold.  Th e Company records M SRs at fair value on a recurri ng basis with subsequent 
remeasurement of MSRs based on change in fair value in accordance with FASB ASC 860.   For m ore information 
about the Company’s treatment of M SRs, see “It em 7. M anagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations – Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates – Mortgage Servicing Rights” of 
this Report. 
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 In the course of conducting the Com pany’s mortgage lending activities of originating m ortgage loans and 
selling those loans in the secondary market, various representations and warranties are made to the purchasers of the 
mortgage loans.  These representations and warranties also apply to underwriting the real estate appraisal opinion of 
value for the collateral securing these loans.  Under the representations and warranties, failure by the Company to 
comply with the underwriting and/or a ppraisal standards could result in the Company being required to repurchase 
the mortgage loan or to reimburse the investor for losses incurred (i.e., make whole requests) if such failure cannot 
be cured by  the Company within the specified period following discovery.  Duri ng 2011, seven m ortgage loans 
totaling approximately $803,000 were repurchased or otherwise settled as  a result of underwriting and appraisal 
standard exceptions or make whole requests.  Losses of approximately $181,000 were recogni zed related to these 
repurchased and make whole loans.  During 2010, eleven mortgage loans totaling $1.6 million were repurchased or 
otherwise settled as a result of underwriting and appraisal standard exceptions or m ake whole request.  Losses of 
approximately $314,000 were recognized related to these repurchased and make whole loans. 

At December 31, 2011, the Com pany had reserved  approximately $959,000 for potential losses from  
representation and warranty obligations.  The reserve i s based on the Company’s repurchase and l oss trends, and 
quantitative and qualitative factors that may result in anticipated losses different than historical loss trends, 
including loan vintage, underwriting characteristics and macroeconomic trends.   
 Management believes that the Company’s foreclosure process rel ated to mortgage loans continues to 
operate effectively.  A m ortgage loan foreclosure committee of t he Bank reviews all delinquent loans before 
beginning the foreclosure process.  All documents and activities related to the foreclosure process are executed in-
house by mortgage department personnel.   
 Origination revenue, a com ponent of mortgage lending revenue, is comprised of gains or losses from the 
sale of the m ortgage loans originat ed, origination fees, underwriting fees and other fees associated with the 
origination of loans.  Mortgage lo an origination volum es of $1.2 billi on, $1.4 billion and $1.5 billion produced 
origination revenue of $24.3 m illion, $28.6 million and $25.7 million for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  The 
decrease in customer demand for refinancing contributed to the decrease in mortgage loan origination volumes and 
the corresponding decrease in origination revenue in 2011 compared to 2010.  W hile volume decreased slightly in 
2010 compared to 2009, better pricing and delivery execution resulted in an increase of 11.2% in mortgage lending 
revenue.   
 Revenue from the servicing process, another component of mortgage lending revenue, includes fees from 
the actual servicing of loans.  Revenue from the servicing of loans was $12.9 m illion, $11.9 m illion and $10.8 
million for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  Changes in th e fair value of the Com pany’s MSRs are generally a 
result of changes in mortgage interest rates from the previous reporting date.  An increase in mortgage interest rates 
typically results in an increase in the fair value of the MSRs while a decrease in mortgage interest rates typically 
results in a d ecrease in the fair value of M SRs.  The fai r value of M SRs is impacted by principal payments, 
prepayments and payoffs on loans in the servicing portfolio.  Decreases i n value from principal payments, 
prepayments and payoffs were $6.2 m illion, $6.8 million and $6.7 m illion for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  
The Company does not hedge the change in fair value of its MSRs and is susceptible to significant fluctuations in 
their value in changing interest rate en vironments.  Reflectin g this sensitivity to interest rates, th e fair v alue of 
MSRs decreased $14.0 million in 2011, decreased $4.0 million in 2010 and increased $2.4 million in 2009.    
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The following table presents the Company’s mortgage lending operations for 2011, 2010 and 2009: 
2009

Amount Amount Amount

Production revenue:
  Origination 24,286$     (15.2)    % 28,635$     11.2       % 25,746$  
  Servicing 12,929       8.5       11,920       10.5       10,783    
  Payoffs/Paydowns (6,180)       9.7       (6,781)       (1.1)        (6,706)     
    Total 31,035       (8.1)      33,774       13.2       29,823    
Market value adjustment (13,966)     (246.6)  (4,029)       NM 2,402      
Mortgage lending revenue 17,069$     (42.6)    29,745$     (7.7)        32,225$  

Origination volume 1,213$       (15.8)    1,440$       (6.6)        1,542$    

Mortgage loans serviced at year-end 4,293$       10.9     3,871$       11.6       3,469$    

NM=not meaningful

2011 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

(Dollars in millions)

% Change% Change

 
 Credit card, debit card and m erchant fees increased in 2011 compared to 2010 and i n 2010 compared to 
2009 as a result of an increase in the number and monetary volume of items processed.  As a result of the impact of 
the Durbin Am endment, among other factors, debit card revenue was reduced in 2011 by $3.0 m illion.  
Management estimates that debit card revenue could be reduced in 2012 by more than $13.0 million as a result of 
the impact of the Durbin Amendment.   

Service charges on deposi t accounts, which include insufficient fund fees, decreased in 2011 when 
compared to 2010 and in 2010 compared to 2009 as a resul t of a lower volume of items processed and changes i n 
banking regulations related to  overdraft fees.  As a result of recent changes in banking re gulations, and, in 
particular, the Federal Reserve’s new rules pertaining to certain overdraft payments on consumer accounts and the 
FDIC’s Overdraft Payment Programs and C onsumer Protection Final Overdraft Payment Supervisory Guidance, 
service charge revenue decreased by $6.7 m illion in 2011.  The Company has taken steps to mitigate the impact of 
these new regulations on the Company’s service charge revenue by offering new deposit products to customers.   

Trust income increased in 2011 compared to 2010 and in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily as a resul t of 
increases in the value of assets under management or in custody, as revenue is earned on assets under management.   

Net securities gains of $12.1 million and $2.6 million were recorded in 2011 and 2010, respectively, while 
net securities losses of approxim ately $55,000 were recorded  in 2009.  These amounts reflected the sales and calls 
of securities from the available-for-sale portfolio and held-to-maturity portfolio.  Some of the sales of available-for-
sale securities in 2011 were previously classified as held-to-maturity, because during the second quarter of 2011, the 
Company determined that it no longer ha d the intent to hold until m aturity all securities that were previously 
classified as held-to-maturity.  Any sales of held-to-maturity securities occurred within three months of maturity and 
were so near m aturity that management believed changes in interest rates would not have a si gnificant impact on 
fair value.  The securi ty activity in 2010 and 2009 included other-than-temporary impairment charges of $2.1 
million and approxim ately $250,000 for 2010 and 2009, respectively, with no other-than-temporary impairment 
charge recorded i n 2011.  The ot her-than-temporary impairment charges related to the Company’s investment in 
pooled trust preferred securities.  The fair value of these securities was negatively impacted by prevailing m arket 
conditions.  Subsequent to the other-t han-temporary charges in 2010 and 2009, the pooled trust preferred securities 
had no remaining book value.  

Insurance commissions increased 5.8% in 2011 com pared to 2010 as a result of new policies written and 
growth from existing customers while insurance commissions remained relatively stable in 2010 compared to 2009.  
Annuity fees increased 34.3% in 2011 compared to 2010 as a result of customers shifting funds from lower rate 
deposit accounts to higher rate annuity products.  Annui ty fees decreased 33.5% in 2010 compared to 2009 as a 
result of the prevailing interest rate environment during 2010.   

Brokerage commissions and fees increased in 2011 and 2010 because activity increased subsequent to the 
first quarter of 2010 as t he financial markets recovered somewhat.  Bank-owned life insurance revenue remained 
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relatively stable in 2011 com pared to 2010 but  decreased 10.2% i n 2010 com pared to 2009 as a resul t of t he 
Company recording life insurance proceeds of $1.4 million net of cash surrender value during 2009.   

Other miscellaneous income includes safe deposit box rental income, gain or loss on disposal of assets, and 
other non-recurring revenue i tems.  Ot her miscellaneous income increased 15.0% i n 2011 com pared to 2010 
primarily as a result of gains of $2.2 m illion on the dispos itions of fixed assets duri ng 2011.  Other miscellaneous 
income decreased in 2010 compared to 2009 as a result of various non-recurring items in 2009, including interest on 
tax refunds of $2.8 m illion, a gain of $3.7 million from the sale of the Com pany’s remaining student loans as the 
Company is no longer originating and selling student loans, a gain of $1.8 million on the sale of the Com pany’s 
remaining shares of MasterCard, Inc. common stock, and an insurance recovery of $1.3 million related to a casualty 
loss.     

 
Noninterest Expense 
 The components of noninterest expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and the 
percentage change between years are shown in the following table: 
 

2009
Amount Amount Amount

 (Dollars in thousands)
Salaries and employee benefits 282,880$   4.1 % 271,688$   (2.5) % 278,734$  
Occupancy, net 42,362       (1.5) 43,008       2.1 42,108      
Equipment 21,707       (3.9) 22,598       (3.9) 23,508      
Deposit insurance assessments 21,316       10.7 19,259       (2.1) 19,672      
Prepayment penalty on FHLB borrowings 9,778         NM -                 NM -                
Advertising 5,098         (4.8) 5,354         (16.0) 6,377        
Foreclosed property expense 27,796       51.4 18,355       35.0 13,599      
Telecommunications 8,386         (11.4) 9,466         6.9 8,854        
Public relations 5,727         (5.9) 6,088         3.2 5,900        
Data Processing 9,677         59.5 6,068         (1.7) 6,175        
Computer software 7,502         2.3 7,334         1.0 7,260        
Amortization of intangibles 3,324         (15.0) 3,909         (21.1) 4,957        
Legal fees 9,170         50.3 6,102         (29.0) 8,593        
Postage and shipping 4,812         (4.6) 5,044         2.1 4,939        
Other miscellaneous expense 74,098       18.1 62,760       5.8 59,341      
Total noninterest expense 533,633$  9.6 % 487,033$  (0.6) % 490,017$ 
NM = not meaningful

2011 2010
% Change % Change

 
 Salaries and em ployee benefits increased slightly  in 2011 compared to 2010 prim arily because of an 
increase in insurance commissions as insurance revenue increased over the same periods combined with an increase 
in the cost of em ployee health care benefi ts and pensi on expenses.  Sal aries and employee benefits decreased 
slightly in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily because the Company employed fewer people during 2010, com bined 
with a decrease in the am ounts accrued under the Company’s incentive plans.  Pension plan costs, a component of 
salaries and employee benefits expense, increased in  2011 to $4.9 million after decreasing in 2010 to $3.7 m illion 
from $8.1 m illion in 2009.  Occupancy expense rem ained relatively stable in 2011 com pared to 2010 after 
increasing slightly in 2010 com pared to 2009, principally as a result of additional branch offices, bank buildings, 
insurance agencies and facilities opened during 2010 and 2009.   
 Equipment expense decreased in 2011 compared to 2010 and i n 2010 compared to 2009 as a resul t of a 
decrease in depreciation expense coupled  with the Company’s continued focus on controlling such expenses.  The 
increase in deposit insurance assessments in 2011 com pared to 2010 was pri marily a resul t of a sl ightly higher 
assessment rate.  Effective as of the second quarter of 2011, the FDIC bases the deposit insurance assessment on a 
redefined assessment base and a new scorecard method to calculate the asse ssment rate.  The decrease in deposit 
insurance assessments in 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily a result of the special FDIC assessment during the 
second quarter of 2009 with no special assessment during 2010, offset somewhat by deposit growth and a sl ightly 
higher assessment rate.  The Com pany was assessed a sp ecial FDIC assessment of $6.1 million during the second 
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quarter of 2009.  During the second quarter of 2011, the Company recorded $9.8 million in expenses related to the 
early repayment of FHLB advances.  No early repayments were made during 2010 or 2009. 

Foreclosed property expense increased in 2011 and 2010 as t he Company experienced losses on the sale 
and larger writedowns of other real estate owned as a resu lt of the decline in property values attributable to the 
prevailing economic environment.  During 2011, the Com pany added $125.2 m illion to other real estate owned 
through foreclosure.  Sales of other real estate owned in 2011 were $64.5 million resulting in a net loss on sale of 
other real estate owned of $1.1 m illion.  The com ponents of foreclosed property expense for the years ended 
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and the percentage change between years are shown in the following table: 

2009
Amount Amount Amount

 (Dollars in thousands)
Loss on sale of other real estate owned 1,079$    (71.3) % 3,762$       20.9 % 3,111$     
Writedown of other real estate owned 20,353    95.1 10,432       35.1 7,720       
Other foreclosed property expense 6,364      52.9 4,161         50.3 2,768       
Total foreclosed property expense 27,796$  51.4 % 18,355$     35.0 % 13,599$   

2011 2010
% Change % Change

 
The increase in various other components of other noninterest expense were pri marily a result of market 

increases and general inflation in the cost of services and supplies purchased by the Company during 2011, as well 
as accruals for litigation contingencies and a one-tim e expense of $3.1 million related to the closure of 22 branch 
offices under the Company’s branch optimization project.  Included in noninterest expense in 2009 was $2.4 million 
in litigation contingencies primarily related to the adverse resolution of a legal matter.  
 
Income Taxes 

The Company recorded income tax expense of $4.4 m illion in 2011 compared to an income tax benefit of 
$8.7 million in 2010 and an incom e tax expense of $30.1 million in 2009.  The increase in incom e tax expense in 
2011 was primarily a result of the increase in pre-tax income, which increased 195.3% in 2011 compared to 2010.  
The income tax benefit in 2010 was a result of the decrease in taxable income in 2010 compared to 2009, while tax 
preference items, such as tax-exempt interest income, remained relatively consistent with prior years.  The primary 
differences between the Company’s recorded expense for 2011 and t he expense t hat would have resulted from 
applying the U.S. statutory tax rate of 35% to the Company’s pre-tax income were the effects of tax-exempt income 
and other tax preference items.   
 
FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
 The percentage of earning assets to  total assets m easures the effectiveness of m anagement’s efforts to 
invest available funds into the m ost efficient and profitable uses.  Earni ng assets at December 31, 2011 were $11.8 
billion, or 90.6% of total assets, compared with $12.5 billion, or 91.5% of total assets, at December 31, 2010. 
 
Loans and Leases 

The Bank’s loan and l ease portfolio represents the largest single component of the Company’s earning 
asset base, comprising 75.4% of average earning assets  during 2011.  The Bank’s le nding activities include both 
commercial and consumer loans and leases.  Loan and l ease originations are derived from a number of sources, 
including direct solicitation by the Bank’s loan officers, existing depositors and borrowers, builders, attorneys, 
walk-in customers and, in some instances, other lenders, real estate broker referrals and mortgage loan companies.  
The Bank has established systematic procedures for approving and monitoring loans and leases that vary depending 
on the size and nature of the loan or lease, and applies these procedures in a discip lined manner.  The Company’s 
loans and leases are widely diversified by borrower and industry.  Loans and leases, net of unearned income, totaled 
$8.9 billion at Decem ber 31, 2011, representing a 5.0% decrease from $9.3 billion at Decem ber 31, 2010.  The 
decrease in loans and leases, net of unearned i ncome, was primarily a result of continued low loan demand in the 
markets served by the Company; however, the Com pany was able to repl ace some loan runoff with new loan 
production, particularly out of its Texas and Louisiana markets.     
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The following table shows the composition of the Company’s gross loans and leases by collateral type at 
December 31 for the years indicated:   

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands)

Commercial and industrial 1,484,967$    1,505,471$    1,484,011$    1,433,690$    1,387,548$    
Real estate
  Consumer mortgages 1,945,190      1,978,145      2,017,067      2,096,568      2,118,641      
  Home equity 514,362         543,272         550,085         511,480         411,346         
  Agricultural 239,487         252,292         262,069         234,024         173,575         
  Commercial and industrial-
     owner occupied 1,301,575      1,331,473      1,449,554      1,465,027      1,453,158      
  Construction, acquisition and
     development 908,362         1,148,161      1,459,503      1,689,719      1,671,359      
  Commercial 1,754,022      1,816,951      1,806,766      1,568,956      1,192,353      
Credit cards 106,281         106,345         108,086         93,650           104,037         
All other 657,012         694,241         685,845         647,753         715,478         
Total gross loans and leases 8,911,258$    9,376,351$    9,822,986$    9,740,867$    9,227,495$    

 
 

The following table shows the Company’s net loans and leases by collateral type as of December 31, 2011 
by geographical location: 
 

Alabama Greater
and Florida Memphis Texas and
Panhandle Arkansas* Mississippi* Missouri Area Tennessee* Louisiana Other Total

Commercial and industrial 63,583$      188,329$     312,364$     51,291$    23,745$     80,094$      258,225$    496,097$       1,473,728$   
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 111,455     272,857       756,389       56,808      86,576       162,604      427,955      70,546           1,945,190     
   Home equity 58,991       42,250         174,632       26,930      70,034       76,361        63,298        1,866             514,362        
   Agricultural 6,354         71,592         71,787         4,047        9,601         13,163        57,836        5,107             239,487        
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 115,133     167,935       455,700       67,055      99,394       98,860        248,107      49,391           1,301,575     
   Construction, acquisition and development 103,594     80,121         259,551       51,432      98,948       98,865        196,490      19,361           908,362        
   Commercial 199,844     346,534       352,754       223,849    115,783     101,068      359,989      54,201           1,754,022     
Credit cards** -                 -                  -                  -                -                 -                  -                  106,281         106,281        
All other 29,846       90,905         201,067       4,443        54,846       47,412        89,417        109,368         627,304        
     Total 688,800$    1,260,523$ 2,584,244$ 485,855$ 558,927$  678,427$   1,701,317$ 912,218$      8,870,311$  

*  Excludes the Greater Memphis Area
** Credit card receivables are spread across all geographic regions but are not viewed by the Company's management as part of the geographic breakdown.

(In thousands)

 
 Commercial and Indust rial - Commercial and industrial loans are l oans and l eases to finance business 
operations, equipment and owner-occupied facilities primarily for small and medium-sized enterprises. These 
include both lines of credit for terms of one year or less and term loans which are amortized over the useful life of 
the assets financed. Personal guarantees are generally required for these loans.  Also included in this category are 
loans to finance agricultural production and business credit card lines.  Commercial and industrial loans outstanding 
remained stable during 2011 decreasing by 1.2% from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011.  

Real Estate – C onsumer Mortgages - Consumer mortgages are fi rst- or second-lien loans to consumers 
secured by a primary residence or second hom e. These l oans are general ly amortized over terms up to 15 or 20 
years with maturities of three to five years.  Th e loans are secured by properties located generally within the local 
market area of the com munity bank wh ich originates and services the lo an. These loans are underwritten in 
accordance with the Bank’s general lo an policies and procedures which require, among other things, proper 
documentation of each borrower’s financ ial condition, satisfactory credit hist ory and property value. Consum er 
mortgages outstanding remained stable during 2011 decreasing by 0.3%  from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 
2011, as the housing sector slowed and lower long-term mortgage rates were  available. In addition to loans 
originated through the Bank’s branches, the Bank originates and services consumer mortgages sold in the secondary 
market which are underwritten and closed pursuant to investor and agency guidelines.  The Bank’s exposure to sub-
prime mortgages is minimal. 
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Real Estate – Home Equity - Home equity loans include revolving credit lines which are secured by a first 
or second lien on a borrower’s residence. Each loan is underwritten individually by lenders who specialize in home 
equity lending and m ust conform to Bank lending policies and procedures for consum er loans as t o borrower’s 
financial condition, ability to repay, satisfactory credit history and the conditi on and value of collateral. Properties 
securing home equity loans are located in the local market originating and servicing the loan.  The Bank has not 
purchased home equity loans from brokers or other lending institutions.  Home equity loans outstanding decreased 
5.3% from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011. 

Real Estate – Agricultural - Agricultural loans include loans to purchase agricultural land and production 
lines secured by farm land.  Agricultural loans outst anding decreased 5.1% from December 31, 2010 to Decem ber 
31, 2011. 

Real Estate – Commercial and Industrial-Owner Occupied - Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 
loans include loans secured by business facilities to  finance business operations, equipment and owner-occupied 
facilities primarily for small and medium-sized enterprises. These include both lines of credit for terms of one year 
or less and term  loans which are am ortized over the usef ul life of t he assets financed. Personal guarantees are 
generally required for these loans.  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied loans remained stable during 2011 
decreasing 2.2% from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011.  

Real Estate – Construction,  Acquisition and Development -  Construction, acquisition and devel opment 
loans include both loans and credit lines for t he purpose of purchasi ng, carrying and devel oping land into 
commercial developments or residential subdivisions.  Also included are l oans and l ines for const ruction of 
residential, multi-family and commercial buildings. These loans are often structured with interest reserves to fund 
interest costs during the construction and development period.  Addi tionally, certain loans are st ructured with 
interest only terms.  The B ank primarily engages in construction and development lending only in local markets 
served by its branches. The weakened econom y and housing market has negat ively impacted builders and 
developers in particular.  Sales of finished houses slowed during 2009 and activity remained slow during 2010 and 
2011, which has resulted in lower demand for residential lots and development land.  The C ompany curtailed the 
origination of new construction, acquisition and devel opment loans significantly during 2009 and t he Company 
maintained that strategy during 2010 and 2011.  Construction, acquisition and development loans decreased 22.7% 
from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011.  

The underwriting process for construc tion, acquisition and developm ent loans with interest reserves is 
essentially the same as that for a loan without interest reserves and may include analysis of borrower and guarantor 
financial strength, market demand for the proposed project, experience a nd success with sim ilar projects, property 
values, time horizon for project completion and the availability of permanent financing once the project is 
completed.  C onstruction, acquisition and devel opment loans, with or without interest reserves, are i nspected 
periodically to ensure t hat the project is on schedul e and eligible for request ed draws.  Inspect ions may be 
performed by construction inspectors hired by the Company or by  appropriate loan officers and are done 
periodically to monitor the progress of a part icular project.  These i nspections may also include discussions with 
project managers and engi neers.  For performing construction, acquisition and devel opment loans, interest is 
generally recognized as interest incom e as it is earned.  Non-performing construction, acquisition and development 
loans are placed on non-accrual status a nd interest incom e is not recognized, except in those situations where 
principal is expected to be received in full.  In such situations, interest income is recognized as payment is received.   

At December 31, 2011, the Company had $21.2 million in construction, acquisition and development loans 
that provided for t he use of i nterest reserves wi th approximately $918,000 recognized as i nterest income during 
2011.  The am ount of such loans with interest reserv es that were on non-accrual status was $3.3 m illion at 
December 31, 2011.  Interest incom e is not being recognized on construction, acquis ition and development loans 
with interest reserves that are in non-accrual status.  Loans with interest  reserves norm ally have a budget that 
includes the various cost components involved in the project. Interest is such a cost, along with hard and other soft 
costs.  The Company’s policy is to allow interest reserves only during the construction phase. 

So that interest capitalization is appropriate, interest reserves are not included for any renewal period after 
construction is completed or otherwise ceases, requiring borrowers to make interest payments no less than quarterly.  
Loans for which construction is com plete, or has ceased, and where interest paym ents are not m ade on a tim ely 
basis are considered non-perform ing and are generally placed in nonaccrual status.  Procedures are in place to 
restrict the structuring of a loan with terms that do not require performance until the end of the loan term, as well as 
to restrict the advancement of funds t o keep a l oan from becoming non-performing with any such advancement 
identified as a TDR.   
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On a case-by-case basis, a construction, acquisition and development loan may be extended, renewed or 
restructured.  Loans are som etimes extended for a short  period of time (generally 90 day s or l ess) beyond the 
contractual maturity to facilitate nego tiations or allow the borrower to gain other financing or acquire more recent 
note-related information, such as apprai sals or borrower fi nancial statements.  These short-term  extensions are not 
ordinarily accounted for as TDRs if the loan and project are perform ing in accordance with the te rms of the loan 
agreement and/or promissory note.  C onstruction, acquisition and devel opment loans may be renewed when t he 
borrower has satisfied the terms and condi tions of t he original loan, including payment of i nterest, and when 
management believes that the borrower is able to continue to meet the terms of the renewed note during the renewal 
period.  M any loans are st ructured to mature consistent with the construction or devel opment period or at  least 
annually.  If concessions are granted to a borrower as a result of its financial difficulties, th e loan is classified as a 
TDR and analyzed for impairment.   

The Bank’s real estate risk management group is responsible for reviewing and approving the structure and 
classification of all construction, acquisition and development loan renewals and modifications above a threshold of 
$500,000.  The anal ysis performed by the real estate risk management group may include the review of updated 
appraisals, borrower and guarantor financial condition, construction status and proposed loan structure.  If the new 
terms of the loan meet the criteria of a TDR as set out in FASB ASC 310, the loan is identified as such. 

Each construction, acquisition and development loan is underwritten to a ddress: (i) the desirability of the 
project, its m arket viability and projected absorption period; (ii) th e creditworthiness of the borrower and the 
guarantor as to liquidity, cash flow and assets available to ensure performance of the loan; (iii) equity contribution 
to the project; (iv) the developer’s experience and success with similar projects; and (v) the value of the collateral. 
Each factor must be acceptable under the Company’s lending policy and risk review.  

The construction, acquisition and development portfolio is further categorized by risk characteristics into 
the following six categories: commercial acquisition and development; residential acquisition and devel opment; 
multi-family construction; one-to-four family construction; commercial construction; and recreat ion and al l other 
loans.  Construction, acquisition and development loans were $908.4 million and $1.1 billion at December 31, 2011 
and 2010, respect ively.  The fol lowing table shows t he Company’s net loans and leases in the construction, 
acquisition and development portfolio by geographical location at December 31, 2011: 

 
Alabama Greater

Real Estate Construction, and Florida Memphis Texas and
Acquisition and Development Panhandle Arkansas* Mississippi* Missouri Area Tennessee* Louisiana Other Total

Performing:
Multi-family construction -$             -$           11$             -$            -$            664$           350$          46$           1,071$      
One-to-four family construction 21,143       12,601     45,822       3,158        7,202        30,212        31,061       3,620        154,819    
Recreation and all other loans 1,685         10,985     31,484       567           1,840        882             17,071       1,433        65,947      
Commercial construction 11,437       9,179       40,453       2,486        11,299      17,508        29,753       2,774        124,889    
Commercial acquisition and development 11,287       19,077     50,841       14,846      23,434      16,413        32,546       4,199        172,643    
Residential acquisition and development 33,461       21,882     77,965       16,351      29,250      21,440        46,196       7,289        253,834    
     Total 79,013$      73,724$  246,576$   37,408$   73,025$   87,119$      156,977$   19,361$   773,203$ 

Non-performing:
Multi-family construction -$             -$             -$               1,067$      -$              -$                -$               -$              1,067$      
One-to-four family construction 6,371         526          1,052         4,108        2,391        -                  560            -                15,008      
Recreation and all other loans -                 86            -                 -                830           193             179            -                1,288        
Commercial construction 914            142          -                 208           65             3,273          633            -                5,235        
Commercial acquisition and development 1,880         43            3,211         323           8,254        2,121          8,569         -                24,401      
Residential acquisition and development 15,416       5,600       8,712         8,318        14,383      6,159          29,572       -                88,160      
     Total 24,581$      6,397$    12,975$     14,024$   25,923$   11,746$      39,513$     -$           135,159$ 

Total:
Multi-family construction -$             -$             11$            1,067$      -$              664$           350$          46$           2,138$      
One-to-four family construction 27,514       13,127     46,874       7,266        9,593        30,212        31,621       3,620        169,827    
Recreation and all other loans 1,685         11,071     31,484       567           2,670        1,075          17,250       1,433        67,235      
Commercial construction 12,351       9,321       40,453       2,694        11,364      20,781        30,386       2,774        130,124    
Commercial acquisition and development 13,167       19,120     54,052       15,169      31,688      18,534        41,115       4,199        197,044    
Residential acquisition and development 48,877       27,482     86,677       24,669      43,633      27,599        75,768       7,289        341,994    
     Total 103,594$    80,121$  259,551$   51,432$   98,948$   98,865$      196,490$   19,361$   908,362$ 

*  Excludes the Greater Memphis Area

(In thousands)
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 The following table shows the maturity distribution of the Company’s net loans and leases in  the 
construction, acquisition and development portfolio as of December 31, 2011: 

Real Estate Construction, One Year One to After
Acquisition and Development Past Due or Less Five Years Five Years Total

Outstanding loan balances:
Multi-family construction -$             1,060$      1,078$       -$              2,138$      
One-to-four family construction 4,879       151,883    12,533       532           169,827    
Recreation and all other loans -               17,128      46,662       3,445        67,235      
Commercial construction 3,037       36,690      77,753       12,644      130,124    
Commercial acquisition and development 6,059       76,420      110,926     3,639        197,044    
Residential acquisition and development 23,760     198,310    115,882     4,042        341,994    
     Total 37,735$  481,491$ 364,834$  24,302$    908,362$ 

Non-accrual loans:
Multi-family construction -$             -$              1,067$       -$              1,067$      
One-to-four family construction 2,570       10,086      1,682         352           14,690      
Recreation and all other loans -               372           64              -                436           
Commercial construction 1,494       3,489        252            -                5,235        
Commercial acquisition and development 5,905       14,783      3,280         -                23,968      
Residential acquisition and development 23,534     48,282      15,829       69             87,714      
     Total 33,503$  77,012$   22,174$    421$         133,110$ 

(In thousands)

 As of December 31, 2011, 53.0% of the loans in the construction, acquisition and development portfolio 
were scheduled to mature within one year.  Man y of these maturities may occur prior to the completion of the 
related projects and management expects that such loans will likely be renewed for an additional period of time.  
The Company’s loan policy requires that updated appraisals from qualified third party appraisers be obtained for 
any real estate loan over $250,000 that is renewed.  If th e borrower is experiencing fi nancial difficulties, and the 
renewal is made with concessions, the loan is considered to be a TDR.  These TDRs ar e tested for impairment by 
assessing the estimated disposal value of the collateral from the recent appraisal or by assessing the present value of 
the discounted cash flows expected on these loans. 

Real Estate – Commercial - Commercial loans include loans to finance income-producing commercial and 
multi-family properties.  Lending in this category is generally limited to properties located in the Company’s trade 
area with only limited exposure to properties located elsewhere but owned by in-market borrowers. Loans in this 
category include loans for nei ghborhood retail centers, medical and professional offices, single retail stores, 
warehouses and apartments leased generally to local businesses and residents. The underwriting of these loans takes 
into consideration the occupancy and rental rates as well as th e financial health of the borrower.  The Company’s 
exposure to national retail tenants is minimal.  The B ank has not  purchased com mercial real estate loans from 
brokers or third-party originators.  Real estate-c ommercial loans decreased 3.5% from  December 31, 2010 to 
December 31, 2011. 

Credit Cards - Credit cards include consumer and business MasterCard and Visa accounts and private label 
accounts for local merchants.  The Bank offers credit cards primarily to its deposit and loan customers.  Credit card 
balances remained stable in 2011 decreasing 0.1% from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011. 

All Other - All other loans and l eases include consumer installment loans and loans and leases to state, 
county and municipal governments and non-profit agencies. Consumer installment loans include term loans of up to 
five years secured by automobiles, boats and recreational vehicles.  The Bank offers lease financing for vehicles and 
heavy equipment to state, county and municipal governments and medical equipment to healthcare providers across 
the southern states.  All other loan  and lease balances decreased 5.7% from  December 31, 2010 to December 31, 
2011. 

The maturity distribution of t he Company’s loan portfolio is one fact or in management’s evaluation by 
collateral type of the risk characteristics of the loan and lease portfolio.  The following table shows the maturity 
distribution of the Company’s loans and leases, net of unearned income, as of December 31, 2011: 
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One Year One to After
or Less Five Years Five Years

 (In thousands)
Commercial and industrial 929,726$            417,689$            126,313$            
Real estate
  Consumer mortgages 436,149              1,202,087           306,954              
  Home equity 110,675              403,645              42                       
  Agricultural 66,763                141,469              31,255                
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 257,345              777,739              266,491              
  Construction, acquisition and development 519,226              364,834              24,302                
  Commercial 344,261              1,217,504           192,257              
Credit cards 106,281              -                          -                          
All other 261,011              320,670              45,623                
Total loans and leases, net of unearned income 3,031,437$         4,845,637$         993,237$            

 
 
 The interest rate sensitivity of the Company’s loan and lease portfolio is important in the management of 
net interest margin.  The Bank attempts to manage the relationship between the interest rate sensitivity of its assets 
and liabilities to produce an effec tive interest differential that is not signifi cantly impacted by the level of interest 
rates.  The following table shows the interest rate sensitivity of the Company’s loans and leases, net of unearned 
income, due after one year as of December 31, 2011: 

Fixed Variable
Rate Rate

Loan and lease portfolio
     Due after one year 3,952,979$       2,389,678$   

(In thousands)

 
 
NPLs consist of non-accrual loans and leases, loans and leases 90 days or more past due, still accruing, and 

accruing loans and leases that have been restructured (primarily in the form of reduced interest rates and m odified 
payment terms) because of the borrower’s or guarantor’s weakened financial condition or bankruptcy proceedings.  
The Company’s policy provides that loans and leases are generally placed in non-accrual status if, in management’s 
opinion, payment in full of principal or interest is not expected or payment of principal or interest is more than 90 
days past due, unless the loan or lease is both well-secured and in the process of collection.  The Company’s NPAs 
consist of NPLs and other real estate owned, which consists of foreclosed properties.  The Company' nonperforming 
assets (“NPAs”), which are carri ed either in the loan account or other assets on the consolidated balance sheets, 
depending on foreclosure status, were as follows at the end of each year presented:  

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Non-accrual loans and leases 276,798$     347,499$     144,013$     28,168$    9,789$      
Loans 90 days or more past due, still accruing 3,434           8,500           36,301         33,373      18,671      
Restructured loans and leases, but accruing 42,018         38,376         6,161           2,472        721           
Total NPLs 322,250       394,375       186,475       64,013      29,181      

Other real estate owned 173,805       133,412       59,265         46,317      24,281      
Total NPAs 496,055$     527,787$     245,740$     110,330$  53,462$    

NPLs to net loans and leases 3.63% 4.23% 1.91% 0.66% 0.32%
NPAs to net loans and leases 5.59% 5.65% 2.51% 1.14% 0.58%

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 NPLs decreased 18.3% in 2011 compared to 2010 and increased 111.5% in 2010 compared to 2009.  Other 
real estate owned increased 30.3% in 2011 compared to 2010 after increasing 125.1% in 2010 compared to 2009.  
Included in NPLs at Decem ber 31, 2011 were $234.9 million of loans that were  impaired.  These im paired loans 
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had a specific reserve of $39.7 million included in the allowance for credit losses of $195.2 million at December 31, 
2011, and were net of $52.2 m illion in partial charge-downs pr eviously taken on these im paired loans.    NPLs at 
December 31, 2010 included $273.4 million of loans that were impaired and had a specific reserve of $40.7 m illion 
included in the allowance fo r credit losses of $196.9 m illion at December 31, 2010.  The increase in restructured 
loans and leases still accruing in 2011 and 2010 reflected the in crease in loans which met the criteria for disclosure 
as TDRs because paym ent terms or pricing had been m odified by the Com pany or by orders under bankruptcy 
proceedings but which demonstrated sufficient performance to support the remaining principal and accrued interest.   
 The following table provides additional details related to the Company’s NPLs an d the allowance for 
credits losses at December 31 for the years indicated: 

  

2011 2010

Unpaid principal balance of impaired loans 287,099$        345,377$         
Cumulative charge offs on impaired loans 52,176            71,972             
Outstanding balance of impaired loans 234,923          273,405           

Other non-accrual loans and leases not impaired 41,875            74,094             

     Total non-accrual loans and leases 276,798$       347,499$         

Allowance for impaired loans 39,708            40,719             

     Nonaccrual loans and leases, net of specific reserves 237,090$        306,780$         

Loans and leases 90+ past due, still accruing 3,434              8,500               
Restructured loans and leases, still accruing 42,018            38,376             

     Total non-performing loans and leases 322,250$        394,375$         

Allowance for impaired loans 39,708$          40,719$           
Allowance for all other loans and leases 155,410          156,194           

     Total allowance for credit losses 195,118$       196,913$         

Outstanding balance of impaired loans 234,923$        273,405$         
Allowance for impaired loans 39,708            40,719             

     Net book value of impaired loans 195,215$       232,686$         

Net book value of impaired loans as a %
     of unpaid principal balance 68% 67%

Coverage of other non-accrual loans and leases not impaired
     by the allowance for all other loans and leases 371% 211%

Coverage of non-performing loans and leases not impaired
     by the allowance for all other loans and leases 178% 129%

(Dollars in thousands)

   
 
Non-accrual loans at December 31, 2011 reflected a decrease of $70.7 million, or 20.4%, to $276.8 million 

from $347.5 m illion at Decem ber 31, 2010 and increased  $203.5 million, or 141.3%, from  $144.0 m illion at 
December 31, 2009.  The Bank’s NPL levels over the past tw o years have been reflectiv e of the continuing effects 
of the prevailing economic environment on the Bank’s loan portfolio, as a significant portion of the increase in the 
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Bank’s NPLs was attributable to problems developing for est ablished customers with real estate related loans, 
particularly residential construction and devel opment loans, primarily in the Bank’s more urban m arkets. These 
problems resulted primarily from the decreased liquidity of certain borrowers and third party guarantors, as well as 
the declines in appraised real estate  values for loans which becam e collateral dependent during the past two years 
and certain other borrower specific factors.  The decrease in non-accrual loans during 2011 was prim arily 
recognized in the real estate constr uction, acquisition and de velopment portfolio as non-accrual loans in this 
portfolio decreased $78.4 million, 37.1%, to $133.1 million at December 31, 2011 from $211.5 million at December 
31, 2010.  The decrease in the real estate construction, acquisition and development portfolio resulted from charge-
offs of previous non-accrual loans and a reduction in the non-accrual formation related to the real estate 
construction, acquisition and development portfolio.  

Of the construction, acquisition and development portfolio, which to taled $908.4 million at December 31, 
2011, $301.4 m illion represented loans m ade by the Bank’ s locations in Alabama and Tennessee, including the 
greater Memphis, Tennessee area, a port ion of whi ch is in northwest Mississippi and Arkansas.  Residential 
acquisition and developm ent loans were the largest com ponent of the real estate construction, acquisition and 
development portfolio and totaled $342.0 m illion at December 31, 2011 with $120.1 m illion, or 35.1%, of such 
loans made by the Bank’s locations in Alabama and Tennessee.  These areas have experienced a higher incidence of 
NPLs, primarily as a result of a severe downturn in the housing market in these regions.  Of t he Company’s total 
NPLs of $322.3 m illion at December 31, 2011, $121.3 m illion, or 37.6%, were loans m ade within these markets.  
These markets continue to be affect ed by high inventories of unsol d homes, unsold lots and undevel oped land 
intended for use as housi ng developments.  Unl ike the Bank’s NPL concent rations in Alabama and Tennessee 
which are being affected by the severe downturn in the housing market, the Missouri market’s NPLs are generally a 
result of borrowers experiencing financial difficulties, or difficulties with a specific project, rather than problems 
more associated with product types in specific geographic areas.  The NPLs in the Missouri market are represented 
by fewer and larger individual credits in the commercial and industrial and commercial real estate portfolios, some 
of which pre-date our acqui sition of The Si gnature Bank in 2007.  The fol lowing table presents the Company’s 
NPLs by geographical location at December 31, 2011: 

90+ Days Restructured
Past Due still Non-accruing Loans, still

Outstanding Accruing Loans accruing NPLs

Alabama and Florida Panhandle 688,800$     -$               48,767$    2,726$             51,493$    7.5            %
Arkansas* 1,260,523    -                 19,018      6,631               25,649      2.0
Mississippi* 2,584,244    -                 49,538      4,695               54,233      2.1
Missouri 485,855       -                 33,414      16,518             49,932      10.3
Greater Memphis Area 558,927       -                 39,313      1,388               40,701      7.3
Tennessee* 678,427       -                 23,721      5,411               29,132      4.3
Texas and Louisiana 1,701,317    -                 55,497      1,350               56,847      3.3
Other 912,218       3,434         7,530        3,299               14,263      1.6
     Total 8,870,311$ 3,434$      276,798$ 42,018$           322,250$  3.6 %

*Excludes the Greater Memphis Area

NPLs as a
% of

Outstanding
(Dollars in thousands)

 
The increase in other real estate owned i n 2011 refl ected the general slow-down in the residential real 

estate sector in certain of the Bank’s markets, resulting in increased foreclosures.  The Bank recorded losses from  
the loans that were secured by thes e foreclosed properties in the allowa nce for credit losses at the tim e of 
foreclosure.   

The ultimate impact of the econom ic downturn on th e Company’s financial condition and results of 
operations will depend on its severity and duration.  Continued weakness in the economy could adversely affect the 
Bank’s volume of NPLs. The Bank will continue to focus on improving and enhancing existing processes related to 
the early identification and resolution of potential credit problems.  Loans identified as meeting the criteria set out in 
FASB ASC 310 are identified as TDRs.  The concessions granted most frequently for TDRs involve reductions or 
delays in required payments of pri ncipal and/or interest for a specified tim e, the re scheduling of pay ments in 
accordance with a bankruptcy plan or the charge-off of a portion of the loan.  In most cases, the conditions of the 
credit also warrant non-accrual status, even after the restructure occurs.  TD R loans m ay be returned to accrual 
status in years after the restructure if  there has been at least a six-month sustained period of repayment performance 
under the restructured loan terms by the borrower and t he interest rate at the time of restructure was at or above 
market for a comparable loan.  For reporting purposes, if a restructured loan is 90 days or more past due or has been 
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placed in non-accrual status, the restructur ed loan is included in the loans 90 days or more past due category or the 
non-accrual loan category of NPAs.  Total restructured loans were $104.7 m illion and $121.8 million at December 
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Restructured loans of  $62.7 million and $83.4 million were included in the non-
accrual loan category at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
 The total amount of interest earned on NPLs was approximately $12.6 million, $11.2 million, $4.1 million, 
$495,000 and $385,000 i n 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respect ively.  The gross i nterest income that would 
have been recorded under t he original terms of t hose loans and l eases if they had been perform ing amounted to 
approximately $18.7 million, $21.7 million, $8.4 million, $1.8 million and $964,000 in 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 
2007, respectively.  

Loans considered impaired under FASB ASC 310 are l oans for which, based on current  information and 
events, it is probable that the creditor will be unable to collect all am ounts due according to the contractual terms of 
the loan agreement.  Loans the Bank considered im paired, which were included in NPLs, totaled $234.9 m illion, 
$273.4 million, $128.5 million, $25.5 million and $9.5 million at December 31, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively, with a valuation a llowance of $39.7 million, $40.7 m illion, $22.7 m illion, $9.1 m illion and $4.4 
million, respectively. 

At December 31, 2011, the Company did not have any concentration of loans or leases in excess of 10% of 
total loans and l eases outstanding which were not  otherwise disclosed as a category of loans or leases.  Loan 
concentrations are considered to ex ist when there are amounts loaned to m ultiple borrowers engaged in sim ilar 
activities which would cause them  to be similarly impacted by economic or other conditions.  The Bank conducts 
business in a geographically concentrated area and has a si gnificant amount of l oans secured by  real estate to 
borrowers in varying activities and businesses, but does not consider these factors alone in identifying loan 
concentrations.  The ability of the Bank’s borrowers to repay loans is somewhat dependent upon the econom ic 
conditions prevailing in the Bank’s market areas. 

The Company utilizes an in ternal loan classification system  to grade loans according to certain credit 
quality indicators.  These credit qua lity indicators include, but are not limited to, recent credit perform ance, 
delinquency, liquidity, cash flows, debt coverage ratios, collateral type and loan-to-value ratio.  The following table 
provides details of the Company’s loan and lease portfolio, net of unearned income, by segment, class and internally 
assigned grade at December 31, 2011: 

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Loss Impaired Total

Commercial and industrial 1,415,731$  4,947$      43,549$        1,263$      405$         7,833$       1,473,728$    
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 1,742,593    17,914      148,267        4,434        189           31,793       1,945,190      
  Home equity 492,235       2,775        17,050          1,134        493           675            514,362         
  Agricultural 213,280       3,795        19,296          20             -                3,096         239,487         
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 1,167,220    18,280      90,778          496           -                24,801       1,301,575      
  Construction, acquisition and development 619,497       23,429      136,412        845           -                128,179     908,362         
  Commercial 1,501,196    37,409      179,295        -                -                36,122       1,754,022      
Credit Cards 105,867       41             175               188           10             -                 106,281         
All other 587,970       16,104      20,263          470           73             2,424         627,304         
    Total 7,845,589$  124,694$ 655,085$     8,850$     1,170$      234,923$  8,870,311$   

(In thousands)

 
In the normal course of business, management becomes aware of possi ble credit problems in which 

borrowers exhibit potential for the inability to comply with the contractual terms of their loans and leases, but which 
at the time do not  yet meet the criteria for disclosure as NPLs.  However, based upon past  experiences, some of 
these loans and leases with potential weaknesses may ultimately be restructured or placed in non-accrual status.  At 
December 31, 2011, the Bank had $9.6 m illion of potential pr oblem loans or leases or loans and leases with 
potential weaknesses that were not included in the non-accrual loans and leases or in the loans 90 days or m ore past 
due categories.  These loans or leases are included in the above rated categories.  Loans with identified weaknesses 
based upon analysis of the credit quality i ndicators are included in the 90 days or  more past due category or in the 
non-accrual loan and lease category which includes impaired loans.  See Note  5 to the Com pany’s Consolidated 
Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Report for additional information regarding the Company’s internal 
loan classification system. 
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The following table provides details regarding the aging of the Company’s loan and lease portfolio, net of 
unearned income, by internally assigned grade at December 31, 2011: 

30-59 Days 60-89 Days 90+ Days
Current Past Due Past Due Past Due Total

Pass 7,826,994$  13,403$      5,192$              -$                    7,845,589$   
Special Mention 123,201       1,235          -                        258                 124,694        
Substandard 617,234       16,779        5,544                15,528            655,085        
Doubtful 6,352           515             317                   1,666              8,850            
Loss 739              10               25                     396                 1,170            
Impaired 159,939       5,394          9,129                60,461            234,923        
     Total 8,734,459$  37,336$     20,207$           78,309$          8,870,311$   

(In thousands)

 
The following table provides details regarding the aging of the Company’s nonaccrual loans and leases by 

segment and class at December 31, 2011: 
30-59 Days 60-89 Days 90+ Days Total Total

Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Current Outstanding

Commercial and industrial 521$         1,193$      4,181$     5,895$     6,365$     12,260$       
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 3,510        2,850        11,595     17,955     29,923     47,878         
   Home equity -                65             594          659          1,377       2,036           
   Agricultural 380           -                719          1,099       3,080       4,179           
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 226           663           12,977     13,866     19,246     33,112         
   Construction, acquisition and development 2,461        4,606        33,584     40,651     92,459     133,110       
   Commercial 1,560        1,629        9,397       12,586     28,030     40,616         
Credit cards 65             32             398          495          99            594              
All other 196           37             1,430       1,663       1,350       3,013           
     Total 8,919$     11,075$   74,875$  94,869$   181,929$ 276,798$    

(In thousands)

 At December 31, 2011, 51.0% of nonaccrual loans and leases were paying as agreed.  Nonaccrual loans 
that are paying as agreed include loans that are less than 30 days delinquent, require payments at least quarterly and 
are not being reviewed for restructure. 

Collateral for some of the Bank’s loans and leases is su bject to fair value evaluations that fluctuate with 
market conditions and other external factors.  In addition, while the Ba nk has certain underwriting obligations 
related to such evaluations, the evaluations of some real property and other collateral are dependent upon third-party 
independent appraisers employed either by the Bank’s customers or as independent contractors of the Bank.  During 
the current economic cycle, some subsequent fair value appraisals have reported lower values than were originally 
reported.  These declining collateral values could impact future losses and recoveries. 
 The following table provides additional details related to the Company’s loan and lease portfolio, net of 
unearned income, and the distribution of NPLs at December 31, 2011: 

90+ Days Restructured
Past Due still Non-accruing Loans, but

Loans and leases, net of unearned income Outstanding Accruing Loans accruing NPLs

Commercial and industrial 1,473,728$  12$             12,260$    1,283$             13,555$    0.9            %
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 1,945,190    2,974          47,878      1,772               52,624      2.7            
   Home equity 514,362       -                  2,036        -                       2,036        0.4            
   Agricultural 239,487       -                  4,179        98                    4,277        1.8            
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 1,301,575    -                  33,112      8,892               42,004      3.2            
   Construction, acquisition and development 908,362       -                  133,110    2,049               135,159    14.9          
   Commercial 1,754,022    -                  40,616      21,216             61,832      3.5            
Credit cards 106,281       299             594           2,478               3,371        3.2            
All other 627,304       149             3,013        4,230               7,392        1.2            
     Total 8,870,311$  3,434$        276,798$  42,018$           322,250$  3.6            %

(Dollars in thousands)

NPLs as a
% of

Outstanding
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 The following table provides selected characteristics of the Company’s real estate construction, acquisition 
and development loans at December 31, 2011: 

90+ Days Restructured
Real Estate Construction, Past Due still Non-accruing Loans, but

Acquisition and Development Outstanding Accruing Loans accruing NPLs

Multi-family construction 2,138$         -$             1,067$      -$                    1,067$      49.9          %
One-to-four family construction 169,827       -               14,690      318                  15,008      8.8            
Recreation and all other loans 67,235         -               436           852                  1,288        1.9            
Commercial construction 130,124       -               5,235        -                      5,235        4.0            
Commercial acquisition and development 197,044       -               23,968      433                  24,401      12.4          
Residential acquisition and development 341,994       -               87,714      446                  88,160      25.8          
     Total 908,362$    -$          133,110$ 2,049$             135,159$  14.9        %

NPL as a
% of

Outstanding
(Dollars in thousands)

 
Securities  

The Company uses its secu rities portfolio to make various term investments, to provide a source of 
liquidity and to serve as collateral to secure certain types of deposits.  In  evaluating the balance sheet during the 
second quarter of 2011, management determined that it would be in the Company’s best interest to prepay a portion 
of its long-term FHLB borrowings.  In th e course of that evaluation, management also determined certain securities 
classified as held-to-maturity should be sold as their terms more closely aligned with the FHLB borrowings which 
assisted in the mitigation of interest rate risk.  Based on the change in intent not to hold to maturity, the Company 
transferred all held-to-maturity securities to the available-for-sale category during the second quarter of 2011.  The 
following tables show the carrying value of the Company’s held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities by 
investment category at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009:  

 
2011 2010 2009

(In thousands)
Held-to-maturity Securities:
U. S. Government agency 
  securities -$                     1,246,649$      798,660$         
Taxable obligations of states
  and political subdivisions -                       37,103             20,045             
Tax-exempt obligations of states
  and political subdivisions -                       329,267           214,117           

                  Total -$                    1,613,019$     1,032,822$      
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2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Available-for-sale Securities:
U. S. Government agency 
  securities 1,501,243$      433,158$         512,088$         
Government agency issued residential
  mortgage-backed securities 404,610           503,229           292,418           
Government agency issued commercial
  mortgage-backed securities 34,599             29,994             18,837             
Taxable obligations of states
  and political subdivisions 113,343           38,019             38,188             
Tax-exempt obligations of states
  and political subdivisions 450,177           72,146             72,650             
Collateralized debt obligations -                       -                       2,125               
Other securities 9,546               19,516             24,466             

                  Total 2,513,518$     1,096,062$     960,772$         
 

 
A portion of the Company's securities portfolio continues to be tax-exempt.  In vestments in tax-exempt 

securities totaled $450.2 million at December 31, 2011, compared to $401.4 million at the end of 2010 and $286.8 
million at the end of 2009.  The Com pany invests only in  investment grade securitie s, with the exception of 
obligations of certain counties and municipalities within the Company’s market area, and avoids other high yield 
non-rated securities and investments.   

At December 31, 2011, the Company’s available-for-sale securities totaled $2.5 billi on.  These securities, 
which are subject to possible sale, ar e recorded at fair value.  At December 31, 2011, the Com pany held no 
securities whose decline in fair value was considered other than temporary. 
 The following tables show the m aturities and wei ghted average yields at Decem ber 31, 2011 for the 
carrying value of the available-for-sale securities: 
 

After One After Five
Within But Within But Within After

One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years Total

Available-for-sale Securities:
U. S. Government agency 
  securities 252,296$     1,203,070$    45,877$       -$                 1,501,243$    
Government agency issued residential
  mortgage-backed securities 25,068         269,991         6,464           103,087       404,610         
Government agency issued commercial
  mortgage-backed securities -                   3,424             12,544         18,631         34,599           
Obligations of states and political 
  subdivisions 22,742         138,702         52,833         349,243       563,520         
Other -                   20                  46                9,480           9,546             
Total 300,106$     1,615,207$    117,764$     480,441$     2,513,518$    

Weighted average yield 3.67% 2.01% 4.37% 5.70%

Securities Maturing

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 The yield on tax-exem pt obligations of states and political  subdivisions has been adjusted to a taxable 
equivalent basis using a 35% tax rate. 
 Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securitie s as of Decem ber 31, 2011 totaled $65.5 m illion.  Net 
unrealized gains on investment securities as of Decem ber 31, 2010 totaled $41.4 m illion.  Net unrealized gains on 
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held-to-maturity securities comprised $19.7 million of the 2010 amount, while net unrealized gains on available-for-
sale securities were $21.7 million.   
 The following table shows the available-for-sale securities portfolio by credit rating as o btained from 
Moody’s Investors Services as of December 31, 2011: 
 

Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Available-for-sale Securities:

Aaa 1,936,606$   79.1% 1,979,625$   78.76%
Aa1 to Aa3 210,557        8.6% 220,537        8.77%
A1 to A3 28,227          1.2% 28,891          1.15%
Baa1 to Baa2 8,602            0.4% 8,846            0.35%
Caa1 66                 0.0% 131               0.01%
Not rated (1) 263,993        10.8% 275,488        10.96%
   Total 2,448,051$   100.0% 2,513,518$   100.00%

(1)  Not rated securities primarily consist of Mississippi and Arkansas municipal bonds.

Amortized Cost Estimated Fair Value

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 
 Of the securities not rated by Moody’s, bonds with a book value of $86.5 m illion and a market value of 
$91.3 million were rated A- or better by Standard & Poor’s Rating Services. 
 
Goodwill 

The Company’s policy is to asse ss goodwill for im pairment at the reporting segm ent level on an annual 
basis or sooner i f an event occurs or ci rcumstances change which indicate that the fair value of a report ing unit is 
below its carrying amount.  Impairment is the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds 
its implied fair value.  Accounting standards require management to estim ate the fair value of each reporting 
segment in assessing impairment at least annually.  The C ompany’s annual assessment date is during the 
Company’s fourth quarter.  Because of the volatile market conditions during which the Company’s market value fell 
below book value, however, the Com pany performed a co mplete goodwill im pairment analysis for all of its 
reporting segments during the second quarter of 2011 and a rol l-forward of that analysis during the third quarter of 
2011.  Based on these analyses, the estim ated fair valu e exceeded its respective carry ing value by 2% for the 
Company’s Community Banking reporting segment and by 30% for t he Company’s Insurance Agencies reporting 
segment.  The Company’s annual goodwill impairment evaluation performed during the fourth quarter of 2011 also 
indicated no impairment of goodwill for its reporting units.  Therefore, no goodwill impairment was recorded.   

In the current environm ent, forecasting cash flows, credit losses and growth in  addition to valuing the 
Company’s assets with any degree of a ssurance is very difficult and subject to significant changes over very  short 
periods of time.  Management will continue to update its analysis as circumstances change.  If m arket conditions 
continue to be volatile and unpredictable, impairment of goodwill related to the Company’s reporting segments may 
be necessary in future periods.  Goodwill was $271.3 million and $270.1 m illion at Decem ber 31, 2011 and 
December 31, 2010, respectively. 
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Other Real Estate Owned 
 Other real estate owned was $173.8 m illion and $133.4 m illion at Decem ber 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.  Other real estate owne d at December 31, 2011 had aggregate loan balances at the time of foreclosure 
of $319.1 million.  The following table presents the Com pany’s other real estate owne d by geographical location 
and collateral type at December 31, 2011: 

Alabama Greater
and Florida Memphis Texas and
Panhandle Arkansas* Mississippi* Missouri Area Tennessee* Louisiana Other Total

Commercial and industrial 436$           17$              -$                -$              940$             -$                -$                -$                   1,393$          
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 3,816         448              3,400           -                5,199            4,160          733             2,889             20,645          
   Home equity -                 -                  51                -                600               -                  -                  -                     651               
   Agricultural 899            -                  275              -                4,542            -                  -                  -                     5,716            
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 1,022         303              1,972           76             2,371            426             174             -                     6,344            
   Construction, acquisition and development 19,318       2,241           18,850         1,974        69,822          6,918          2,763          -                     121,886        
   Commercial 1,121         1,605           3,604           -                7,672            753             232             -                     14,987          
All other 276            83                220              193           1,358            -                  53               -                     2,183            
     Total 26,888$      4,697$        28,372$      2,243$     92,504$       12,257$     3,955$        2,889$          173,805$     

*  Excludes the Greater Memphis Area

(In thousands)

 
 Because of the relatively high number of our NPLs that have been determined to be collaterally dependent, 

management expects the resolution of a significant number of these loans to necessitate foreclosure proceedings 
resulting in a further increase in other real estate owned. 

 
Deposits 
 Deposits originating within the communities served by the Bank continue to be the Bank’s primary source 
of funding its earning assets.  The Company has been able to effectively compete for deposits in its primary market 
areas, while continuing to manage the exposure t o rising interest rates.  The distribution and market share of 
deposits by type of deposit and by type of depositor are important considerations in the Company's assessment of 
the stability of its fund sources and its access to additional funds.  Furtherm ore, management shifts the m ix and 
maturity of the deposits depending on ec onomic conditions and loan and investment policies in an attem pt, within 
set policies, to minimize cost and maximize net interest margin.   
 The following table presents the Bank’s noninterest bearing, interest bearing, savings and other time 
deposits at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and the percentage change between years: 
  

2009
Amount Amount Amount

 (Dollars in millions)
Noninterest bearing deposits 2,270$         10.2 % 2,060$         8.3 % 1,902$         
Interest bearing deposits 4,707           (4.6) 4,932           14.1 4,324           
Savings 991              14.8 863              19.0 725              
Other time 2,987           (17.8) 3,635           (2.5) 3,727           
Total deposits 10,955$       (4.7) 11,490$       7.6 10,678$       

2011 2010
% Change % Change

 
 The 4.7% decrease in deposits at December 31, 2011 compared to December 31, 2010 was primarily a 
result of the decrease in other time deposits of 17.8% to $2.9 billion at December 31, 2011 from $3.6 billion at 
December 31, 2010. 
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 The following table presents the classification of the Bank’s deposits on an average basis for the three 
years ended December 31, 2011: 
 

Average Average Average Average Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

(Dollars in thousands)
Noninterest bearing demand deposits 2,078,298$          -       1,890,979$         -       1,758,175$         -       
Interest bearing demand deposits 4,907,058       0.46% 4,649,235      0.76% 4,051,362      0.99%
Savings deposits 943,317          0.34% 784,504         0.46% 712,740         0.52%
Other time deposits 3,322,733       1.86% 3,782,727      2.22% 3,633,453      2.79%

    Total deposits 11,251,406$   11,107,445$  10,155,730$  

2011 2010 2009

 The Bank’s other time deposits of $100,000 and greater, including certificates of deposits of $100,000 and 
greater, at December 31, 2011 had maturities as follows: 
 

Maturing in Amount
(In thousands)

Three months or less 275,426$        
Over three months through six months 210,349          
Over six months through 12 months 395,462          
Over 12 months 539,968          
Total 1,421,205$     

 
 The average m aturity of tim e deposits at Decem ber 31, 2011 was approxim ately 14 m onths, virtually 
unchanged from December 31, 2010. 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 One of the Company's goals is to provide adequate funds to meet increases in loan demand or any potential 
increase in the norm al level of deposit withdrawals.  This goal is accom plished primarily by generating cash from 
the Bank’s operating activities and m aintaining sufficient short-term liquid assets.  These sources, coupled with a 
stable deposit base and a strong reputation in the capital markets, allow the C ompany to fund earning assets and 
maintain the availability of funds.  M anagement believes that the Bank’s traditional s ources of maturing loans and 
investment securities, sales of loans held for sale, cas h from operating activities and a st rong base of core deposits 
are adequate to meet the Company’s liquidity needs for norm al operations over both the short-term  and the long-
term.   

To provide additional liquidity, the Company utilizes short-term financing through the purchase of federal 
funds and securities sold under agreem ent to repurchase.  All securities sold  under agreements to repurchase are 
accounted for as collateralized financing transactions and are recorded at th e amounts at which the securities were 
acquired or sold plus accrued interest .  Further, the Com pany maintains a borrowing relationship with the FHLB 
which provides access to short-term  and long-term  borrowings.  The Com pany also has access to the Federal 
Reserve discount window and other bank lines.  The C ompany had short-term advances from the FHLB totaling 
$1.5 million and $2.7 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, re spectively.  The Company repaid $75.0 million in 
long-term borrowings from the FHLB during the second quart er of 2011.  As a result, long-term  borrowings were 
$33.5 million and $110.0 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  The Company has pledged eligible 
mortgage loans to secure the FHLB borrowings and had $3.0 billion in additional borrowing capacity under the 
existing FHLB borrowing agreem ent at Decem ber 31, 2011.   The Company had federal funds purchased and 
securities sold under agreement to repurchase of $373.9 million and $440.6 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.   

The Company had non-binding federal funds borrowing arrangements with other banks aggregating $729.0 
million at December 31, 2011.  Secured borrowing arrangements utilizing the Com pany’s securities portfolio also 
provide substantial additional liquidity  to the C ompany.  Such arrangements typically provide for borrowings of 
95% to 98% of the unencumbered fair value of the Company’s federal governm ent and governm ent agencies 
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securities portfolio.  The ab ility of the Company to obtain funding from  these or other sources could be negatively 
affected should the Com pany experience a substantial deteri oration in its financial condition or its debt rating, or 
should the availability of short-term funding become restricted as a result of the disruption in the financial markets.  
Management does not anticipate any  short- or long-term  changes to its liquidity strategies and believes that the 
Company has am ple sources to m eet the liquidity cha llenges caused by the current economic conditions.  The 
Company utilizes, am ong other tools, m aturity gap tables, interest rate shock scenarios and an active asset and 
liability management committee to analyze, manage and plan asset growth and to assist in managing the Company’s 
net interest margin and overall level of liquidity.   
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
 In the ordinary  course of business, the C ompany enters into various off-balance sheet com mitments and 
other arrangements to extend credit that are not reflected on the consolidated balance sheets of the Com pany.  The 
business purpose of these off-balance sheet  commitments is the routine extensi on of credit.  As of Decem ber 31, 
2011, commitments to extend credit included $158.9 m illion for letters of credit and $2.0 billion for interim  
mortgage financing, construction credit, credit card and other revolving lin e of credit arrangements.  While most of 
the commitments to extend credit were made at variable rates, included in these com mitments were forward 
commitments to fund individual fixed-rate mortgage loans of $104.2 million at December 31, 2011, with a carrying 
value and fair value reflecting a gain of $2.1 million, which has been recognized in  the Com pany’s results of 
operations.  Fixed-rate lending commitments expose the Company to risks associated with increases in interest rates.  
As a method to manage these risks, the Company also enters into forward commitments to sell individual fixed-rate 
mortgage loans.  At Decem ber 31, 2011, the Com pany had $107.0 m illion in such com mitments to sell, with a 
carrying value and fair value reflecti ng a loss of $1.1 m illion, which has been recognized in the Company’s results 
of operations.  The Company also faces the risk of deteriorating credit quality  of borrowers to whom a commitment 
to extend credit has been m ade; however, no significant credit losses are expected from these commitments and 
arrangements.   
 
Regulatory Requirements for Capital 

The Company is required to com ply with the risk-based capital guidelines established by the Board of 
Governors of the Federal R eserve System.  These guidelin es apply a variety of wei ghting factors that vary  
according to the level of risk associated  with the assets.  Capital is m easured in two “Tiers”: Tier I consists of 
common shareholders’ equity and qualifying non-cum ulative perpetual preferred stock, less goodwill and certain 
other intangible assets; and Tier II consists of general allowance for losses on loans and leases, “hybrid” debt capital 
instruments and all or a portion of other subordinated capital debt, depending upon rem aining term to maturity.  
Total capital is the sum of Tier I and Tier II capital.  The required minimum ratio levels to be considered adequately 
capitalized for the Com pany’s Tier I capital, total capital, as  a percentage of total risk-adjusted assets, and Tier I 
leverage capital (Tier I capital divided by total assets, less goodwill)  are 4%,  8% and 4%, respectively.  The 
Company exceeded the required minimum levels for these ratios at December 31, 2011 and 2010. 

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in thousands)
BancorpSouth, Inc.
   Tier I capital (to risk-weighted assets) 1,129,746$  11.77% 1,070,744$  10.61%
   Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) 1,250,801 13.03  1,197,626 11.87  
   Tier I leverage capital (to average assets) 1,129,746 8.85  1,070,744 8.07    

 
The FDIC’s capital-based supervisory system  for in sured financial institutions categorizes the capital 

position for banks into five categorie s, ranging from “well capitalized” to “critically undercapitalized.”  For a bank 
to be classified as “well capitalized,” the Tier I capital, total capital and levera ge capital ratios must be at least 6%, 
10% and 5%, respectively.  The Bank met the criteria for the “well capitalized” category at December 31, 2011 and 
2010.   
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December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

BancorpSouth Bank
   Tier I capital (to risk-weighted assets) 1,099,369$  11.46% 1,040,714$  10.32%
   Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) 1,220,424 12.73  1,167,596 11.58  
   Tier I leverage capital (to average assets) 1,099,369 8.67  1,040,714 7.87  

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 
 Federal and state banking laws and regulations and state corporate laws restrict the am ount of dividends 
that the Company may declare and pay . For example, under guidance issued by  the Federal R eserve Board, as a 
bank holding company, the Company required to consult with the Federal Reserve before declaring dividends and is 
to consider eliminating, deferring or reducing dividends if (i) the C ompany’s net income available to shareholders 
for the past four quarters, net of divi dends previously paid during that peri od, is not sufficient to fully  fund the 
dividends, (ii) the C ompany’s prospective rate of earnings retention is not consistent with its capital needs and 
overall current and prospective financia l condition, or (iii) the Company will not m eet, or is in danger of not 
meeting, its minimum regulatory capital adequacy ratios. 

In addition, the Company needs the approval of the Federal R eserve and the B ank needs the approval of 
the FDIC before paying cash dividends. Further, the Bank’s board of directors has approved a resolution requested 
by the FDIC  and the M ississippi Department of B anking and Consumer Finance such that the declaration and 
payment of dividends will be lim ited to the Bank’s current net operating incom e and conditioned upon the prior 
written consent of the regulators and maintenance of minimum capital ratios. Finally , the Com pany’s board of 
directors has approved a resolution re quested by the Federal Reserve such  that the Com pany needs the prior 
approval of the Federal Reserve before making any declaration or payment of dividends on any of its capital stock. 
 
Uses of Capital 
 The Company may pursue acquisitions of depository institutions and businesses closely related to banking 
that further the Company’s business strategies, including FDIC-assisted transactions.  The Company anticipates that 
consideration for any  transactions other than FDIC-assisted transactions would include shares of the C ompany’s 
common stock, cash or a combination thereof.   
 Management determined not to extend the C ompany’s stock repurchase program when it expired on April 
30, 2011. No shares of C ompany common stock were repurchased under this program in 2011. A total of 460,700 
shares were repurchased under this program during the period from May 1, 2007 through April 30, 2011. 
 In 2002, the Com pany issued $128.9 m illion in 8. 15% Junior Subordinated Debt Securities to 
BancorpSouth Capital Trust I (the “Trust”), a business trust.  The Trust used the proceed s from the issuance of five 
million shares of 8.15% trust preferred securities, $25 face value per share, to acquire the 8.15% Junior 
Subordinated Debt Securities.  Both the Junior Subordi nated Debt Securities and the trust preferred securities 
mature on January 28, 2032, and are callable at the option of the Company upon obtaining approval of the Federal 
Reserve.  The $125.0 million in trust preferred securities issued by the Trust qualifies as Tier I capital under Federal 
Reserve guidelines.  The Com pany may prepay the Junior Subordinated Debt Securities, and in turn the trust 
preferred securities, at a prepaym ent price of 100% of the principal am ount of these securities within 90 days of a 
determination by the Federal Reserve that trust preferred securities will no longer qualify as Tier I capital. 
 The Company assumed $6.2 million in Junior Subordinated Debt Securities and the related $6.0 million in 
trust preferred securities pursuant to the merger on December 31, 2004 with Bu siness Holding Corporation.  The 
Company also assumed $6.7 million in Junior Subordinate d Debt Securities and the related $6.5 m illion in trust 
preferred securities pursuant to the m erger on December 1, 2005 with American State Bank Corporation and $18.5 
million in Junior Subordinated Debt Securities and the related $18.0 million in trust preferred securities pursuant to 
the merger on March 1, 2007 with City Bancorp.  Th e Company’s $30.5 m illion in assum ed trust preferred 
securities qualifies as Tier I capital under Federal Reserve Board guidelines.  See Note 12 to the Com pany’s 
Consolidated Financial Statem ents included elsewhere in this Report for a dditional information regarding Junior 
Subordinated Debt Securities.   
  
Contractual Obligations 
 The Company has contractual obligations to m ake future payments on debt and lease agreem ents.  See 
Notes 10, 11, 12 and 24 to the C ompany’s Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Report for 



 62

further disclosures regarding contractual obligations.  The following ta ble summarizes the Company’s contractual 
obligations at December 31, 2011: 

Less than One to Three Three to Five More than
Total One Year Years Years Five Years

Contractual obligations:
Deposit maturities 10,955,189$  9,907,959$     711,665$    335,322$  243$           
Junior subordinated debt 160,312         -                      -                  -                160,312      
Long-term FHLB borrowings 33,500           -                      -                  3,500        30,000        
Short-term FHLB and other borrowings 1,581             1,518              36               27             -                  
Operating lease obligations 20,864           6,052              7,135          3,042        4,635          
Purchase obligations 38,232           20,019            12,269        3,636        2,308          
Total contractual obligations 11,209,678$ 9,935,548$    731,105$   345,527$  197,498$   

Payment Due by Period

(In thousands)

 
 The Company’s operating lease obligations represen t short and long-term  operating lease and rental 
payments for facilities, certain software  and data processing and other equipment.  Purchase obligations represent 
obligations to purchase goods and services that are legally binding and enforceable on the Company and that specify 
all significant term s, including: fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price 
provisions; and the approxim ate timing of the transaction.  The purchase obligation am ounts presented above 
primarily relate to certain contractual payments for services provided related to information technology. 
 
Certain Litigation Contingencies 
 The nature of the Com pany’s business ordinarily results in a cer tain amount of claim s, litigation, 
investigations and legal and adm inistrative investigations and proceedings. Although the Com pany and its 
subsidiaries have developed policies and procedures to minimize the im pact of legal noncom pliance and other 
disputes, and endeavored to provide reasonable insurance coverage, litigati on and regulatory actions present an 
ongoing risk. 
 The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in lines of business that are heavily  regulated and involve a 
large volume of financial transactions and potential trans actions with numerous customers or applicants. From time 
to time, borrowers, customers, former employees and other third parties have brought actions against the C ompany 
or its subsidiaries, in some cases claiming substantial damages. Financial services companies are subject to the risk 
of class action litigation and, from time to time, the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to such actions brought 
against it. Additionally , the B ank is, and management expects it to be, engaged in a num ber of foreclosure 
proceedings and other collection actions as part of its lending and leasing coll ections activities, which, from time to 
time, have resulted in counterclaim s against the Bank. Vari ous legal proceedings have arisen and m ay arise in the 
future out of claims against entities to  which the Company is a successor as a result of business com binations. The 
Company’s insurance has deductibles, and will likely not cover all such litigati on or other proceedings or the costs 
of defense. The Company and its subsidiaries m ay also be subject to enforcem ent actions by federal or state 
regulators, including the Securities and Exchange Com mission, the Federal Reserve, the FDIC, the Consum er 
Financial Protection Bureau, the Department of Justice, state attorneys general and th e Mississippi Department of 
Banking and Consumer Finance. 
 When and as the Com pany determines it has m eritorious defenses to the claim s asserted, it vigorously  
defends against such claims. The Company will consider settlement of claims when, in management’s judgment and 
in consultation with counsel, it is in the best interests of the Company to do so. 
 The Company cannot predict with cer tainty the cost of defense, the cost of prosecution or the ultimate 
outcome of litigation and other proceedings filed by or against it, its directors, management or employees, including 
remedies or damage awards. On at least a quarterly basi s, the Company assesses its liabilities and contingencies in 
connection with outstanding legal proceedings as well as certain threatened claim s (which are not considered 
incidental to the ordinary conduct of  the Company’s business) utilizing the latest and m ost reliable inform ation 
available. For matters where a loss is not probable or the amount of the loss cannot be estim ated, no accrual is 
established. For m atters where it is probable the Company will incur a loss and the am ount can be reasonably 
estimated, the Company establishes an accrual for the loss. Once established, th e accrual is adjusted periodically to 
reflect any relevant developm ents. The actual cost of any outstanding legal proceedings or threatened claim s, 
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however, may turn out to be substantially higher than the amount accrued. Further, the Company’s insurance will 
not cover all such litigation, other proceedings or claims, or the costs of defense.  
 While the final outcom e of any legal proceedings is inherently uncertain, based on the inform ation 
available, advice of counsel and available insurance coverage, management believes that the litigation-related 
expense accrued as of December 31, 2011 is adequate and that any incremental liability arising from the Company’s 
legal proceedings and threatened claim s, including the m atters described herein and those otherwise arising in the 
ordinary course of business, will not have a m aterial adverse effect on the Company's business or consolidated 
financial condition. It is possible, however, that future developments could result in an unfavorable outcom e for or 
resolution of any one or m ore of the lawsuits in which the Company or its subsidiaries are defendants, which m ay 
be material to the Company’s results of operations for a given fiscal period. 

On May 12, 2010, the Company and its C hief Executive Officer, President and C hief Financial Officer 
were named in a purported class action lawsuit filed in the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of Tennessee 
on behalf of certain purchasers of the C ompany’s common stock. On Septem ber 17, 2010, an Executive Vice 
President of the Company was added as a party to the lawsuit. The am ended complaint alleges that the defendants 
issued materially false and m isleading statements regarding the C ompany’s business and financial results. The 
plaintiff seeks class certification, an unspecified amount of damages and awards  of costs and attorney s’ fees and 
other equitable relief. No class has been certified and, at this stage of the lawsuit, management cannot determine the 
probability of an unfavorable outcome to the Com pany. There are signi ficant uncertainties involved in any 
purported class action litigation.  Although it is not possible to predict the ultim ate resolution or financial liability 
with respect to this litigation, management is currently of the opinion that the outcome of this lawsuit will not have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

On August 16, 2011, a shareholder filed a putative de rivative action purportedly on behalf of the Company 
in the Circuit Court of Lee County, Mississippi, against certain current and past executive officers and the members 
of the B oard of Directors of the C ompany. The plaintiff in this shareholder derivative lawsuit asserts that the 
individual defendants violated  their fiduciary duties based upon substantially  the sam e facts as alleged in the 
purported class action lawsuit described above. The plaintiff is seeking to recover damages in an unspecified 
amount and equitable and/or injunctive relief. Although it is not possible to predict the ultimate resolution or 
financial liability with respect to this litigation, m anagement is currently of the opinion that the outcome of this 
lawsuit will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, consolidated financial position or results 
of operations. 

In November 2010, the Company was informed that the Atlanta Regional Office of the SEC had issued an 
Order of Investigation concerning the C ompany.  This investigation is ongoing and is prim arily focused on the 
Company’s recording and reporting of its unaudited financial statements, including the allowance and provision for 
credit losses, and its internal controls and its communications with the independent auditors prior to the filing of the 
Company’s Annual Report on Form  10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.  In connection with its 
investigation, the SEC issued subpoenas for documents and testimony, with which the Company has fully complied.  
The Company is cooperating fully  with the SEC . No claims have been made by the SEC against the C ompany or 
against any individuals affiliated with the Company. At this tim e, it is not possible to predict when or how the 
investigation will be resolved or the cost or potential liabilities associated with this matter. 

On May 18, 2010, the B ank was named as a defendant in a purported class action lawsuit filed by two 
Arkansas customers of the Bank in the U.S. District C ourt for the Northern District of  Florida. The suit challenges 
the manner in which overdraft fees were charged and th e policies related to posting order of debit card and ATM  
transactions. The suit also m akes a claim under Arkansas’ consumer protection statute. The case was transferred to 
pending multi-district litigation in the U.S.  District Court for the Southern Dist rict of Florida. No class has been 
certified and, at this stage of the lawsuit, m anagement of the Com pany cannot dete rmine the probability of an 
unfavorable outcome to the C ompany. There are signifi cant uncertainties involved in any  purported class action 
litigation.  Although it is not possible to predict the ultim ate resolution or financial liability with respect to this 
litigation, management is currently of the opinion that the outcome of this lawsuit will not have a m aterial adverse 
effect on the Company’s business, consolidated financial position or results of operations. However, there can be no 
assurance that an adverse outcome or settlem ent would not have a m aterial adverse effect on the Com pany’s 
consolidated results of operations for a given fiscal period. 

 
Recent Pronouncements  

On January 1, 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regarding business combinations.  
This new accounting standard expands the definition of transactions a nd events that qualify  as business 
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combinations; requires that the acquired assets and liabilities, including contingencies and loans, be recorded at fair 
value determined on the acquisition date; changes the recognition timing for restructuring costs; and requires the 
expensing of acquisition costs as incurred.  The adoption of this new accounting standard regarding business 
combinations has had no material impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company. 

On January 1, 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regarding non-controlling interests 
in consolidated financial statem ents.  This new accounti ng standard requires that acqui red assets and liabilities be 
measured at full fair value without consideration to ow nership percentage.  Any non- controlling interests in an 
acquiree should be presented as a separate component of equity rather than on a mezzanine level.  Additionally, this 
new accounting standard provides that net incom e or loss should be reported in the consolidated income statement 
at its consolidated amount, with disclosure on the face of  the consolidated incom e statement of the am ount of 
consolidated net income which is attributable to the parent and non-controlli ng interest, respectively.  The adoption 
of this new accounting standard regard ing non-controlling interests in consolid ated financial statements has had no 
impact on the financial position or results of operations  of the Company.  The C ompany does not have any  non-
controlling interests as it wholly owns all of its subsidiaries. 

On January 1, 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regard ing disclosures about 
derivative instruments and hedging activities.  This new accounting standard changes th e disclosure requirements 
for derivative instruments and hedging activities by requiring entities to provide enhanced disclosures about (a) how 
and why an entity uses derivative instrum ents, (b) how  derivative instrum ents and related hedged item s are 
accounted for under an existing standard regarding derivative instruments and its related interpretations, and (c) 
how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and 
cash flows.  This new accounting standard regarding disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging activities 
has impacted disclosures only and has not had an im pact on the financial position or results of operations of the 
Company.  All required disclosures are contained in this Report. 

In April 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regarding the determination of fair value 
when the volume and level of activity for the asset or  liability have significantly  decreased and identifying 
transactions that are not orderly .  This new accounting standard provides guidance on how to determ ine the fair 
value of assets and liabilities in an environment where the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have 
significantly decreased and re-emphasizes that the objective of a fair value measurement remains an exit price.  The 
adoption of this new accounting standard did not have an impact on the financial position or results of operations of 
the Company. 

In April 2009, the Company adopted a new accounting st andard regarding recognition and presentation of 
other-than-temporary impairment which amends existing guidance in U.S. GAAP for debt securities to m ake the 
guidance more operational and to im prove the presentation and disclosure of other-tha n-temporary impairment on 
debt and equity securities in the financial statem ents.  The new accounting standa rd did not am end existing 
recognition and measurement guidance related to other-than-temporary impairments of equity securities.  The new 
accounting standard specifies that a debt  security is considered other-than-te mporarily impaired when an entity’s 
management intends to sell the security or that it is m ore-likely-than not that the entity will be required to sell the 
security prior to recovery of its cost basis.  The guidance requires that for im paired held-to-maturity and available-
for-sale debt securities that an entity does not intend to sell and will not be required to se ll prior to recovery but for 
which credit losses exist, the other-than-temporary impairment should be se parated between the total im pairment 
related to credit losses, which should be recognized in current earnings, and the amount of impairment related to all 
other factors, which should be recogni zed in other comprehensive income.  There was no initial effect of adoption 
of this new accounting standard regard ing recognition and presentation of ot her-than-temporary impairment on the 
financial position or results of operations of the Com pany because all previously taken im pairment was deemed to 
be credit related.     

Effective June 30, 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regarding subsequent events.  
This new accounting standard establishe s general standards of accounting for and disclosures of events that occur 
after the balance sheet date but before financial statem ents are issued or are available to be issued.  The Com pany 
has evaluated any subsequent events through the date of this filing.  M anagement does not believe there are any 
material subsequent events which woul d require further disclosure.  The a doption of this new accounting standard 
regarding subsequent events has had no material impact on the financial pos ition or results of operations of the 
Company.   

In December 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard related to the disclosures of plan 
assets of a defined benefit pension or other postretirement plan which pr ovides guidance on additional disclosures 
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about plan assets.  The adoption of this new accounting st andard has impacted disclosures only and has not had an 
impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.   

In January 2010, the Com pany adopted a new accounti ng standard regarding accounting for transfers of 
financial assets.  This new accounting standard elim inates the concept of a “qualif ying special-purpose entity,” 
changes the requirements for derecognizing financial assets, and requires additi onal disclosures in order to enhance 
information reported to users of financial statements by providing greater tran sparency about transfers of financial 
assets, including securitization transactions, and an entity ’s continuing involvem ent in and exposure to the risks 
related to transferred financial assets.  The adoption of this new accoun ting standard rega rding accounting for 
transfers of financial assets has had no material impact on the financial position or results of operations of the 
Company. 

In January 2010, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regarding cons olidation of variable 
interest entities.  This new accounting standard am ends existing accounting literature re garding consolidation of 
variable interest entities to im prove financial reporting by enterprises involved with variable interest entities and to 
provide more relevant and reliable in formation to users of financial stat ements.  The adoption of this new 
accounting standard regarding consolidation of variable interest entities has ha d no material impact on the financial 
position or results of operations of the Company. 

In January 2010, the FASB issued an accounting standards update (“ASU”) regarding fair value 
measurements and disclosures.  This ASU revises two di sclosure requirements concerning fair value measurements 
and clarifies two others.  This ASU requires expanded disclosures related to significant transfers in and out of Level 
1 and Level 2 fair value m easurement and the reasons for th e transfers, as well as the clarifications of existing 
disclosures, and was effective for interim or annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009.  The new 
disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances and settlem ents in the roll forward of activ ity in Level 3 fair value 
measurements are effective for interim  or annual repor ting periods beginning after December 15, 2010.  This ASU 
impacts disclosures only and is included in Note 14 to th e Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements included 
in this Report.  This ASU did not have an impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company. 

In July 2010, the FASB issued a new accounting standa rd regarding disclosures about the credit quality of 
financing receivables and the allowance for credit losses.  This new accounting standard am ends existing 
accounting literature regarding disclosure s about the credit quality of financing receivables and the allowance for 
credit losses to provide additional inform ation to assist financial statement users in assessing an entity’s credit risk 
exposures and evaluating the adequacy of its allowance for credit losses.  This new accounting standard is effective 
for fiscal years and interim reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2010.  This new accounting standard 
regarding disclosures about the credit quality of financing receivables and th e allowance for credit losses im pacts 
disclosures only and is included in Notes 5 and 6 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements included in 
this Report.  The new accounting standard did not have an  impact on the financial position or results of operations 
of the Company. 

In April 2011, the FASB  issued an ASU regarding a creditor’s determination of whether a restructuring 
should be considered a TDR.  This ASU provides additiona l guidance related to determining whether a creditor has 
granted a concession, including factors and exam ples for creditors to consider in evalua ting whether a restructuring 
results in a delay in paym ent that is  insignificant.  The ASU also prohib its creditors from  using the borrower’s 
effective rate test to evaluate whether a concession has b een granted to the borrower and adds factors for creditors 
to use in determining whether a borrower is experienci ng financial difficulties.  The ASU ends the deferral of 
activity-based disclosures about TDRs that are part of the new credit-quality di sclosure requirements.  The ASU is 
effective for interim and annual periods  beginning on or after June 15, 2011.  This ASU did not have a m aterial 
impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company. 

In April 2011, the FASB  issued an ASU regarding r econsideration of effective control for repurchase 
agreements.  This ASU removes from the assessment of effective control (1) the criterion requiring the transferor to 
have the ability to repurchase or redeem  the financial assets on substantially the agreed terms, even in the event of 
default by the transferee, and (2) the collateral maintenance implementation guidance related to that criterion.  Other 
criteria applicable to the assessment of effective control are not changed by th is ASU.  The ASU is effective for the 
first interim or annual period beginni ng on or after Decem ber 15, 2011 and s hould be applied prospectively to 
transactions or modifications of existing transactions that occur on or after th e effective date.  Early  adoption is not 
permitted.  The new ASU is not expected to have a m aterial impact on the financial position and results of 
operations of the Company. 
 In May 2011, the FASB issued an ASU regarding amendments to achieve common fair value measurement 
and disclosure requirements in U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).  This ASU 
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provides amendments to ensure that fair value has th e same meaning in U.S. GAAP and IFRS and that their 
respective fair value measurements and disclosure requirements are the same.  The ASU is effective during interim  
and annual periods beginning after Decem ber 15, 2011 and should be applied prospectively.  Early adoption is not 
permitted.  The Com pany is in the process of assessing the impact of this new ASU on the financial position and 
results of operations of the Company.     
 In June 2011, the FASB  issued an ASU regarding th e presentation of com prehensive income.  This ASU 
amends existing guidance and elim inates the option to pr esent the components of other com prehensive income as 
part of the statem ent of changes in shareholder’s equ ity.  This ASU requires that comprehensive income be 
presented in either a single continuous  statement or in two separate but consecutive statem ents.  This ASU is 
effective for interim and annual peri ods beginning on or after December 15, 2011.  The adoption of this ASU is 
expected to change the manner in which the Company’s other comprehensive income is disclosed and will have no 
impact on the financial position and results of operations of the Company.  
 In September 2011, the FASB issued an ASU regarding goodwill impairment.  This ASU gives companies 
the option to perform a qualitative assessment of whether it is  more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value 
is less than its carrying value as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform  the two-step goodwill 
impairment test. This ASU is effective for interim  and annual periods beginning afte r December 15, 2011.  Early 
adoption is permitted.  The Company is currently assessing the impact of the adoption of this ASU on the financial 
position and results of operations of the Company. 

 
 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK. 
 
 Market risk reflects the risk of econom ic loss resulting from changes in interest rates and market prices.  
This risk of loss can be reflected in either reduced potential net interest reve nue in future periods or dim inished 
market values of financial assets. 
 The Company’s market risk arises primarily from interest rate risk that is inherent in its lending, investment 
and deposit taking activities.  Financial institutions derive  their income primarily from the excess of interest 
collected over interest paid.  The rates of interest the Co mpany earns on certain of its assets and owes on certain of 
its liabilities are established contractually for a period of tim e.  Because market interest rates change over time, the 
Company is exposed to lower profit m argins (or losses) if it cannot adapt to interest rate changes.  Several 
techniques might be used by a financia l institution to m inimize interest rate  risk.  One approach used by the 
Company is to periodically analyze its assets and liabilities and make future financing and investing decisions based 
on payment streams, interest rates, contractual maturities, repricing opportunities and estimated sensitivity to actual 
or potential changes in m arket interest rates.  Such  activities fall under the broad definition of asset/liability 
management.  The Company’s primary asset/liability management technique is the measurement of its asset/liability 
gap, that is, the difference between the am ounts of intere st-sensitive assets and liabilities that will be refinanced 
(repriced) during a given period.  If the asset amount to be repriced exceeds the corresponding liability amount for a 
certain day, month, year or longer period, the Com pany is in an asset-sensitive gap position.  In this situation, net 
interest revenue would increase if market interest rates rose or decrease if market interest rates fell.  If, alternatively, 
more liabilities than assets will reprice,  the Company is in a lia bility-sensitive position.  Accordingly, net interest 
revenue would decline when rates rose and increase when rates fell.  These examples assume that interest-rate 
changes for assets and liabilities are of the same magnitude, whereas actual interest-rate changes generally differ in 
magnitude for assets and liabilities. 
 Management seeks to m anage interest rate risk through the utilization of va rious tools that include 
matching repricing periods for new a ssets and liabilities and m anaging the composition and size of the investm ent 
portfolio so as to reduce the risk in  the deposit and loan portfolios, while at the same time maximizing the yield 
generated from the portfolio. 
 Mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”) are sensitive to change s in interest rates.  Changes in the fair value of 
the Company’s MSRs are generally a resu lt of changes in m ortgage interest rates from the previous reporting date.  
An increase in mortgage interest rates typically results in an increase in the fair value of the MSRs while a decrease 
in mortgage interest rates typically results in a decreas e in the fair value of M SRs.  The C ompany does not hedge 
the change in fair value of its MSRs a nd is susceptible to significant fluctuati ons in their value in changing interest 
rate environments.   
 The Company enters into interest rate swaps (derivative financial inst ruments) to meet the financing, 
interest rate and equity  risk m anagement needs of its customers.  Upon entering into these instrum ents to m eet 
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customer needs, the Com pany enters into offsetting positions to m inimize interest rate and equity risk to the 
Company.  These instrum ents are reported at fair value and the value of these positions, which are offsetting, are 
recorded in other assets and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. 
 The table below provides inform ation about the Company’s financial instrum ents that are sensitive to 
changes in interest rates as of Decem ber 31, 2011.  The expected maturity categories take into account repricing 
opportunities as well as contractual m aturities.  For core deposits without contractual m aturities (e.g., interest 
bearing checking, savings and m oney market accounts), the table presents  cash flows based on m anagement’s 
judgment concerning their m ost likely runoff or repricing behaviors.  The fair  value of loans, deposits and other 
borrowings are based on the discounted value of expected cash flows using a discount rate that is com mensurate 
with the maturity.  The fair value of securities is based on market prices or dealer quotes. 

Fair value
Principal Amount Maturing/Repricing in: December 31,

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total 2011
Rate-sensitive assets: (Dollars in thousands)
Fixed interest rate loans and leases 1,305,313$      992,548$        998,375$           684,511$     952,529$       325,016$        5,258,292$     5,250,363$        
Average interest rate 5.57% 5.76% 5.51% 5.57% 5.16% 5.44% 5.51%
Variable interest rate loans and leases 3,230,720$      89,247$          67,205               25,744         57,140           225,421          3,695,477$     3,759,127$        
Average interest rate 4.64% 5.35% 4.90% 5.66% 4.86% 5.03% 4.70%
Fixed interest rate securities 412,389$         499,561$        508,283$           205,165$     86,257$         717,779$        2,429,434$     2,513,763$        
Average interest rate 2.35% 2.29% 1.96% 3.03% 4.06% 4.10% 2.89%
Other interest bearing assets 303,663$         -                  -                     -               -                 -                  303,663$        303,663$           
Average interest rate 0.26% -                  -                     -               -                 -                  0.26%

Mortgage servicing rights (1) -                   -                  -                     -               -                 -                  30,123$          30,123$             

Rate-sensitive liabilities:
Savings and  interest bearing checking 5,698,527$      -                  -                     -               -                 -                  5,698,527$     5,698,527$        
Average interest rate 0.37% -                  -                     -               -                 -                  0.37%
Fixed interest rate time deposits 1,939,633$      355,323$        356,342$           212,470$     122,852$       243$               2,986,863$     3,029,147$        
Average interest rate 1.17% 1.96% 3.02% 2.96% 1.85% 10.41% 1.64%
Fixed interest rate borrowings 1,500$             -$                    -$                       3,568$         -$                   190,312$        195,380$        201,709$           
Average interest rate 4.71% -                  -                     4.91% -                 7.41% 7.34%
Variable interest rate borrowings 329,950$         40,948$          -                     3,035$         -                 -                  373,933$        373,742$           
Average interest rate 0.06% 0.10% -                     0.50% -                 -                  0.07%

Rate-sensitive off balance sheet items:
Commitments to extend credit for single
    family mortgage loans 104,229$         -                  -                     -               -                 -                  104,229$        104,229$           
Average interest rate 3.80% -                  -                     -               -                 -                  3.80%
Forward contracts to sell individual fixed
    rate mortgage loans 106,961$         -                  -                     -               -                 -                  106,961$        106,961$           
Average interest rate 3.51% -                  -                     -               -                 -                  3.51%
Interest rate swap position to receive 493,343$         -                  -                     -               -                 -                  493,343$        53,608$             
Average interest rate 2.55% -                  -                     -               -                 -                  2.55%
Interest rate swap position to pay 493,343$         -                  -                     -               -                 -                  493,343$        (54,349)$            
Average interest rate 5.94% -                  -                     -               -                 -                  5.94%

(1)  Mortgage servicing rights represent a non-financial asset that is rate-sensitive in that its value is dependent upon the underlying mortgage loans being
serviced that are rate-sensitive.

 
 For additional information about the Company’s market risk and its strategies for minimizing this risk, see  
“Item 7. M anagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial C ondition and R esults of Operations – R esults of 
Operations – Interest Rate Sensitivity” and “– Interest Rate Risk Managem ent” and “Item  7. Managem ent’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Financial Condition – Securities.” 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA. 

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA 
 
Summary of Quarterly Results

Quarter Ended
March  31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31

2011 (In thousands, except per share amounts)
Interest revenue 138,828$     137,235$     132,397$     129,393$     
Net interest revenue 109,437       109,912       108,075       107,489       
Provision for credit losses 53,479         32,240         25,112         19,250         
(Loss) income before income taxes (5,741)          15,747         14,320         17,718         
Income tax (benefit) expense (5,247)          2,921           2,386           4,415           
Net (loss) income (494)             12,826         11,934         13,303         
(Loss) earnings per share: Basic (0.01)            0.15             0.14             0.16             
                                         Diluted (0.01)            0.15             0.14             0.16             
Dividends per share 0.11             0.01             0.01             0.01             
2010
Interest revenue 148,658$     146,162$     144,885$     143,057$     
Net interest revenue 111,882       109,329       109,678       110,253       
Provision for credit losses 43,519         62,354         54,850         43,293         
Income (loss) before income taxes 11,212         (15,955)        1,493           17,488         
Income tax expense (benefit) 2,816           (3,395)          (9,767)          1,641           
Net income (loss) 8,396           (12,560)        11,260         15,847         
Earnings (loss) per share: Basic 0.10             (0.15)            0.13             0.19             
                                         Diluted 0.10             (0.15)            0.13             0.19             
Dividends per share 0.22             0.22             0.22             0.22             
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over 
financial reporting as defined in R ules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The C ompany’s internal 
control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance re garding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statem ents for external purposes in acco rdance with U.S. GAAP. The 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:  

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;  

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and  

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding pr evention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use or disposition of the C ompany’s assets that could have a m aterial effect on the financial 
statements.

 
 

Because of its inherent lim itations, internal control over financial re porting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subj ect to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in  conditions, or that the de gree of com pliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Com pany’s internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2011.  In m aking this assessm ent, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.  

Based on management’s assessment and those criteria, management believes that the Company maintained 
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011.   

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm  has issued a report on the effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. That report appears on page 70 of this Report.   
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  
 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
BancorpSouth, Inc.: 

 
We have audited BancorpSouth, Inc. ’s internal control over financia l reporting as of Decem ber 31, 2011, 

based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by  the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway  Commission (COSO). BancorpSouth, Inc.'s management is responsible for 
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessm ent of the effectiveness of internal 
control over financial reporting, included in the accom panying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Com pany’s internal control over financial 
reporting based on our audit. 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Com pany Accounting Oversight 

Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether effective internal contro l over financial reporting was m aintained in all material respects. Our audit 
included obtaining an understanding of inte rnal control over financia l reporting, assessing the risk that a m aterial 
weakness exists, and testing and eval uating the design and operating effectiven ess of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. Our audit also include d performing such other procedures as  we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

 
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial re porting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures th at (1) pertain to the m aintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the trans actions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are record ed as necessary to perm it preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting princi ples, and that receipts and expenditu res of the com pany are being m ade 
only in accordance with authorizations of m anagement and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
Because of its inherent lim itations, internal control over financial re porting may not prevent or detect 

misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subj ect to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in  conditions, or that the de gree of com pliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
In our opinion, B ancorpSouth, Inc. m aintained, in a ll material respects, effective internal control over 

financial reporting as of Decem ber 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 

 
We also have audited, in accord ance with the standards of the P ublic Company Accounting Oversight 

Board (United States), the consolidated  balance sheets of BancorpSouth, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Decem ber 31, 
2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, 
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-y ear period ended Decem ber 31, 2011, and our report dated 
February 27, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. 

 
 
/s/ KPMG LLP 
 
Memphis, Tennessee  
February 27, 2012 
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Report Of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm   
 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
BancorpSouth, Inc.: 

 We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of BancorpSouth, Inc. and subsidiaries as 
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated  statements of incom e, shareholders’ equity and 
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the y ears in the three-year period ended Decem ber 31, 2011. 
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the sta ndards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 

Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statem ents are free of m aterial misstatement. An audit includes exam ining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estim ates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statem ents referred to above present fairly , in all material 

respects, the financial position of BancorpSouth, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Decem ber 31, 2011 and 2010, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended Decem ber 31, 
2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

 
We also have audited, in accord ance with the standards of the P ublic Company Accounting Oversight 

Board (United States), BancorpSouth, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporti ng as of Decem ber 31, 2011, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by  the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway  Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 27, 2012 expressed an 
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 

 
  
/s/ KPMG LLP 
 
Memphis, Tennessee  
February 27, 2012 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
BancorpSouth, Inc. and Subsidiaries December 31,

2011 2010
Assets (In thousands)
Cash and due from banks 195,681$      99,916$         
Interest bearing deposits with other banks 303,663       172,170         
Held-to-maturity securities (fair value
  of $- and $1,632,691, respectively) -                   1,613,019      
Available-for-sale securities (amortized cost
   of $2,448,051 and $1,074,350, respectively) 2,513,518    1,096,062      
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under 
   agreement to resell -                   150,000         
Loans and leases 8,911,258    9,376,351      
    Less:  Unearned income 40,947         43,244           
              Allowance for credit losses 195,118       196,913         
    Net loans and leases 8,675,193    9,136,194      
Loans held for sale 83,458         93,697           
Premises and equipment, net 323,383       332,890         
Accrued interest receivable 51,266         61,025           
Goodwill 271,297       270,097         
Bank-owned life insurance 200,085       194,064         
Other real estate owned 173,805       133,412         
Other assets 204,502       262,464         

    Total Assets 12,995,851$ 13,615,010$  

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Deposits:
  Demand:
    Noninterest bearing 2,269,799$   2,060,145$    
    Interest bearing 4,706,825    4,931,518      
  Savings 991,702       863,034         
  Other time 2,986,863    3,635,324      
    Total deposits 10,955,189  11,490,021    
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under
  agreement to repurchase 373,933       440,593         
Short-term Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings and
  other short-term borrowings 1,500           2,727             
Accrued interest payable 8,644           14,336           
Junior subordinated debt securities 160,312       160,312         
Long-term Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings 33,500         110,000         
Other liabilities 199,861       174,777         
    Total Liabilities 11,732,939  12,392,766    
Shareholders' Equity 
Common stock, $2.50 par value
    Authorized - 500,000,000 shares; Issued - 83,483,796 and
      83,481,737 shares, respectively 208,709       208,704         
Capital surplus 227,567       224,976         
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,261)          (14,453)          
Retained earnings 828,897       803,017         
    Total Shareholders' Equity 1,262,912    1,222,244      
Commitments and contingencies
    Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 12,995,851$ 13,615,010$  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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Consolidated Statements of Income
BancorpSouth, Inc. and Subsidiaries Year Ended December 31,

2011  2010  2009
Interest Revenue (In thousands, except per share amounts)
Loans and leases 461,076$     496,782$     517,013$     
Deposits with other banks 701 355 131
Federal funds sold and securities purchased
   under agreement to resell 167 606 74
Held-to-maturity securities:
  Taxable 13,080 36,278 46,957
  Tax-exempt 5,638 10,409 8,852
Available-for-sale securities:
  Taxable 43,989 32,033 35,026
  Tax-exempt 10,983 3,275 3,396
Loans held for sale 2,219 3,024 3,965
    Total interest revenue 537,853 582,762 615,414
Interest Expense
Deposits:
  Interest bearing demand 22,646 35,187 40,047
  Savings 3,211 3,576 3,700
  Other time 61,709 83,999 101,308
Federal funds purchased and securities sold 
  under agreement to repurchase 458 841 1,629
FHLB borrowings 3,459 6,545 11,597
Junior subordinated debt 11,451 11,461 11,630
Other 6 11 604
    Total interest expense 102,940 141,620 170,515
    Net interest revenue 434,913 441,142 444,899
Provision for credit losses 130,081 204,016 117,324
    Net interest revenue, after provision for credit losses 304,832 237,126 327,575
Noninterest Revenue
Mortgage lending 17,069 29,745 32,225
Credit card, debit card and merchant fees 42,373 37,663 34,244
Service charges 66,670 70,690 72,864
Trust income 12,186 11,149 9,698
Securities gains (losses), net 12,127 2,569 (55)
Insurance commissions 86,918 82,172 80,937
Other 33,502 30,156 45,363
    Total noninterest revenue 270,845 264,144 275,276
Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee benefits 282,880 271,688 278,734
Occupancy, net of rental income 42,362 43,008 42,108
Equipment 21,707 22,598 23,508
Deposit insurance assessments 21,316 19,259 19,672
Prepayment penalty on FHLB borrowings 9,778 -                   -                   
Other 155,590 130,480 125,995
    Total noninterest expense 533,633 487,033 490,017
    Income before income taxes 42,044 14,237 112,834
Income tax expense (benefit) 4,475 (8,705) 30,105
    Net Income 37,569$      22,942$      82,729$      

Net Income Per Share: Basic 0.45$          0.28$           0.99$          
                                       Diluted 0.45$           0.27$           0.99$           

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income
BancorpSouth, Inc. and Subsidiaries Accumulated
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 Other

Common Stock Capital Comprehensive   Retained   
Shares Amount Surplus Income (Loss) Earnings  Total  

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Balance, December 31, 2008 83,105,100    207,763$     215,255$     (26,896)$           844,138$      1,240,260$     
  Net income -                     -                  -                  -                        82,729          82,729            
  Change in fair value of available-for-sale
    securities, net of tax effect of $4,389 -                     -                  -                  7,057                 -                    7,057              
  Change in pension funding status, net of
    tax effect of $7,080 -                     -                  -                  11,430               -                    11,430            
  Comprehensive income 101,216          
Exercise of stock options 341,089         853              5,467           -                        -                    6,320              
Income tax benefit from exercise 
  of stock options -                     -                  500              -                        -                    500                 
Recognition of stock compensation 4,107             10                1,325           -                        -                    1,335              
Cash dividends declared, $0.87 per share -                     -                  -                  -                        (73,335)         (73,335)           
Balance, December 31, 2009 83,450,296 208,626       222,547       (8,409)               853,532        1,276,296       
  Net income -                     -                  -                  -                        22,942          22,942            
  Change in fair value of available-for-sale
    securities, net of tax effect of ($3,219) -                     -                  -                  (5,165)               -                    (5,165)             
  Change in pension funding status, net of
    tax effect of ($544) -                     -                  -                  (879)                  -                    (879)                
  Comprehensive income 16,898            
Exercise of stock options 26,441           65                355              -                        -                    420                 
Income tax benefit from exercise 
  of stock options -                     -                  44                -                        -                    44                   
Recognition of stock compensation 5,000             13                2,030           -                        -                    2,043              
Cash dividends declared, $0.88 per share -                     -                  -                  -                        (73,457)         (73,457)           
Balance, December 31, 2010 83,481,737    208,704       224,976       (14,453)             803,017        1,222,244       
  Net income -                     -                  -                  -                        37,569          37,569            
  Change in fair value of available-for-sale
    securities, net of tax effect of $16,766 -                     -                  -                  26,989               -                    26,989            
  Change in pension funding status, net of
    tax effect of ($9,166) -                     -                  -                  (14,797)             -                    (14,797)           
  Comprehensive income 49,761            
Exercise of stock options 2,217             5                  15                -                        -                    20                   
Income tax expense from exercise 
  of stock options -                     -                  (50)              -                        -                    (50)                  
Recognition of stock compensation 5,000             13                2,670           -                        -                    2,683              
Repurchase of stock (5,158)            (13)              (44)              (57)                  
Cash dividends declared, $0.14 per share -                     -                  -                  -                        (11,689)         (11,689)           
Balance, December 31, 2011 83,483,796    208,709$     227,567$     (2,261)$             828,897$      1,262,912$     

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
BancorpSouth, Inc. and Subsidiaries       Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Operating Activities: (In thousands)
Net income 37,569$             22,942$             82,729$             
  Adjustment to reconcile net income to net
    cash provided by operating activities:
      Provision for credit losses 130,081             204,016             117,324             
      Depreciation and amortization 28,890               29,763               30,797               
      Deferred taxes (6,568)               (16,050)             (9,358)               
      Amortization of intangibles 3,324                 3,909                 4,957                 
      Amortization of debt securities premium and discount, net 19,176               5,111                 5,561                 
      Share-based compensation expense 2,683                 2,043                 1,335                 
      Security (gains) losses, net (12,127)             (2,569)               55                      
      Net deferred loan origination expense (8,357)               (8,948)               (9,813)               
      Excess tax expense (benefit) from exercise of stock options 50                      (44)                    (500)                  
      Decrease in interest receivable 9,759                 7,626                 10,532               
      Decrease in interest payable (5,692)               (5,252)               (1,167)               
      Realized gain on student loans sold -                        -                        (3,690)               
      Proceeds from student loans sold -                        -                        159,543             
      Origination of student loans held for sale -                        -                        (33,407)             
      Realized gain on mortgages sold (36,968)             (35,087)             (25,089)             
      Proceeds from mortgages sold 1,262,709          1,462,230          1,565,435          
      Origination of mortgages held for sale (1,212,548)        (1,440,206)        (1,542,029)        
      Increase in bank-owned life insurance (6,021)               (6,293)               (5,499)               
      Decrease (increase) in prepaid pension asset 25,056               1,596                 (51,322)             
      Decrease (increase) in prepaid deposit insurance assessments 20,088               17,299               (49,625)             
      Other, net 5,321                 (18,088)             33,256               
        Net cash provided by operating activities 256,425             223,998             280,025             
Investing Activities:
  Proceeds from calls and maturities of held-to-maturity securities 135,781             600,231             399,302             
  Proceeds from calls and maturities of available-for-sale securities 387,105             161,654             133,688             
  Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 274,807             136,769             -                        
  Purchases of held-to-maturity securities (151,105)           (1,180,677)        (99,282)             
  Purchases of available-for-sale securities (414,269)           (444,321)           (105,027)           
  Net decrease (increase) in short-term investments 150,000             (75,000)             -                        
  Net decrease (increase) in loans and leases 298,884             193,684             (160,968)           
  Purchases of premises and equipment (20,475)             (19,609)             (25,296)             
  Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 2,363                 486                    3,399                 
  Contingency earn-out payment (1,200)               -                        (1,130)               
  Other, net (51)                    (68)                    (65)                    
        Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 661,840             (626,851)           144,621             
Financing Activities:
  Net (decrease) increase in deposits (534,832)           812,319             965,830             
  Net decrease in short-term debt and other liabilities (69,399)             (302,799)           (1,420,072)        
  Advances of long-term debt -                        -                        30,000               
  Repayment of long-term debt (75,000)             (33)                    (41)                    
  Issuance of common stock 20                      420                    6,320                 
  Repurchase of common stock (57)                    -                        -                        
  Excess tax (benefit) expense from exercise of stock options (50)                    44                      500                    
  Payment of cash dividends (11,689)             (73,457)             (73,335)             
        Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (691,007)           436,494             (490,798)           
Increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 227,258             33,641               (66,152)             
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 272,086             238,445             304,597             
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 499,344$           272,086$           238,445$           

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
BancorpSouth, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 
 
(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The consolidated financial statem ents of B ancorpSouth, Inc. (the “C ompany”) have been prepared in 
conformity with U.S. GAAP.  In preparing the financial st atements, management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported am ounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheets and 
revenues and expenses for the periods re ported.  Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.  The 
Company’s subsidiaries are engaged in the business of banking, insurance, brokerage and other activities closely 
related to banking.  The C ompany and its subsidiaries are subject to the regulations of certain federal and state 
regulatory agencies and undergo periodic examinations by those regulatory agencies.  The following is a sum mary 
of the Company’s more significant accounting and reporting policies. 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
 The consolidated financial statem ents include the accounts of the C ompany and its wholly -owned 
subsidiaries, BancorpSouth Bank and its wholly owned subsidiaries (the “Bank”) and Gumtree Wholesale Insurance 
Brokers, Inc.  All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.   
 
Cash Flow Statements 
 Cash equivalents include cash a nd amounts due from banks, including interest bearing deposits with other 
banks.  The Company paid interest of $108.6 million, $146.9 million and $171.7 million and income taxes of $11.6 
million, $1.9 million and $8.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.         
 
Securities 

Securities are classified as either held-to-maturity, trading or available-for-sale.  Held-to-maturity securities 
are debt securities for which the Company has the ability and m anagement has the intent to hold to maturity.  They 
are reported at amortized cost.  Trading securities are debt and equity secur ities that are bought and held principally 
for the purpose of selling them  in the near term .  They ar e reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
included in earnings.  Available-for-sale securities are debt and equity securitie s not classified as either held-to-
maturity securities or trading securities.  They are reported at fair valu e, with unrealized gains and losses excluded 
from earnings and reported, net of tax, as a separate com ponent of shareholders’ equity  until realized.  Gains and 
losses on securities are determ ined on the identified certificate basis.  Am ortization of premium and accretion of 
discount are computed using the interest method.   

During the second quarter of 2011, the Com pany determined that it no longer had the intent to hold until 
maturity all securities that were previ ously classified as held-to-m aturity.  As a result of this determ ination, all 
securities were classified as available-for-sale and reco rded at fair value as of June 30, 2011.  The Com pany 
reclassified held-to-maturity securities with amortized cost of $1.6 billion and fair value of $1.7 billion to available-
for-sale resulting in an increase in other com prehensive income of $19.7 million during the second quarter of 2011.  
The Company did not have any securities classified as held-to-maturity at December 31, 2011. 

Securities are evaluated periodically to determ ine whether a decline in their value is other-than-tem porary.  
The term “other-than-temporary” is not intended to indicate a permanent decline in value.  Rather, it means that the 
prospects for near term recovery of value are not necessarily favorable, or that  there is a lack of evidence to support 
fair values equal to, or greater than, the carrying value of the investment.  Management reviews criteria such as the 
magnitude and duration of the decline, as well as the r easons for the decline, and whether the Company would be 
required to sell the securities before a full recovery of cost s in order to predict whether the loss in value is other-
than-temporary.  Once a decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary, the impairment is separated into 
(a) the amount of the impairment related to the credit loss and (b) the am ount of the impairment related to all other 
factors.  The value of the security is reduced by  the other-than-tem porary impairment with the am ount of the 
impairment related to credit loss recognized as a charge to earnings and the am ount of the impairment related to all 
other factors recognized in other comprehensive income. 

 
Securities Purchased and Sold Under Agreements to Resell or Repurchase 
 Securities purchased under agreements to resell are accounted for as short-term  investments and securities 
sold under agreements to repurchase are accounted for as collateralized financi ng transactions and are recorded at 
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the amounts at which the securities were acquired or sold plus accrued interest.  The securities pledged as collateral 
are generally U.S. government and federal agency securities. 
 
Loans and Leases 
 Loans and leases are recorded at the face amount of the notes reduced by  collections of principal. Loans 
and leases include net unam ortized deferred origination costs and fees. Net de ferred origination costs and fees are 
recognized as a com ponent of incom e using the effective in terest method.  In the even t of a loan pay -off, the 
remaining net deferred origination costs and fees are autom atically recognized into income and/or expense.  Where 
doubt exists as to the collectibility of th e loans and leases, interest incom e is recorded as paym ent is received.  
Interest is recorded monthly as earned on all other loans. 

Loans of $200,000 or m ore that becom e 60 or m ore days past due are identified for review by the 
Impairment Committee, which decides whether an im pairment exists and to what extent a specific allowance for 
loss should be made.  Loans that do not m eet these re quirements may also be identified by  management for 
impairment review.  Loans subject to such review are evaluated as to collateral dependency, current collateral value, 
guarantor or other financial support and likely disposition.  Each such loan is individually evaluated for impairment.  
The impairment evaluation of real estate loans generally focuses on the fair value of underly ing collateral obtained 
from appraisals, as the repaym ent of these loans m ay be dependent on the liquidation of the collateral.  In certain 
circumstances, other information such as comparable sales data is deem ed to be a more reliable indicator of fair 
value of the underlying collateral than the most recent appraisal.  In these in stances, such information is used in 
determining the impairment recorded for the loan.  As the repayment of commercial and industrial loans is generally 
dependent upon the cash flow of the borrower or guarantor support, the impairment evaluation generally focuses on 
the discounted future cash flows of the borrower or guarant or support, as well as the projected liquidation of any  
pledged collateral.  The Im pairment Committee reviews the results of each evaluation and approves the final 
impairment amounts, which are then incl uded in the analysis of the adequacy  of the allowance fo r credit losses in 
accordance with FASB ASC 310.  Loans identified for impairment are placed in non-accrual status. 

The Company’s policy is to obtain an appraisal at the tim e of loan orig ination for real estate collateral 
securing a loan of $250,000 or m ore, consistent with regul atory guidelines. The C ompany’s policy is to obtain an 
updated appraisal when certain events occur, such as the refinancing of the debt , the renewal of the debt or events 
that indicate potential impairment.  A new appraisal is ge nerally ordered for loans greater than $200,000 that have 
characteristics of potential impairment, such as delinquency or other loan-specific factors identified by management, 
when a current appraisal (dated within the prior 12 m onths) is not available or when a current appraisal uses 
assumptions that are not consistent with the expected di sposition of the loan collateral.  In order to m easure 
impairment properly at the tim e that a loan is deemed to be im paired, a staff appraiser may estimate the collateral 
fair value based upon earlier appraisals, sales contracts, approved foreclosur e bids, com parable sales, officer 
estimates or current market conditions until a new appraisal is received.  This estimate can be used to determine the 
extent of the impairment on the loan.  After a loan is deemed to be impaired, it is management’s policy to obtain an 
updated appraisal on at least an annual basis.  M anagement performs a review of the pertinent facts and 
circumstances of each im paired loan, such as changes in outstanding bala nces, information received from  loan 
officers, and receipt of re-appraisals, on a monthly basis.  As of each review  date, management considers whether 
additional impairment should be recorded based on recent ac tivity related to the loan-sp ecific collateral as well as 
other relevant comparable assets.  Any adjustment to reflect further impairments, either as a result of management’s 
periodic review or as a result of an updated appraisal, are made through recording additional loan loss provisions or 
charge-offs. 

At December 31, 2011, impaired loans totaled $234.9 million, which was net of cum ulative charge-offs of 
$52.2 million.  Additionally, the Com pany had specific re serves of $39.7 m illion included in the allowance for 
credit losses.  Im paired loans at Decem ber 31, 2011 were primarily from the Company’s residential construction, 
acquisition and developm ent and com mercial real estate portfolios.  Impaired loan charge-offs are determ ined 
necessary when management does not anticipate any future r ecovery of collateral values.  The loans were evaluated 
for impairment based on the fair value of the underlying collateral securing the loan.  As part of the im pairment 
review process, appraisals are used to determ ine the pr operty values.  The appraised values that are used are 
generally based on the disposition value of the property, which assumes Bank ownership of the property “as-is” and 
a 180-day marketing period.  If a current appraisal or one with an inspection da te within the past 12 m onths using 
the necessary assumptions is not available, a new third-party appraisal is ordered.  In cases where an im pairment 
exists and a current appraisal is not available at the tim e of review, a staff appraiser m ay determine an estimated 
value based upon earlier appraisals, the sa les contract, approved foreclosure bi ds, comparable sales, comparable 
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appraisals, officer estimates or current market conditions until a new appraisal is  received.  After a new appraisal is 
received, the value used in the review will be updated and any adjustments to reflect further impairments are made.  
Appraisals are obtained from state-certified appraisers based on certain assumptions which may include foreclosure 
status, bank ownership, other real es tate owned m arketing period of 180 da ys, costs to sell, construction or 
development status and the highest a nd best use of the property .  A sta ff appraiser m ay make adjustments to 
appraisals based on sales contracts, com parable sales and other pertinent inform ation if an appraisal does not 
incorporate the effect of these assumptions. 

When a guarantor is relied upon as a source of repa yment, the C ompany analyzes the strength of the 
guaranty.  This analy sis varies based on circumstances, but may include a re view of the guarantor’s personal and 
business financial statements and credit history, a review of the guarantor’s tax returns and the preparation of a cash 
flow analysis of the guarantor.  M anagement will con tinue to update its analysis  on individual guarantors as 
circumstances change.  Because of th e continued weakness in the econom y, subsequent analyses may result in the 
identification of the inability of some guarantors to perform under the agreed upon terms. 

The Bank's policy provides that loans and leases are generally placed in non-accrual status if, in 
management’s opinion, payment in full of principal or interest  is not expected or pay ment of principal or interest is 
more than 90 day s past due, unless the loan or lease is both well-secured and in the process of collection.  Once 
placed in non-accrual status, all accrued but unc ollected interest related to the current fiscal year is reversed against 
the appropriate interest and fee income on loans and leases account with any accrued but uncollected interest related 
to prior fiscal years reversed against the allowance for credit losses account.   

In the normal course of business, management grants concessions to borrowers, which would not otherwise 
be considered, where the borrowers are experiencing financial difficulty.  Loans identified as meeting the criteria set 
out in FASB  ASC 310 are identified as TDR s.  The concessions granted m ost frequently for TDR s involve 
reductions or delay s in required pay ments of principal and interest for a specified tim e, the rescheduling of 
payments in accordance with a bankruptcy  plan or the charge-off of a portion of the loan.  In m ost cases, the 
conditions of the credit also warrant nonaccrual status, even  after the restructure occurs.  As part of the credit 
approval process, the restructured lo ans are evaluated for adequate collateral protection in determ ining the 
appropriate accrual status at the tim e of restructure.  TDR loans may be returned to accrual status in years after the 
restructure if there has been at leas t a six-month sustained period of repa yment performance under the restructured 
loan terms by the borrower and the interest rate at the tim e of restructure was at or above market for a comparable 
loan.  During 2011, the m ost common concessions involved rescheduling payments of principal and interest over a 
longer amortization period, granting a pe riod of reduced principal pay ment or interest only payment for a lim ited 
time period, or the rescheduling of payments in accordance with a bankruptcy plan. 
 
Provision and Allowance for Credit Losses 

The provision for credit losses is the periodic cost of providing an allowance or reserve for estimated 
probable losses on loans and leases.  The B ank’s Board of Directors has appointed a loan loss reserve valuation 
committee (the “Loan Loss Com mittee”), which bases its estim ates of credit losses on th ree primary components:  
(1) estimates of inherent losses that m ay exist in various  segments of performing loans and leases; (2) specifically 
identified losses in individually analyzed credits; and (3) qualitative factors th at may impact the performance of the 
loan and lease portfolio.  Factors such as financia l condition of the borrower and guarantor, recent credit 
performance, delinquency, liquidity, cash flows, collateral ty pe and value are used to assess credit risk.  Expected 
loss estimates are influenced by the hi storical losses experienced by the Ba nk for loans and leases of com parable 
creditworthiness and structure.  Specifi c loss assessments are performed for loans and leases of significant size and 
delinquency based upon the collateral protection and expected future cash flows to determ ine the am ount of 
impairment under FASB ASC 310.  In addition, qualitativ e factors such as changes in econom ic and business 
conditions, concentrations of risk, loan and lease growth , acquisitions and changes in portfolio risk resulting from  
regulatory changes are considered in determining the adequacy of the level of the allowance for credit losses.  

Attention is paid to the quality of the loan and leas e portfolio through a form al loan review process. An 
independent loan review department of the Bank is responsible for revi ewing the credit rating and classification of 
individual credits and assessing trends in the portfolio, a dherence to internal credit policies and procedures and 
other factors that may affect the overa ll adequacy of the allowa nce for credit losses.  The Loan Loss Committee is 
responsible for ensuring that the allowance for credit losses provides coverage  of both known and inherent losses.  
The Loan Loss C ommittee meets at least quarterly  to de termine the amount of adjust ments to the allowance for 
credit losses.   The Loan Loss Committee is composed of senior management from the Bank’s loan administration 
and finance departments.  In 2010, the B ank established a real estate risk m anagement group and an Im pairment 
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Committee.  The real estate risk management group oversees compliance with regulations and U.S. GAAP related to 
lending activities where real estate is  the prim ary collateral.  The Impairment Committee is responsible for 
evaluating loans that have been sp ecifically identified through various ch annels, including exam ination of the 
Bank’s watch list, past due listings, findings of the internal  loan review departm ent, loan officer assessments and 
loans to borrowers or industries known to be experiencing problems.  For all lo ans identified, the responsible loan 
officer in conjunction with his credit adm inistrator is required to prepare an impairment analysis to be reviewed by 
the Impairment Committee.  The Im pairment Committee deems that a loan is impaired if it is probable that the 
Company will be unable to collect the contractual principal and interest on the loan.  The Impairment Committee 
also evaluates the circum stances surrounding the loan in or der to determ ine if the lo an officer used the m ost 
appropriate method for assessing the im pairment of the loan (i.e., present value of expected future cash flows, 
observable market price or fair value of the underlying collateral).  The Impairment Committee meets on a monthly 
basis. 

If concessions are granted to a borrower as a result of its  financial difficulties, the loan is classified as a 
TDR and analyzed for possible impairment as part of the cr edit approval process.  TDRs determined to be impaired 
are reserved in accordance with FASB ASC 310 in the same manner as impaired loans which are not TDRs.  TDRs 
not determined to have an impairment are reserved consistent with loans of similar risk, performance and structure.  
Should the borrower’s financial condition, collateral protection or performance deteriorate, warranting reassessment 
of the loan rating or impairment, additional reserves may be required. 

Any loan or portion thereof which is classified as “loss” by regulatory examiners or which is determ ined 
by management to be uncollectible, because of factors such as the borrower’s failure to pay interest or principal, the 
borrower’s financial condition, economic conditions in the borrower’s industr y or the inadequacy of underlying 
collateral, is charged off.  In add ition, bank regulatory agencies periodically review the Bank’s allowance for credit 
losses and may require an increase in the provision for cr edit losses or the recognition of  further loan charge-offs, 
based on judgments different than those of management.   
  
Loans Held for Sale 
 Mortgages originated and intended for sale in the s econdary market are carried at the lower of cost or 
estimated fair value in the aggregate.  Estimated fair value is determined on the basis of existing commitments or the 
current market value of sim ilar loans.  Loan sales are recognized when the transac tion closes, the proceeds are 
collected, ownership is transferred and, through the sales ag reement, continuing involvement consists of the right to 
service the loan for a fee for the life of the loan, if applicable.  Gains on the sale  of loans held for sale are recorded 
as part of mortgage lending revenue on the statement of income. 
 In the course of conducting the Com pany’s mortgage lending activities of originating m ortgage loans and 
selling those loans in the secondary market, various representations and warranties are made to the purchasers of the 
mortgage loans.  Every  loan closed by  the Bank’s mortgage center is run through a governm ent agency automated 
underwriting system.  Any exceptions noted during this process are remedied prior to sale.  These representations 
and warranties also apply to underwriting the real estate appraisal opinion of value for the collateral securing these 
loans.  Under the representations and warranties, failure  by the Com pany to comply with the underwriting and/or 
appraisal standards could result in the Company being required to repurchase the mortgage loan or to reimburse the 
investor for losses incurred (i.e., m ake whole requests) if such failure cannot be cured by  the Company within the 
specified period following discovery.  During 2011, seven m ortgage loans totaling approximately $803,000 were 
repurchased or otherwise settled as a result of underwr iting and appraisal standard exceptions or m ake whole 
requests.  Losses of approxim ately $181,000 were recognized related to these repurchased and make whole loans.  
During 2010, eleven m ortgage loans totaling $1.6 m illion were repurchased or otherwise settled as a result of 
underwriting and appraisal standard ex ceptions or make whole requests.  Losses of approximately $314,000 were 
recognized related to these repurchase and make whole loans. 

Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”) optional repur chase programs allow financial 
institutions to buy back individual deli nquent mortgage loans that m eet certain criteria from the securitized loan 
pool for which the institution provides servicing.  At the servicer’s option and without GNMA’s prior authorization, 
the servicer may repurchase such a delinquent loan for an  amount equal to 100% of the remaining principal balance 
of the loan.  Under FASB ASC 860, this buy-back option is considered a conditional option until the delinquency 
criteria are met, at which time the option becomes unconditional.  When the Company is deemed to have regained 
effective control over these loans under the unconditional buy -back option, the loans can no longer be reported as 
sold and must be brought back onto the balance sheet as loans held for sale, regardless of whether the Company 
intends to exercise the buy-back option.   These loans are reported as held for sale in accordance with U.S. GAAP 
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with the offsetting liability being reported as other liabilities.  At December 31, 2011, the amount of loans subject to 
buy back was $21.5 million.  These loans are excluded from the disclosure of NPLs in Note 5, Loans and Leases. 
 
Premises and Equipment 
 Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accu mulated depreciation and amortization.  Provisions for 
depreciation and amortization, computed using straight-line methods, are charged to expense over the shorter of the 
lease term or the estim ated useful lives of the assets.  Costs of major additions and im provements are capitalized.  
Expenditures for routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. 
 
Other Real Estate Owned 
 Real estate acquired through foreclosure, consisting of properties obtained through foreclosure proceedings 
or acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosure, is reported on an individual asset basis at the lower of cost or fair 
value, less estimated selling costs.  Fair value is determ ined on the basis of current appraisals, comparable sales and 
other estimates of value obtained principally from independent sources.  Any excess of the loan balance at the tim e 
of foreclosure over the fair value of the real estate held as collateral is char ged to the allowance for credit losses.  
Based upon management’s evaluation of the real estate acquired through foreclosure, additional expense m ay be 
recorded and included in other noninterest expense when necessary in an amount sufficient to reflect any declines in 
estimated fair value.  Gains and losses realized on the disposition of the properties are included in other noninterest 
expense.   
 
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
 Goodwill represents costs in excess of  the fair value of net assets acquired in connection with purchase 
business combinations.  Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a purchase business combination and determined 
to have an indefinite useful life are not am ortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance 
with the provisions of FASB ASC 350, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other.  Intangible assets with estim able useful 
lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estim ated residual values, and reviewed for 
impairment in accordance with FASB ASC 360, Property, Plant and Equipm ent.  Goodwill and other intangible 
assets are reviewed annually within the fourth quarter for possible im pairment, or sooner if a goodwill im pairment 
indicator is identified.  If im paired, the asset is written dow n to its estim ated fair value.  No im pairment charges 
have been recognized through Decem ber 31, 2011.  See Note 9, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, for 
additional information. 
 
Mortgage Servicing Rights 
 The Company recognizes as assets the rights to serv ice mortgage loans for others, known as M SRs.  The 
Company records MSRs at fair valu e on a recurring basis with subsequent rem easurement of M SRs based on 
change in fair value in accordance with  FASB ASC 860.  An estim ate of the fa ir value of the Com pany’s MSRs is 
determined utilizing assum ptions about factors such as m ortgage interest rates, disc ount rates, m ortgage loan 
prepayment speeds, market trends and industry dem and.  Because the valuation is dete rmined by using discounted 
cash flow models, the primary risk inherent in valuing the MSRs is the im pact of fluctuating interest rates on the 
estimated life of the servicing revenue stream .  The use of different estimates or assumptions could also produce 
different fair values.  The Company does not hedge the change in fair value of MSRs and, therefore, the Company is 
susceptible to significant fluctuations in  the fair value of its MSRs in changi ng interest rate environm ents.  MSRs 
are included in the other assets category of the consolidated balance sheet.  Ch anges in the fair value of MSRs are 
recorded as part of mortgage lending noninterest revenue on the consolidated statement of income. 
   
Pension and Postretirement Benefits Accounting 
 The Company accounts for its defined benefit pension plans using an actuarial model as required by FASB 
ASC 715.  This m odel uses an approach that allocates pension costs over the service period of em ployees in the 
plan.  The Company also accounts for its other postretirem ent benefits using the requirem ents of FASB ASC 715.  
FASB ASC 715 requires the C ompany to recognize net peri odic postretirement benefit costs as em ployees render 
the services necessary to earn their postretirement benefits.  The principle underlying the accounting as required by 
FASB ASC 715 is that em ployees render service ratably  over the service period and, therefore, the income 
statement effects of the Company’s defined benefit pension and postretirement benefit plans should follow the same 
pattern.  The C ompany accounts for the over-funded or unde r-funded status of its defined benefit and other 
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postretirement plans as an asset or lia bility in its consolidated balance sheet s and recognizes changes in that funded 
status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income, as required by FASB ASC 715.      

The discount rate is the rate used to determine the present value of the Company’s future benefit 
obligations for its pension and other pos tretirement benefit plans.  The C ompany determines the discount rate to be 
used to discount plan liabilities at the m easurement date with the assistance of its actuary using the actuary’s 
proprietary model.  The Company developed a level equivalent yield using its actuary’s  model as of December 31, 
2011 model and the expected cash flows from the BancorpSouth, Inc. R etirement Plan (the “Basic Plan”), the 
BancorpSouth, Inc. Restoration Plan (the “Restoration Plan”) and the B ancorpSouth, Inc. Supplemental Executive 
Retirement Plan (the “Supplem ental Plan”).  B ased on this  analysis, the C ompany established its discount rate 
assumptions for determination of the projected benefit obligation at 4.80%  for the B asic Plan, 4.45%  for the 
Restoration Plan and 3.85% for the Supplemental Plan based on a December 31, 2011 measurement date.  

 
Stock-Based Compensation 
 At December 31, 2011, the Company had three stock-based employee compensation plans.  The Company 
recognizes compensation costs related to these stock-based employee compensation plans in accordance with FASB 
ASC 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation (“FASB ASC 718”).  The Company recognized compensation costs 
for unvested awards of $2.1 m illion, $2.2 million and $1.7 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  See Note 
16, Stock Incentive and Stock Option Plans, for further disclosures regarding stock-based compensation. 
 
Derivative Instruments 
 The derivative instruments held by the Company include commitments to fund fixed-rate mortgage loans to 
customers and forward com mitments to sell individual, fi xed-rate mortgage loans.  The C ompany’s objective in 
obtaining the forward commitments is to mitigate the interest rate risk associ ated with the commitments to fund the 
fixed-rate mortgage loans.  Both the commitments to fund fixed-rate mortgage loans and the forward com mitments 
to sell individual fixed-rate m ortgage loans are reported at fair value, with adjustments being recorded in current 
period earnings, and are not accounted for as hedges. 
 The Company also enters into deri vative financial instrum ents to m eet the financing, interest rate and 
equity risk management needs of its custom ers.  Upon ente ring into these instruments to meet customer needs, the 
Company enters into offsetting positions to minimize interest rate and equity risk to the Company.  These derivative 
financial instruments are reported at fair value with any resulting gain or loss recorded in current period earnings.  
These instruments and their offsetting positions are recorded in other assets and other liabilities on the consolidated 
balance sheets.  As of December 31, 2011, the notional amount of customer related derivative financial instruments 
was $493.3 m illion with an average m aturity of 62.3 months, an average interest receive rate of 2.6% and an 
average interest pay rate of 5.9%. 
 
Income Taxes 
 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences 
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and 
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates 
expected to apply to taxable incom e in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered 
or settled.  The effect of a change in tax rates on deferre d tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the 
period that includes the enactment date.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are in cluded in the other assets and other 
liabilities category of the consolidated balance sheet as applicable.      
 
Insurance Commissions 
 Commission income is recorded as  of the effective date of insurance coverage or the billing date, 
whichever is later.  Contingent commissions and com missions on premiums billed and collected directly by 
insurance companies are recorded as revenue when received, which is our firs t notification of amounts earned.  The 
income effects of subsequent premium and fee adjustments are recorded when the adjustments become known. 
 
Recent Pronouncements  

On January 1, 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regarding business combinations.  
This new accounting standard expands the definition of transactions a nd events that qualify  as business 
combinations; requires that the acquired assets and liabilities, including contingencies and loans, be recorded at fair 
value determined on the acquisition date; changes the recognition timing for restructuring costs; and requires the 
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expensing of acquisition costs as incurred.  The adoption of this new accounting standard regarding business 
combinations has had no material impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company. 

On January 1, 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regarding non-controlling interests 
in consolidated financial statem ents.  This new accounti ng standard requires that acqui red assets and liabilities be 
measured at full fair value without consideration to ow nership percentage.  Any non- controlling interests in an 
acquiree should be presented as a separate component of equity rather than on a mezzanine level.  Additionally, this 
new accounting standard provides that net incom e or loss should be reported in the consolidated income statement 
at its consolidated amount, with disclosure on the face of  the consolidated incom e statement of the am ount of 
consolidated net income which is attributable to the parent and non-controlli ng interest, respectively.  The adoption 
of this new accounting standard regard ing non-controlling interests in consolid ated financial statements has had no 
impact on the financial position or results of operations  of the Company.  The C ompany does not have any  non-
controlling interests as it wholly owns all of its subsidiaries. 

On January 1, 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regard ing disclosures about 
derivative instruments and hedging activities.  This new accounting standard changes th e disclosure requirements 
for derivative instruments and hedging activities by requiring entities to provide enhanced disclosures about (a) how 
and why an entity uses derivative instrum ents, (b) how  derivative instrum ents and related hedged item s are 
accounted for under an existing standard regarding derivative instruments and its related interpretations, and (c) 
how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and 
cash flows.  This new accounting standard regarding disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging activities 
has impacted disclosures only and has not had an im pact on the financial position or results of operations of the 
Company.  All required disclosures are contained in these Notes. 

In April 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regarding the determination of fair value 
when the volume and level of activity for the asset or  liability have significantly  decreased and identifying 
transactions that are not orderly .  This new accounting standard provides guidance on how to determ ine the fair 
value of assets and liabilities in an environment where the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have 
significantly decreased and re-emphasizes that the objective of a fair value measurement remains an exit price.  The 
adoption of this new accounting standard did not have an impact on the financial position or results of operations of 
the Company. 

In April 2009, the Company adopted a new accounting st andard regarding recognition and presentation of 
other-than-temporary impairment which amends existing guidance in U.S. GAAP for debt securities to m ake the 
guidance more operational and to im prove the presentation and disclosure of other-tha n-temporary impairment on 
debt and equity securities in the financial statem ents.  The new accounting standa rd did not am end existing 
recognition and measurement guidance related to other-than-temporary impairments of equity securities.  The new 
accounting standard specifies that a debt  security is considered other-than-te mporarily impaired when an entity’s 
management intends to sell the security or that it is m ore-likely-than not that the entity will be required to sell the 
security prior to recovery of its cost basis.  The guidance requires that for im paired held-to-maturity and available-
for-sale debt securities that an entity does not intend to sell and will not be required to se ll prior to recovery but for 
which credit losses exist, the other-than-temporary impairment should be se parated between the total im pairment 
related to credit losses, which should be recognized in current earnings, and the amount of impairment related to all 
other factors, which should be recogni zed in other comprehensive income.  There was no initial effect of adoption 
of this new accounting standard regard ing recognition and presentation of ot her-than-temporary impairment on the 
financial position or results of operations of the Com pany because all previously taken im pairment was deemed to 
be credit related.     

Effective June 30, 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regarding subsequent events.  
This new accounting standard establishe s general standards of accounting for and disclosures of events that occur 
after the balance sheet date but before financial statem ents are issued or are available to  be issued.  The adoption of 
this new accounting standard regarding subsequent events has had no m aterial impact on the financial position or 
results of operations of the Company.   

In December 2009, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard related to the disclosures of plan 
assets of a defined benefit pension or other postretirement plan which pr ovides guidance on additional disclosures 
about plan assets.  The adoption of this new accounting st andard has impacted disclosures only and has not had an 
impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.   

In January 2010, the Com pany adopted a new accounti ng standard regarding accounting for transfers of 
financial assets.  This new accounting standard elim inates the concept of a “qualif ying special-purpose entity,” 
changes the requirements for derecognizing financial assets, and requires additi onal disclosures in order to enhance 
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information reported to users of financial statements by providing greater tran sparency about transfers of financial 
assets, including securitization transactions, and an entity ’s continuing involvem ent in and exposure to the risks 
related to transferred financial assets.  The adoption of this new accoun ting standard rega rding accounting for 
transfers of financial assets has had no material impact on the financial position or results of operations of the 
Company. 

In January 2010, the Com pany adopted a new accounting standard regarding cons olidation of variable 
interest entities.  This new accounting standard am ends existing accounting literature re garding consolidation of 
variable interest entities to im prove financial reporting by enterprises involved with variable interest entities and to 
provide more relevant and reliable in formation to users of financial stat ements.  The adoption of this new 
accounting standard regarding consolidation of variable interest entities has ha d no material impact on the financial 
position or results of operations of the Company. 

In January 2010, the FASB issued an accounting standards update (“ASU”) regarding fair value 
measurements and disclosures.  This ASU revises two di sclosure requirements concerning fair value measurements 
and clarifies two others.  This ASU requires expanded disclosures related to significant transfers in and out of Level 
1 and Level 2 fair value m easurement and the reasons for th e transfers, as well as the clarifications of existing 
disclosures, and was effective for interim or annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009.  The new 
disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances and settlem ents in the roll forward of activ ity in Level 3 fair value 
measurements are effective for interim  or annual repor ting periods beginning after December 15, 2010.  This ASU 
impacts disclosures only  and is included in Note 14 below.   This ASU did not have an im pact on the financial 
position or results of operations of the Company. 

In July 2010, the FASB issued a new accounting standa rd regarding disclosures about the credit quality of 
financing receivables and the allowance for credit losses.  This new accounting standard am ends existing 
accounting literature regarding disclosure s about the credit quality of financing receivables and the allowance for 
credit losses to provide additional inform ation to assist financial statement users in assessing an entity’s credit risk 
exposures and evaluating the adequacy of its allowance for credit losses.  This new accounting standard is effective 
for fiscal years and interim reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2010.  This new accounting standard 
regarding disclosures about the credit quality of financing receivables and th e allowance for credit losses im pacts 
disclosures only and is included in No tes 5 and 6 below.  The new accounting standard did not have an impact on 
the financial position or results of operations of the Company. 

In April 2011, the FASB  issued an ASU regarding a creditor’s determination of whether a restructuring 
should be considered a TDR.  This ASU provides additiona l guidance related to determining whether a creditor has 
granted a concession, including factors and exam ples for creditors to consider in evalua ting whether a restructuring 
results in a delay in paym ent that is  insignificant.  The ASU also prohib its creditors from  using the borrower’s 
effective rate test to evaluate whether a concession has b een granted to the borrower and adds factors for creditors 
to use in determining whether a borrower is experienci ng financial difficulties.  The ASU ends the deferral of 
activity-based disclosures about TDRs that are part of the new credit-quality di sclosure requirements.  The ASU is 
effective for interim and annual periods  beginning on or after June 15, 2011.  This ASU did not have a m aterial 
impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company. 

In April 2011, the FASB  issued an ASU regarding r econsideration of effective control for repurchase 
agreements.  This ASU removes from the assessment of effective control (1) the criterion requiring the transferor to 
have the ability to repurchase or redeem  the financial assets on substantially the agreed terms, even in the event of 
default by the transferee, and (2) the collateral maintenance implementation guidance related to that criterion.  Other 
criteria applicable to the assessment of effective control are not changed by th is ASU.  The ASU is effective for the 
first interim or annual period beginni ng on or after Decem ber 15, 2011 and s hould be applied prospectively to 
transactions or modifications of existing transactions that occur on or after th e effective date.  Early  adoption is not 
permitted.  The new ASU is not expected to have a m aterial impact on the financial position and results of 
operations of the Company. 
 In May 2011, the FASB issued an ASU regarding amendments to achieve common fair value measurement 
and disclosure requirements in U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).  This ASU 
provides amendments to ensure that fair value has th e same meaning in U.S. GAAP and IFRS and that their 
respective fair value measurements and disclosure requirements are the same.  The ASU is effective during interim  
and annual periods beginning after Decem ber 15, 2011 and should be applied prospectively.  Early adoption is not 
permitted.  The Com pany is in the process of assessing the impact of this new ASU on the financial position and 
results of operations of the Company.     
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 In June 2011, the FASB  issued an ASU regarding th e presentation of com prehensive income.  This ASU 
amends existing guidance and elim inates the option to pr esent the components of other com prehensive income as 
part of the statem ent of changes in shareholder’s equ ity.  This ASU requires that comprehensive income be 
presented in either a single continuous  statement or in two separate but consecutive statem ents.  This ASU is 
effective for interim and annual peri ods beginning on or after December 15, 2011.  The adoption of this ASU is 
expected to change the manner in which the Company’s other comprehensive income is disclosed and will have no 
impact on the financial position and results of operations of the Company.  
 In September 2011, the FASB issued an ASU regarding goodwill impairment.  This ASU gives companies 
the option to perform a qualitative assessment of whether it is  more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value 
is less than its carrying value as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform  the two-step goodwill 
impairment test. This ASU is effective for interim  and annual periods beginning afte r December 15, 2011.  Early 
adoption is permitted.  The Company is currently assessing the impact of the adoption of this ASU on the financial 
position and results of operations of the Company. 

 
(2)  BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 

The Company completed no material acquisition during 2009, 2010 or 2011. 
 
(3) HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES 

During the second quarter of 2011, the Com pany determined that it no longer had the intent to hold until 
maturity all securities that were previ ously classified as held-to-m aturity.  As a result of this determ ination, all 
securities were classified as available-for-sale and reco rded at fair value as of June 30, 2011.  The Com pany 
reclassified held-to-maturity securities with amortized cost of $1.6 billion and fair value of $1.7 billion to available-
for-sale resulting in an increase in other com prehensive income of $19.7 million during the second quarter of 2011.  
The Company did not have any securities classified as held-to-maturity at December 31, 2011.   Amortized cost and 
estimated fair values of held-to-maturity securities as of December 31, 2010 follows: 
 

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
(In thousands)

U.S. Government agencies 1,246,649$ 27,082$      4,320$        1,269,411$ 
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 366,370 4,286 7,376 363,280
    Total 1,613,019$ 31,368$      11,696$      1,632,691$ 

 
 Gross gains of approxim ately $37,000 and no gross losses were recognized on held-to-m aturity securities 
in 2011 prior to the reclassification of held-to-maturity securities to availabl e-for-sale securities.  Gross gains of 
approximately $155,000 and no gross losses were recogni zed in 2010 and gross gains of approximately $113,000 
and gross losses of approxim ately $2,000 were recognized in 2009 on held-to-m aturity securities.  These gains and 
losses were a result of held-to-maturity securities being called prior to maturity.     
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(4) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES 
 A comparison of amortized cost and estim ated fair values of available-for-sale securities as of Decem ber 
31, 2011 and 2010 follows: 
 

2011
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(In thousands)
U.S. Government agencies 1,471,920$ 29,347$     24$            1,501,243$ 
Government agency issued residential
  mortgage-backed securities 394,894      9,786         70              404,610
Government agency issued commercial 
  mortgage-backed securities 31,161        3,438         -                 34,599
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 541,138 22,705 323            563,520
Other 8,938 608 -                 9,546
    Total 2,448,051$ 65,884$    417$          2,513,518$

 
2010

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
(In thousands)

U.S. Government agencies 416,005$    17,153$     -$               433,158$    
Government agency issued residential
  mortgage-backed securities 498,874      5,954         1,599         503,229
Government agency issued commercial 
  mortgage-backed securities 29,582        676            264            29,994
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 110,946 965 1,746 110,165
Other 18,943 573 -                 19,516
    Total 1,074,350$ 25,321$    3,609$       1,096,062$

 
 At December 31, 2011, the Com pany’s available-for-sale securities included FHLB stock with a carrying 
value of $8.7 million compared to a required investment of $8.3 million.  FHLB stock is carried at amortized cost in 
the financial statements. 
 Gross gains of $12.4 m illion and gross losses of approximately $327,000 were recognized in 2011, gross 
gains of $4.5 million and gross losses of $2.1 m illion were recognized in 2010 and gros s gains of approxim ately 
$84,000 and gross losses of approxim ately $250,000 were recognized in 2009 on av ailable-for-sale securities.  The 
gross losses of $2.1 m illion in 2010 and approxim ately $250,000 in 2009 were the result of the other-than-
temporary impairment charge relate d to credit losses on the C ompany’s investment in pooled trust preferred 
securities.  The fair value of these securities was negatively im pacted by m arket conditions.  Subsequent to the 
other-than-temporary charges in 2010, the securities had no rem aining book value.  No other-than-tem porary 
impairment was recorded in 2011. 
 Available-for-sale securities with a carrying value of $1.6 billion at Decem ber 31, 2011 were pledged to 
secure public and trust funds on deposit and for other purposes.  Included in available-for-sale securities at 
December 31, 2011, were securities with a carrying value of $276.8 million issued by a political subdivision within 
the State of Mississippi and securities with a carryi ng value of $143.1 m illion issued by a political subdivision 
within the State of Arkansas. 
 The amortized cost and estim ated fair value of available-for-sale securities at Decem ber 31, 2011 by 
contractual maturity are shown below.  Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers 
may have the right to call or prepay ob ligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.  Equity securities are 
considered as maturing after ten years. 
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Estimated
Amortized Fair

Cost Value

Maturing in one year or less 295,485$     300,106$     3.67 %
Maturing after one year through five years 1,582,442 1,615,207 2.01
Maturing after five years through ten years 113,105 117,764 4.37
Maturing after ten years 457,019 480,441 5.70
    Total 2,448,051$ 2,513,518$ 

Weighted
Average

Yield
(Dollars in thousands)

 
 
A summary of tem porarily impaired available-for-sale investments with continuous unrealized loss 

positions at December 31, 2011 and 2010 follows: 
 

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized 
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

U.S. Government agencies 34,850$    24$            -$                 -$               34,850$     24$            
Government agency issued residential
  mortgage-backed securities -                -                 3,751           70              3,751 70
Government agency issued commercial 
  mortgage-backed securities -                -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 
Obligations of states and
  political subdivisions 20,820 144 9,214 179 30,034 323
Other -                -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 
    Total 55,670$    168$         12,965$      249$         68,635$     417$         

2011
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

(In thousands)

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized 
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

U.S. Government agencies -$              -$               -$                 -$               -$               -$               
Government agency issued residential
  mortgage-backed securities 184,820    1,599         -                   -                 184,820 1,599
Government agency issued commercial 
  mortgage-backed securities 7,843        177            3,996           87              11,839       264            
Obligations of states and
  political subdivisions 36,884 1,601 841 145 37,725 1,746
Other -                -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 
    Total 229,547$  3,377$      4,837$        232$         234,384$   3,609$      

(In thousands)

2010
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

  
Based upon a review of the credit quality of these securities, and considering that the issuers were in 

compliance with the terms of the securities, management had no intent to sell these securities, and it was more likely 
than not that the Com pany would not be required to sell the securities prior to recovery of costs.  Therefore, the 
impairments related to these securities were determined to be temporary.  No other-than-temporary impairment was 
recorded in 2011. 

 
(5) LOANS AND LEASES 
 The Company’s loan and lease portf olio is disaggregated into the following segments:  commercial and 
industrial; real estate; credit card; and all other loans and l eases.  The real estate segm ent is further disaggregated 
into the following classes:  consum er mortgage; home equity; agricultural; com mercial and industrial-owner 
occupied; construction, acquisition and development and commercial.  A summary of gross loans and leases by  
segment and class at December 31, 2011 and 2010 follows: 
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2011 2010
(In thousands)

Commercial and industrial 1,484,967$  1,505,471$  
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 1,945,190 1,951,563
  Home equity 514,362 543,272
  Agricultural 239,487 252,292
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 1,301,575 1,331,473
  Construction, acquisition and development 908,362 1,174,743
  Commercial 1,754,022 1,816,951
Credit Cards 106,281 106,345
All other 657,012 694,241
    Total 8,911,258$ 9,376,351$  

 
 The following table shows the Com pany’s loans and l eases, net of unearned income, as of Decem ber 31, 
2011 by geographical location: 

Alabama Greater
and Florida Memphis Texas and
Panhandle Arkansas* Mississippi* Missouri Area Tennessee* Louisiana Other Total

Commercial and industrial 63,583$      188,329$     312,364$     51,291$    23,745$     80,094$      258,225$    496,097$       1,473,728$   
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 111,455     272,857       756,389       56,808      86,576       162,604      427,955      70,546           1,945,190     
   Home equity 58,991       42,250         174,632       26,930      70,034       76,361        63,298        1,866             514,362        
   Agricultural 6,354         71,592         71,787         4,047        9,601         13,163        57,836        5,107             239,487        
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 115,133     167,935       455,700       67,055      99,394       98,860        248,107      49,391           1,301,575     
   Construction, acquisition and development 103,594     80,121         259,551       51,432      98,948       98,865        196,490      19,361           908,362        
   Commercial 199,844     346,534       352,754       223,849    115,783     101,068      359,989      54,201           1,754,022     
Credit cards** -                 -                  -                  -                -                 -                  -                  106,281         106,281        
All other 29,846       90,905         201,067       4,443        54,846       47,412        89,417        109,368         627,304        
     Total 688,800$    1,260,523$ 2,584,244$ 485,855$ 558,927$  678,427$   1,701,317$ 912,218$      8,870,311$  

*  Excludes the Greater Memphis Area
** Credit card receivables are spread across all geographic regions but are not viewed by the Company's management as part of the geographic breakdown.

(In thousands)

 
 The Company’s loan concentrations which exceed 10% of total loans are reflected in the preceding tables.  
A substantial portion of construction, ac quisition and development loans are secured by real estate in m arkets in 
which the Company is located.  Prior to M arch 2010, some of these loans were structured with interest reserves to 
fund interest costs during the constr uction and developm ent period.  The Company’s general loan policy was 
changed in March 2010 to prohibit the use of interest reserv es on loans made after that time.  Additionally, certain 
of these loans are structured  with interest-only term s.  A portion of the consumer mortgage and commercial real 
estate portfolios originated through th e permanent financing of construction,  acquisition and development loans.  
The prolonged economic downturn has negatively im pacted many borrowers’ and guara ntors’ ability to m ake 
payments under the terms of the loans as their liquidity has been depleted.  Accordingl y, the ultimate collectability 
of a substantial portion of these loans and the recovery  of a substantial portion of the carrying amount of other real 
estate owned are susceptible to change s in real estate values in these areas.  C ontinued economic distress could 
negatively impact additional borrowers’ and guarantors’ ability to repay their debt which will m ake more of the 
Company’s loans collateral dependent. 
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 The following table provides details regarding the agi ng of the Company’s loan and lease portfolio, net of 
unearned income, at December 31, 2011: 
 

90+ Days
30-59 Days 60-89 Days 90+ Days Total Total Past Due still

Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Current Outstanding Accruing

Commercial and industrial 5,571$      4,209$      4,193$      13,973$       1,459,755$ 1,473,728$      12$               
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 15,740      6,485        14,569      36,794         1,908,396   1,945,190       2,974            
   Home equity 1,837        265           594           2,696           511,666      514,362          -                   
   Agricultural 666           54             719           1,439           238,048      239,487          -                   
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 2,199        844           12,977      16,020         1,285,555   1,301,575       -                   
   Construction, acquisition and development 4,826        4,955        33,584      43,365         864,997      908,362          -                   
   Commercial 3,778        2,702        9,397        15,877         1,738,145   1,754,022       -                   
Credit cards 595           303           697           1,595           104,686      106,281          299               
All other 2,124        390           1,579        4,093           623,211      627,304          149               
     Total 37,336$    20,207$   78,309$   135,852$    8,734,459$ 8,870,311$      3,434$         

(In thousands)

2011

90+ Days
30-59 Days 60-89 Days 90+ Days Total Total Past Due still

Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Current Outstanding Accruing

Commercial and industrial 13,037$    848$         12,000$    25,885$       1,465,298$ 1,491,183$      675$             
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 16,937      4,481        20,640      42,058         1,909,505   1,951,563       6,521            
   Home equity 1,258        800           755           2,813           540,459      543,272          173               
   Agricultural 1,140        3,450        3,527        8,117           244,175      252,292          123               
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 9,260        1,290        7,323        17,873         1,313,600   1,331,473       20                 
   Construction, acquisition and development 22,436      9,837        94,264      126,537       1,048,206   1,174,743       197               
   Commercial 4,409        4,712        10,507      19,628         1,797,323   1,816,951       -                   
Credit cards 793           373           780           1,946           104,399      106,345          330               
All other 2,058        1,117        847           4,022           661,263      665,285          461               
     Total 71,328$    26,908$   150,643$ 248,879$    9,084,228$ 9,333,107$      8,500$         

2010

(In thousands)

 
The Company utilizes an in ternal loan classification system  to grade loans according to certain credit 

quality indicators.  These credit quality indicators incl ude, but are not lim ited to, recent credit perform ance, 
delinquency, liquidity, cash flows, debt  coverage ratios, collateral ty pe and loan-to-value ratio.  The C ompany’s 
internal loan classification system  is compatible with classifications used by the FDIC, as well as other regulatory  
agencies.  Loans may be classified as follows: 
 

Pass:  Loans which are performing as agreed with few or no signs of weakness.  These loan show sufficient 
cash flow, capital and collateral to repay the loan as  agreed.  Borrowers for these loans include well 
capitalized public corporations. 
 
Special Mention:  Loans where potential weaknesses have developed which coul d cause a m ore serious 
problem if not corrected. 
 
Substandard:  Loans where well-defined weaknesses exist that require corrective action to prevent further 
deterioration.  
 
Doubtful:  Loans having all the characteristics of Subs tandard and which have de teriorated to a point 
where collection and liquidation in full is highly questionable. 
 
Loss:  Loans that are considered uncollectible or with limited possible recovery. 
 
Impaired:  Loans for which it is probable that th e Company will be unable to collect all am ounts due 
according to the contractual term s of the loan agreem ent and for which a specific impairment reserve has 
been considered. 
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The following table provides details of the Company’s loan and lease portfolio, net of unearned income, by 
segment, class and internally assigned grade at December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Loss Impaired Total

Commercial and industrial 1,415,731$  4,947$      43,549$        1,263$      405$         7,833$       1,473,728$    
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 1,742,593    17,914      148,267        4,434        189           31,793       1,945,190      
  Home equity 492,235       2,775        17,050          1,134        493           675            514,362         
  Agricultural 213,280       3,795        19,296          20             -                3,096         239,487         
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 1,167,220    18,280      90,778          496           -                24,801       1,301,575      
  Construction, acquisition and development 619,497       23,429      136,412        845           -                128,179     908,362         
  Commercial 1,501,196    37,409      179,295        -                -                36,122       1,754,022      
Credit Cards 105,867       41             175               188           10             -                 106,281         
All other 587,970       16,104      20,263          470           73             2,424         627,304         
    Total 7,845,589$  124,694$ 655,085$     8,850$     1,170$      234,923$  8,870,311$   

(In thousands)

December 31, 2011

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Loss Impaired Total

Commercial and industrial 1,429,443$  5,764$      51,562$        1,577$      701$         2,136$       1,491,183$    
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 1,813,740    1,867        104,504        3,106        123           28,223       1,951,563      
  Home equity 527,047       1,231        13,169          613           361           851            543,272         
  Agricultural 226,054       309           21,614          -                20             4,295         252,292         
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 1,250,265    1,422        62,783          900           30             16,073       1,331,473      
  Construction, acquisition and development 845,725       1,882        138,929        2,243        1,046        184,918     1,174,743      
  Commercial 1,688,228    5,565        86,358          98             495           36,207       1,816,951      
Credit Cards 106,181       11             146               7               -                -                 106,345         
All other 641,292       35             22,735          477           44             702            665,285         
    Total 8,527,975$  18,086$   501,800$     9,021$     2,820$      273,405$  9,333,107$   

(In thousands)

December 31, 2010
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 The following tables provide details regarding impaired loans and leases, net of unearned income, by 
segment and class at December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

Unpaid
Recorded Principal Related

Investment Balance of Allowance Average Interest
in Impaired Impaired for Credit Recorded Income

Loans Loans Losses Investment Recognized

With no related allowance:
Commercial and industrial 4,874$             6,854$             -$                   3,879$           78$                
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 16,883             19,538             -                     19,628           397                
  Home equity 627                  771                  -                     541                1                    
  Agricultural 1,549               2,676               -                     2,502             20                  
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 6,973               9,191               -                     11,598           185                
  Construction, acquisition and development 69,843             89,782             -                     107,596         941                
  Commercial 15,184             24,198             -                     20,702           311                
All other 1,284               1,668               -                     1,169             67                  
    Total 117,217$        154,678$        -$                  167,615$       2,000$          

With an allowance:
Commercial and industrial 2,959$             3,301$             4,071$           3,558$           49$                
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 14,910             16,224             4,386 14,960           323                
  Home equity 48                    276                  48 504                3                    
  Agricultural 1,547               1,547               380 3,164             18                  
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 17,828             21,085             3,601 10,329           146                
  Construction, acquisition and development 58,336             67,426             21,581 80,957           1,651             
  Commercial 20,938             21,422             5,324 27,210           851                
All other 1,140               1,140               317                1,307             8                    
    Total 117,706$        132,421$        39,708$        141,989$       3,049$          

Total:
Commercial and industrial 7,833$             10,155$           4,071$           7,437$           127$              
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 31,793             35,762             4,386             34,588           720                
  Home equity 675                  1,047               48                  1,045             4                    
  Agricultural 3,096               4,223               380                5,666             38                  
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 24,801             30,276             3,601             21,927           331                
  Construction, acquisition and development 128,179           157,208           21,581           188,553         2,592             
  Commercial 36,122             45,620             5,324             47,912           1,162             
All other 2,424               2,808               317                2,476             75                  
    Total 234,923$        287,099$        39,708$        309,604$       5,049$          

December 31, 2011

(In thousands)
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Unpaid
Recorded Principal Related

Investment in Balance of Allowance for
Impaired Loans Impaired Loans Credit Losses

With no related allowance:
Commercial and industrial 1,457$             2,600$             -$                   
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 11,228             14,273 -                     
  Home equity 290                  629 -                     
  Agricultural 1,439               1,981 -                     
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 10,920             12,371 -                     
  Construction, acquisition and development 80,204             120,938 -                     
  Commercial 15,795             20,478 -                     
All other 702                  931 -                     
    Total 122,035$        174,201$        -$                   

With an allowance:
Commercial and industrial 679$                977$                125$              
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 16,995             16,644             4,226
  Home equity 561                  561                  41
  Agricultural 2,856               3,132               544
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 5,153               5,298               1,361
  Construction, acquisition and development 104,714           123,538           29,195
  Commercial 20,412             21,026             5,227
All other -                       -                       -                     
    Total 151,370$        171,176$        40,719$         

Total:
Commercial and industrial 2,136$             3,577$             125$              
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 28,223             30,917             4,226             
  Home equity 851                  1,190               41                  
  Agricultural 4,295               5,113               544                
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 16,073             17,669             1,361             
  Construction, acquisition and development 184,918           244,476           29,195           
  Commercial 36,207             41,504             5,227             
All other 702                  931                  -                     
    Total 273,405$        345,377$        40,719$         

December 31, 2010

(In thousands)

 
  
 The following tables provide details regarding impaired real estate construction, acquisition and 
development loans and leases, net of unearned income, by collateral type at Decem ber 31, 2011 and 
2010:
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Unpaid
Recorded Principal Related

Investment Balance of Allowance Average Interest
in Impaired Impaired for Credit Recorded Income

Loans Loans Losses Investment Recognized

With no related allowance:
Multi-family construction 1,067$             2,259$             -$                   5,474$            18$               
One-to-four family construction 7,931               9,313               -                     9,269              94                 
Recreation and all other loans 372                  545                  -                     491                 9                   
Commercial construction 633                  917                  -                     9,663              83                 
Commercial acquisition and development 17,130             19,855             -                     20,640            99                 
Residential acquisition and development 42,710             56,893             -                     62,059            638               
    Total 69,843$          89,782$          -$                  107,596$        941$            

With an allowance:
Multi-family construction -$                     -$                     -$                   571$               -$                 
One-to-four family construction 5,313               6,083               1,589 5,334              108               
Recreation and all other loans -                       -                       -                     271                 2                   
Commercial construction 4,387               5,128               886 7,289              126               
Commercial acquisition and development 5,091               7,728               1,418 12,965            429               
Residential acquisition and development 43,545             48,487             17,688 54,527            986               
    Total 58,336$          67,426$          21,581$        80,957$          1,651$         

Total:
Multi-family construction 1,067$             2,259$             -$                   6,045$            18$               
One-to-four family construction 13,244             15,396             1,589             14,603            202               
Recreation and all other loans 372                  545                  -                     762                 11                 
Commercial construction 5,020               6,045               886                16,952            209               
Commercial acquisition and development 22,221             27,583             1,418             33,605            528               
Residential acquisition and development 86,255             105,380           17,688           116,586          1,624            
    Total 128,179$        157,208$        21,581$        188,553$        2,592$         

December 31, 2011

(In thousands)
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`
Unpaid

Recorded Principal Related
Investment in Balance of Allowance for

Impaired Loans Impaired Loans Credit Losses

With no related allowance:
Multi-family construction 8,293$             9,975$             -$                   
One-to-four family construction 6,511               11,749 -                     
Recreation and all other loans 392                  580 -                     
Commercial construction 11,171             13,062 -                     
Commercial acquisition and development 7,897               12,501 -                     
Residential acquisition and development 45,940             73,071 -                     
    Total 80,204$          120,938$        -$                   

With an allowance:
Multi-family construction 1,904$             6,978$             4$                  
One-to-four family construction 11,939             14,846             932
Recreation and all other loans 498                  498                  148
Commercial construction 12,459             12,612             5,246
Commercial acquisition and development 21,575             21,575             8,424
Residential acquisition and development 56,339             67,029             14,441
    Total 104,714$        123,538$        29,195$         

Total:
Multi-family construction 10,197$           16,953$           4$                  
One-to-four family construction 18,450             26,595             932                
Recreation and all other loans 890                  1,078               148                
Commercial construction 23,630             25,674             5,246             
Commercial acquisition and development 29,472             34,076             8,424             
Residential acquisition and development 102,279           140,100           14,441           
    Total 184,918$        244,476$        29,195$         

December 31, 2010

(In thousands)

 
Loans considered impaired under FASB ASC 310 are lo ans for which, based on current inform ation and 

events, it is probable that the Com pany will be unable to collect all am ounts due according to the contractual terms 
of the loan agreem ent.  The Company’s recorded investment in loans considered im paired at December 31, 2011 
and 2010 was $234.9 m illion and $273.4 m illion, respectively.  At Decem ber 31, 2011 and 2010, $117.7 m illion 
and $151.4 m illion, respectively, of those im paired loans had a valuation allowance of $39.7 m illion and $40.7 
million, respectively.  The rem aining balance of impaired loans of $117.2 m illion and $122.0 million at December 
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, were charged down to fair value, less estimated selling costs, which approximated 
net realizable value.  Theref ore, such loans did not have an associated valuation allowance.  Im paired loans that 
were characterized as TDRs totaled $58.0 m illion and $63.7 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  
The average recorded investment in impaired loans during 2011 and 2010 was $309.6 m illion and $218.8 million, 
respectively.   
 NPLs consist of non-accrual loans and leases, loans a nd leases 90 days or more past due and still accruing, 
and loans and leases that have been restructured because of the borrower' s weakened financial condition. The 
following table presents information concerning NPLs at December 31, 2011 and 2010: 
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2011 2010
(In thousands)

Non-accrual loans and leases 276,798$     347,499$     
Loans and leases 90 days or more past due, still accruing 3,434 8,500
Restructured loans and leases still accruing 42,018 38,376
    Total 322,250$    394,375$     

 
 

The Bank’s policy for all loan classifications provide s that loans and leases are generally placed in non-
accrual status if, in m anagement’s opinion, payment in full of principal or interest is not expected or paym ent of 
principal or interest is more than 90 days past due, unless the loan or lease is both well-secured and in the process of 
collection.  At Decem ber 31, 2011, the Com pany’s geographic NPL distribution was concentrated primarily in its 
Alabama, Missouri and Tennessee markets, including the greater Memphis, Tennessee area, a portion of which is in 
northwest Mississippi and Arkansas.  The following table presents the Com pany’s nonaccrual loans and leases by 
segment and class at December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

2011 2010

Commercial and industrial 12,260$     13,075$    
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 47,878       34,021      
   Home equity 2,036         811           
   Agricultural 4,179         7,589        
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 33,112       20,338      
   Construction, acquisition and development 133,110     211,547    
   Commercial 40,616       57,766      
Credit cards 594            720           
All other 3,013         1,632        
     Total 276,798$  347,499$ 

(In thousands)

 
The total amount of interest earned on NPLs was $12.6 million, $11.2 million and $4.1 m illion in 2011, 

2010 and 2009, respectively .  The gross interest incom e which would have been recorded under the original terms 
of those loans and leases am ounted to $18.7 m illion, $21.7 million and $8.4 m illion in 2011, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively. 

In the normal course of business, management will sometime grant concessions, which normally would not 
otherwise be considered, to borrowers that are experien cing financial difficulty.  Loans identified as m eeting the 
criteria set out in FASB  ASC 310 are identified as TDRs.  The concessions granted m ost frequently for TDR s 
involve reductions or delay s in required payments of principal and interest for a specified period, the rescheduling 
of payments in accordance with a bankrupt cy plan or the charge-off of a porti on of the loan.  In m ost cases, the 
conditions of the credit also warrant nonaccrual status, even  after the restructure occurs.  As part of the credit 
approval process, the restructured lo ans are evaluated for adequate collateral protection in determ ining the 
appropriate accrual status at the time of restructure.  TDR loans recorded as non-accrual may be returned to accrual 
status in years after the restructure if  there has been at least a six-m onth period of sustained repayment performance 
by the borrower under the restructured loan term s and the in terest rate at the time of restructure was at or above 
market for a comparable loan.  During 2011, the most common concessions that were granted involved rescheduling 
payments of principal and interest over a longer amortization period, granting a period of reduced principal payment 
or interest only payment for a limited time period, or the rescheduling of payments in accordance with a bankruptcy 
plan. 
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The following tables summarize the financial effect of TDRs for the year ended December 31, 2011: 
Pre-Modification Post-Modification

Number Outstanding Outstanding
of Recorded Recorded

Contracts Investment Investment

Commercial and industrial 7             3,142$                2,374$                  
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 35           6,901                  6,424                    
   Agricultural 4             2,650                  1,479                    
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 29           13,330                11,740                  
   Construction, acquisition and development 30           23,863                19,228                  
   Commercial 24           16,121                15,046                  
All other 7             2,957                  2,406                    
     Total 136       68,964$             58,697$                

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 The following tables summarize TDRs modified during 2011 for which there was a payment default (i.e., 
30 days or more past due at any given time during 2011): 

Number of Recorded
Contracts Investment

Commercial and industrial 4                    1,506$                    
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 4                    1,563                      
   Agricultural 3                    1,382                      
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 6                    1,683                      
   Construction, acquisition and development 13                  3,622                      
   Commercial 3                    2,946                      
All other 1                    302                         
     Total 34                13,004$                 

(Dollars in thousands)

 
  
(6)  ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES 
 The following table sum marizes the changes in the allowance for credit losses for the years ended 
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:        

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of year 196,913$     176,043$     132,793$     
Provision charged to expense 130,081 204,016 117,324
Recoveries 10,179 7,876 4,139
Loans and leases charged off (142,055) (191,022) (78,213)
Balance at end of year 195,118$     196,913$     176,043$     
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 The following table summarizes the changes in the allowance for credit losses by segment and class for 
2011 and 2010: 

Balance, Balance,
Beginning of End of

Period Charge-offs Recoveries Provision Period

Commercial and industrial 22,479$       (17,337)$      1,567$      14,015$    20,724$    
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 35,540 (10,186) 1,111 10,064 36,529
  Home equity 7,305 (5,852) 185 6,992 8,630
  Agricultural 4,997 (3,420) 123 2,221 3,921
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 20,403 (10,302) 393 11,435 21,929
  Construction, acquisition and development 59,048 (67,362) 3,951 49,925 45,562
  Commercial 33,439 (17,436) 1,045 22,396 39,444
Credit Cards 4,126 (3,072) 803 2,164 4,021
All other 9,576 (7,088) 1,001 10,869 14,358
    Total 196,913$    (142,055)$   10,179$    130,081$  195,118$ 

2011

(In thousands)

 

Balance, Balance,
Beginning of End of

Period Charge-offs Recoveries Provision Period

Commercial and industrial 21,154$       (11,879)$      1,330$      11,874$    22,479$    
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 37,048 (16,280) 1,448 13,324 35,540
  Home equity 7,218 (5,215) 179 5,123 7,305
  Agricultural 4,192 (1,201) 12 1,994 4,997
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 22,989 (9,200) 399 6,215 20,403
  Construction, acquisition and development 46,193 (122,596) 1,706 133,745 59,048
  Commercial 26,694 (14,084) 845 19,984 33,439
Credit Cards 3,481 (4,559) 829 4,375 4,126
All other 7,074 (6,008) 1,128 7,382 9,576
    Total 176,043$    (191,022)$   7,876$      204,016$  196,913$ 

(In thousands)

2010
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 The following table provides the allo wance for credit losses by  segment and class based on impairment 
status at December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

Recorded Allowance for Allowance for
Balance of Impaired Loans All Other Loans Total

Impaired Loans and Leases and Leases Allowance

Commercial and industrial 7,833$               4,071$             16,653$             20,724$    
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 31,793               4,386               32,143               36,529      
  Home equity 675                    48                    8,582                 8,630        
  Agricultural 3,096                 380                  3,541                 3,921        
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 24,801               3,601               18,328               21,929      
  Construction, acquisition and development 128,179             21,581             23,981               45,562      
  Commercial 36,122               5,324               34,120               39,444      
Credit Cards -                         -                       4,021                 4,021        
All other 2,424                 317                  14,041               14,358      
    Total 234,923$          39,708$          155,410$           195,118$ 

(In thousands)

December 31, 2011

 

Recorded Allowance for Allowance for
Balance of Impaired Loans All Other Loans Total

Impaired Loans and Leases and Leases Allowance

Commercial and industrial 2,136$               125$                22,354$             22,479$    
Real estate
  Consumer mortgage 28,223               4,226               31,314               35,540      
  Home equity 851                    41                    7,264                 7,305        
  Agricultural 4,295                 544                  4,453                 4,997        
  Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 16,073               1,361               19,042               20,403      
  Construction, acquisition and development 184,918             29,195             29,853               59,048      
  Commercial 36,207               5,227               28,212               33,439      
Credit Cards -                         -                       4,126                 4,126        
All other 702                    -                       9,576                 9,576        
    Total 273,405$          40,719$          156,194$           196,913$ 

December 31, 2010

(In thousands)

 
 Management evaluates impaired loans  individually in determining the adequacy of the allowance for 
impaired loans. 
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(7)  OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED 
 The following table presents the activity in other r eal estate owned for the years ended Decem ber 31, 2011 
and 2010: 

2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year 133,412$     59,265$      
Additions to foreclosed properties
     New foreclosed property 125,234 129,796
Reductions in foreclosed properties
     Sales (64,488) (45,217)
     Writedowns (20,353) (10,432)
Balance at end of year 173,805$     133,412$    

(In Thousands)

 
Substantially all of these am ounts related to construction, acquisition and devel opment projects that were 

either completed or were in various states of construction during the y ear presented.  The following table presents 
the other real estate owned by geographical location and collateral type at December 31, 2011: 

Alabama Greater
and Florida Memphis Texas and
Panhandle Arkansas* Mississippi* Missouri Area Tennessee* Louisiana Other Total

Commercial and industrial 436$           17$              -$                -$              940$             -$                -$                -$                   1,393$          
Real estate
   Consumer mortgages 3,816         448              3,400           -                5,199            4,160          733             2,889             20,645          
   Home equity -                 -                  51                -                600               -                  -                  -                     651               
   Agricultural 899            -                  275              -                4,542            -                  -                  -                     5,716            
   Commercial and industrial-owner occupied 1,022         303              1,972           76             2,371            426             174             -                     6,344            
   Construction, acquisition and development 19,318       2,241           18,850         1,974        69,822          6,918          2,763          -                     121,886        
   Commercial 1,121         1,605           3,604           -                7,672            753             232             -                     14,987          
All other 276            83                220              193           1,358            -                  53               -                     2,183            
     Total 26,888$      4,697$        28,372$      2,243$     92,504$       12,257$      3,955$        2,889$          173,805$     

*  Excludes the Greater Memphis Area

(In thousands)

 
 The Company incurred total foreclosed propert y expenses of $27.8 m illion, $18.4 m illion and $13.6 
million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  Realized net losses on dispositions and hol ding losses on valuations 
of these properties, a component of total foreclosed property expenses, were $21.4 million, $14.2 million and $10.8 
million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
 
(8)  PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 
 A summary by asset classification at December 31, 2011 and 2010 follows: 

Estimated
Useful Life

  (Years) 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Land         N/A 73,978$       74,270$       
Buildings and improvements        10-40 305,814 305,201
Leasehold improvements        10-39 9,626 9,676
Equipment, furniture and fixtures         3-12 273,449 269,880
Construction in progress         N/A 14,317 8,209
     Subtotal 677,184 667,236
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 353,801 334,346
     Premises and equipment, net 323,383$     332,890$     
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(9) GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
The following table presents the changes in the ca rrying amount of goodwill by operating segment for the 

years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010: 
 

Community Insurance
Banking Agencies Total

(In thousands)
Balance as of January 1, 2011 217,618$         52,479$         270,097$            
Goodwill recorded during the year -                       1,200             1,200                  
Balance as of December 31, 2011 217,618$         53,679$         271,297$            

2011

 
 

Community Insurance
Banking Agencies Total

(In thousands)
Balance as of January 1, 2010 217,618$         52,479$         270,097$            
Goodwill recorded during the year -                       -                     -                         
Balance as of December 31, 2010 217,618$         52,479$         270,097$            

2010

 
The goodwill recorded in the insura nce agency segment during 2011 was related to an earn-out paym ent 

associated with an insignificant insurance agency acquired during the first quarter of 2008.   
The Company’s policy is to assess goodwill for im pairment at the reporting segm ent level on an annual 

basis or sooner if an event occurs or circum stances change which indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit is 
below its carrying amount.  Impairment is the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds 
its implied fair value.  Accounting standards require management to estim ate the fair value of each reporting 
segment in assessing im pairment at least annually .  The C ompany’s annual assessm ent date is during the 
Company’s fourth quarter.  The Com pany performed a com plete goodwill im pairment analysis for all of its 
reporting segments during the second quarter of 2011 and a roll-forward of that analysis during the third quarter of 
2011 because volatile m arket conditions caused the Com pany’s market value to fall below book value.  Based on 
these analyses, the estimated fair value exceeded its respective carrying value by 2% for the Company’s Community 
Banking reporting segment and by 30% for the Company’s Insurance Agencies reporting segment.  The Company’s 
annual goodwill impairment evaluation perform ed during the fourth quarter also indicated no im pairment of 
goodwill for its reporting units.  Therefore, no goodwill impairment was recorded during 2011.  The Com pany’s 
annual goodwill impairment evaluation for 2010 indicated no im pairment of goodwill for its reporting units.  The 
Company will continue to test reporting unit goodwill for potential impairment on an annual basis in the Company’s 
fourth quarter, or sooner if a goodwill impairment indicator is identified  

In the current environm ent, forecasting cash flows, credit losses and growth in addition to valuing the 
Company’s assets with any degree of a ssurance is very difficult and subject to significant changes over very  short 
periods of time.  Management will continue to update its analysis as circumstances change.  As m arket conditions 
continue to be volatile and unpredictable, impairment of goodwill related to the Company’s reporting segments may 
be necessary in future periods. 
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The following tables present information regarding the com ponents of the C ompany’s identifiable 
intangible assets included in the other assets category  on the consolidated balance sheet for the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010: 
 

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Amortized intangible assets: (In thousands)
Core deposit intangibles 27,801$                20,728$            27,801$                19,716$            
Customer relationship intangibles 32,749                  23,935              32,511                  21,661              
Non-solicitation intangibles 75                         38                     600                       600                   

Total 60,625$                44,701$            60,912$                41,977$            

Unamortized intangible assets:
Trade names 688$                     -$                     688$                     -$                     

Year ended
December 31,

2011 2010
Aggregate amortization expense for:

Core deposit intangibles 1,012$                  1,308$              
Customer relationship intangibles 2,274                    2,601                
Non-solicitation intangibles 38                         -                       

Total 3,324$                  3,909$              

(In thousands)

 
 The following table presents inform ation regarding estimated amortization expense of the Company’s 
amortizable identifiable intangible assets for the year ending December 31, 2012, and the succeeding four years: 
 

Core Customer Non-
Deposit Relationship Solicitation

Intangibles Intangibles Intangibles Total
Estimated amortization expense:

For the year ending December 31, 2012 946$            1,974$         37$                2,957$     
For the year ending December 31, 2013 582              1,686           -                    2,268       
For the year ending December 31, 2014 526              1,435           -                    1,961       
For the year ending December 31, 2015 487              1,158           -                    1,645       
For the year ending December 31, 2016 451              893              -                    1,344       

(In thousands)

 
 
 
(10) TIME DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM DEBT 
 Certificates of deposit and other tim e deposits of $100,000 or more amounting to $1.4 billion and $1.8 
billion were outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Total interest expense relating to certificates 
of deposit and other tim e deposits of $100,000 or m ore totaled $28.7 million, $41.7 million and $55.5 m illion for 
the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 101

 For time deposits with a rem aining maturity of more than one year at Decem ber 31, 2011, the aggregate 
amount of time deposits maturing in each of the following five years is presented in the following table: 
 

  

Maturing in Amount
(In thousands)

2013 355,323$       
2014 356,342
2015 212,470
2016 122,852
2017 69
Thereafter 173
  Total 1,047,229$    

 
The following tables present inform ation relating to short-term debt for the years ended Decem ber 31, 

2011, 2010 and 2009: 

Maximum
Outstanding

at any
Balance Balance Month End

(Dollars in thousands)
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase 373,933$     0.07   % 435,931$      0.10  % 493,157$    
Short-term FHLB advances 1,500           4.71   1,580            5.72  2,723          
    Total 375,433$     437,511$      495,880$    

Daily Average

Rate
Interest

Rate
Interest

2011

End of Period

 

Maximum
Outstanding

at any
Balance Balance Month End

(Dollars in thousands)

Federal funds purchased -$                 -      % 877$             0.11  % -$                
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase 440,593       0.15   486,621        0.17  514,659      
Short-term FHLB advances 2,727           5.72   51,638          1.03  152,738      
    Total 443,320$    539,136$     667,397$   

Rate Rate

2010

End of Period Daily Average
Interest Interest

 

Maximum
Outstanding

at any
Balance Balance Month End

Federal funds purchased -$                 -      % 163,860$      0.20  % 558,000$    
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase 539,870       0.21   695,381        0.19  816,374      
Federal Reserve discount window borrowings -                   -      240,268        0.24  450,000      
Short-term FHLB advances 203,500       3.13   75,684          0.19  203,500      
    Total 743,370$    1,175,193$  2,027,874$

(Dollars in thousands)
Rate Rate

2009

End of Period
Interest Interest

Daily Average
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 Federal funds purchased generally m ature the day following the date of purcha se while securities sold 
under repurchase agreem ents generally mature within 30 days from the date of sale.  Federal R eserve discount 
window borrowings generally  mature within 90 day s following the date of purchase and short-term  FHLB 
borrowings generally mature within 30 days following the da te of purchase.  At Decem ber 31, 2011, the Bank had 
established non-binding federal funds borrowing lines of credit with other banks aggregating $720.0 million.  

(11) LONG-TERM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BORROWINGS 
 The Bank has entered into a blanket floating lien secur ity agreement with the FHLB of Dallas.  Under the 
terms of this agreement, the Bank is required to maintain sufficient collateral to secure borrowings in an aggregate 
amount of the lesser of 75% of the book value (i.e., unpaid prin cipal balance) of the Bank’s eligible mortgage loans 
pledged as collateral or 35% of the Bank’s assets.  At D ecember 31, 2011, there were no call features on long-term 
FHLB borrowings. 
 At December 31, 2011, the FHLB fixed-term advances were repayable as follows:  
 

Final due date   Interest rate  Amount
(In thousands)

2015 4.69%-5.06% 3,500$             
Thereafter 4.08% 30,000             
  Total 33,500$          

 
 
(12) JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBT SECURITIES 

In 2002, the Com pany issued $128.9 m illion in 8. 15% Junior Subordinated Debt Securities to 
BancorpSouth Capital Trust I (the “Trust ”), a business trust. The Trust used the proceeds from the issuance of five 
million shares of 8.15% trust preferred securities, $ 25 face value per share, to acquire the 8.15% Junior 
Subordinated Debt Securities. Both the Junior Subordinated Debt Securities and the trust preferred securities mature 
on January 28, 2032, and are callable at the option of the Company. 

Pursuant to the merger with Business Holding Corporation on December 31, 2004, the Company assumed 
the liability for $6.2 million in Junior Subordinated Debt Securities issued to  Business Holding Company Trust I, a 
statutory trust.  Business Holding Co mpany Trust I used the proceeds from  the issuance of 6,000 shares of trust 
preferred securities to acquire the Junior Subordinated Debt Securities.  Both the Junior Subordinated Debt 
Securities and the trust preferred secur ities mature on April 7, 2034, and are ca llable at the option of the Com pany, 
in whole or in part, on any  January 7, April 7, July 7 or October 7 on or after April 7, 2009.  The Junior 
Subordinated Debt Securities and the trust preferred secur ities pay a per annum  rate of interest, reset quarterly, 
equal to the three month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 2.80% from January 30, 2004 to April 7, 
2009 and thereafter at LIBOR plus 2.85%.  
  Pursuant to the merger with Am erican State Bank Corporation on Decem ber 1, 2005, the Com pany 
assumed the liability for $6.7 million in Junior Subordinated Debt Securities issued to American State Capital Trust 
I, a statutory trust.  Am erican State Capital Trust I used the proceeds from the issuance of 6,500 shares of trust 
preferred securities to acquire the Juni or Subordinated Debt Securities.  Both the Junior Subordinated Debt 
Securities and the trust preferred secur ities mature on April 7, 2034, and are ca llable at the option of the Com pany, 
in whole or in part, on July 7, October 7, January 7 or April 7 on or after Ap ril 7, 2009.  The Junior Subordinated 
Debt Securities and the trust preferred securities pay a per an num rate of interest, reset quarterly, equal to the three 
month LIBOR plus 2.80%. 

Pursuant to the m erger with City Bancorp on March 1, 2007, the Com pany assumed the liability for $8.2 
million in Junior Subordinated Debt Securities issued to Signature Bancshares Pr eferred Trust I, a statutory trust.  
Signature Bancshares Preferred Trust I used the proceed s from the issuance of 8,000 shares of trust preferred 
securities to acquire the Junior Subordinated Debt Securities.  Both the Junior  Subordinated Debt Securities and the 
trust preferred securities mature on October 8, 2033, and are callable at the option of th e Company, in whole or in 
part, on any January 8, April 8, July  8 or October 8 on or after October 8, 2008.  The Junior Subordinated Debt 
Securities and the trust preferred securities pay a per annum rate of interest, reset quarterly, equal to the three-month 
LIBOR plus 3.00%. 

Pursuant to the merger with City Bancorp on March 1, 2007, the Com pany also assumed the liability for 
$10.3 million in Junior Subordinated Debt Securities issued to City Bancorp Preferred Trust I, a statutory trust.  City 
Bancorp Preferred Trust I used the pr oceeds from the issuance of 10,000 shares  of trust preferred securities to 
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acquire the Junior Subordinated Debt Securities.  Both  the Junior Subordinated De bt Securities and the trust 
preferred securities mature on March 15, 2035, and are callabl e at the option of the Com pany, in whole or in part, 
on any March 15, June 15, Septem ber 15, or Decem ber 15 on or after March 15, 2010.  The Junior Subordinated 
Debt Securities and the trust preferred securities pay a per a nnum rate of interest, reset quarterly, equal to the three-
month LIBOR plus 2.2%. 
 
(13) INCOME TAXES 
 Total income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were allocated as follows: 
 

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Income tax expense (benefit) 4,475$         (8,705)$        30,105$       
Shareholders' equity for other comprehensive income 7,600           (3,763)          11,469         
Shareholders' equity for stock option plans (7)                 (44)               (500)             
        Total 12,068$      (12,512)$     41,074$      

 
  The components of income tax expense (benefit) attributable to operations were as follows for the y ears 
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009: 
 

2011 2010 2009
Current: (In thousands)
  Federal 5,643$         8,865$         35,936$       
  State 5,400           (1,520)          3,527           
Deferred:
  Federal (1,626)          (13,848)        (8,302)          
  State (4,942)          (2,202)          (1,056)          
        Total 4,475$         (8,705)$        30,105$       

      
 Income tax expense (benefit) differed from the amount computed by applying the U.S. federal incom e tax 
rate of 35% to income before income taxes resulting from the following: 
 

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Tax expense at statutory rates 14,715$       4,983$         39,492$       
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
  State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 266              (2,419)          1,606           
  Tax-exempt interest revenue (7,881)          (6,605)          (6,105)          
  Tax-exempt earnings on life insurance (2,647)          (2,659)          (2,970)          
  Deductible dividends paid on 401(k) plan (331)             (1,972)          (1,875)          
  Other, net 353              (33)               (43)               
        Total 4,475$         (8,705)$        30,105$       
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 The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows: 
 

2011 2010*
Deferred tax assets: (In thousands)
  Loans, principally due to allowance
     for credit losses 73,911$       75,514$       
  Other real estate owned 10,429         5,681           
  Mark to market - securities 4,165           4,216           
  Accrued liabilities, principally due to 
    compensation arrangements and vacation accruals 10,681         9,353           
  Other 312              1,760           
  State tax credits (net of federal benefit) 1,040           -                   
  Unrecognized pension expense 26,428         17,262         
    Total gross deferred tax assets 126,966 113,786
    Less:  valuation allowance                   -                   -
    Deferred tax assets 126,966$     113,786$     
Deferred tax liabilities:
  Lease transactions 37,509$       32,809$       
  Employment benefits 26,991         29,514         
  Premises and equipment, principally due
    to differences in depreciation 27,221         24,033         
  Mortgage servicing rights 11,405         14,785         
  Intangible assets 10,336         10,080         
  Investments, principally due to interest income recognition 147              4,069           
  Deferred loan points 2,656           2,821           
  Other assets, principally due to expense recognition 525              1,233           
  Unrealized net losses on available-for-sale securities 25,064         8,297           
      Total gross deferred tax liabilities 141,854       127,641       
      Net deferred tax liabilities (14,888)$     (13,855)$     
*Certain 2010 amounts have been reclassified to conform with the 2011 presentation.  

 
The Company has a deferred state tax asset of $1.0 million resulting from state tax credit carryforwards.  

These carryforwards expire between 2017 and 2018. 
Based upon the level of historical taxable incom e and projections for future taxable incom e over the 

periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is m ore likely than not that the 
Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences existing at December 31, 2011. 
 The following table presents the activity in unrecognized tax benefits for 2011, 2010 and 2009: 

2011 2010 2009

Unrecognized tax benefit, January 1 355$         355$         355$         
Gross increases - tax positions in prior period 873           -               -               
Gross decreases - tax positions in prior period (355)         -               -               
Gross increases - tax positions in current period 229           -               -               
Settlements -               -               -               
Lapse of statute of limitations -               -               -               
Unrecognized tax benefit, December 31 1,102$      355$         355$         

(In thousands)

 
The balance of unrecognized tax bene fits that, if recognized, would aff ect the effective tax rate was $1.1 

million at December 31, 2011 and approximately $355,000 at both December 31, 2010 and 2009. 
The Company recognizes accrued interest related to unrecognized tax benefits and penalties as a 

component of other noninterest expense.  The Com pany accrued interest related to the uncertain tax benefits noted 
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above of approximately $26,000 during 2011 and $28,000 during both 2010 and 2009, and in total, as of December 
31, 2011 and 2010, had recognized a liability for interest of approximately $231,000 and $191,000, respectively. 

Management does not expect that unrecognized tax benefits will signifi cantly increase or decrease within 
the next 12 months. 

The Company is subj ect to taxation in the United States and various st ates and local j urisdictions.  The 
Company files a consolidated United Stat es federal return.  B ased on the laws  of the applicable  state where the 
Company conducts business operations, the C ompany and its ap plicable subsidiaries eith er file a consolidated, 
combined or separate return.  The tax years that remain open for examination for the Company’s major jurisdictions 
of the United States - M ississippi, Arkansas, Tennessee, Alabama, Louisiana and Misso uri - are 2008, 2009 and 
2010.  With few exceptions, the C ompany is no longer subject to United States federal, states or local exam inations 
by tax authorities for years before 2008.  Currently, there are disputed tax pos itions taken in previously filed tax 
returns with certain states, including positions regardi ng the allocation of incom e and expenses.  The Com pany 
continues to evaluate these positions and intends to contest the proposed adjustments made by these tax authorities.  
The Company does not anticipate that the ultimate resolution of these exam inations will result in a m aterial impact 
on the financial position or results of operations of the Company. 
 
(14)  PENSION, OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFIT AND PROFIT SHARING PLANS 
 The Basic Plan is a non-contributory  defined bene fit pension plan m anaged by a trustee covering 
substantially all full-time employees who have at least one year of service, have attain ed the age of 21 and were 
hired prior to January  1, 2006.  During 2011, the Basic Plan was am ended to im plement a 2.5%  cash balance 
formula that becom es effective January  1, 2012 for employees hired on or after January  1, 2006.  Prior to this 
amendment, benefits were based on y ears of service and the employee's compensation.   For employees hired prior 
to January 1, 2006, benefits will continue to be based on years of service and th e employee’s compensation until 
January 1, 2017, at which tim e benefits will be based on a 2.5% cash balance form ula.  As a result of the 
amendment, the plan was rem easured as of October 31,  2011.  The am endment reduced the projected benefit 
obligation by $8.2 million.  The Company's funding policy is to contribute to the Basic Plan the am ount that meets 
the minimum funding requirements set forth in the Em ployee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, plus such 
additional amounts as the C ompany determines to be ap propriate. The difference between the plan assets and 
projected benefit obligation is included in  other assets or other liabilities, as appropriate. Actuarial assumptions are 
evaluated periodically.  
 The Restoration Plan provides for the pay ment of retirement benefits to certain participants in the Basic 
Plan.  The Restoration Plan is a non-qualified plan that c overs any employee whose benefit under the Basic Plan is 
limited by the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and any em ployee who 
elects to participate in the BancorpSouth, Inc. Deferre d Compensation Plan, which reduces the em ployee’s benefit 
under the Basic Plan.  During 2011, the R estoration Plan was amended to implement a 2.5% cash balance formula 
that becomes effective January 1, 2012 for em ployees hired on or after January  1, 2006.  Prior to this amendment, 
benefits were based on years of service and the employee's compensation.   For employees hired prior to January 1, 
2006, benefits will continue to be based on years of serv ice and the employee’s compensation until January 1, 2017, 
at which time benefits will be based on a 2.5% cash balance formula.  As a result of the am endment, the plan was 
remeasured as of October 31, 2011.  The am endment reduced the projected benefit ob ligation by approximately 
$316,000.  The Supplem ental Plan is a non-qualified defined benefit supplemental retirement plan for certain key  
employees.  Benefits commence when the employee retires and are payable over a period of ten years.   
 The Company uses a December 31 measurement date for its pension and other benefit plans. 
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A summary of the three defined benefit retirem ent plans at and for the years ended Decem ber 31, 2011, 
2010 and 2009 follows: 

2011 2010 2009
Change in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at beginning of year 156,595$     134,892$     120,050$     
Service cost 8,107 7,449 7,127
Interest cost 8,327 7,676 7,019
Amendments (8,494)          -                   330              
Actuarial loss 22,253 11,457 4,882
Benefits paid (4,197) (4,879) (4,516)
Administrative expenses paid (229)             -                   -                   
Projected benefit obligations at end of year 182,362$    156,595$    134,892$     
Change in plans assets:
Fair value of plans assets at beginning of year 197,536$     180,217$     116,136$     
Actual return on assets 1,347 21,488 29,740
Employer contributions 547 710 38,857
Benefits paid (4,197) (4,879) (4,516)
Administrative expenses paid (229)             -               -               
Fair value of plans assets at end of year 195,004$     197,536$     180,217$     
Funded status:
Projected benefit obligations (182,362)$    (156,595)$    (134,892)$    
Fair value of plans assets 195,004 197,536 180,217
Unrecognized transition amount -               -               -               
Unrecognized prior service cost -               -               -               
Unrecognized actuarial loss -               -               -               
Net amount recognized 12,642$       40,941$       45,325$       

Pension Benefits

(In thousands)

 
 

 Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consisted of: 
 

2011 2010 2009

Prepaid benefit cost 102,307$     104,749$     105,900$     
Accrued benefit liability (20,572)        (18,678)        (16,868)        
Intangible asset -               -               -               
Accumulated other comprehensive
  income adjustment (69,093)        (45,130)        (43,707)        
Net amount recognized 12,642$       40,941$       45,325$       

(In thousands)

Pension Benefits

 
 
Pre-tax amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consisted of: 

 

2011 2010

Net transition obligation 55$                  73$                  
Net prior service (benefit) cost (6,901)              1,623               
Net actuarial loss 75,939             43,434             
Total accumulated other comprehensive income 69,093$           45,130$           

Year ended December 31,

(In thousands)
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The net transition obligation, net pr ior service credit and net actuarial loss that will be am ortized from 
accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic bene fit cost over the next fis cal year are approximately 
$18,000, $768,000 and $5,725,000, respectively. 

The components of net periodic benefit cost at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were as follows: 
 

2011 2010 2009
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost 8,107$         7,449$         7,127$         
Interest cost 8,327 7,676 7,019
Expected return on assets (14,864) (14,032) (10,698)
Amortization of unrecognized transition amount 18 18 18
Recognized prior service cost 31 341 342
Recognized net loss 3,264 2,218 4,320
Net periodic benefit cost 4,883$         3,670$         8,128$         

Pension Benefits

(In thousands)

 
 
The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at Decem ber 31, 2011 and 2010 

were as follows: 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Discount rate 4.80% 5.50% 4.45% 5.15% 3.85% 4.50%
Rate of compensation increase* 2.00% 2.50% 2.00% 2.50% 2.00% 2.50%

*  3.00% rate of compensation increase used for 2012 and beyond.

Basic Plan Restoration Plan Supplemental Plan

 
The weighted-average assum ptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended 

December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were as follows: 

2011 2010 2009
Discount rate 5.50% 6.00% 6.25%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 3.60%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

Basic Plan

 

2011 2010 2009
Discount rate 5.15% 5.85% 6.50%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 3.60%
Expected rate of return on plan assets N/A N/A N/A

Restoration Plan

 

2011 2010 2009
Discount rate 4.50% 5.35% 6.50%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 3.60%
Expected rate of return on plan assets N/A N/A N/A
N/A = not applicable

Supplemental Plan

 
 
The following table presents inform ation related to the Restoration Plan  and Supplemental Plan that had 

accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010: 
 

2011 2010

Projected benefit obligation 26,712$       23,468$       
Accumulated benefit obligation 25,409         22,439         
Fair value of assets -                   -                   

(In thousands)
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 The following table presents information related to the Company’s defined benefit pension plans at 
December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

2011 2010

Accumulated benefit obligation 172,439$     140,967$     
(In thousands)

 
 
 In selecting the expected long-term  rate of return on assets used for the Basic Plan, the Com pany 
considered the average rate of earnings expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits 
of the plan.  This included considering the trust asset allocation and the expected returns likely to be earned over the 
life of the plan.  This basis is consiste nt with the prior y ear.  The discount ra te is the rate used to determ ine the 
present value of the Com pany’s future benefit obligations for its pension and other postretirem ent benefit plans.  
The discount rate used to discount plan liabilities is determined by matching the timing and duration of expected 
cash flows of the Com pany’s pension obligations to a yield curve generated from a broad portfolio of high-quality 
fixed income debt instruments.     

The Company’s pension plan weighted-average asset a llocations at December 31, 2011 and 2010, by asset 
category, were as follows: 

Target for
Asset category: 2011 2010 2012

Equity securities 36.87% 57.26% 40-60%
Debt securities 58.16% 37.18% 40-60%
Cash and equivalents 4.97% 5.56% 0%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

Plan assets at December 31

 
Equity securities held in the Basic Plan included shares of the Com pany’s common stock with a fair value 

of approximately $907,000 (0.46% of tota l plan assets) and $1.2 m illion (0.66% of total plan assets) at Decem ber 
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  M anagement does not antic ipate that the Com pany will contribute to the Basic 
Plan in 2012. 
 The following table presents inform ation regarding expected future benefit paym ents, which reflect 
expected service, as appropriate: 
 

Pension
Benefits

Expected future benefit payments: (In thousands)
2012 12,629$          
2013 9,705              
2014 10,450            
2015 11,950            
2016 10,790            
2017-2021 58,568             
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 The following table presents the fair value of each major category of plan assets held in the Basic Plan at 
December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

2011 2010
Investments, at fair value:

U.S. agency debt obligations 70,757$    33,433$    
Mutual funds 112,995    150,964    
Common stock of BancorpSouth, Inc. 907           1,312        
Money market funds 4,701        3,568        
Brokered certificates of deposit 4,965        7,881        
   Total investments, at fair value 194,325    197,158    

Accrued interest and dividends 679           378           
Fair value of plan assets 195,004$ 197,536$ 

Pension Benefits

(In thousands)

 
 Fair values are determined based on valuation techniques categorized as follows:  Level 1 means the use of 
quoted prices for identical instrum ents in active markets; Level 2 m eans the use of quoted prices for identical or 
similar instruments in markets that are not active or are di rectly or indirectly observab le; Level 3 means the use of 
unobservable inputs.  Quoted m arket prices, when availa ble, are used to value investm ents.  Pension plan 
investments include funds whic h invest in various types of  investment securities and in various com panies within 
various markets.  Investment securities are exposed to several risks, such as in terest rate, market and credit risks.  
Because of the level of risk associated with certain investm ent securities, it is at least reasonably possible that 
changes in the values of investm ent securities will occur in the near term  and that such changes could m aterially 
affect the amounts reported. 
 The following table sets forth by level, within the FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and 
Disclosure (“FASB ASC 820”), fair value hierarchy, the plan investments at fair value as of December 31, 2011 and 
2010: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

U.S. agency debt obligations -$             70,757$       -$             70,757$       
Mutual funds 112,995    -                   -               112,995       
Common stock of BancorpSouth, Inc. 907           -                   -               907              
Money market funds -               4,701           -               4,701           
Brokered certificates of deposit -               4,965           -               4,965           
     Total 113,902$  80,423$       -$             194,325$     

(In thousands)

December 31, 2011

 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

U.S. agency debt obligations -$             33,433$       -$             33,433$       
Mutual funds 150,964    -                   -               150,964       
Common stock of BancorpSouth, Inc. 1,312        -                   -               1,312           
Money market funds -               3,568           -               3,568           
Brokered certificates of deposit -               7,881           -               7,881           
     Total 152,276$ 44,882$      -$            197,158$     

December 31, 2010

(In thousands)

 
 There were no transfers between Levels of the fair value hierarchy in 2011 or 2010. 
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 The following investments represented 5% or more of the total plan asset value as of December 31, 2011: 
 

2011
(In thousands)

Fidelity Advisor New Insight S Institution 10,382$           
Franklin Mutual Discovery Z Fund 10,489             
T. Rowe Price Equity Income Fund 10,724             
Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Institutional Fund 21,641              
 
 The Company has a defined contribution plan (commonly referred to as a “401(k) Plan”).  Pursuant to the 
401(k) Plan, employees may contribute a portion of their com pensation, as set fo rth in the 401(k) Plan, subject to 
the limitations as established by the Code.  Em ployee contributions (up to 5%  of defined com pensation) are 
matched dollar-for-dollar by the Company.  Employer contributions were $8.6 million for each of the years ended 
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.  Also, the 401(k) Plan prov ides that the Company shall make a profit sharing 
contribution on behalf of each eligible employee in an amount equal to two percent of each such employee’s eligible 
compensation.  Eligible em ployees are those hired after December 31, 2005 who work at least 1,000 hours during 
the plan year and have attained the age of 21.  Em ployer profit sharing contributions for the years ended December 
31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $1.3 million, $1.3 million and $1.1 million, respectively. 
 
(15) FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES 

“Fair value” is defined by FASB ASC 820 as the price th at would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  FASB ASC 820 
establishes a fair value hierarchy that pr ioritizes the inputs to valuation techniqu es used to measure fair value.  The 
hierarchy maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by  requiring that 
observable inputs be used when available.  Observable i nputs are inputs that market participants would use in 
pricing the asset or liability develope d based on m arket data obtained from sources independent of the reporting 
entity.  Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity assu mptions about the assumptions that 
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available 
under the circumstances.  The hierarchy is broken down into  the following three levels, based on the reliability of 
inputs: 
 

Level 1:  Unadjusted quoted prices in active m arkets for identical assets or lia bilities that are accessible at 
the measurement date. 

 
Level 2:  Significant other observable  inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data. 

 
Level 3:  Significant unobservable input s for the asset or liability that reflect the reporting entity’s own 
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. 

 
Determination of Fair Value 

The Company uses the valuation m ethodologies listed below to measure different financial instruments at 
fair value.  An indication of the level in the fair value hierarchy in which each instrument is generally classified is 
included.  Where appropriate, the descri ption includes details of the valua tion models, the key inputs to those 
models as well as any significant assumptions. 
 
Available-for-sale securities.  Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.  Fair 
value measurement is based upon quoted prices, if available.  If quoted prices are not av ailable, fair values are 
determined by matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique widely used in the industry to value debt securities 
without relying exclusively on quoted pr ices for the specific securities but ra ther by relying on the securities’ 
relationship to other benchmark quoted securities.  The Company’s available-for-sale securities that are traded on an 
active exchange, such as the New York Stock Exchange, ar e classified as Level 1.  Available-for-sale securities 
valued using matrix pricing are classified as Level 2.  Available-for-sale securities valued using matrix pricing that 
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has been adjusted to compensate for the present value of expected cash flow s, market liquidity, credit quality and 
volatility are classified as Level 3.   
 
Mortgage servicing rights.  The Com pany records MSRs at fair value on a recurring basis with subsequent 
remeasurement of MSRs based on change in fair value.  An estimate of the fair valu e of the Com pany’s MSRs is 
determined by utilizing assum ptions about factors such as mortgage interest rates, di scount rates, mortgage loan 
prepayment speeds, market trends and industry demand.  All of the Company’s MSRs are classified as Level 3. 
 
Derivative instruments.  The Com pany’s derivative instrum ents consist of com mitments to fund fixed-rate 
mortgage loans to customers and forward commitments to sell individual fixed-ra te mortgage loans.  Fair value of 
these derivative instruments is measured on a recurring basis using recent observable market prices.  The Company 
also enters into interest rate swaps to m eet the financing, interest rate and equity risk m anagement needs of its 
customers.  The fair value of these instruments is either an observable market price or a discounted cash flow 
valuation using the terms of swap agreem ents but substituting original interest rates with prevailing interest rates.  
The Company’s interest rate swaps, commitments to fund fixed-rate m ortgage loans to custom ers and forward 
commitments to sell individual fixed-rate mortgage loans are classified as Level 3. 
 
Loans held for sale.   Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of  cost or estimated fair value and are subj ect to 
nonrecurring fair value adjustments.  Estimated fair value is determined on the basis of existing commitments or the 
current market value of similar loans.  All of the Company’s loans held for sale are classified as Level 2.   
 
Impaired loans.  Loans considered im paired under FASB  ASC 310 are loans for which, based on current 
information and events, it is probable that the creditor w ill be unable to collect all amounts due according to the 
contractual terms of the loan agreement.  Impaired loans are subject to nonrecurring fair value adjustments to reflect 
(1) partial write-downs that are based on the observable market price or current appraised value of the collateral, or 
(2) the full charge-off of the loan carrying value.  All of the Company’s impaired loans are classified as Level 3. 
 
Other real estate owned.  Other real estate owned (“OREO”) is carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value, 
less estimated selling costs and is subj ected to nonrecurring fair value adj ustments.  Estim ated fair value is 
determined on the basis of independent appraisals and other relevant factors.  All of the C ompany’s OREO is 
classified as Level 3. 
 
Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 

The following tables present the balances of the assets and liabilities m easured at fair value on a recurring 
basis as of December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Available-for-sale securities:
   U.S. Government agencies -$             1,501,243$  -$             1,501,243$  
   Government agency issued residential
     mortgage-back securities -               404,610       -               404,610       
   Government agency issued commercial
     mortgage-back securities -               34,599         -               34,599         
   Obligations of states and political
     subdivisions -               563,520       -               563,520       
   Collateralized debt obligations -               -                   -               -                   
   Other 561           8,985           -               9,546           
Mortgage servicing rights -               -                   30,174      30,174         
Derivative instruments -               -                   55,749      55,749         
     Total 561$         2,512,957$  85,923$    2,599,441$  
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments -$             -$                 55,407$    55,407$       

(In thousands)

December 31, 2011
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Available-for-sale securities:
   U.S. Government agencies -$             433,158$     -$             433,158$     
   Government agency issued residential
     mortgage-back securities -               503,229       -               503,229       
   Government agency issued commercial
     mortgage-back securities -               29,994         -               29,994         
   Obligations of states and political
     subdivisions -               110,165       -               110,165       
   Collateralized debt obligations -               -                   -               -                   
   Other 527           18,989         -               19,516         
Mortgage servicing rights -               -                   38,642      38,642         
Derivative instruments -               -                   41,882      41,882         
     Total 527$         1,095,535$  80,524$    1,176,586$  
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments -$             -$                 39,197$    39,197$       

December 31, 2010

(In thousands)

 
The following tables present the changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a 

recurring basis for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010: 
Mortgage Available-
Servicing Derivative for-sale

Rights Instruments Securities

Balance at December 31, 2010 38,642$       2,685$         -$             
     Total net gains (losses) for the year included in:
        Net income (8,468)          (2,343)          -               
        Other comprehensive income -                   -                   -               
     Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net -                   -                   -               
     Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 -                   -                   -               
Balance at December 31, 2011 30,174$       342$            -$             
Net unrealized (losses) gains included in net income for the
     year relating to assets and liabilities held at December 31, 2011 (13,966)$      (2,343)$        -$             

(In thousands)

 
Mortgage Available-
Servicing Derivative for-sale

Rights Instruments Securities

Balance at December 31, 2009 35,560$       844$            2,125$      
     Total net gains (losses) for the year included in:
        Net income 3,082           1,841           (2,125)      
        Other comprehensive income -                   -                   -               
     Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net -                   -                   -               
     Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 -                   -                   -               
Balance at December 31, 2010 38,642$      2,685$         -$            
Net unrealized (losses) gains included in net income for the
     year relating to assets and liabilities held at December 31, 2010 (4,029)$        1,841$         (2,375)$    

(In thousands)
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Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis 
The following tables present the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring 

basis as of December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Gains (Losses)

Assets:
Loans held for sale -$             83,458$    -$             83,458$    -$                    
Impaired loans -               -               234,923    234,923    (39,708)           
Other real estate owned -               -               173,805    173,805    (21,641)           

(In thousands)

December 31, 2011

 
 

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Gains (Losses)

Assets:
Loans held for sale -$             93,697$    -$             93,697$    -$                    
Impaired loans -               -               273,405    273,405    (40,719)           
Other real estate owned -               -               133,412    133,412    (9,791)             

December 31, 2010

(In thousands)

 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments (“FASB ASC 825”), requires that the C ompany disclose estimated 
fair values for its financial instrum ents.  Fair value estimates, methods and assum ptions that are used by the 
Company in estimating fair values of financial instrum ents and that are not disclosed abov e in this Note 15 are set 
forth below. 

Held-to-maturity securities.  Fair value measurement is based upon quoted prices, if available.  If quoted prices 
are not available, fair values are determined by matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique widely used in the 
industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities but rather by 
relying on the securities’ relationshi p to other benchm ark quoted securities.  The Company did not have any 
securities classified as held-to-maturity at December 31, 2011. 
 
Loans and Leases.  Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans and leases with similar financial characteristics.  
The fair value of loans and leases is calculated by disc ounting scheduled cash flows through the estimated maturity 
using rates the C ompany would currently offer customers based on the credit and interest rate risk inherent in the 
loan or lease.  Assumptions regarding credit risk, cash fl ows and discount rates are ju dgmentally determined using 
available market and borrower inform ation.  Estimated maturity represents the expected average cash flow period, 
which in some instances is different than the stated maturity.  This entrance price appr oach results in a calculated 
fair value that would be different than an exit or estimated actual sales price approach and such differences could be 
significant. 
 
Deposit Liabilities.  Under FASB ASC 825, the fair value of deposits  with no stated m aturity, such as noninterest 
bearing demand deposits, interest bearing demand deposits and savings, is equa l to the amount payable on demand 
as of the reporting date.  The fair value of certificates of deposit is based on the discounted value of contractual cash 
flows.  The discount rate is estimated using the prevailing rates offered for deposits of similar maturities.   
 
Debt.  The carrying amounts for federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements approximate fair value because 
of their short-term maturity.  The fair value of the Company’s fixed-term FHLB advance securities is based on the 
discounted value of contractual cash flows.  The discount rate is estimated using the prevailing rates available for 
advances of similar maturities.  The fair value of the Company’s junior subordinated debt is based on market prices 
or dealer quotes. 
 
Lending Commitments.  The Company’s lending commitments are negotiated at prevailing market rates and are 
relatively short-term in nature.  As a matter of policy, the Company generally makes commitments for fixed-rate 
loans for relatively short periods of time.  Therefore, the estimated value of the Company’s lending commitments 
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approximates the carrying amount and is immaterial to the financial statements.  See Note 24, Commitments and 
Contingent Liabilities, for additional information regarding lending commitments. 

The following table presents carrying and fair value information of financial instruments at December 31, 
2011 and 2010: 

2011 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value
Assets: (In thousands)
Cash and due from banks 195,681$     195,681$     99,916$       99,916$       
Interest bearing deposits with other banks 303,663 303,663 172,170 172,170
Held-to-maturity securities -                   -                   1,613,019 1,632,691
Available-for-sale and trading securities 2,513,518 2,513,518 1,096,062 1,096,062
Federal funds sold and securities 
   purchased under agreement to resell -                   -                   150,000       150,000       
Net loans and leases 8,675,193 8,730,819 9,136,194 9,187,064
Loans held for sale 83,458 83,503 93,697 94,001

Liabilities:
Noninterest bearing deposits 2,269,799 2,269,799 2,060,145 2,060,145
Savings and interest bearing deposits 5,698,527 5,698,527 5,794,552 5,794,552
Other time deposits 2,986,863 3,029,147 3,635,324 3,677,796
Federal funds purchased and securities
   sold under agreement to repurchase
   and other short-term borrowings 375,433 375,285 443,320 443,081
Long-term debt and other borrowings 193,880 200,166 270,392 286,993

Derivative instruments:
Forward commitments to sell fixed rate 
   mortgage loans (1,057) (1,057) 2,499 2,499
Commitments to fund fixed rate 
   mortgage loans 2,140 2,140 639 639
Interest rate swap position to receive 53,608 53,608 38,347 38,347
Interest rate swap position to pay (54,349) (54,349) (38,800) (38,800)  

(16) STOCK INCENTIVE AND STOCK OPTION PLANS 
 Key employees and directors of the C ompany and its subsidiaries have been granted stock options under 
the Company’s 1994, 1995 and 1998 stock incentive plans (the  “Plans”).  The 1994 and 1995 stock incentive plans 
were amended in 1998 to allow a lim ited number of restricted stock awards and, in 2011, the nam e of the 1994 
stock incentive plan was changed to th e Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan.  All options granted pursuant to these 
plans have an exercise price equal to the m arket value on the date of the grant and are exercisable over periods of 
one to ten years.  Upon the exercise of stock options, new shares are issued by the Company. 
 In 1998, the Company adopted a stock plan thr ough which a m inimum of 50%  of the com pensation 
payable to each director is paid in th e form of the Com pany’s common stock.  This plan is registered under the 
Company’s dividend reinvestment plan and the shares are purchased through the Company’s dividend reinvestment 
plan which purchases shares in the open market. 
 FASB ASC 718 requires that compensation expense be measured using estimates of fair value of all stock-
based awards.  Compensation expense arising from stock options that has been charged against income for the Plans 
was $2.1 million, $2.1 million and $1.7 million for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  As of Decem ber 31, 2011, 
there was $1.7 m illion of total unrecogni zed compensation cost related to nonv ested stock options.  That cost is 
expected to be recognized over a three-year period. 

In December 2010, the Com pany granted stock options to purchase 408,363 shares of the Com pany’s 
common stock to its employees under the 1994 stock incentive plan.  These stock options have a contractual life of 
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seven years and vest over a one, two or three-year service period.  No stock options were granted during 2011.  The 
following tables present the stock option activity under the Plans as of Decem ber 31, 2011 and 2010 and changes 
during the years then ended: 
 

Weighted-
Average

Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Exercise Term Value

Shares Price (years) (In thousands)
Options
Outstanding at January 1, 2011 2,946,307 21.41$      
Exercised (2,225) 9.40          
Cancelled or forfeited (76,659) 22.86        
Expired (153,400) 15.39        
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 2,714,023 21.72$     3.6 2$                 

Exercisable at December 31, 2011 2,330,234 22.63$      3.3 2$                 

2011

 
 

Weighted-
Average

Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Exercise Term Value

Shares Price (years) (In thousands)
Options
Outstanding at January 1, 2010 2,701,693 22.33$      
Granted 408,363 13.25        
Exercised (22,336) 15.01        
Cancelled or forfeited (46,213) 23.28        
Expired (95,200) 13.21        

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 2,946,307 21.41$      4.4 1,219$          

Exercisable at December 31, 2010 2,151,996 22.68$      3.7 116$             

2010

 
 
 The following table presents the status of the Company’s nonvested options as of December 31, 2011 and 
changes during the year then ended: 
 

Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Exercise Grant Date

Shares Price Fair Value
Nonvested Options
Outstanding at January 1, 2011 794,311 17.96$      5.25$         
Vested (388,383) 19.46        5.55           
Forfeited or cancelled (22,139)     22.31        6.42           
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 383,789 16.20$      4.87$         
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  The Company uses historical data to estimate stock option exercise and employee departure behavior used 
in the B lack-Scholes-Merton option valuation m odel; groups of participants (ex ecutive, non-executives and 
directors) are considered separately fo r valuation purposes.  The expected term of stock options granted is derived 
from analysis of all historical data on stock option activity  and represents th e period of tim e that stock options 
granted are expected to be outstandi ng; the range given below results from certain groups of participants exhibiting 
different post-vesting behaviors.  The risk-free rate for periods within  the contractual term  of the stock option is 
based on the U. S. Treasury yield curve in  effect at the time of grant.  The e xpected volatility is estimated based on 
the Company’s historical experience.  The following table provides the range of assumptions used for stock options 
granted during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009: 

2010 2009

Expected volatility 45.2% 43.6%
Weighted-average volatility 45.2% 43.6%
Expected dividends 3.75% 3.75%
Expected term (in years) 4.8 - 6.0 5.1 - 5.7
Risk-free rate 1.64% 2.33%  
 
 The weighted-average grant-date fair value of st ock options granted during the y ears 2010 and 2009 was 
$4.00 and $6.70, respectively.  The intrinsic value of stock options exercise d during the years ended Decem ber 31, 
2010 and 2009 was approximately $143,000 and $1.6 million, respectively. 
 The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2011: 
 

Options Outstanding Options exercisable
Range of Number Weighted-Avg Weighted-Avg Number Weighted-Avg

Exercise Prices Outstanding Remaining Life (years) Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price

$9.97 to $13.25 409,356 5.9 13.23$             149,258 13.21$             
$17.10 to $20.23 150,688 1.3 19.59               150,688 19.59               
$21.41 to $23.51 1,313,363 3.4 22.89               1,189,672 22.94               
$24.03 to $25.31 840,616 3.1 24.39               840,616 24.40               
$9.97 to $25.31 2,714,023 3.6 21.72$             2,330,234 22.63$             

 The 1994 stock incentive plan allows for the issuan ce of performance shares.  Perform ance shares entitle 
the recipient to receive shares of the Company’s common stock upon the achievement of performance goals that are 
specified in the award over a specified perform ance period.  The recipient of performance shares is not treated as a 
shareholder of the Company and is not entitled to vote or  receive dividends until the performance conditions stated 
in the award are satisfied and the shares  of stock are actually issued to the r ecipient.  In January 2008, the Company 
granted 85,395 performance shares to employees for the two-year performance period from January 1, 2008 through 
December 31, 2009.  In January 2009, the Com pany granted 101,225 performance shares to employees for the two-
year performance period from January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2010.  In January 2010, the Company granted 
125,395 performance shares to em ployees for the two-year performance period from  January 1, 2010 through 
December 31, 2011.  In M arch 2011, the Company granted 125,410 performance shares to employees for the two-
year performance period from January 1, 2011 through Decem ber 31, 2012.  All of these performance shares vest 
over a three-year period and are valued at the fair value of the Com pany’s stock at the grant date based upon the 
estimated number of shares expected to vest.  No expens e was recorded in 2008 and 2009 for the 2008 grant, as the 
Company failed to meet the performance threshold for the 2008-2009 performance period.  Compensation expense 
of approximately $461,000 was recognized in 2009 related to  the 2009 grant of perform ance shares.  This amount 
was reversed in 2010 and no additional expense was reco rded in 2010, as the Co mpany failed to m eet the 
performance threshold for the 2009-2010 performance period.  No expense was recorded in 2010 or 2011 related to 
the 2010 grant, as the C ompany failed to m eet the performance threshold for the 2010-2011 perform ance period.  
Compensation expense of approximately $147,000 was recognized in 2011 related to the 2011 grant of performance 
shares.  

In May 2009, the C ompany awarded 5,000 restricted stock units covering 5,000 shares of C ompany 
common stock to its directors with the shares of stock covered by this award issued to the directors in May 2010.  In 
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May 2010, the Company awarded 5,000 restricted stock units  covering 5,000 shares of C ompany common stock to 
its directors and the shares of stock covered by  this award were issued to the directors in May 2011.  No restricted 
stock units were awarded during 2011.  Compensation expense of approximately $37,000, $112,000 and $117,000 
was recognized in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively , related to the restricted stock units issued to the C ompany’s 
directors.   
 
(17) EARNINGS PER SHARE AND DIVIDEND DATA 
 The computation of basic earnings per share is base d on the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding.  The com putation of diluted earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding plus the shares resulting from  the assumed exercise of all outstanding stock options using the 
treasury stock method.  Weighted-average antidilutive stock options to purchase 2.8 m illion, 2.2 million and 1.2 
million shares of Company common stock with a weighted average exercise price of $21.75, $23.46 and $23.98 per 
share for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively , were excluded fro m diluted shares.  Antidilu tive other equity awards 
covering approximately 36,000 and 23,000 shares of Company common stock for 2011 and 2009, respectively , 
were also excluded from diluted shares.  There were no antidilutive other equity awar ds for 2010.  The following 
tables provide a reconciliation of the num erators and deno minators of the basic and diluted earnings per share 
computations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009: 
 

2011
Income Shares Per Share

(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
Basic EPS:
Income available to common shareholders 37,569$     83,486 0.45$       
Effect of dilutive stock options                 - 23

Diluted EPS:
Income available to common shareholders
   plus assumed exercise 37,569$      83,509 0.45$       

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

 
 

2010
Income Shares Per Share

(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
Basic EPS:
Income available to common shareholders 22,942$      83,425 0.28$       
Effect of dilutive stock options                 - 90

Diluted EPS:
Income available to common shareholders
   plus assumed exercise 22,942$      83,515 0.27$       

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
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2009
Income Shares Per Share

(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
Basic EPS:
Income available to common shareholders 82,729$      83,295 0.99$       
Effect of dilutive stock options                 - 135

Diluted EPS:
Income available to common shareholders
   plus assumed exercise 82,729$      83,430 0.99$       

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

 
 
 Dividends to shareholders are paid  from dividends paid to the Company by the Bank which are subject to 
approval by the applicable state regulatory authority.   
 
(18) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 The following tables present the components of other comprehensive income and the related tax effects 
allocated to each component for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009: 
 

2011
Before Tax Net
Tax (Expense) of Tax

Amount Benefit Amount
(In thousands)

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during
   holding period 55,882$   (21,405)$  34,477$   
Reclassification adjustment for net (gains) losses
   realized in net income (12,127) 4,639 (7,488)

Change in pension funding status (23,963) 9,166 (14,797)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 19,792$  (7,600)$   12,192$   

 
 

2010
Before Tax Net
Tax (Expense) of Tax

Amount Benefit Amount
(In thousands)

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized (losses) gains arising during
   holding period (8,854)$    3,399$     (5,455)$    
Reclassification adjustment for net losses (gains)
   realized in net income 470 (180) 290

Change in pension funding status (1,423) 544 (879)
Other comprehensive (loss) income (9,807)$    3,763$     (6,044)$    
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2009
Before Tax Net
Tax (Expense) of Tax

Amount Benefit Amount
(In thousands)

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during
   holding period 11,391$   (4,368)$    7,023$     
Reclassification adjustment for net losses (gains)
   realized in net income 55 (21) 34

Change in pension funding status 18,510 (7,080) 11,430
Other comprehensive income (loss) 29,956$   (11,469)$  18,487$   

 
 
(19) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 The Bank has made, and expects in the future to continue  to make in the ordinary course of business, loans 
to directors and executive officers of the Company and their affiliates.  In management’s opinion, these transactions 
with directors and executive officers were m ade on substantially the same terms as those prevailing at the time for 
comparable transactions with other persons and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or present 
any other unfavorable features.  A summary of such outstanding loans is as follows: 

 

Amount
(In thousands)

Loans outstanding at December 31, 2010 31,794$          
New loans 47,862            
Repayments (59,079)           
Changes in directors and executive officers (1,396)             
Loans outstanding at December 31, 2011 19,181$          

 
 
(20) MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS 
 MSRs, which are recognized as a separate asset on the date the corresponding m ortgage loan is sold, are 
recorded at fair value as determined at each accounting period end.  An estimate of the fair value of the Company’s 
MSRs is determined utilizing assumptions about factors such  as mortgage interest rates, discount rates, m ortgage 
loan prepayment speeds, m arket trends and industry  demand.  Data and assum ptions used in the fair value 
calculation related to MSRs for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were as follows: 
 

 

2011 2010 2009

Unpaid principal balance $4,293,552 $3,870,872 $3,413,202
Weighted-average prepayment speed (CPR) 22.7 15.6 15.9
Discount rate (annual percentage) 10.3 10.3 10.3
Weighted-average coupon interest rate (percentage) 4.9 5.2 5.6
Weighted-average remaining maturity (months) 311.0 315.0 321.0
Weighted-average servicing fee (basis points) 28.0 28.4 28.8

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 

Because the valuation is determ ined by using discounted cash flow m odels, the primary risk inherent in 
valuing the MSRs is the im pact of fluctuating interest ra tes on the estimated life of the servicing revenue stream .  
The use of different estim ates or assum ptions could al so produce different fair values.  The C ompany does not 
hedge the change in fair value of MSRs and, therefore, the Company is susceptible to significant fluctuations in the 
fair value of its MSRs in changing interest rate environments.  
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 The Company has one class of mortgage servicing asset comprised of closed end loans for one-to-four 
family residences, secured by  first liens.  The following table presents the activity in  this class for the years 
indicated: 

2011 2010

Fair value at beginning of year 38,642$       35,560$       
Additions:
   Origination of servicing assets 11,692         13,898         
Changes in fair value:
   Due to payoffs/paydowns (6,180) (6,781)
   Due to change in valuation inputs or assumptions
     used in the valuation model (13,966)        (4,029)          
   Other changes in fair value (14)               (6)                 
Fair value at end of year 30,174$      38,642$      

(In thousands)

 
 All of the changes to the fair value of the MSRs are recorded as part of mortgage lending noninterest 
revenue on the income statement.  As part of mortgage lending noninterest revenue, the Company recorded 
contractual servicing fees of $11.6 million, $10.5 million and $9.5 million and late and other ancillary fees of $1.3 
million, $1.4 million and $1.2 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. 
 
(21)  REGULATORY MATTERS 
 The Company is subject to various regulatory  capital requirements administered by the federal and state 
banking agencies.  Failure to m eet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain m andatory and possibly 
additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct m aterial adverse effect on the 
Company’s financial statem ents.  Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulat ory framework for prom pt 
corrective action, the Com pany must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative m easures of the 
Company’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.  
The Company’s capital amounts and classification are also  subject to qualitative judgm ents by regulators about 
components, risk weightings and other factors.  Quantitative measures established by the Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve to ensure capital adequacy  require the Company to maintain minimum capital amounts and ratios 
(risk-based capital ratios).  All banking companies are required to have core capital (“Tier I”) of at least 4% of risk-
weighted assets, total capital of at least 8% of risk-weight ed assets and a m inimum Tier I leverage ratio of 4%  of 
adjusted average assets.  The regulations also define well capitalized levels of Tier I, total capital and Tier I leverage 
as 6%, 10% and 5%, respectively.  The C ompany and the B ank had Tier I, total capital and Tier I leverage above 
the well capitalized levels at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, as set forth in the following table: 
 

2011 2010
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in thousands)
Tier I capital (to risk-weighted assets)
     BancorpSouth, Inc. 1,129,746$  11.77% 1,070,744$  10.61%
     BancorpSouth Bank 1,099,369    11.46  1,040,714    10.32  
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)
     BancorpSouth, Inc. 1,250,801 13.03  1,197,626 11.87  
     BancorpSouth Bank 1,220,424 12.73  1,167,596 11.58  
Tier I leverage capital (to average assets)
     BancorpSouth, Inc. 1,129,746 8.85  1,070,744 8.07  
     BancorpSouth Bank 1,099,369 8.67  1,040,714 7.87   

 
(22)  SEGMENTS 
 The Company is a financial holding com pany with subsidiaries engaged in the business of banking and 
activities closely related to banking.  The Company determines reportable segments based upon the services offered, 
the significance of those services to  the Company’s financial condition a nd operating results and m anagement’s 
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regular review of the operating results  of those services.  The Company’s primary segment is Community Banking, 
which includes providing a full range of deposit products, commercial loans and consum er loans.  The C ompany 
has also designated two additional reportable segments - Insurance Agencies and General Corporate and Other.  The 
Company’s insurance agencies serve as agents in the sale of commercial lines of insurance and full lines of property 
and casualty, life, health and employee benefits products and services.  The General Corporate and Other operating 
segment includes leasing, m ortgage lending, trust services, credit card activities, investment services and other 
activities not allocated to  the Com munity Banking or Insurance Agencies ope rating segments.  The increased net 
income of the C ommunity Banking operating segm ent in 2011 compared to 2010 was prim arily related to the 
decrease in the provision for credit losses.   
 Results of operations and selected financial in formation by operating segm ent for the y ears ended 
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were as follows: 

 

Community 
Banking

Insurance 
Agencies

General 
Corporate 
and Other Total

2011 (In thousands)
Results of Operations
Net interest revenue 407,648$       329$                 26,936$       434,913$       
Provision for credit losses 127,794 -                       2,287 130,081
Net interest income after provision
   for credit losses 279,854 329 24,649 304,832
Noninterest revenue 126,807 86,955 57,083 270,845
Noninterest expense 338,125 73,793 121,715 533,633
Income (loss) before income taxes 68,536 13,491 (39,983) 42,044
Income tax expense (benefit) 40,454 5,423 (41,402) 4,475
Net income 28,082$         8,068$              1,419$         37,569$         
Selected Financial Information
Total assets 10,169,986$  163,995$          2,661,870$  12,995,851$  
Depreciation and amortization 24,167 3,826 4,221 32,214  

 

Community 
Banking

Insurance 
Agencies

General 
Corporate 
and Other Total

2010
Results of Operations
Net interest revenue 411,936$       561$                 28,645$       441,142$       
Provision for credit losses 197,539 -                       6,477 204,016
Net interest income after provision
   for credit losses 214,397 561 22,168 237,126
Noninterest revenue 114,736 82,327 67,081 264,144
Noninterest expense 308,299 70,830 107,904 487,033
Income (loss) before income taxes 20,834 12,058 (18,655) 14,237
Income tax expense (benefit) 2,914 4,786 (16,405) (8,705)
Net income (loss) 17,920$         7,272$              (2,250)$        22,942$         
Selected Financial Information
Total assets 10,854,511$  158,919$          2,601,580$  13,615,010$  
Depreciation and amortization 24,910 4,230 4,532 33,672

(In thousands)

 
 



 122

Community 
Banking

Insurance 
Agencies

General 
Corporate 
and Other Total

2009
Results of Operations
Net interest revenue 413,125$       625$                 31,149$       444,899$       
Provision for credit losses 111,409 -                       5,915 117,324
Net interest income after provision
   for credit losses 301,716 625 25,234 327,575
Noninterest revenue 130,544 80,714 64,018 275,276
Noninterest expense 327,020 68,857 94,140 490,017
Income (loss) before income taxes 105,240 12,482 (4,888) 112,834
Income tax expense (benefit) 28,079 4,918 (2,892) 30,105
Net income (loss) 77,161$         7,564$              (1,996)$        82,729$         
Selected Financial Information
Total assets 10,879,768$  159,585$          2,128,514$  13,167,867$  
Depreciation and amortization 28,831 4,651 2,272 35,754

(In thousands)

   
 
 (23)  DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 

The derivative instruments held by the Company include commitments to fund fixed-rate mortgage loans to 
customers and forward com mitments to sell individual, fi xed-rate mortgage loans.  The C ompany’s objective in 
obtaining the forward commitments is to mitigate the interest rate risk associ ated with the commitments to fund the 
fixed-rate mortgage loans.  Both the commitments to fund fixed-rate mortgage loans and the forward com mitments 
to sell individual fixed-rate m ortgage loans are reported at fair value, with adjustments being recorded in current 
period earnings, and are not accounted for as hedges.  At Decem ber 31, 2011, the notional amount of forward 
commitments to sell individual fixed-rate m ortgage loans was $107.0 million, with a carrying value and fair value 
reflecting a loss of $1.1 m illion.  At Decem ber 31, 2010, th e notional am ount of forward com mitments to sell 
individual fixed-rate mortgage loans was $151.3 million, with a carrying value and fair value reflecting a gain of 
$2.5 million.  At December 31, 2011, the notional am ount of commitments to fund individua l fixed-rate mortgage 
loans was $104.2 million, with a carrying value and fair va lue reflecting a gain of $2.1 m illion.  At December 31, 
2010, the notional amount of commitments to fund individua l fixed-rate mortgage loans was $70.1 m illion, with a 
carrying value and fair value reflecting a gain of approximately $639,000.       

The Company also enters into derivative financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps to meet the 
financing, interest rate and equity  risk management needs of its custom ers.  Upon entering into these interest rate 
swaps to meet customer needs, the Company enters into offsetting positions to minimize interest rate and equity risk 
to the Company.  These derivative fina ncial instruments are reported at fair value with any resulting gain or loss 
recorded in current period earnings.  These instruments and their offsetting positions are recorded in other assets 
and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.  As of December 31, 2011, the notional amount of customer 
related derivative financial instrum ents was $493.3 million, with an average maturity of 62.3 m onths, an average 
interest receive rate of 2.6% and an average interest pay rate of 5.9%.  As of Decem ber 31, 2010, the notional 
amount of customer related derivative financial instruments was $514.8 m illion, with an average m aturity of 73.4 
months, an average interest receive rate of 2.5% and an average interest pay rate of 6.1%.   

 
(24)  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
Leases 
 Rent expense was $7.1 million for 2011, $6.9 million for 2010 and $7.1 million for 2009. Future minimum 
lease payments for the following five years for all non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms of 
one year or more consisted of the following at December 31, 2011: 
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Amount
(In thousands)

2012 6,052$           
2013 4,725             
2014 2,410             
2015 1,883             
2016 1,159             
Thereafter 4,635             
Total future minimum lease payments 20,864$        

 
Mortgage Loans Serviced for Others 
 The Company services m ortgage loans for others that are not included as assets in the Com pany’s 
accompanying consolidated financial statem ents. Included in the $4.3 billion of loans serviced for investors at 
December 31, 2011 was $3.3 m illion of primary recourse servicing pursuant to which the Com pany is responsible 
for any losses incurred in the event of nonperform ance by the mortgagor. The Company's exposure to credit loss in 
the event of such nonperformance is the unpaid principal balance at the time of default. This exposure is limited by 
the underlying collateral, which consists of single fam ily residences and either federal or private m ortgage 
insurance. 
 
Lending Commitments 
 In the normal course of business, there are outstanding various commitments and other arrangements for 
credit which are not reflected in th e consolidated balance sheets.  As of Decem ber 31, 2011, these included $158.9 
million for letters of credit and $2.0 billion for interim  mortgage financing, construc tion credit, credit card and 
revolving line of credit arrangem ents.  The C ompany did not realize significant credit losses from  these 
commitments and arrangements during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. 
 
Litigation 
 The nature of the Com pany’s business ordinarily results in a cer tain amount of claim s, litigation, 
investigations and legal and adm inistrative investigations and proceedings. Although the Com pany and its 
subsidiaries have developed policies and procedures to minimize the im pact of legal noncom pliance and other 
disputes, and endeavored to provide reasonable insurance coverage, litigati on and regulatory actions present an 
ongoing risk. 
 The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in lines of business that are heavily  regulated and involve a 
large volume of financial transactions and potential trans actions with numerous customers or applicants. From time 
to time, borrowers, customers, former employees and other third parties have brought actions against the C ompany 
or its subsidiaries, in some cases claiming substantial damages. Financial services companies are subject to the risk 
of class action litigation and, from time to time, the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to such actions brought 
against it. Additionally , the B ank is, and management expects it to be, engaged in a num ber of foreclosure 
proceedings and other collection actions as part of its lending and leasing co llections activities, which, from time to 
time, have resulted in counterclaim s against the Bank. Vari ous legal proceedings have arisen and m ay arise in the 
future out of claims against entities to  which the Company is a successor as a result of business com binations. The 
Company’s insurance has deductibles, and will likely not cover all such litigati on or other proceedings or the costs 
of defense. The Company and its subsidiaries m ay also be subject to enforcem ent actions by federal or state 
regulators, including the Securities and Exchange Com mission, the Federal Reserve, the FDIC, the Consum er 
Financial Protection Bureau, the Department of Justice, state attorneys gene ral and the M ississippi Department of 
Banking and Consumer Finance. 
 When and as the Com pany determines it has m eritorious defenses to the claim s asserted, it vigorously  
defends against such claims. The Company will consider settlement of claims when, in management’s judgment and 
in consultation with counsel, it is in the best interests of the Company to do so. 
 The Company cannot predict with cer tainty the cost of defense, the cost of prosecution or the ultimate 
outcome of litigation and other proceedings filed by or against it, its directors, management or employees, including 
remedies or damage awards. On at least a quarterly basi s, the Company assesses its liabilities and contingencies in 
connection with outstanding legal proceedings as well as certain threatened claim s (which are not considered 
incidental to the ordinary conduct of  the Company’s business) utilizing the latest and m ost reliable inform ation 
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available. For matters where a loss is not probable or the amount of the loss cannot be estim ated, no accrual is 
established. For m atters where it is probable the Company will incur a loss and the am ount can be reasonably 
estimated, the Company establishes an accrual for the loss. Once established, th e accrual is adjusted periodically to 
reflect any relevant developm ents. The actual cost of any outstanding legal proceedings or threatened claim s, 
however, may turn out to be substantially higher than the amount accrued. Further, the Company’s insurance will 
not cover all such litigation, other proceedings or claims, or the costs of defense.  
 While the final outcom e of any legal proceedings is inherently uncertain, based on the inform ation 
available, advice of counsel and available insurance c overage, management believes that the litigation-related 
expense accrued as of December 31, 2011 is adequate and that any incremental liability arising from the Company’s 
legal proceedings and threatened claim s, including the m atters described herein and thos e otherwise arising in the 
ordinary course of business, will not have a m aterial adverse effect on the Company's business or consolidated 
financial condition. It is possible, however, that future developments could result in an unfavorable outcom e for or 
resolution of any one or m ore of the lawsuits in which the Company or its subsidiaries are defendants, which m ay 
be material to the Company’s results of operations for a given fiscal period. 

On May 12, 2010, the Company and its C hief Executive Officer, President and C hief Financial Officer 
were named in a purported class action lawsuit filed in the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of Tennessee 
on behalf of certain purchasers of the C ompany’s common stock. On Septem ber 17, 2010, an Executive Vice 
President of the Company was added as a party to the lawsuit. The am ended complaint alleges that the defendants 
issued materially false and m isleading statements regarding the C ompany’s business and financial results. The 
plaintiff seeks class certification, an uns pecified amount of damages and awards  of costs and attorney s’ fees and 
other equitable relief. No class has been certified and, at th is stage of the lawsuit, management cannot determine the 
probability of an unfavorable outcome to the Com pany. There are signi ficant uncertainties involved in any 
purported class action litigation.  Although it is not possible to predict the ultim ate resolution or financial liability 
with respect to this litigation, management is currently of the opinion that the outcome of this lawsuit will not have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

On August 16, 2011, a shareholder filed a putative deri vative action purportedly on behalf of the Company 
in the Circuit Court of Lee County, Mississippi, against certain current and past executive officers and the members 
of the B oard of Directors of the C ompany. The plaintiff in this shareholder derivative lawsuit asserts that the 
individual defendants violated  their fiduciary  duties based upon substantially the sam e facts as alleged in the 
purported class action lawsuit described above. The plaintiff is seeking to recover damages in an unspecified 
amount and equitable and/or injunctive relief. Although it is not possible to predict the ultimate resolution or 
financial liability with respect to this litigation, m anagement is currently of the opinion that the outcome of this 
lawsuit will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, consolidated financial position or results 
of operations. 

In November 2010, the Company was informed that the Atlanta Regional Office of the SEC had issued an 
Order of Investigation concerning the C ompany.  This investigation is ongoing and is prim arily focused on the 
Company’s recording and reporting of its unaudited financial statements, including the allowance and provision for 
credit losses, and its internal controls and its communications with the independent auditors prior to the filing of the 
Company’s Annual Report on Form  10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.  In connection with its 
investigation, the SEC issued subpoenas for documents and testimony, with which the Company has fully complied.  
The Company is cooperating fully  with the SEC . No claims have been made by the SEC against the C ompany or 
against any individuals affiliated with the Company. At this tim e, it is not possible to predict when or how the 
investigation will be resolved or the cost or potential liabilities associated with this matter. 

On May 18, 2010, the B ank was named as a defendant in  a purported class action lawsuit filed by two 
Arkansas customers of the Bank in the U.S. District C ourt for the Northern District of  Florida. The suit challenges 
the manner in which overdraft fees were charged and th e policies related to posting order of debit card and ATM  
transactions. The suit also m akes a claim under Arkansas’ consumer protection statute. The case was transferred to 
pending multi-district litigation in the U.S.  District Court for the Southern Dist rict of Florida. No class has been 
certified and, at this stage of the lawsuit, m anagement of the Com pany cannot dete rmine the probability of an 
unfavorable outcome to the C ompany. There are signifi cant uncertainties involved in any  purported class action 
litigation.  Although it is not possible to predict the ultim ate resolution or financial liability with respect to this 
litigation, management is currently of th e opinion that the outcome of this lawsuit will not have a m aterial adverse 
effect on the Company’s business, consolidated financial position or results of operations. However, there can be no 
assurance that an adverse outcome or settlem ent would not have a m aterial adverse effect on the Com pany’s 
consolidated results of operations for a given fiscal period. 
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(25) CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION 
 The following condensed financial information reflects the accounts and transactions of the Company 
(excluding its subsidiaries) at the dates and for the years indicated: 
 
Condensed Balance Sheets December 31,

2011 2010
Assets: (In thousands)
Cash on deposit with subsidiary bank 17,100$         18,972$         
Investment in subsidiaries 1,392,966 1,352,569
Other assets 15,173 12,900
  Total assets 1,425,239$    1,384,441$    

Liabilities and shareholders' equity:
Total liabilities 162,327$       162,197$       
Shareholders' equity 1,262,912 1,222,244
  Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,425,239$    1,384,441$    

Year Ended December 31,
Condensed Statements of Income 2011 2010 2009

(In thousands)
Dividends from subsidiaries 23,000$         89,500$         54,000$         
Other operating income 268 837 1,513
  Total income 23,268 90,337 55,513

Operating expenses 17,358 16,807 16,303
Income before tax benefit and equity in undistributed earnings 5,910 73,530 39,210
Income tax benefit 6,050 6,102 5,657
Income before equity in undistributed earnings 
  of subsidiaries 11,960 79,632 44,867
Equity in (distributed) undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 25,609 (56,690) 37,862
  Net income 37,569$         22,942$         82,729$         

 
Year Ended December 31,

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows       2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Operating activities:
  Net income                         37,569$         22,942$         82,729$         
  Adjustments to reconcile net income
    to net cash provided by operating activities (30,348) 58,486 (39,131)
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,221 81,428 43,598
Investing activities:
  Net cash paid for acquisitions -                     -                     -                     
Net cash used in investing activities -                     -                     -                     
Financing activities:
  Cash dividends (11,689) (73,458) (73,335)
  Common stock transactions, net 2,596 464 6,320
Net cash used in financing activities (9,093) (72,994) (67,015)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,872) 8,434 (23,417)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 18,972 10,538 33,955
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17,100$         18,972$         10,538$         
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(26) OTHER NONINTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE 
 The following table details other noninterest income for the three years ended Decem ber 31, 2011, 2010 
and 2009: 

2011 2010 2009

Annuity fees 3,323$      2,474$      3,721$      
Brokerage commissions and fees 5,918        5,512        4,803        
Bank-owned life insurance 7,662        7,737        8,614        
Other miscellaneous income 16,599      14,433      28,225      
   Total other noninterest income 33,502$    30,156$    45,363$    

(In thousands)

 
 The following table details other noninterest expe nse for the three y ears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 
and 2009: 

2011 2010 2009

Advertising 5,098$      5,354$      6,377$      
Foreclosed property expense 27,796      18,355      13,599      
Telecommunications 8,386 9,466 8,854
Public relations 5,727 6,088 5,900
Data processing 9,677 6,068 6,175
Computer software 7,502 7,334 7,260
Amortization of intangibles 3,324 3,909 4,957
Legal fees 9,170 6,102 8,593
Postage and shipping 4,812 5,044 4,939
Other miscellaneous expense 74,098 62,760 59,341
   Total other noninterest expense 155,590$ 130,480$ 125,995$  

(In thousands)

 

(27) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 On January 24, 2012, the Com pany completed an underwritten public offering of 10,952,381 shares of 
Company common stock at a public offering price of $10.50 per share.  The gross proceeds from  the offering, 
before expenses, were $109.3 million.  Offering expenses were approxi mately $575,000.  The proceeds from  the 
offering will be used by the Com pany for general corporat e purposes, including to m aintain certain capital levels 
and liquidity at the C ompany, potentially provide equity capital to the B ank, fund growth either organically  or 
through acquisition of other financial ins titutions, insurance agencies, or other businesses that are closely aligned to 
the operations of the Company, and fund investments in its subsidiaries.   

The Company has evaluated any additional subsequent ev ents through the date of this filing.  M anagement 
does not believe there are any additional material subsequent events which would require further disclosure.   
 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING 
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE. 

 There have been no changes in the C ompany's independent accountants and auditors for the two most 
recent fiscal years. 
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. 
 
CONCLUSION REGARDING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND 
PROCEDURES  
  
     The Company, with the participation of its management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer, carried out  an evaluation of the effectivene ss of the design and operation of its 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act) as of the end of 
the period covered by this Report.  
      Based upon that evaluation and as of the end of  the period covered by  this Report, the Company’s Chief 
Executive Officer and C hief Financial Officer concluded th at the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures 
were effective in ensuring that inform ation required to be disclosed in its repor ts that the Company files or submits 
to the SEC under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis.   
 Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley  Act, the Company has included a report of m anagement’s 
assessment of the design and operating effectiveness of its inte rnal controls as part of this R eport.  The Company’s 
independent registered public accounti ng firm reported on the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting.  Management’s report and th e independent registered public accoun ting firm’s report are included with 
the Company’s 2011 consolidated financial statem ents in Item 8 of this Report under the captions entitled 
“Management’s Report on Internal C ontrol Over Financial Reporting” and “R eport of Independent R egistered 
Public Accounting Firm.” 
 
CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  
 

Management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial repor ting identified a material 
weakness in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting related to the determ ination of the allowance 
for credit losses as of Decem ber 31, 2009 and 2010.  During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company successfully 
remediated two of the deficiencies that contributed to the m aterial weakness reported as of Decem ber 31, 2009.  
These deficiencies related to (i) identification of loan modifications and communication with accounting personnel 
for accounting and disclosure considerati on and (ii) ineffective controls to en sure that updated appraisals for loans 
were obtained.  During the fourth quarter of 2011, the C ompany successfully remediated the final deficiency  that 
contributed to the m aterial weakness reported as of Decem ber 31, 2009 and 2010.  This deficiency related to 
ineffective controls to recognize tim ely the im pact of changes in credit quality on the grading of loans in the 
determination of the allowance for credit losses. 
 
 
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION. 
 
None. 
PART III 
 
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE. 
 
 Information concerning the directors and nominees of the Company appears under the caption “Proposal 1:  
Election of Directors” in the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for its 2012 annual meeting of shareholders, and 
is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 
 
 Certain information regarding executive officers is included under the section captioned “Executive 
Officers of the Registrant” in Part I, Item  1, elsewhere in  the Report.  Other inform ation required by this Item is 
incorporated herein by reference to the Com pany’s definitive Proxy St atement for its 2012 annual m eeting of 
shareholders. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT 
 

Information regarding audit committee financial experts serving on the Audit Committee of the Company’s 
Board of Directors appears under the caption “Corporate Gove rnance - Committees of the Board of Directors” in 
the Company’s definitive Proxy Statem ent for its 2012 annual meeting of shareholders, and is incorporated herein 
by reference. 

 
 

IDENTIFICATION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

Information regarding the Audit Committee and the identification of its members appears under the caption 
“Corporate Governance - Committees of the Board of Directors” in the Com pany’s definitive Proxy Statement for 
its 2012 annual m eeting of shareholders, and is incorporat ed herein by  reference.  In establishing the Audit 
Committee’s compliance with Rule 10A -3 under the Exchange Act, each member of the Com pany’s Audit 
Committee is relying upon the exem ption provided by Rule  10A-3(b)(1)(iv)(B) of the Exchange Act because each 
member of the Audit Committee is also a member of the Bank’s Board of Directors. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES TO PROCEDURES BY WHICH SECURITY HOLDERS MAY 
RECOMMEND NOMINEES 
 
 The Company has not m ade any material changes to  the procedures by  which its shareholders m ay 
recommend nominees to the C ompany’s Board of Director s since the date of the C ompany’s definitive Proxy 
Statement for its 2011 annual meeting of shareholders. 
 
SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE 
 
 Information regarding the Secti on 16(a) beneficial ownership com pliance of each of the Company’s 
directors and executive officers or each person who owns  more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the 
Company’s common stock appears under the caption “General  Information - Section 16(a) B eneficial Ownership 
Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2012 annual meeting of shareholders, 
and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
CERTAIN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DOCUMENTS 
 
 The Company has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to its directors, chief 
executive officer, chief financial officer, other officers, other financial reporting persons and em ployees.  The 
Company has also adopted C orporate Governance Principles for its Board of Directors.  These documents, as well 
as the charters of the Audit Com mittee, Executive Compensation and Stock Incentive Committee and Nominating 
Committee of the Board of Directors,  are available on the Com pany’s website at www.bancorpsouth.com  on the 
Investors Relations webpage under the captions “Corporate Information-Governance Documents” and “-Committee 
Charting,” or shareholders may request a free copy of these documents from: 
 

BancorpSouth, Inc. 
Corporate Secretary 
One Mississippi Plaza 
201 South Spring Street 
Tupelo, Mississippi 38804 
(662) 680-2000 

 
 The Company intends to disclose any  amendments to its code of business conduct and ethics and any  
waiver from a provision of the code, as required by  the SEC, on the Company’s website within four business days 
following such amendment or waiver. 



 129

 
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION. 
 
 This information appears under the captions “Execu tive Compensation,”  “Compensation Discussion and 
Analysis,” “Director Compensation” and “Executive Compensation and Stock Incentive Committee Report” in the 
Company's definitive Proxy Statem ent for its 2012 annual m eeting of shareholders, and is  incorporated herein by 
reference.   
 
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND 
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS. 
 
 Information regarding the security  ownership of certain beneficial owners a nd directors, nom inees and 
executive officers of the C ompany appears under the caption “Security  Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners 
and Management” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2012 annual meeting of shareholders, and is 
incorporated herein by reference. 
 The following table provides inform ation as of De cember 31, 2011 with respect to com pensation plans 
(including individual compensation arrangements) under which shares of  Company common stock are authorized 
for issuance:  

Number of shares Weighted-average Number of shares remaining
to be issued upon exercise price of available for future

exercise of outstanding outstanding issuance under equity
options and rights (a) options and rights (b) compensation plans (1) (c)

Plan Category:
Equity compensation plans
  approved by shareholders (2)(3) 2,710,276                      21.73$                         449,054                                 
Equity compensation  plans not
  approved by shareholders (4) 3,747                             12.85                           413,589                                 
Total 2,714,023                      21.72$                         862,643                                 

(1)  Excludes shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options and rights.
(2) Column (a) does not include 16,401 restricted shares that were unvested or 121,465 performance shares that

were unearned as of December 31, 2011.  Such unvested restricted shares and performance shares are also 
excluded from the number of shares remaining available for future issuance under our equity compensation plans
in column (c).  The weighted average exercise price in column (b) does not take these awards into account because
they have no exercise price.

(3) The plans that have been approved by our shareholders include the BancorpSouth, Inc. Director Stock Plan, 
the Executive Performance Incentive Plan, the 1990 Stock Incentive Plan, the Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan
and the 1995 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors.

(4) The plans that have not been approved by our shareholders include the BancorpSouth, Inc. 1998 Stock Option
Plan and the plan assumed with the merger of Business Holding Corporation, which was effective 
December 31, 2004.

 
  
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR 
INDEPENDENCE. 
 
 Information regarding certain relati onships and related transactions w ith management and others appears 
under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for 
its 2012 annual m eeting of shareholders, and is incorporated herein by  reference.  Information regarding director 
independence appears under the caption “C orporate Governance – Director Independence” in the C ompany’s 
definitive Proxy Statement for its 2011 annual meeting of shareholders, and is incorporated herein by reference. 
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES. 
 
 Information regarding accountant fees and services appears under the cap tion “Proposal 2:  Ratification of 
Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for 
its 2012 annual meeting of shareholders, and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 
PART IV 
 
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES. 
 
(a) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedules and Exhibits: 
     1. Consolidated Financial Statements:  See “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” 
 
     2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules: 
  All schedules are omitted as the required information is inapplicable or the information is presented in  
  the financial statements or related notes.   
 
     3. Exhibits: 

(3) (a) Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended. (1) 
(b) Bylaws, as amended and restated. (2) 
(c) Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Bylaws. (3) 
(d) Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated Bylaws (4) 
(e) Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated Bylaws (4) 

(4) (a) Specimen Common Stock Certificate. (5) 
(b) Amended and Restated Certificate of Trust of BancorpSouth Capital Trust I. (6) 
(c) Second Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of BancorpSouth Capital Trust I, dated 

as of January 28, 2002, between BancorpSouth, Inc., The Bank of New York, The Bank 
of New York (Delaware) and the Administrative Trustees named therein. (7) 

(d) Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated as of January 28, 2002, between BancorpSouth, 
Inc. and The Bank of New York. (7) 

(e) Guarantee Agreement, dated as of January 28, 2002, between BancorpSouth, Inc. and 
The Bank of New York. (7) 

(f) Junior Subordinated Debt Security Specimen. (7) 
(g) Trust Preferred Security Certificate for BancorpSouth Capital Trust I. (7) 
(h) Certain instruments defining the rights of certain holders of long-term debt securities of 

the Registrant are omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii)(A) of Regulation S-K. The 
Registrant hereby agrees to furnish copies of these instruments to the SEC upon request. 

(10) (a) BancorpSouth, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and restated. 
(8)(27) 

(b) BancorpSouth, Inc. Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan. (9)(27) 
(c) Amendment to BancorpSouth, Inc. Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan. (10) (27) 
(d) Form of Performance Share Award Agreement. (11)(27) 
(e) BancorpSouth, Inc. Director Stock Plan, as amended and restated. (12)(27) 
(f) 1995 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors. (13)(27) 
(g) BancorpSouth, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan (14)(27) 
(h) BancorpSouth, Inc. Restoration Plan, as amended and restated. (8)(27) 
(i) BancorpSouth, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated. (8)(27) 
(j) BancorpSouth, Inc. Home Office Incentive Plan. (15)(27) 
(k) Description of Dividend Reinvestment Plan. (16)(27) 
(l) BancorpSouth, Inc., Amended and Restated Salary Deferral-Profit Sharing Employee 

Stock Ownership Plan. (17)(27) 
(m) Form of BancorpSouth, Inc. Change in Control Agreement. (18)(27) 
(n) Form of Amendment to BancorpSouth, Inc. Change in Control Agreement. (8)(27) 
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(o) BancorpSouth, Inc. Change in Control Agreement for Aubrey B. Patterson. (19)(27) 
(p) BancorpSouth, Inc. Change in Control Agreement for James V. Kelley. (20)(27) 
(q) BancorpSouth, Inc. Change in Control Agreement for Gregg Cowsert. (19)(27) 
(r) BancorpSouth, Inc. Change in Control Agreement for Michael Sappington. (19)(27) 
(s) BancorpSouth, Inc. Change in Control Agreement for Larry Bateman. (21)(27) 
(t) BancorpSouth, Inc. Change in Control Agreement for William L. Prater. (22)(27) 
(u) BancorpSouth, Inc. Change in Control Agreement for Gordon Lewis. (23)(27) 
 (v) BancorpSouth, Inc. 1994 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement with Aubrey 

B. Patterson. (24)(27) 
(w) BancorpSouth, Inc. Executive Performance Incentive Plan. (25)(27) 
(x) BancorpSouth, Inc. Deferred Directors’ Fee Unfunded Plan. (8)(27) 
(y) Premier Bancorp, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan. (26)(27) 
(z) Premier Bancorp, Inc. 1998 Outside Director Stock Option Plan. (26)(27) 
(aa) Form of Stock Option Agreement for converted Business Holding Corporation Options 

(Vesting). (26)(27) 
(bb) Form of Stock Option Agreement for converted Business Holding Corporation Options 

(Non-Vesting). (26)(27) 
(11) Statement re computation of per share earnings.* 
(21) Subsidiaries of the Registrant.* 
(23) Consent of Independent Accountants.* 
(31.1) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of BancorpSouth, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14 or 

15d-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.* 

(31.2) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of BancorpSouth, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14 or 15d-
14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.* 

(32.1) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of BancorpSouth, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.* 

(32.2) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of BancorpSouth, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.* 

(101) Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, the following financial information from the Company’s 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, is formatted in XBRL 
(Extensible Business Reporting Language) interactive data files: (i) the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Income for each of 
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of 
Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for each of the years ended December 31, 2010, 
2009 and 2008, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the years ended 
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, and (v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
tagged as blocks of text.*(28) 

__________________ 
(1) Filed as exhibit 3(a) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 

2009 (file number 001-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 
(2) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 

(file number 1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 
(3) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 

(file number 1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 
(4) Filed as exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 26, 2007 (File 

number 1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 
(5) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994 

(file number 0-10826) and incorporated by reference thereto. 
(6) Filed as exhibit 4.12 to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-3 filed on November 2, 2001 

(Registration No. 33-72712) and incorporated by reference thereto. 
(7) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 28, 2002 (file number 

1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 



 132

(8) Filed as an exhibit to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 
(file number 0-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(9) Filed as an appendix to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on March 25, 
2011 (file number 1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto.  

(10) Filed as an exhibit to the C ompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 8, 2011 (file number 1-
12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(11) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 7, 2007 (file number 1-
12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(12) Filed as an appendix to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on March 26, 
2004 (file number 1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(13) Filed as an exhibit to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 
2005 (file number 1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(14) Filed as exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Post-Effective Amendment No. 5 on Form S-3 to Form S-4 filed 
February 23, 1999 (Registration No. 333-280181) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(15) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 
(file number 1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(16) Filed in the Company’s filing pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2) filed on January 5, 2004 (Registration No. 033-
03009) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(17) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-8 filed on April 19, 2006 
(Registration No. 333-133390) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(18) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 
(file number 1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(19) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 
31, 1999 (file number 001-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(20) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-4 filed June 14, 2000 (Registration 
No. 333-39326) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(21) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 
(file number 1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(22) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 25, 2009 (file number 1-
12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(23) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 
(file number 1-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(24) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 24, 2009 (file number 1-
12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(25) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 
31, 2003 (file number 001-12991) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(26) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-8 filed December 30, 2004 
(Registration No. 333-121785) and incorporated by reference thereto. 

(27) Compensatory plans or arrangements. 
(28) As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information is furnished and not filed for purposes of 

Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
* Filed herewith. 
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SIGNATURES 
 

 Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant 
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 
                                                                                                BANCORPSOUTH, INC. 
 
DATE:  February 27, 2012                                                  By:    /s/Aubrey B. Patterson  
                                                                                                Aubrey B. Patterson 
                                                                                                Chairman of the Board 
                                                                                                and Chief Executive Officer 
 
 Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by 
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 
 
                                                                                          Chairman of the Board, Chief 
                                                                                          Executive Officer (Principal 
/s/ Aubrey B. Patterson                        Executive Officer) and Director    February 27, 2012 
Aubrey B. Patterson 
 
                                                                                           Treasurer and Chief Financial 

     Officer (Principal Financial 
/s/William L. Prater                                                            Officer)     February 27, 2012 
William L. Prater 
 
 

     Senior Vice President and  
/s/Gary C. Bonds                                                            Principal Accounting Officer February 27, 2012 
Gary C. Bonds 
 
 
/s/James E. Campbell III                               Director                                February 27, 2012 
James E. Campbell III 
 
 
/s/Hassell H. Franklin                               Director                                February 27, 2012 
Hassell H. Franklin 
 
 
/s/W. G. Holliman, Jr.                                                          Director                                February 27, 2012 
W. G. Holliman, Jr. 
 
 
/s/Warren A. Hood, Jr.                                                        Director                                February 27, 2012 
Warren A. Hood, Jr. 
 
 
/s/James V. Kelley                                                         President, Chief Operating        February 27, 2012 
James V. Kelley Officer and Director 
 
 
/s/Larry G. Kirk                                                               Director February 27, 2012 
Larry G. Kirk   
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/s/Turner O. Lashlee                                                           Director February 27, 2012 
Turner O. Lashlee               
 
 
/s/Guy W. Mitchell                                                          Director                                February 27, 2012 
Guy W. Mitchell, III 
 
 
/s/ Robert C. Nolan                                                            Director                                February 27, 2012 
Robert C. Nolan 
 
 
/s/W. Cal Partee, Jr.                                                            Director                                February 27, 2012 
W. Cal Partee, Jr. 
 
 
/s/Alan W. Perry                                                                  Director                                February 27, 2012 
Alan W. Perry 
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BancorpSouth, Inc. (NYSE: BXS) is a financial holding company headquartered in Tupelo, Mississippi,
with $13.0 billion in assets at December 31, 2011.  BancorpSouth Bank, a wholly owned subsidiary
of BancorpSouth, Inc., operates 286 commercial banking, mortgage, insurance, trust and broker/dealer
locations in Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, Tennessee and Texas.
BancorpSouth Bank also operates an insurance location in Illinois.

A B O U T  T H E  C O M P A N Y

Corporate Information As of March 1, 2012

Corporate Headquarters
BancorpSouth
One Mississippi Plaza
201 South Spring Street
Tupelo, MS 38804

Annual Meeting
9:00 a.m. (local time), April 25, 2012
BancorpSouth Corporate Headquarters
Fourth Floor
One Mississippi Plaza
201 South Spring Street
Tupelo, MS 38804

Common Shares
Listed on the New York Stock Exchange
NYSE Symbol: BXS

Trust Preferred Securities
BancorpSouth Capital Trust I
Listed on the New York Stock Exchange
NYSE Symbol:  BXS.A

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive
Cranford, New Jersey 07016-3572
Tel: (800) 368-5948
E-mail: info@rtco.com
Internet address: www.rtco.com

Independent Auditors
KPMG LLP
Memphis, TN

Legal Counsel
J. Patrick Caldwell
Riley, Caldwell, Cork & Alvis, P.A.
Tupelo, MS

Waller Lansden Dortch & Davis, LLP
Nashville, TN

Subsidiaries
Gumtree Wholesale Insurance Brokers, Inc.
BancorpSouth Bank and its wholly owned subsidiaries
    •Century Credit Life Insurance Company
    •Personal Finance Corporation
    •BancorpSouth Investment Services, Inc.
    •BancorpSouth Municipal Development Corporation
    •BancorpSouth Insurance Services, Inc.
    •BancorpSouth Bank Securities Corporation

Bank deposits are FDIC insured.  BancorpSouth Investment Services, Inc. and
BancorpSouth Insurance Services, Inc. are wholly owned subsidiaries of 
BancorpSouth Bank. Insurance products are offered by BancorpSouth Insurance
Services, Inc.  Investment products are offered by BancorpSouth Investment 
Services, Inc.  Member FINRA/SIPC. Insurance and investment products are:  
• Not a deposit  • Not FDIC insured  • Not insured by any federal government
agency • Not guaranteed by the bank  • May go down in value.

Website
www.bancorpsouth.com 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Shareholders of the Company are eligible
to participate in the Dividend Reinvestment
Plan. Under the terms of the Plan, common
stock of the Company may be purchased by
reinvesting cash dividends. For additional
information contact the Transfer Agent.

An Equal Opportunity Employer
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